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- We are the UK’s brand leader
in self storage. In a chorllengmg
. yecxr our diverse user base |
has helped us to deliver a
resilient performance.

We are committed to growing

‘the business and never forget

our responsibility to our staff,

- the environment and the
‘communities we operate in.
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Highlights B

. W2021 W2020

Financial

metrics

Revenue

£129.3m

Store revenue'!

- £132.5m .59%

£125.4m

- Like for like. re\}enue .

£131.2m .49

£125.1m

Store EBITDA !

o £91 9m +5.4% |

£87. 2m

Adjusted profit
. before tax!

- £74. 6m+51% ‘

. £71.0m

. EPRA earnings .

per share!

42 4p +0.7%

42, lp

- Dividend final

l7.0p +1.8%

S 167p

Dividend total

. 34.0p.0e

33.8p

5135 Zm +4.6%

Stcttutory o
metrics

Profit before tax

£265.8m .15 -

£93.4m

. Cash flow from

operating activities

£76.7m ...

£73. 6m -

.~ Basic e’armngs ‘

per share

152.3p +173% -

. 55.8p

Store

metrics

Store Maximum Lettable - -
Area"MLA"! .

4,930,000sq ft o f

4, 688 000 sq ft

~ Closing occupancy (sq ft) !

4 201, 000 sq ft .. |

3,781,000 5q ! ft.

- Occupancy change! °,

420,000 sq ft

- +449,000 sq ft

(29,000 sq ity -

Closing occupancy ! -

"8524H“m‘-

.80.7%

Occupancy -1like-forlike stores (%)’

87-4% +67 ppts ,

80.7%

AVerctge net achieved rent per-sq ft!

£28.16 +11%

£27.86

Closing net rent per sq ft !

£28.71 on

£28.15

(1] See note 33 for glossary of terms
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Highlights

- 4.6% revenue increase largely dnven by increase in
' average occupancy

- Store revenue for the fourth quchtér was £33.8 million,
- . an increase of 9.7% from £30.8 miillion for the same
quarter last year ’

=" Average net achieved rent per sq ft up 1.1% year-on-year.
Like-fér-like closing store oécupancy 87.4% (2020: 80.7%)

~ Cash ﬂow from opercmng activities mcreased by 4, 2% ) ,
to £76.7 million

T - Ad)usted profit before tax up 5.1% to £74.6 million, ctdjusted
earnings per share up 0.7% to 42. 4p

= 0.6% increase.in total dividend to 34.0 pence per share
.= Statutory profit before tax of £265.8 million, up 185%

. from prior year due fo higher revaluation gain on
investment properties

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021 |

. Three new steres opened in the year in Camberwell

(London), Bracknell and Battersea (London)

Placing of 8.3 million shares in April 2020 redsing
£799 million (net of expenses) to grow our
development pipeline -

: Aci:ruisition of four new development sites in Wapping,

Staines, Epsom, and Kentish- Town (all London) with a totad
estimated self storage development cost of £106 million.

" These acquisitions take the pipeline to 14 sites totalling

approximately 1.0 million sq ft (20% of cunent MLA)..

Planning consent secured on five proposed stores in yean,
eight in total now have planning



Resilient

performance

This pandemic has accelerated many structural changes that were

already occurring, such as the move to online retailing and'an increase

in working from home facilitated by technologicat advances. These
developments, combined with the shortage of.quality flexible
mini-warehousing space, from which to operate small scale storage
and e-fulfilment is helping to drive our demand..

For the most part, industry, construction and the housing and .
property markets have remained open during the year. People

have also been reflecting on how they live their lives or operate their
businesses during this difficult time. :

Big Yellow has a varied customer base and broad demand drivers.
Even with the restrictions on freedom of movement and the challenges
of the pastyear, this diverse demand coupled with a low customer |
_ churnrate in the year have helped to demonstrate the resilience
of our business. ' !

The extehsive locations of our stores in London, the South East
and across the UK, pius a strong and well recognised brand are key

" elements of our business. In addition, the unrivalled security of our
stores and our focus on customer service, together with the diversity

of our 62,000 customers, serves us well in providing income security. -

- Occupancy up

420,000 sq ft

Overall Sccupied space increased by 420,000 sq ft, with gains in
both business and domestic occupancy. Overall store occupancy
has increased in the year from 80.7% to 85.2%. On a like-for-like

" basis, excluding Camberwell, Bracknell, and Battersea, which all

opened inthe year, closing occupancy was 87.4%, an increase of
6.7 percentage points. o '

' Revenue up

4.6%

Revenue for the year was £135.2 million (2020: £129.3 million),
anincrease of 4.6%. Like-for-like store revenue growth was 4.9%.
Store revenue for the fourth quarter was £33.8 million, an increase
of 9.7% from £30.8 million for the same quarter last year.

Adjusted profit before tax up

5.1%

The Group made a‘profit before tax in the year of £265.8 million,
compared to a profit of £93.4 million in the prior year. After
adjusting for thé gain on the revaluation of investment properties
and other one-off items, the Group made an adjusted profit before
taxin the year of £74.6 million, up 5.1% from £71.0 million in 2020."

Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Big Yellow Group PLC



| ‘ ‘ Our varied
~ demand drivers,
~ have helped to

~ deliver

- growthina
challenging
yearyy

eands ﬁup'[nw.'; - -

Growth inour occupdncy (000 sa ft)
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Diverse |
user base =

Our growth in occupancy in the year has been driven by both domestic and
" business demand, broadly in proportion to the space they occupy within
" the business. ‘

Domestic demand drivers

The housing market, which re-opened as the first lockdown was gréduallg
lifted, has been stimulated further with the stamp duty holiday. Self storage
is used as a stop gap between homes or to alleviate the stress of the
moving process. It is our single largest demand driver.

Home living space has been under enormous pressure due to Covid-19 ——
with people spending more time in their homes than ever before. Ahome, ~ . .
I'_\as had new, multiple roles to perform; aplace tolive, to work, to school % of storage space occupied ’
and to exercise. Big Yellow has been an enabler for peaple to declutter so . by customer type
their home space can work more effectively. - . . )

People want toimprove their living space, especially with the increase

“in home working. This often leads to building works, extensions and’
heme improvement projects. This has seen customers using Big Yeliow
to store and protect their furniture in‘order to get the work done.

Births, divorce, inheritance and other key life events have of course
continued and create a need for self storage. We provide the convenience
to keep personal possessions safe and secure.

Our domestic move-ins between 1 July 2020 and 31 March 2021 were
up 3.5% year-on-year. : ’

‘.

Growing demand from businesses ‘ ,
: Average space occupied

Business demand to use our storage space for stock, archiving oras a . by customer type
distribution hub has increased over the last year, with business move-ins . :
between 1 July 2020 and 31 March 2021 up 19% year-on-year.

This demand has been driven by the surge in online retail with e-tailers
using Big Yellow as a flexible solution to stare stock and for e-fulfilment.
The UK supply chain has been under enormous préssure over thelast

18 months from Brexit stockpiling and the effects of Covid-19. With -
traditional UK warehousing reaching full capacity in the yearand a general
shortage of quality, mini-warehousing space, many businesses are using
Big Yellow as an alternative, more flexible solution.

Many companies who closed or reduced their commetcial office space in
the year have used Big Yellow to store furniture and equipment whilst staff
work from home. We have also experienced an increase in demand from
healthcare companies distributing PPE, and from events, exhibitions,
theatre and film companies who have needed a place to store equipment |
because of lockdowns. ’

AnnualVReport and Accounts 2021 Big Yellow Group PLC
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‘ ‘ We exist to ensure the hopes
of people and businesses

- are never held back
by alack of spcxce ’ ’ '

‘Demand driversin the year
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Growing

the business

‘New developments

The structural need for self storage is now firmly embedded and so,
put simply, we are building more of it focussed on our core areas of
‘London, its commuter towns, and major cities where the barriers

' to new supply remain high. .

We acquired four new development sites in Wapping, Staines,_
Epsom and Kentish Town. Our development pipeline now includes
14 further Big Yellow sites, mainly in London. Eight of these
development sites have planning, with consent granted for five
new stores in the year. - ‘

The cost to complete this pipeline is approximately £165 million. -
These store openings are expected to add approximately 1.0 million
sqftof storage space to the portfalio, anincrease of 20% from the
current maximum lettable area of.the Group's portfollo

Ourcurrent estimate of net operating income at stabilisation,

attoday's prices, for this increase in capacity is £25.8 million.

The total development costis estimated to be approximately
-£294 million implying an 8.8% net operating income return on cost.

Ijevelopment pipeline in crction

‘Construction is underway at five of our development sites:

Uxbridge (opening summer 2021), Hayes [opening early 2022), Hove-
(opening spring 2022), Harrow [opemng summer 2022} and Kings
Cross (opening spring 2023).

Three new stores opened in the year:

‘®  Camberwell, a 75,000 sq ft store opened in Julg 2020 and was

38%occupied at 31 March 2021. .
" Bracknell,a 59, 000 sq ft store opened in Septernber 2020 and
" was 40% occupied at 31 March 2021.
" Qur 70,000 sq ft Batt_ersea store reopened in November 2020 aftera
complete redevelopment and was 26% occupied at 31 March 2021.

Once a new store is builtand operauonal ittakes on average Sixto

nine months foritto break even

By burldmg stores with a larger average store capacity compared to the
rest of the self storage industry, we can achieve economies of 5cale '

“and higher operating margins.

- The prominentlocations of our stores on arterial or main roads, with

extensive frontage and high visibility help benefit the brand with
marketleading brand awareness, over five tlmes hngherthan our next
nearest competrtor :

" Planning - Construction

Ourbuildings are desngned tobein keepmg
with the local built environment and to feature
the latest sustainability initiatives. We always
exceed the required building regulations and
aim to give something back to benefit the -
local community where possible.

Constructing a store will take on average
12 to 18 months and the process involves
two stages 1) building the shell and 2)
fit-out of the Storage floors and rooms.

We adhere to BREEAM “excellent” standards
when we build our stores.

Fit-Out

- Once the construction of our shellis
completed, our fit-out team begin creating -
on average 1,000 storage rooms in various
sizes. We irg and use social.enterprise
companies like BounceBack where possible
and also ensure the store is contributing to
the local bio diversity of the area.

Annual Re_pbrt cnd-Accounts 2021 Big Yellow Group PLC
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‘ ‘ Primarily freehold estate, concentrated

in London, its commuter towns ‘and other

large metropolitan cities yy

Contractors

We use a team of regular contractors who
are familiar with working to our exacting

standards: We are loyal with their repeated :

appointments and in return we abtain
consistent build quality standards.

Marketing

The new store is integrated into the

Big Yellow website.and appropriate marketing
campaigns commence. The 24/7 visual
prominence of a:new Big Yellow store drives
brand awareness for the local audience.

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021

Opening

*With a new manager and store team fully

trained and in place, storage enquiries from.
domestic and business audiences start
comingin to our store via the website, phone
or from walk-ins. Our focus on customer
service and unrivalled security will help
transform these enguiries into customers.
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A responsi

business

Net Renewable Enérgy Positive Strategy
and Net Zero Emissions Strategy

Already generating on-site renewable energy through solar PVs across -
many Big Yellow stores, we are committed to going much further and
have set out three new long-term, ambitious goals.

® .Tobe NetRenewable Energy Positive by 2030.

— Wewill generate as much renewable energy as we are able
to across our store portfolio via the installation of solar
photovoltaic (PV) systems. -

= Wewill generate off site renewable energg to match and even
.exceed the balance ofenergg our stores require each year.

— Continue toinvestin energy reduction initiatives.

® NetZeroScope 1 & 2 Emissions by 2030.
= NetZero Scope 3 by 2040.

The total medium term investment is expecte'd to be £11 million.

Viewour full Net Renewable Energy Positive Strategy at
corporate.bigyellow.co.uk/sustainability.

Big Yellow FQundottion'

Our Foundation supports seven charities who help vulnerable
adults get back into sustainable employment. Our continued
fundraising through customer donations continues to be vital
to these charity partners. Big Yellow Group PLC matches every
£1 donated by our customers.

" Seventh chamg Street League, added in 2020

m £223, 000 Foundation income in 2020/21 i
®  £147,000in Foundation grants paid outin 2020/21

" Supporting local communities

Outside of our'Big Yellow Foundation we continue to support Iocal
charities in the communities we operate in.

Our community investment via discounted storage space was

. £334,000, of which £30? 000 was given free ofcharge

Additional free space was donated to the Brmsh Red Cross worth

. justover £37,000.

‘We have also prowded a home to London Children’s Ballet who have

occupied the studio space at our.new Battersea'store, under our
Section 106 Social Agreement with Wandsworth Borough Council.

e

Net Renewdable Energy fositivé bi/
2030

Net Zero Scope 1& 2 Emissions by

12030

Net.Zero Scdpé 3 Emissions by

2040
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- Projected number of stores with solar by 2030

" " Big Yellow Group» PLC Annual Report cnd Accounis 2021 -

1



12

Our extensive national network

We have locations

right across the UK

with 78 Big Yellow stores
and 25 Armadillo stores.
Our customers like

our modern, easily - .
accessible and highly
visible stores. . - '

We want to keep expanding and have now -
grown our development pipeline to 14 more -
sites to develop into Big Yellow stores.

The current maximum lettable area of the
existing platform (including Armadillo)
i5.6.0 million sq ft. When fully built out
the portfolio will provide approximately
7.0 million sq ft of flexible storage space.

Of the Big Yellow stores and sites, 98% by
value are held freehold and long leasehold
with the remaining short leasehold.

B we have grown
- our pipeline and

London
54 stores and sites

now have a further -

14 sites to develop
into future Big

Yellow stores , ’

. Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Big Yellow Group PLC
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Outside'London
63 stores and sites

Big Yellow Group, PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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Chairman’s Statement

Big Y_ellow Group PLC (‘fBig Yellow”,
“the Group" or “the Company”), the
UK's brand leader in self storage, is

pleased to announce its results for the -

year ended 31 March 2021.

The Group has delivered continued
growth in all metrics over what has
been a very challenging yeatr.

The trading momentum we referred
to when announcing our half year
results has continued in the second
half and the incréase in occupied
space we have achieved this year
has been one of the strongest for
“many years. This growth has been
driven by both domestic and business
demand, broadly in proportion to the
space they occupy within the
business. We are also pleased to have
- delivered growth in adjusted profit,
cash flow and earmngs per share
over the year.

Awareness of self storage has increased over the yearand we have .
seen thatthrougha sngnmcant step-upin vnsuts to our digital platforms
and prospect growth,

This pandemic has accelerated many structural changes that were
already occurring, such as the move to online retailing and an increase
in working from home facilitated by technological advances. These
developments, combined with the shohage of quality flexible
mini-warehousing space, from which to operate small scale storage
and e-fulfilmentis helping to dnve our demand. We believe these are
long-term trends.

Financial results

Revenue for the year was £135.2 million (2020: £129.3 million), an
increase of 4.6%. Like-for- Iuke store revenue growth [seenote 33)
was 4.9%.

. Store revenue for the fourth quarter was £33.8 mitlion, an increase of
9.7% from £30.8 million for the same quarter last year. :

At 31 March 2021 like-for-like occupancy was 87.4%,.an increase of
6.7 ppts from the same time last year. Average rental growth was
up 1.1% year-on-year compared to 2.7% last year.

Dperating cash flow increased by £3.1 million (4.2%) 10 £76.7 million for
the year (2020: £73.6 million). During the year we spent £73.0 million
on growth capital expenditure, compared to £63.7 millionin 2020.

Given that our central overhead and operating expense is largely
‘embedded in the business, this revenue growth has delivered an

increaseof 5.1% in the adjusted profit before tax in the year of

" £74.6 million (2020: £71.0 million). EPRA earnings per share increased

by 0.7%t0 42.4p {2020: 42.1p) with an equivalent 0.6% increase in the
dividend per share for the year. The increase in earnings per share is
lower than that reported for adjusted profit before tax due to the
dilutive effect of the equity placing in Aprit 2020.

The Group’s statutory profit before taxwas £265.8 million,én increase

-of 185% from £93.4 million in the prior year with a higher revaluation

gain on our investment properties in the year.

Netdebt was £325.0 million at 31 March 2021, we have available
liquidity bf approximately-£100 millian and the business continues to

_ generate positive post-dividend cash flow.

Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Big Yellow Group PLC
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Chairman’s Statement continuea) -

Planning

The planning system remains complex and has successfully adapted -

to Covid-19 restrictions, with-applications being processed. Thanks
to the efforts of our property team we have made significant progress
with planning consents granted for our new stores in Hayes, North
Kingston, Wembley, Harrow, and Kings Cross (all in London). Kihgs

. Cross has been a very complex planning process given its location,

including the acquisition of additional land, and we were very pleased
to receive aresolution to grant planning in October after five years
of hard work. :

Development pipeline

To fund the acquisition of further development sites, the Group raised
£79.9 million (net of expenses), through the issue of 8.3 million shares
in April 2020. -

Big Yellow now has a pipeline comprising 14 development sites witha’
cost to complete of approximately £165 million, which will be phased
over the next five years as we build out stores. These store openings
are expected to add approximately 1.0 million sq ft of storage space.to
the portfolio, an increase of 20% from the current maximum fettable -
area of the Group’s portfolio.

Qurcurrent estimate of.ne't operating income at stabilisation,
attoday's prices, for this increase in capacity is £25.8 million.

The total development cost is'estimated to be approximately
£294 million implying an 8.8% net operating income return on cost.

Within the figures above, the total self storage development cost
of the four sites acquired since April 2020 amounts to approximately
£106 million. - g

Dividends

The Group’s dividend policy is to distribute 80% of full year adjusted
earnings per share. The final distribution of PID and ordinary dividend

‘declared is 17.0 pence per share. This brings the total distribution
-declared for the year to 34.0 pence per share representing an increase

of 0.6% from 33.8 pence per share last year.

Our people A

This has been a very challenging year for everyone with the.combined
effects of a health and an economic crisis. Throughout the year,

we made significant investment to make our workplaces safe and,
Covid-secure for our employees, customers, and suppliers. We have,
alsoincreased our focus on wellbeing to heighten our responsiveness:
during what has beena very stressful time. ) :

We have worked hard over mavng years to create an inclusive culture
with high levels of engagement, and this has been reflected in the
outstanding efforts of our people over the last year. | would like 1o
thank them all for their continued loyalty and efforts to tackle all the
challenges that have faced us since the onset of the pandemic.

Board

Over the last 12 months we have made further appointments as
Non-Executives rotate off the Board..As of today, we have two new’

.Non-Executives who were appointed during the year, one of whom has

been appointed since the‘publication of ourlastannual report.

Heather Savory joined the Board in March 2021 as a Non-Executive
Director. Heather has a wealth of experience in the private and public
sectors, and a special interest in the use of data. Heather has been
appointed as the Chair of the Group’s Sustainability Committee.

Additionallg,‘Michael U’Donn‘e‘ll willjojn the Board as a Non-Executive
Director with effect from 1 September 2021. Michael has significant
private equity experience. Richard Cotton will be stepping down from

" ‘the Board in July 2022, after serving his full term as a Non-Executive. -

I have no doubt that they will make a significant contribution to

“Big Yellowin the coming years.

Annual Report and Accéunts 2021 Big Yellow Group PLC
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‘ ‘ Our investment case
remains to provide
consistent compounding
returns from both income
and growth from a

secure capital

structureyy -

b

~ Outlook

We can have no complaint as to the performance of the business over
the last year. Risks remain and therefore, as alwags we remain
cautious. There are; however, reasonable grounds to have confidence
in our business model having navigated two external crises of
considerable proportion since the Global Financial Crisis.

The structural need for self storage is now firmly embedded and so, put
simply, we are building more of it focussed on our core areas of London,
its commuter towns, and major cities where the barriers to new supply
remain high. This increase in capacity, combined with the cash flow
growth we can derive from our existing portfolio, given its increased

.pricing power, will drive performance over the next few years.

The stores are approaching olr target of 30% occupancy, we have
fourteen sites in development, representing 20% growth to the existing
capacity and we have ten times interest cover. Our investment case
remains to provide consistent compounding returns from both income

and growth from a secure capital structure.

.

Nicholas Vetch .
Executive Chairman

24 May 2021
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This has been an extraordinarily
difficult year for many throughout the
country. If I think back to the second
half of Mareh 2020, this was a period
of extreme uncertainty as we were
having to consider a pandemic risk

- in the context of so many unknowns.
. We 1mmed1ately set up our own

Cobra operating committee, which

.made operational decisions on &
daily and weekly basis, with regular

communication, both internally and
externally, through our digital
platforms and social media.

‘CEO introduction

As we are in storage and form part of distribution and logistics, we were
able to continue trading throughout the last year. All of our colleagues
have had to overcome formidable and unprecedented challenges and

| am very proud of their.efforts. Their response in March, following the
lockdown, was exemplaryand it allowed us to continue trading - to
serve our customers many of whom were carrying outimportant work

" . onbehalf of the NHS and other charities and critical organisations.

We continued providing services to our essential online and offline
retailers, and also to our domestic customers many of whom needed
storage at short notice, by way of example, students or hotel and
hospitality workers who decided to return home when the first
lockdown was introduced.

The safety of our employees, in particular those who were continuing
to work in our stores, and in some cases the head office, and-of our
customers and contractors, was of paramountimportance. We
immediately invested in store protocols with Perspexscreens,
signage, masks, and hand sanitiser, and then ensured that when the

" government protocols came out in mid-May we'were in compliance.

During the first lockdown we also took the decision to pay for prlvate
taxis for our employees who could not drive or cycle to work.

Despite.all the turmoil we have continued to innovate and make
Big Yellow not only a better business but also-better for our
communities and more environmentally sustainable; there is
of course much more we can and wili do.

For existing customers our stores allow automated access and we have
a check-in process online that allows for. minimal face-to-face contact

in store. During the early Summer we implemented paperless move-ins’
throughout the business with the introduction of digital signature pads.

Despite all the turmoil we
have continued to innovate

and make Big Yellow not -

only a better business
but also better for our
communities and more

- envnonmentally

sustcunqble 55

Annual Report and Accoﬁnts 2021 Big Yellow Group PLC



Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021

In March of this year, we launched a new improved check-in online
process which allows customers to complete the majority of their
move-in process remotely, this is saving a significant amount of time at
the store, with very positive customer feedpack.

We have forined a Sustainability Committee of the Board and are tod.ag

announcing our plan on how we will go about achieving our goal of Net )

Renewable Energy positive (“NREP") in the coming years and
eliminating our Scope 1 and 2 emissions. Full details of this plan can be
found in our 2021 Annual Report due to be published in June.

The Big Yellow Foundation goes from strength to strength and helps to
make the lives of some of the most vulnerable in our society a little
better. We have also continued to support our network of over 200 local
charities to whom we provide free storage and have also provided free
space to the British Red Cross in a number of our stores to support their
work with the NHS during the pandemic. i

The work of the property team over the last few years is paying off —
with new stores openingin Camberwell, Bracknell, and Battersea to be

followed by more, driving external growth. All of this witha financially

robust capital structure strengthened by the £80 million of equity we
raised from shareholders earlier in the year.

We successfully moved all our key training modules online and this,
alongside our digital appraisal system, customer feedback and

employee engagement platforms, improve information, productivity,

and efficiency. Two to three years ago we moved to reduce our reliance
on recruitment consultants and recruit directly through digital
channels, and this now covers over 90% of our recruitment, with
significant savings. We were not able to conduct our annual employee
engagement survey during the last 12 months but will be doing so this
Autumn. Feedback from our wellbeing experts and operating teams
would suggest levels of employee engagement remain high and we
have seen a significant reduction in staff turnover over the year.

Al) of this investment is only possible if the business continues to
succeed and it has therefore been pleasing to deliver a resilient
performance over the year. We remain confident in our business model,
and are looking forward to our seasonally stronger summer trading
period which will this year coincide with the gradual reopening of the
economy. We remain focussed on our core objective of 90% occupancy
across the portfolio, and as we further reduce vacant capacity, our

- pricing model will continue to deliver improved rental growth.

When we conceived of this business we wanted it to bea place where
people would be happy working, would feel they had opportunity to

.progress, and they would be treated fairly, and so | am very pleased to

see the work thatis b'ein_gdone ondiversity, equality and inclusion. For
society as a whole, and for all businesses, this is, with climate change,

the big challenge and will be a core focus going forward.

Jim Gibson
Chief Executive Officer

24 May 2021
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Ourkey
| performance

mdlcators .

KPIs

The key performance indicators of our stores are occupancy and net
rent per sq ft, which together drive the revenue of the business. These
are three key measures which are focused on by the Board and are
reported on a weekly basis. Over the course of the past five years, both
occupancyand revenue have grown significantly, with particularly
strong growth in the current financial year, after a weaker 2020
following the Brexit uricertainty and the initial impact of the UK
lockdown in response to Covid-19:

in 2017 closing netrent increased by 0.5%, by 2.7%in 2018, by 2.0% in
2019, by 3.2%in 2020 and by 2.0% in the year to March 2021. Our key
focus is on continuing to grow occupancy, with growth in net rent
following'oncé the stores have reached higher occupancy levels.

Ad]usted profit before tax, adjusted earnings per share which drive the

distributions to shareholders (as our dividend pollcg is to pay 80% of
adjusted earnings as dlvudends] are also KPIs. The Group focuses on
adjusted profitand earnings measures as they give.a clearer
underlying picture of the Group's trading performance without
distortion from external factors such as property valuations and the
fair value of derivatives. We have delivered compound adjusted eps and
dividend growth of 5.3% over the past five years. Compound adjusted
eps growth since 2004/5is 13.6%. The growth in adjusted eps and
dividends per share has been impacted by two equity placings in
September 2018 and April 2020 to fund our investmentin future
external growth. The placings of 4.5% in 2018 (raising £65.3 million)
and 4.99% equity in 2020 (raising £79.9 million) were dnluuve to
earnings over the period 2019 to 2021 '

Our non-financial KPls are the net promoter scores we receive from our
customers and the carbon intensity of the Group’s business. The
Group's net promoter score received from its customers during the
year was 82.9. This has increased by 8% over the past five years.

_Webelieve this overall score compares verg favourablg wnth other

consumer facing businesses.

The Group has reduced its carbon’ |ntensutg (our carbon emissions
divided by our average-occupied space) by 54% over the past five .
years. This has been achieved through investment in renewable
technology, roof mounted solar photo-voltaic sgstems and LED
lighting across the Groupsportfoho .

Closing occupctnéy
(000 sq ft)

’+420 000 sq it

+650,000 sq it over 5 years

v

Adjusted profit before tax .
(€m)

+5.1%

+36.6% over 5 yeaas

Annual Réport and Accounts 2021 Big Yellow Group PLC



Closmg net rent per sq ft ) Revénue
_ Em
32.0% +4.6%

*10._3% over 5 years +23.9% over 5 years

Adjusted earnings per share - Dividend per share
(pence) .. (pénce) .
° ,
+0.7% - +0.6%
'+22.9% over 5 years o

+23.2% over 5 years

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021 ‘

Carbon intensity
(per sqm)

-12%

-5A4°/o.ovex 5 years

Nef Promoter Score

+1.0 ppt

+6.3 ppts over 5 years.
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Store performance

The store platform

‘We now have a portfolio.of 78 open and trading Big Yellow stores, wnh afurther 14 developmem sites. The current maximum lettable area of the
78stores is 4.9 mlllan sq ft. When fully built out the portfolio will provide approxnmatelg 5.9 million sg ft of flexible storage space.

In addition, we  part-own and manage 25 Armadillo stores which are prlnClpaIIg located in regional UK towns and cities, and operate froma platform

of 1.1 million sq ft.

‘ Activity

Thé table below shows the quarterly move -in and move-out activity for Big Yellow stores overthe year:

Total move-ins

Total move-ins

Total move-outs Total move-outs

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 . 3t March 2020 . % 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 %
April to June 13,560 " 18,950 D) 10,047 14,242 (32%)
July to September . 20,867 20570 . 1% 119,128 22,520 C (5%
- October to December 16,323 14,643 i 1% 17,287 ) 17,424 T (1%)
January to March 15,616 16,498 . (5%)° 14,223 15,286 (7%)
Tota! . . 66,366 70,661 (6%) 60,685 69,972 - (13%)

As can be seen from ﬁie table above, both move-in and move-out
activity were down over the year, with move-outs more impacted than
move-ins. Activity levels have reduced, and rates of retention
increased over the year. We believe this'is partially a function of a.
change in customer mix, and also the impact of lockdown restrictions.
Our'stores are also more mature, and at higher levels of occupancy.

The Group'’s activity levels dropped significantly during the Spring full
lockdown. As the lockdown eased from mid-May we saw increased
activity from businesses and individuals, with the third quarter
showing strong growth in move-in activity year on year. The lockdown
during the fourth quarter caused activity levels to fall shghtlg

" year-on-year, i

Business move-ins between 1 July 2020 and 31 March 2021 were up
19%year-on-year. The increase in business demand is being driven by
online retailers, B2B traders looking for flexible mini-warehousing for
e-fulfilment, the shortening of supply chains, and businesses looking
to rationalise their other fixed costs of accommodation. This has
resulted in anincrease in the average size of our move-ins during the
year [excluding students) from 66.4 sq ftto 70.3 sq ft.

The average space occupied by business customers at the period end -

has increased slightly to 180 sq ft, Domestic customers occupy on
average 57 sqftand pay on average 22% more in rent per sq ft,
however business customers do stay longer and take more space, and
representaround 31% of revenue.

\

Domestic demand was impacted by the “stay at home message” and -
the freezing of the housing market. The phased relaxation of lockdown
from mid-May and reopening of the housing market, assisted by the
stamp duty holiday led to an imprgveiment in all aspects of short stay
and longer stay domestic demand. Domestic move-ins between 1 July
2020 and 31 March 2021 were up 3.5% year-on-year.

Student move-ins were down 31% in the year. This is partly due to a
spike in emergency move-ins in March 2020 as the lockdown was
announced, whilst others were allowed to leave their belongings in their
accommodation over the summer term. As at 31 March 2021 we were
carrying an additional 24,000 sq ft of approximately 1,100 students in

- the business compared to normal, some of whom have moved out

subsequently. However, the majority are likely to be those who have
notyetreturned to their universities, many of whom will have.remained
overseas ’

Move outs showed a similar decline to move-ins over the first quarter.
In the second quarter move-outs were lower than the prior year, largely
due to the reduction in move-ins during the preceding quarter. As can
be seen from the table above, in our third quarter move-outs broadly
normalised and were only down 1% compared to the prior year. The
lockdown during the fourth quarter saw move-outs fall year-on-year,

. similar to the deciine in move-ins over that quarter.

In all Big Yellow stores, occupancy for the yearincreased by 420,000

'sq ft, against a fall of 29,000 sq ftin the prior year. The quarterly
‘movementis shown in the table below:

Net sq ft Netmove-ing |

Netsq ft Net move-ins
. . . Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Quarterly net cccupancy movement 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2024 31 March 2020
Aprilto June” 138,000 125,000 ) 3,513 4,208 )
July to September _ 187,000 {25,000) 1,739 {1,950)
October to December {32,000) (165,000) (964) - (2,781)
January to March 127,000 36,000 . 1,393 C 1,212
Total 420,000

(29,000) 5,681 689
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The performance in the prior year was impacted by the uncertainty
around Brexit, and in our third quarter in the run up to the general
election, weighing on consumer confidence. The final quarter was
impacted in March by the onset of the first lockdown. During this year,
our quarter to June was driven by performance in May and June as
restrictions started to ease. The second quarter showed strong:
occupancy gains, with- move-outs remaining relatively low.

. Inour seasonally weakest third quarter the occupancy loss

represented 0.6% of MLA, compared to 3.5% of the MLA in the prior year,
driven by the growth in move-ins referred to above. The fourth quarter
showed continued outperformance on the prior year, with 127,000 sq ft
of occupancy growth as most of the economy was allowed to continue
and many businesses’in restricted sectors had innovated and adapted

after the experience of the Spring 2020 lockdown.

The table below shows the change,ih occupancy by customer type over the year:

Net sq ft change in year Net sq ft change in year

ended . ended .

* Customer type - 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 Difference
Domestic 267,000 sq-ft 11,000 sq ft 256,000 sq ft
Business 145,000 sq ft (53,000 sq ft] 198,000.sq ft
Student " 8,000 sq ft 13,000 sq ft (5,000 sq ft)
Total (29,000 sq ft) 449,000 sq ft

The 70 mature stores are 88.0% occupied compared to 82.1% at the
same time last year. The 2 established stores have increased in
occupancy from 73.4% to 87.1%. The six developing stofes added
108,000 sq ft of occupancy in the year ta reach closing occupancy of
49.0%. Overall store occupancy has increased in the year from 80.7% to
85.2%. On a like-for-like basis, excluding Camberwell, Bracknell, and
Battersea, which all opened in the year, closing occupancy was 87.4%,
anincrease of 6.7 percentage points.

420,000 5q ft

All stores are now trading profitably at the EBITDA level. The table below
shows the average key metrics across the store portfolio (from the
Portfolio Summary on page 30) for the year ended 31 March 2021:

Mature Established . Developing All

stores stores stores . stores

"Average store capacity 63,650 62,000 58,200 63,200

.* Average sq ft occupied per-store at 31 March 2021 56,000 54,000 28,500 53,850
Average % occupancy 88.0% 87.1% 43.0% 85.2% -

Average revenue per store {£000) 1,802 . 1,471 559 1,698

Average EBITDA per store (£000) 1,269 977 182 © 1,178

Average EBITDA margin 66.4% 32.6% 69.4%

70.4%

Pricing and net rent per sq ft )
QOur core p’ropbsition remains a high-quality product, competitively
priced, with excellent customer service, providing value for money to
our customers. We offer a headline opening promotion of 50% off for up
to the first 8 weeks, and we continue to manage pricing dynamically,
taking account of room availability, customer demand and local

competition.

Our pricing model reduces promotions and increases asking prices

where individual units are in scarce supply. This lowering of

promotians, coupled with price increases to existing and new

customers, leads to an increase inachieved netrents. Rental growth

. canalso be driven through sub-dividing larger rooms into smaller -
rooms, which yield a higher netrent per sq ft.

The average rate growthin the year was 1.1%. Net achieved rent per sq ft
.at 31 March 2021 grew by 2.0% over the financial year. At the outset of

the pandemic, the Group supported our customers by suspending our '

existing customer price increase programme for the first four months of
the financial year. Additionally, the Group provided assistance discounts
to many of our customers, in particular small businesses, who were
struggling for cash flow during the initial lockdown. This impacted the
level of rental growth that the Group achieved during the year.

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021

The table below shows the growthiin closihg netrent persq ft for the
portfoiio (excluding the three new stores): ' o

Netrent persq ft
‘growth from

Average occupancy  April 2020 to .
in the year Number of stores March 2021
0t 75% ' 3 2.0%
7510 80% 8 0.2%
80 to 85% 33 1.6%
Above 85% S 3.1%

Dufing the first half of the financial year, the billed rent the Group
achieved from new move-ins was down 3% on the same period in the
prior year. This was due to more promotions being offered, in particular

" during the first lockdown. Over the second half of the financial year,

the billed rent to new move=ins was up 6% on the same period last
year, reflecting the higher levels of occupancy and a reduction in
promoations. For the year, the billed rent for move-ins was up 2%

on the prior year.
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ADevelopment pipeline-

Store performance continueay B

We opened thrée new stores during the financial year. Their performance is shown in the table below:

Occupancy at 31 March 2021 -

Store MLA Opening date EBITDA break even date

Camberwell 75,000 sq ft -July 2020 38% March.2021

Bracknell 59,000 sq f September 2020 . 40% March 2021 . -t
Battersea 70,000 sq ft November 2020 - 26% April2021 ’

We own a further 14 development sites, of which e|ght have planning consem The status of the Group's development plpe|lne is summansed in the

table below:
Site Location Status . Antlelpated capacity
Uxbridge, Prominent location, Planning consent granted in July 2019. Construcnon started 54,000 sq ft
London on Oxford Road in June 2020 with a view to openingin June 2021.
Hayes, Prominent location . - Planning consent granted in July 2020. Construction 73,000 sq ft
London on Hayes Road commenced in January with a view to opening in early 2022, : )
Hove Prominent location Planning consent granted in October 2019. Construction 58,000 sq ft
on 0ld Shoreham Road commenced in Autumn 2020 with a view to opening -
in Spring 2022.
Harrow, Prominent location - Planning consent granfed in November 2020. Construction 82,000 sq ft
London on Harrow View " commenced in May 2021 with a view to opening
: . in Summer 2022.
North Kingston, - Prominentlocation Planning consent granted in September 2020. Construction 56,000 sqft,

London on Richmond Road, Ham ~  to commence in Summer 2021wnhavnewto openingin

) ) Summer 2022. )
Kings Cross, Prominentiocation Planning consent granted in October 2020. Construction 106,000 sq ft
London on York Way commenced in early 2021 with aviewto opening

e in Spring 2023. '

Wembley, Prominent location Planning consent granted in August 2020. Discussions ~ ~ 70,000sqft
London on Towers Business Park  ongoingto secure vacant possession - N
Queensbury, Prominentlocation Site acquired in November 2018. Planning consent granted 58,000 sq ft
London off Honeypot Lane in November 2019. . .
Slough Prominentlocation Site acquired in April 2019. Plannlngapphcatlon submitted '90,000sq ft
- on Bath Road in March2021. .
Staines, " Prominent location Site acqulred in December 2020. Planning application to be 65,000 sq ft
London on the Causeway submitted in Autumn 2021. :
Epsom, Prominent location Site acquired in March 2021. Planning application to be 56,000 sq ft
London on East Street submitted in Autumn 2021. ) o .
Kentish Town, Prominent location Site acquired in April 2021. Planning application to be 68,000 §q ft

-London on Regis Road submitted in Winter 2021/22. ) .
Wapping, Praminent location on Site acquired in July 2020. Pianningapplication-to be Additional 85,000 sq ft
London - the Highway, adjacent to submitted in Autumn 2021. .
existing Big Yellow store .
Newcastle Prominent location . Planning application submmed in November 2020, 60,000 sq ft
o on Scotswood Road awaiting decision.
Total - - - 991,000 sq ft

The Group manages the construction and fit-out of its stores in-house, as we belleve it provndes both better control and qualltg, and we have an
excellent record of building stores on time and within budget.

Armadillo Self Storage

The Group has a 20% investment in Armadillo Self Storage, with the
balance of 80% held by an‘Australian consortium.The Armadilio
platform has 25 stores and 1.1 million sq ft of MLA. Armadillo is a
lower-frills brand, with largely freehold conversions of existing
buildings. They have an average capacity of 43,000 sq ft (lower than

operational advantages to the Group, such as a wider platform to sell to
national customers, more opportunities for recruitment and promotion,.
and more efficient use of the Company’s marketingand central
overhead costs. Armadillo continues to look for opportunmes in smaller .
towns and cities to add to its platform .

the 63,000 sq ft average for Big Yeliow stores). Armadillo provides ) ) L . .
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Marketing and ecommerce

Our marketing strategy focuses on buiiding our market-leading brand
awareness further and using it to maximise the cost-efficient
generation of enquiries, customer move-ins and user satisfaction
through our digital platforms. Our strong brand and continued digital
investment and innovation has helped us create a market-leading
website which delivers over 90% of our énquiries.

It was therefore pleasing that our annual YouGoy survey (published
April 2021) again confirmed that the brand awareness of Big Yellow
remained ahead of other UK operators in the sector. The survey shows
our unprompted brand awareness to be nearly six times higher than our
nearest competitor bothin London and across the UK. '

The Big Yellow website allows users to browse different room sizes,
obtain a price, reserve online and finally check-in online. The online
customer experience also features Live Chat allowing customers t0
communicate with us in real-time via traditional Live Chat and also

- through WhatsApp and Facebook Messenger. Our popular and
comprehensive online FAQs provide our users with another way
to ask questions they may have about the service without needmg
to callus directly.

Over the past year we have developed our digital experience further
through a complete redesign of our online check-in platform. This
allows customers to complete the majority of their move-in process
remotely. For example, they can upload their photo and identity
documents, sign the full customer licence, setup authorised persons,
complete their storage inventory and set up a paperless Direct Debit -
all done remotely. This seamless user experience has drastically cut
down the time our customers need to spend in our receptions when
they move-in. The final proces's is completed through ourin-store

- digital signature pads. A

Ourinvestmentin our online check-in in recent years allowed us to
manage enquiries and move-in customers with minimal physical
contact since the'onset of the pandemic and is there as an option for
customers going forward, who for example may wish to send their
removal company to the store and deal with everything from home.
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"We also offer the ability to purchase boxes and packing materials

through our online BoxShop store. These can be home delivered or
made available for our Click and Collect service from stores. Our online
sales in the last 12 months have experienced a significant uplift with
the increase in online shopping trends and the impact of many
domestic customers working more flexibly.

Driving online traffic

Self storage is a consumer-facing business and the development

of a strong and sustainable brand is multi-layeréd and requires a-
consistency of product, customer service and interaction atall touch
points, particularly online. :

" Search engines are the most important acquisition tool for us,

accounting for the majority of traffic to our website. Our focus for

a competitive advantage on search continues and search engine
optimisation (“SEQ") work has helped us to maintain high organic
listings for popular generic and local self storage relaied search
terms. This in turn drives the growth and cost efficiencies of acquiring
new prospects.

Brand search terms are also a valuable driver of enquiries for Big Yellow
and help improve thé efficiencies of our cost per enquiry. 35% of all -
traffic generated from search engines to our website ongmated from
“Big Yellow” brand searches in the year.”

This clearly indicates, although self storage is a relatively immature

industry with approximately 70% of customers usingit for the first
time, brand is importantin driving higher levels of prospects and
customer referrals, leading to improved operational efficiencies.

We have demonstrated this through significantimprovements in the
performance of existing storage centres following their acquisition,
re-branding, and assimilatiqn into our business.

Search engine marketing remains our largest source of paid for web
traffic. Ongoing website optimisation and an engaging user experience

through our digital platforms helps ensure we maximise the conversion

of these web visits into enquiries and then customers.

Digital display advertising enables us to regionally target audiences in
thie market for self storage, raising consideration of the service and the

. Big Yellow brand through engaging creatives.
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Mcxrketlng and Ope:ratlonal Rev1ew (contmued)

Online customer reviews and social media
Suppor'ti?mg our values of putting the customer at the heart of our
business, our online customer reviews generate real-time feedback .
from customers and provide positive word of mouth referral to our
website visitors. Through our ‘Big Impressions’ customer feedback
programme, we ask our new customers to rate our service. With the
users’ permission, we then publish these independent customer
reviews on the Big Yellow website which currently total' 37,800,
averaging 4.8 out of 5. '

The Big Impressions programme also generates customer feedback
on their move-out experience and from prospects who decided not to
store with us. These customer reviews and mystery shop results are
transparently accessible across the business and helps reinforce our
focuson outstandmg customer service.

We also gain real-time customer feedback from over 12,000 Google
Reviews averaging 4.6 out of 5. These help to enhance our visibility

‘within local'search listings conveying trustin the Big Yellow brand.

Additionally, we have over 2,500 reviews from the independent review
site TrustPilot. These reviews average a 4.7 out of 5-starrating,

. labelled as “Excellent” on the TrustPilot. ratlngs scale.

We monitor our customer reviews and respond where necessary for
customer service reasons or to manage our online reputation and
improve our service offering.

Social_media continues to be complementary to our existing marketing
channels. Big Yellow actively posts content across Twitter, Facebaok
and Instagram which help to raise awareness of our CSR activities.
These social channels are also used by customers.to.connect with us
and are monitored in real-time, enabling us to respond promptiy to
anyenquiries. - . . .

The Big Yellow LinkedIn platform is used to communicate company
achievements, CSR initiatives and to present an honest picture of what

- itis like to work for Big Yellow. It isalso central in our drive towards

more direct recruitment,

The Big Yellow YouTube channelis used to allow web prospects to
experience our stores online through our video guides to self storage. -
The online blog is updated regularly with tips and advice for
homeowners and busmesses as well as summaries of our.charitable
and CSRiinitiatives.

' Un'prombfed brand awareness for the UK (%)

Source: YouGov commissioned surve\_j by the UK Self Storage Association January 2021
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Sustainability .

We have developed a new long-term strategy to become Net Renewable
Energy Positive and deliver Net Zero Scope 1 and 2 Emissions targets,,
which will be funded with significant investment from the Group over
the next few years. The main delivery vehicle for this new strategy will
be the installation of solar generation capacity onto our existing store
estate. By 2025, we expect to have completed a multi-million pound
investmentin renewable energy generation both on the roofs of our
estate and also at other locations.

We will be publis.hing with our Annual Reportin June a standalone

Strategy document that sets out our Commitments, Actions and

Timelines to become 100% Renewable Energy Positive and Net Zero
Scope 1 and 2 Emissions by 2030.

Governance of this ambitious brogramme has been enhanced during
the year through the creation of a Board Sustainability Committee,
chaired by Heather Savory, Non-Executive Director.

The sustainability performance highlights for the year are:

®° thesolarstores generated nearly 18% of their electricity needs;

8 onsite solar-energy geherated versus electricity and gas
purchased in the year was 6.7% (2020: 6.1%); -

8 purabsolute energy use and emissions have decreased; this is
explained through an increase in solar, a greener grid and through
lower customer activity in our stores during the pandemic,
particularly during the initial lockdown; and

®  ourmarket-based Scope 2 emissions are now zero, thanks 10 our
Renewable Energy Guarantees of Origin (“REG0") backed 100% -
renewable‘electricity from Opus Energy. .

Foundation and charitable dctivities

The Big Yellow Foundation has adopted a seventh charity partner,
Street League, during the year. The Foundation has continued to
support our six éstablished charity partners during the year as well as
Street League: The Foundation has raised funds of aver £220,000
durlngthe yearand has pald out nearlg £150,000in grants.

At the end of March 2021, over one thlrd of customers (the average of
our move-ins and move-outs) opted to contribute to ourFoundation. .
Initially this leve| was impacted by the pandemlc but has bounced back
and now exceeds pre-pandemic levels.

Big Yellow's (:ommunitg investment for the year, delivered via
discounted space, was £334,000, £307,000 of which was given free of
charge. Our stores allocate this space to worthy local charitable
organisations and not-for-profits and we house different organisations,
from foodbanks to small community groups to NHS partners. We -
accommodated the British Red Cross in 27 locations and the free space
to the Red Cross alone was worth just over £37,000.
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Cyber security and IT infrastructure

Cyber security remains high on the agenda within the Group and we
make investment where required in response to the ever-changing
threat landscape. Using both external specialists and in-house

: knowledge we perform regular reviews of our cyber risk and security

posture. Testing of both systems and people is carried out on a regular

basis, including penetration testing and phishing simulations.

Our Data Compliance Officer oversees our ongoing compliance with

-GOPR and PCI-DSS. The role also includes Business Continuity and Crisis
- Communjcation management. Policies and procedures are under

regular rewew and benchmarked againstindustry best practice. There
are mandatory courses for all staff to complete both for Information
Security and Data Protection.

Our Infrastructure and Development teams continue to drive
innovation and efficiencies throughout the Group. During the pandemic:
our technology team were able to provide uninterrupted secure access

.toIT services regardless 6f the access being required in store, in the

office orathome.

The self storctgé market opportunity

In the recently published 2021 Self Storage Association UK Survey,
only 50% of those surveyed had a reasonable or good awareness of -
self storage. Furthermore, only 8% of the 2,092 adults surveyed were
currently using self storage or were thinking of using seif storage in the
next year. This indicates a continued opportunity for growth and with
increasing use of self storage, together with the ongoing marketing
efforts of everyone in the industry, we anticipate awareness will
continue to grow.

Self storage is not a commoditised product and awareness is driven .

largely by busihgsses and individuals using self storage. Consequently,
the increase in awareness over time has been relatively slow, with good
awareness of self storage increasing from 38%in 2014 to 50%in 2021
across the UK [source: UK SSA Survey 2021). Our YouGov Survey carried
outin April 2021 showed higher levels of awareness in London of 61%.

Occupancyrates across the.UK industry at the end of 2020 of built
space was 82.3%, compared with approximately 60% in December
2008. This has increased from 76.2% at the end of 2019.

Gr‘owth in new facilities across the industry has been largely in regional
areas of the UK and particularly in smaller towns. Historically, new
supply creation in our core markets in London and the South East, has.
been difficult, with high land values driven by competing uses such as

" residential and urban industrial. In London in the yearto 31 December.

2020, there were five new store openings, including two new Big Yellow
stores. We are aware of four planned store openings in London in
calendaryear 2021, including one Big Yellow store.
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Marketing and Operational ReVIewW continued)

The Self Storage Association (“SSA") estimates that the UK industry is
made up of approximately 2,000 self storage facilities (of which 598
are purely container operations), providing 50.6 million sq ft of self
storage space, equating to 0.74 sq ft per person in the UK. This

" compares t0 9.4 sq ft per person in the US, 1.9 sq ft per personin

Australia and 0.15 sq ft for mainland Europe, where the roll-out of -
self storage is a more recent:phenomenon sources: UK Self Storage
Association Surveys, May 2020 and May 2021 and FEDESSA European

Self Storage Annual Survey 2020).

Big Yellow is well placed to benefit from the growing self storage
market, given the streng'th of our brand, and our online platform
which delivers over 90% of our prospect enquiries. Our portfolio
is strategically focussed on London, the South Eastand large

. metropolitan cities, where barriers to entry and economic acnvng

are at their highest.

Store operating model

The Big Yellow store model is well established. The “typical” store has
60,000 sq ft of MLA and takes some three to four years to achieve 85%
plus occupancy. The average room size occupied in the portfolio is
currently 67 sq ft, in line with last year. The store is open seven days a
week and is initially run by three staff, with a part time member of staff
added once the store occupancy justifies the need for the extra
administrative and sales support. ’

The drive toimprove store operating standards and consistency across
the portfolio remains a key focus for the Group. Excellent customer
service is at the heart of our business objectives, as a satisfied
customer is our best marketing tool. We measure customer service
standards through a programme of mystery shopping and online
customer reviews, which are externally managed. Over the year, we
have achieved an average net promoter score of 82.9 from customers
who moved in and moved out of the business. ’

The store bonus structure rewards occupancy performance, sales
growth and cost control through quarterly targets based on occupancy

and store profitability, including the contribution from ancillary sales of

insurance, and packing materials. Information on bonus build-up is
circulated monthly and stores are consulted in preparing their own
targets and budgets each quarter, leading to improved visibility, a

better understanding of sales lines and control of operating costs.

We believe that, as a consumer-facing branded business, itis

. paramount to maintain the quality of our estate and customer offering.

We therefore continue to invest in preventative maintenance, store
cleaning and the repair and replacement of essential equipment, such
as lifts and gates. The ongoing annual expenditure is approximately
£38,000 per store, which is incJuded within cost of sales. This excludes
our rolling programme of store makeovers, which typically take place
every five years, at a cost of approximately £20,000.per store.

Demand

Demand for self storage is largely drlven by need, with security,
convenience, quality of product, service and location bemg key drivers.
Awareness remains relatively low compared to commoditised
products, such as hotel rooms or airline seats, albeititis increasing
slowly year-on-year with increased supply, marketing expenditure and
customer use.

We are confident that Big Yellow benefits disproportionately from this
improving market for our product, due to our market-leading brand and
operating platform with our focus on London, the South Eastand Iarge
metropolitan cities.

Customers renting storage space whilst moving within the rental or
owner-occupied sectors represent 39% of move-ins during the year -
(2020: 39%), split approximately 60/40 between homeowners and
renters (2020: 51/49). 13% of our customers who moved in took
storage space as a spare room for decluttering (2020: 12%). 34% of our
customers used the product because some event has occurred in their
lives generating the need for storage; they may be moving abroad for a

" job, have inherited possessions, are getting together or separating, are

students who need storage during the holidays, or homeowners
developing into their lofts or basements {2020: 37%). The balance of
14% of our new-customer demand during the year came from
businesses (2020: 12%).

Of our overall occupied space today, customers who are longer stay
lifestyle users, decluttering into small rooms as an extension to their
accommodation, occupy 10% to 15% of our space; approximately 50%

of the space is customers using it for less than 12 months, for reasons

which are largely event driven, which could be inheritance, moving in
the owner occupied or rental sector, home improvements, travélling;
the balance of 36% of our space is businesses. Businesses occupy
larger rooms on average than domestic custorners and, despite being
in 36% of the occupied space only represent 20% of customer numbers.

Over the past few years, there has been a growing trend towards
self-employment and smaller business start-ups in the UK, dynamics
that are positive for self storage. Additionally, businesses in the UK
have been increasingly seeking flexible office and storage space rather
than longerinflexible leases. The current crisis’has accelerated the
structural changes in retail that were already occurring, resulting in
more demand from online retailers looking to trade without a physical
high street presence. The deindustrialisation of big cities with the
conversion of commercial space into residential and other uses, is also
adriver for demand from the SME market seeking flexible warehouse
space. We believe that these long- -term trends will continue to drive
demand forour product.

.
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The Group ‘commissi_oned an external survey a couple of years ago to
assess the value the average Big Yellow store generates for its local
economy to assist our discussion with local authorities around
planning. Key highlights were:

~-®  the average store is home to 105 different businesses who

_between them employ 300 people as a directresult of their
occupation;

@ .B0%ofthe businesses that accupy our stores are start-ups who

have never rented space anywhere else before; and
®  Forovér half of the businesses, this is the only space they rent,
for others this complements their other space.

Given the growth in homeworking fuelled by the lockdown, this trend of

- businesses choosing to operate without needing the‘e'xpelnse of office

space may increase. Furthermore, increased homeworking in general
may resultin domestic customers taking small.rooms to declutter and
create space for home offices.

We have a dedicated national customers team for businesses who wish
to occupy space in multiple stores. These customers are billed and

managed centrally. We have four full time members of staff working on’

growing and managing our-national customers. The national customers
team can arrange storage at short notice atany location. In smaller .
towns where we do not have representation, we have negotiated
sub-contract arrangements with other operators who meet certain
operatingstandards. = ‘
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Strategic Report
Portfoho Summary - B1g Yellow Stores

2021 - - ) " 2020

Mature!") Established Developing * Total Mawre  Established Developing Total
Number of stores 70 2 6 78 B - 2 3 75
At 31 March: . '
Total capacity (sq ft)” 4,452,000 - 124,000 349,000 4,930,000 4,418,000 124,000 146,000 . 4,688,000
Occupied space (sq ft) . 3,922,000 108,000 . 171,000 4,201,000 3,627,000 91,000 63,000 3,781,000
Percentage occupied 88.0% 87.1% - " 49.0% . 85.2% 82.1% 73.4% 43.2% 80.7%
© Netrent persqft £28.98 £25.32  f£2474 - £2871  £2832 £2363  £25.48 £28.15
For the year: .o ) ' ’ ’ T . . T ‘ N
REVPAF®? . : £28.42 £23.73 : £12..?8 £27.44 £27.39 £21.35 £1R22 £26.77
Average occupancy 85.8% 83.4% - 40.4% 83.2% 838% .. 79.8% . 35.5% 82.2%
Average annual rent psf £28.37 £2408  f24.62 £28.16 £2803 r2261 £25.65 £2786
. £000 -£000 © ° £000 £000 . £000 £000 ' £000 £000
Self storage incpme i 108.022 2,491 2,606 113,119 . 103,767 . 2,233 - 1,293 107,293
Other storage related income'? 17,494 441 628 18,563 16,657 404 . 310 . 17371
Ancillary store rental Income .85 . 10 120 286 580 R 120 210
Total store revenue . 126072 . 2,942 3,354 132,468 . 121,004 2,647 1,723 125,374
- Direct store operating Costs - . ’ ' . - ) )
(excluding depreciation) . (35,402} (988) (2,253)  (38,643) (33,930} (960])° (1.275)  (36,165)
Short and long leasehold rent!® (1,935) - (9) (1,944) (1,977 - . (14) 0 (1,991
Store EBITDA!®) . 88,835 " 1,954 1,092 © 91,881 85,097 1687 434 87,218
Store EBITDA margin 4 | 704%  66.4% - 32.6% 69.4% ~  70.3% 63.7% 252%  69.6%
Deemed cost . s £m £m £m £m
To 31 March é021 ) A 588.6 21.2 . 79.8" 689.6
To complete , - - - 0.4 . 04 .

Total - ’ ' 588.6 22 80.2 690.0

{1) The mature stores have been open for more than six years at 1 April 2020 The established stores have been open for between three and sixyears at 1 April 2020 and the developing stores have been
open for fewer than three years at 1 April 2020.
{2) Seeglossaryinnote 33.
{3] Insurance, packing materials and other storage related fees.
. [4} Rent for six mature short leasehold properties accounted for as investment p{opemes and right-of-use assets under IFRS with total self storage capacity of339 000 sq ft,and along leasehold lease- up
store with a capacity of 64,000 sq R, The EBITDA margin for the 64 freehold mature stores is 22%, and 47% fonhe six leasehold mature stores.
. 5} Thetable betow reconciles Store EBITDA to gross profit in the statement of comprehensive income. .

Year ended 31 March 2021~ . Year ended 31 March 2020 -
Gross profit per . Gross profit per
statementof - statement of
Store Reconciling  comprehensive . - Store Reconciling  comprehensive
. EBITDA items . income EBITDA items income
‘Store revenue/Revenue!® . : ) . 132,468 ‘2,773 135,241 "125,374 3,939 - 129,313
Cost of sales!?! N _ - (38,643) - (2,946) (41,589)  [36,165) {2,708) (38,873)
Rent®) ] o - (1,944) 1,944 - (1,991) 1,991 C-
91,881 -1,7724 - 93,552 ) 87,218 3,222 30,440

(6) Seenote 3 of the financial statements, reconciling items are g fees and t age.income.

(?) See reconciliation in‘cost of sales section in Financia! Review on page 36.
(8] The rent shown above is the cost associated with leasehald stores, only part of which is recognised within gross profit in line with right-of-use asset accounting principtes. Ihe amount included in gross
profitis shown in the reconciling items in cost of sales.
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-An unrivalled

portfolio of stores
across London,
the South East
and other large
metropolitan

‘cities.

Battersea, November 2020 -

“MLA - 70000 sq ft

Bxcckne!l. September 2020
MLA -59000sq ft

Camberwell, July 2(:)20 -
MLA -75,000sq ft

Manchester, May 2019
MLA - 60,000 sq ft

Wapping, July 2018
MLA -30000sq ft

Guildford Central, March 2018 .
MLA - 550005q ft
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Twickenham 2, April 2016
MLA - 22,000 sq ft

Nine Elms, April 2016
MLA - 65,000 sq ft

Cambridge, January 2016
MLA ~60,000sq ft

Enfield, April 2015

“MLA - 60,000 sq ft

Chester, February 2015
MLA - 69,000 Sq ft

Oxford 2, July 2014
MLA - 35000 sq ft

Gypsy Corner, April 2014

‘MLA - 70,000 sq ft

C.hisivick, April 2012
MLA - 73,000 sq ft

‘

New Cross, February 2012
MLA - 61,000 sq ft

Stockport, September 2011
MLA - 65000 sq ft

Eltham, April 2011
MLA -70,000 s 1t

Camberley, January 2011.
MLA - 67000 sq ft

High Wycombe, June 2010 °

MLA - 60,000 sq ft

Reading, December 2009
MLA - 62,000 sq ft

Sheffield Bramall Lane,
September 2009
MLA - 60000sq ft

Poole, August 2009
MLA - 55,000 sq ft

Nottingham, August 2009
" MLA - 67,000 sq ft

‘Edinburgh, July 2009

MLA -630005sq ft

Twickenham, May 2009
MLA -73,000sq ft

Liverpool, March 2009

“ MLA - 60,0005q ft.

/

‘Bromley, March 2009
MLA -71,000sqft *

32

Birmingham, February 2009

MLA - 60,000 sq ft

" Sheen, December 2008 -

MLA - 64,000 sq ft

Sheffield Hillshorough,
October 2008 .

. MLA - 60,000 sq ft
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Kennington, May 2008 - Merion, March 2008 . Fulham, March 2008 Balham, March 2008

MLA - 66,000 sq ft . MLA -70,000 s ft : MLA -138,000sq ft o MLA - 61,000 sq ft

Barking, November 2007 ' Ealing Southall, November 2007 Sutton, July 2007 : Gloucester, December 2006
MLA - 64,000sq ft . MLA - 57000 sq ft " MLA -70000sq ft MLA - 50,000 sq ft
Edmonton, October 2006 Klngston, August 2006 . . Bristol Ashton Guté, July 2006 'Pinchley East, May .2066
MLA -75000sqft - MLA - 62,000 sq ft MLA - 61,000 sq ft . . MLA - 54,000 sq ft
Tunbridge Wells, April 2006 Bristol Central, March 2006 - North Kensington, December 2005. Leeds, Juiv 2005

MLA - 57000'sq ft MLA - 64,00(_) sq ft . MLA - 50,000 sq ft MLA - 76,000 s¢ ft
Beckenham, May 2005 Tolworth, November 2004 . Wuttbrd, August 2004 ’ sWindpn, April 2004

MLA -71,000sq ft MLA - 56,000 sq ft MLA - 64{000 sq ft MLA -53000sq ft
Orpli\glon,' December 2003_' Byfleet, November 2003 Chelmstord, April 2003 Finchley North, March 2003

MLA - 64,000 sq ft MLA -48000sq ft . MLA -54,000sq ft MLA - 62,000 sq ft
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West Norwood, January 2003
MLA - 57000 sq ft

Colchester, December 2002
MLA - 54,000_ e ft'

Bow, November 2002
MLA -132,000 sq ft.

Brighton, October 2002
MLA - 59000 sq ft

Guildford slv!ield, June 2002
MLA - 55000 sq ft

New Malden, May 2002
MLA - 81,000 sq ft

Hounslow, December 2001
MLA -54,000sq ft

. Ilford, November 2001

MLA - 58,000 sq ft

N

Curdl!i, October 2001
MLA - 74,000 sq ft

Portsmouth, October 2001
MLA - 61,000 s ft

. Norwich, September 2001

MLA - 47,000 s ft

Dagenham, July 2001
MLA - 51,000 sq ft

Wandsworth, April 2001
MLA -72,000sq ft

Luton, March 2001
MLA - 41,000 sq ft

Southend, March 2001
MLA - 57000 sq t

Staples Corner, March 2001

"+ MLA - 112,000 sq ft

Romford, November 2000
MLA -70,000sq ft

Milton Keynes, September 2000
MLA - 60,000 sq ft -

Cheltenham, April 2000 -
" MLA -50,000sq ft

Slough, February 2000

" MLA -670005sq it _

Hanger Lane, October 1999
MLA - 66,000sq ft

34

Oxford, August 1999
MLA - 33,00Q sq ft

Croydon, July 1999
MLA - 79,000 sq ft

' Richmond, May 1999

MLA -35,000sq ft

Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Big Yellow Group PLC




Portfolio Summary - Armadillo Stores

2021 | 00

Arpwwing of[ojiod

Number of stores - ' o ) . . » . 25 25
At31 March: ' . ] ‘ , o '

Total capacity (sq ft) : . - , - ‘ 1,083,000 1,063,000
Occupied space (sq ft) ‘ ' 4 -808,000 . 799,000 °
Percentage occupied o SR : 83.8% 75.2%
Net rént per sq ft . ' . £1838 £1784
For the year: . . o Co

REVPAF _ ‘ . C £16.75 £16.04
Average occupancy : ’ : ) o - 79.5% 72.5%
Average annual rent psf o : : . - £17.85 £1755

. o £000 £000 -

Self storage income o : ’ o 15263 14,195
Other storage related income . : . ' ) 2,680 ’ ) 2,502
Ancillary store rental income - - B - 59 ’ .4
Total store revenue : ' . i i 18,002 16,738
Direct stofe operating costs (excluding depreciation) ) o : . (7000) - - (6,746)
. Leasehold rent . : . . : ' S R (554) - . (566)
Store EBITDA!! o o o 10,448 9,426
Store EBITDA margin ' o ' ' o , . 58.0% - 56.3% -
-Cumulative capital expenditure o R . . . £m

T6 31 March 2021 ' : o 85.7

To complete ’ . ) ' . - . 0.2

Total capital expenditure ) ) - . 85.9

[1) Store earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, and management fees charged by Big Yellow to the Armadillo portfolios (see note 27).
{2) The Group has a 20% interest in Armadillo. The figures shown above represent 1_00% of Armadillo’s performance. Note 14e contains more information on the Group's share of Armadillo’s ¢
. financial performance. . '
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Strategic Report -

Financial Review

‘Revenue
. Total revenue for the year was £135.2 million, an increase of £5.9 million

(4.6%) from £129.3 million in the prior year. Like-for-like store revenue
for the year was £131.2 million, an increase of 4.9% from the prior year
(2020: £125.1 million). Like-for-like revenue excludes Manchester,
which opened in the prior year and Camberwell, Bracknell, and
Battersea, which all opened in the current year.

Other sales (included within the above), comprising the selling of

. insurance, packing materials and storage related charges, represented

14.0% of total store revenue for the year (2020: 13.9%) and generated
revenue of £18.6 miltion for the year compared to £17.4 million in 2020.

The otherrevenue earned by the Group is management fee income
from Armadillo and tenantincome on sites where we have not started .
development. During the prior year, the Group recognised in revenue -

a £1 million performance fee due from Armadillo Storage Holding
Company 2 Limited, for the performance of the fund over its initial
five-year term. No performance fees were due in the year ended
31March2021.. - :

Operating costs

Costof sales hrincipallg comprise the diréct store opérating costs,
including stare staff salaries, utilities, business rates, insurance,
a full allocation of the central marketing budget and repairs and
maintenance.

The Group did not furlough any employees during the year and did
not take any financial assistance from the government.

The breakdown of the portfolio’s operating costs.compai'ed to the
- prior year is shown in the table below: :

Year ended Year ended % of store

: 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 operating costs -
Category £000 i £000 % change in 2021
Cost of sales (insurance and packing materials) 3,096 2791 - 7 1% . 8%
Staff costs 10,359 9,593 . 8% . e
General & admin . 1,138 1,255 (9%) . 3%
Utilities 1,482 1469 . 1% a%
Property rates 12,527 . 12,022 ) 4% 32%
Marketing 5,394 5,474 ) (1%) 14%
Repairs & maintenance, - 2,987 2777 8% 8%
Insurance 8?0 938 3% 2%
Computer costs 690 638 8% C2%
Total before one-off items ] 38,643 36,957 ) 4.6%
One-off items . - (792) (100%)
Total per portfolio summary 38,643

36,165 - 6.9%

* Store operating costs have increased by £2.5 million (6.9%). There were

two one-off items in the prioryear: a rates rebate on a store,and a
significant backdated utilities recharge to our telecom mast provider,

* totalling £0.8 million. Store operating costs before these one-off items

have increased by £1.7 million (4.6%) compared to the prior year.

The incremental bperating costs of the new stores amount to £1:0 million;
excluding these new stores and the prior year one-off items, the
increase is £0.7 million (1.9%). Cost of sales of insurance and packing
materials have increased in line with revenue. Staff costs have
increased principally as a result of higher bonuses paid during the year.
General and admin expenses have fallen; principally due to less.travel
during the year, partly offset by expenditure on PPE for our stores and
head office. Computer costs are up 8% due to an increased investment
. in cgber security. Other increases in cost are largely inflationary.

The table below reconciles store operating costs per the portfolio summary to cost of sales in the statement of comprehensive income:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
) £000 £000
Direct store operating costs per.portfolic summary (exctuding rent) 38,643 - 36,165
Rent included in cost of sales (total rent payable is included in partfolio summary) 1,272 : 1,276
Rent reviéw accruals ' 445 ] =
Depreciation charged to cost of sales . . " 320 : 348
Head office and other operational management costs charged to cost of sales 909 © 1,084
41,589 38,873

Cost of sales per statement of comprehensive income
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Store EBITDA

Store EBITDA for the year was £31.9 million, an increase of£4 ? million

(5.4%) from £87.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 (see
Portfolic Summary). The overall EBITDA margin for all Big Yellow stores
- decreased slightly to 69.4% (2020: 69.6%); this was due to opening, -
three new stores in the year. The EBITDA margin for the mature’and”
established stores rose year on year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive income

of £12.2 million were up £1.7 million compared to the prior year. The

increase is principally due an increase in the share-based payments

charge (£0.6 million), an increase national insurance on LTIPs

(£0.5 million), a higher vesting percentage for the Directors’ deferred
" bonus plan in the year and higher annual bonuses to our team

(£0.2 million) following the strong trading in the year, with the

balance inflationary.

The non-cash share-based payments charge represents £2.9 million
of the overalt £12.2 million expense.

Interest expense on bank borrowings.

The gross bank interest expense for the year was £9.4 million, a
decrease of £1.2 million from the prior year. The average cost of

_borrowing during the year was 2.9% compared to 2.6% in the prior year.
Average debt levels were lower than in the prior year followmg the
placing in April 2020. . .

Capitalised interestincreased by £0.6 mitlion from the prior year,
due to the increased construction programme.

Total finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income
. decreased to £8.2 million from £10.8 million in the prior year.

Profit before tcxx ' .

The Group made a profit before taxin the year of £265.8 million,
compared to a profit of £93.4 million in the prior year. After adjusting
for the gain on the revaluation of investment properties and other
matters shown in the table below, the Group made an adjusted profit
before tax in the year of £74.6 million, up 5.1% from £21.0 million in
2020. There were one-off items in the prior year: a performance fee
earned from Armadillo 2 (£1.0 million) and one-off credits in operating
costs (£0.8 million — See above). If these are eliminated from the prior
year, this year's adjusted profit before tax would have increased 7.8%
- from that figure. ‘ ' ' '

" 2021 2020

Profit before tax analysis o £000 £000
<. Profit before tax 265,822 93,447 -
Gain on revaluation of investment properties (189,277}  (23,193)
Movement in fair value on interest rate derivatives " 148 908
Gain on disposal of investment property ‘ - {5?)
Share of associate fajr value gains and losses (2,068) ' (107)
Adjusted profit before tax ) 74,625 70,998
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The movement in the adjusted profit before tax from the prior year is
illustrated in the table below:

£m
Adjusted profit before tax — year ended 31 March 2020 71.0
Increase in gross profit o 3.2
Reduction in net interest payable T12
Increase in administrative expenses ' ’ . (1.7)
Increase in share of adjusted profit of associates i 03
Increase in capitalised interest - " 0s
Adjusted profit before tax — year ended 31 March 2021 ' 74.6

Basic earnings per share for the year was 152,3p (2020: 55.8p) and
fully diluted earnings per share was 151.8p (2020: 55.6p). Diluted EPRA
earnings per share based on adjusted profit after tax was up 0. ?%10
42.4p (2020: 42.1p) [see note 12). The increase in-earnings per share is

_lower than that reported for adjusted proﬂt before tax due to the dilution

from the equity placing in April 2020. EPRA earnings per share equates
to the Company’s adjusted earnings persharein the current year.

REIT status

The Group converted to a Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT") in .
January 2007. Since then the Group has benefited from a zero tax rate
onthe Group's quallfglng self storage earnings. The Group only pays tax’
on the profits attributable to our residual business, comprising
primarily of the sale of packing materials and insurance, and fees

earned from the management of the Armadillo portfolio.

REIT status gives the Group exemption from UK corporation tax on
profits and gains from its qualifying portfolio of UK stores. Revaluation
gains on developments and our existing open stores are exempt from
corporation tax on chargeable gains, provided certain criteria are met.

The Group has a rigorous internal system in place for monitoring
compliance with criteria set outin the REIT.regulations. On a monthly
basis, a report on compliance with these criteria is issued to the
Executive. To date, the Group has c'oi'nplied with all REIT regulations,
including forward looking tests.

" Taxation

There is atax charge in the current year of £0.6 million, This compares
to a charge in the prior year of £0.9 million. The reduction in the current

‘year tax charge reflects higher deductions allowed in the current year
" fortax purposes from the exercise of share options, and last year's

charge included the taxatlon on the £1 million performance fee earned
from Armadillo.

Dividends

The Board is recommending the payment of a final dividend of 17.0 pence
per share in addition to the interim dividend of 17.0 pence, giving a
total dividend for the year of 34.0 pence, an increase of 0.6% from the
prior year.
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REIT regulatory requirements determine the level of Property Income
Distribution (“PID”) payable by the Group. On the basis of the fullyear
distributable reserves for PID purposes, a PID of 32.0 pence per share
is payable (31 March 2020: 30.6 pence). The balance of the total annual
dividend represents an ordinary dividend declared at the discretion of
the Board, in line with our policy to distribute 80% of our adjusted
earnings per share in each reporting period. The PID for the yearto

31 March 2021 accounts for 94% of the total dividend. The table below
summarises the declared dividend for the year:

- Dividend (pence per share)

3LMarch202t 31 March 2020

-Interim dividend - PID 17.0p 171p
—discretionary nil p " nitp

- —total 17.0p 17.1p.

Final dividend - PID " 15.0p - 13.5p
~ discretionary . 2.0p 3.2p

—total 17.0p 16.7p

Total dividend - PIiD ) 32.0p 306p
' - discretionary 2.0p ' 3.2p
~total 34.0p 33.8p

Subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to
be held on 22 July 2021, the final dividend will be paid on 30 July 2021.

‘The ex-div date is 8 July 2021 and the record date is 9 July 2021.

Cash flow growth

The Group is strongly cash generative and draws down fromiits longer -

term committed facilities as required to meet its obligations. The
Group's cash flow from operating activities for the year was £76.7 million,
anincrease of 4.2% from £73.6 million in the prior year.

- Year ended "Year ended

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

£000 £000

Cash generated from operations ’ 87,131 85,074
Net finance costs ) . (8,824) (10,178)
Interest on obligations under lease liabilities T (772) (820)
Tax - (823) (461

Cash flow from operating activities - 76,712 73,615
Capital expendituré (73,010) (63,748)

Prﬁceeds on disposal of investment property . - .. 14,105
Investment o . (450) -

Receipt from Capital Goods Scheme ’ 737 - 1228
Dividends received from associates . 688 649

Cash flow after investing activities 4,677 25,847
Ordinary dividends (58,808) (55,708)

Issue of share capital . 80,772 853
Payment of lease liabilities (1,008) (963)
" Loan arrangement fees paid - (918)

Drawing of new Aviva loan . - 35,000 -

(Decrease)/increase in borrowings ) " (64,728) A 29,403
Net cash (outflow)/inflow ) (39,096) 33,516 -

Opening cash and cash equivalents : 51,418 17,902

‘Closing cash and cash equivalents 12,322 51,418
Closing debt (337,300) (402,028)
Closing net debt (324,978) (350,610)

In the year capital expenditure outflows were £73.0 million, up from
£63.7 million in the prior year. Of the capital expenditure in the year
£43.4 million is for the acquisition of Wapping and Staines (including
acquisition costs) and an additional parcel of tand at Kings Cross, with
£29.6 million relating to build costs of the new stores. ’ :

" The cash flow after inveéting activities was a netinflow of £4.7 million

in the year, compared to an inflow of £25.8 million in 2020, due to0
higher capital expenditure in the year, and the prior year containing a

- receiptof £14.1 million from the disposal of investment property. .

Balance sheef

Property

The Group’s open stores and stores under development owned at

31 March 2021, which are classified as investment properties, have
been valued individually by CBRE. The external vaiuation has resulted
inan investment-property asset value of £1,785.5 million, comprising
£1,590.9 million (89%) for the freehold (including three long
leaseholds) open stores, £31.1 million (2%) for the short leasehold
open stores and £163.5 million (9%) for the fréehold investment
properties under construction.

Investment property

The valuations in the current year have increased significantlyfrom
the prior year, with a revaluation surplus of £189.1 million arising on
the open Big Yellow stores (see note 15 for the detailed valuation
methodology). This revaluation gain'has been driven by a combination
of cap rate compression and an improvement in the cash flow and
operating metrics used in the valuation. This is reflective of the
performance of both self storage generally and Big Yellow during the
past 12 months. -

The average exit capitalisation rate used in the valuations was 5.7%in

" the current year, compared to 6.1% in the prior year, with the discount

rate 8.7% compared to 9.3% in 2020. The increase in value compared to
the prior year is due to a combination of the reduction in cap rates and -
changes to the operating assumptions adopted in the valuations. 45%
of the value improvement can be attributed to the cap rate reductions,
and the balance of 55% due to the improvements in cash flow and the
operating assumptions.

The valuation is based on an average occupancy over the 10-year
cash flow period of 86.1% across the whole portfolio.
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- Mature L

Leasehold “Freehold " Frechold e . Toul
Number of stores 6 . 64 2 6 78
MLA capacity (sq.ft) " 339,000 4,118,000 124,000 349,000 4,930,000
Valuation at 31.March 2021 (£m) £31.1m ' £1,429.3m - £338m ’ £1277m £1,622.0m
Valuepersqft £92 £347 £273 o £366 £329
Occupancy at 31 March 2021 85.9% 88.2% 87.1% 43.0% 85.2%
Stabilised occupancy assumed 85.7% 86.9% . 86.5% . 85.4% 86.7%
Net initial yield pre-admin expenses 14.1% 6.0% 6.2% ° 2.4% 5.9%

The initial yield pre-administration expenses assuming no rental Net asset value

growth s 5.9% {2020: 6.1%). The stores are assumed to grow to
stabilised occupancy in 3 months on average. Note 15 contains more
detail on the assumptions underpinning the valuations.

Investment property under construction

The investment property under construction valuation has increased .

by £27.2 million in the year. Capital expenditure accounts for
£63.2 million of this increase, notably on the site purchases discussed
. above, and construction expenditure, principally on Camberwell,
Bracknell, and Uxbridge (Battersea remained in investment property
following the original store’s closure for redevelopmentin March 2019).
This has been offset by Camberwell and Bracknell transferring to open
stores. The valuation movement on the investment property under
construction was a small surplus of £0.1 million.:

Purchaser's cost adjustment

As in prior years, we have instructed an alternative valuation on our
assets using a purchaser’s cost assumption of 2.75% (see note 15 for
_further details) to be used in the calculation of our adjusted diluted
" netassetvalue. This Red Book valuation on the basis of the special
assumption of 2.75% purchaser’s costs, results in a higher property
valuation at 31 March 2021 of £1,895.0 million (£109.4 million higher
than the value recorded in the financial stateiments). With the share
of uplifton the revaluation of the'Armadilio stores (£1.0 million), this
translates to 62.7 pence per share. This revised valuation transfates
into an adjusted net assetvalue per shanje'of8'89'.2 pence (2020:
760.9 pence after adjusting for the placing] after the dilutive effect
of outstanding share options.

Receivables

As of 24 May, we have collected 88.9% of our April revenue. The Group's
bad debt expense in theAgear represented 0.1% of revenue compared to
0.2% in the prior year, a pleasing result reflective of the make-up of our
customer base, with 82% paying by direct debitand perhaps also our

© ability to contact customers at home with more time on their hands to
deal with their admin tasks.

At 31 March 2021 we have a receivable of £0.7 million in respect of
payments due back to the Group under the Capital Goods Scheme, as a
consequence of the introduction of VAT on self storage from 1 October
2012.The receivable relates to VAT to be recovered on historic store
development expenditure. The Group has received-£15.1 million to date
under the Scheme, of which £0.7 million was received in the year.
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The adjusted net asset value is 889.2 pence per share (see note 13),-
up 17% from 760.9 pence per share at 31 March 2020 (after adjusting
for the April 2020 share placing). The table below reconciles the
movement:

. Adjusted

NAV

. . pence
- Mavement in adjusted net asset value o £m per share
31 March 2020 » 12572 . 7510
Share placing . ’ 799 - 99
31 March 2020 [rebased) 1,33721 760.9

© Adjusted profit after tax ’ T 740 420
Equity dividends paid = . ) B - (588)  (334)
Revaluation movements (including share of associate] 191.8° 1089
Movement in purchaser’s cost adjustment 186 106
Other movements (e.g. share schemes) 39 0.2

31 March 2021 ’ 1,566.6  889.2

Borrowings

Our financing policy is to fund our current.needs through a mix of debt,
equity and cash flow to allow us to build out, and add to, our
development pipeline and achieve our strategic growth objectives,
which we believe-improve returns for shareholders. We aim to ensure
that there are sufficient medium-term facilities in place to finance our
committed development prog}amme, secured against the freehold

. portfalio, with debt serviced by our strong operational cash flows.

We maintain a keen watch on medium and long-termrates and the .
Group's policy in respect of interest rates is to maintain a balance
between flexibility and hedging of interest rate risk.

The Group has committed undrawn bank facilities of £87.5 million,
which if drawn would carry a current marginal cost of debt of
approximately 1:35%. The Group also has an option to increase the

amount of revolving loan by a further £30 million during the loan’s term.

In March 2020, the Group agreed a seven-year debt facility with Aviva
of £35 million at an all-in cost of 1.96%, secured over the existing Aviva
security pool of 15 stores. The all-in cost of this loan has subsequently
reduced to 1.91% following the installation of 50 kWp capacity solar
panels at three of the stores, as agreed with Aviva on drawing the loan.
The total debt facilities from Aviva are currently £114.8 million of which
£19.8 million amortises down to nil over the remaining seven years of
the loan. :
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The table below summarisés the Group’s debt facilities at 31 March 2021. The averagé cost of debtis 2.6% (March 2020: 2.5%).

1

- . . ) . Average
Debt : Expiry Facility . Orawn intefest cost
Aviva Loan ) April 2027 £1148 million " £114.8 million 4.0%
M&G loan. June 2023 £70 million £70 million 3.0%
Bank loan October 2024 £240'million £152.5 million . 1.7%
Total Average term 4.4 years £424.8 milllon  £337.3 million - 2.6%

The Group was comfortably in cémpliance with its banking covenants
. at 31 March 2021. Further details of the Group’s covenants are

provided in note 19 of the accounts. For the year we had Group interest

. cover of 9.9 times (2020: 8.3 times) based on pre-interest operating

cash flow againstinterest paid. The net debt to gross property assets
ratio is 18% (2020: 23%) and the net debt to adjusted netassets ratio
(see netasset value section above) is 21% (2020: 28%).

© At31 March 2021, the fair value on the Grou.p's interest rate derivatives

was a liability of £0.5 million, The Group does not hedge account its
interest rate derivatives. As recommended by EPRA, the fair value

movements are eliminated from adjusted profit before tax, diluted
EPRA earnings per share, and adjusted net assets per share.

Cash deposits are only placed with approved financial institutions in
accordance with the Group's Treasury policy. )

- Share capital

The share capital of the Company totalled £17.6 million at 31 March

2021 (2020:£16.7 million],,consiétingbf 175,880,470 ordinary shares.

of 10p each [2020: 167,138,527 shares). 8.3 million shares were

‘issued in April 2020 in a placing to raise funds to grow our development

pipefine. 0.4 million shares were issued for the exercise of options
during the year at an average exercise price of 1,064p (2020: 0.5 million
shares at an average price of 988p).

The Group holds 1.1 million shares within an Employee Benefit Trust
(“EBT"}. These shares are shown as a debit in reserves and are not
included in calculating net asset value per share.

2021 2020

No. No.

Opening shares. 167,138,527 166,665,158

Shares issued in pldcing 8,335,043 . -

Shares issued fofthe exercise of options 406,900 473,369

Closing shares in issue 175,880,470 167,138,527

Shares held in EBT (1,122,907) . (1,122,907)
Closing shares far NAV purposes 174,757,563 166,015,620 °

86.8 million shares were traded in the market during the year ended 31
March 2021 (2020: 80.3 million). The average mid-market price of
shares traded during the year was 1,064p with a high of 1,181pand a
low of 915p. : .

Investment ih Armadillo

The Group has a 20% investment in Armadillo Storage Holding Company
Limited and a 20% investment in Armadillo Storage Holding Company
2 Limited. In the consolidated accounts of Big Yellow Group PLC, our
investments in the vehicles are treated as associates using the

equity accounting method. The investments are Limited companies,
but the Group does also refer to them as Partnershipsinthese
financial statements.

The occupancy of the'Armadillo stores at 31 March 2021 was 908,000
sqftonan MLAof 1,083,000, representing 83.8% (31 March 2020:
75.2%). The net rent achieved at 31 March 2021 by the Armadillo stores’
is£18.38 pér sq ft,anincrease of 3.0% from the same time last year.
Revenue increased by 7.6% to £18.0 million for the year to 31 March
2021 (2020: £16.7 million); the like-for-like increase in revenue
(adjusted for stores acquired in the prior year) was 6.4%..

- The Armadillo Partnerships made acombined operating profit of
" £8.6 million in the year, of which Big Yellow's share is £1.7 million.
. Afternetinterest costs, the revaluation of investment properties

(valued by Jones Lang LaSalle) which produced a surplus of
£12.8 million in the year, deferred tax on the revaluation surplus
and movement in interest rate derivatives, the profit for the year
was £15.? million, of which the Group’s share was £3.1 million.

Big Yellow has a management contractin place in each Partnership.

“'For the year to 31 March 2021 the Group earned management fees

of £1.4 million. The Group's share of the dividend for the yearis
£0.7 million, representing a 15% yield on our equity invested. -
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Directors have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model,
future performance, solvency, or liquidity. The Group maintains a low appetite to risk, in line with our strategic objectives ofprowdmga low .

’ volatlhtg, high d|strlbut|on business.

The section below details the principal risks and uncertainties that are considered to have the most material impact on the Group's strategg
and objectives. These key risks are monitored on an ongonng basis by the Executive Directors and considered fully by the Boardinitsannual

P

Risk and impact

Mitigation

Change during the year and outlook

Self storage
market risk

There is a risk to the business
that the self storage market
does not grow in line with our
projections, and that
economic growth in the UK is
below expectations, which

- could result in falling demand
and a loss of income.

Self storage is a r,ela(iveig immature market in the UK compared to other self storage

markets such as the United States and Australia, and we believe has further
opportunity for growth. Awareness of self storage and how it can be used by
domestic and business customers is relatively low throughout the UK, although *
higher in Landon. The rate of growth of branded self storage on main roads in good
locations has historically been limited by the difficulty of-acquiring sites at

affordable prices and obtaining blanning consent. New store openings in London and

other large metropolitan cities within the sector have slowed significantly over the
past few years.

Our performance during the Covid pandemic has been resilient. We believe that the
resilience of our performance is due to a combination of factors including:

aprime pbnfolio of freehold properties;

a focus on London and the South East and other large metropolitan cities,
where the drivers in the self storage market are at their strongest and the
barriers to competition are at their highest;

"the strength of operational and sales management;

continuing innovation to deliver the highest levels of customer service;
deli\/ering on our strong ESG commitments;

the UK’s leading self storage brand, with high and growing public
awareness and online strength; and .

' strong cash flow generatlon and hlgh operating marglns froma secure

capital structure.

" Wehavea large current storage customer base of approximately 62,000 spread

across the portfolio of stores and hundreds of thousands more who have used

A Big Yellow over the years. In any month, customers move in and out at the margin

resulting in changes in accupancy. This is a seasonal business and typically we see
growth over the spring and the summer manths, with the seasonally weaker period-
being the winter months.

The Covid-19 pandemic caused a significant _

. contraction in economic growth for the UK

for 2020.

The roll-out of vaccines has provided some
hope of a return to more normal economic
conditions, however risks around new
variants remain, Governments around the
world have taken on significant-additional " -
debt to fund the policy responses to the
pandemic, and this may result in higher
taxation rates in the future.

The market risk has reduced since the same
time last year given the performance of the
business over the past 12 months and the

- vaccine roll-out.

The uncertainty that we faced last year

-associated with the UK's exit from the EU
- and whether a trade deal would be agreed,

has reduced. The uncertainty in the run up
to Brexit had impacted consumer behaviour,
which caused lower occupancy growth for
the Group in the year ended March 2021.
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Risi( and impact

Mitigation

Change during the year and outlook

Property risk

There is a risk that we will
be unable to acquire new
development sites which
meet management's criteria.
This would impact on our
ability to grow the overall
store platform.

Changing climate and
resulting likely changes to
planning restrictions will
narrow choice of available
sites further.

The Group is also subject to
the risk of failing to obtain
planning consents on its
development sites, and the .
risk of a rising cost of
development.

Planning approval
increasingly dependent on
Social or Environmental
enhanced features (e.g.
social enterprise at Battersea,
BREEAM standards, local -
planners demands for green
spaces) — adding cost and
complexity.

Our management has significant experience in the property industry generated over
many years and in particular acquiring property on main roads in high profile
locations and obtaining planning consents. We do take planning risk where
necessary, although the avallabllltg ofland, and competmon for it makes acquiring
new sites challenging. :

Ourin-house development team and our professional advisers have significant
experience in obtaining planning consents for self storage centres.

We manage the construction of our properties very tightly. The building of each site
is handled through a design and build contract, with the fit-out project managed
in-house using an'established professional team;of external advisers and

- sub-contractors who have worked with us for many years to our Big Yellow

specification, We carried out an external benchmarking of our construction costs
and tendering programme three years ago, which had satisfactory results.

The Group has acquired seven sites over the

past couple of years, taking its total pipeline

10 14 sites which, when opened, woplg:l
expand the Group's current MLA by 20%.

The planning process remains difficult and
to achieve a planning consent can take

’ anything from eighteen months to three

years. Local planning policy is favouring
residential development over other uses,
and we don't expect this to change given
the shortage of housing in the UK:

The paﬁdgmic meant in-person planning
committee meetings were suspended,
which initially caused a delay in the Group
receiving planning consents. Over recent
months, the planning process has returned
10 more normal timescales.

We currently have planning consent on
8 of the 14 development sites.

Valuation risk

The valuation of the Group's
investment properties may
fall due to external pressures
or the impact of performance.

Lack-of transactional
evidence in the self storage
sector leads to more
subJecnve valuations.

The valuations are carried out by independent, qualified external valuers who have
significant experience in the UK selfswrage industry.

The portfolio is diverse with approxumatelg 62,000 customers currently using our
stores for a wide variety of reasons. :

" Thereis significant headroom on our loan to value banking covenants.

The revaluation surplus on the Gruups

open store investment properties was
£189.1 million in the year (an uplift of 13%],
principally due to an improvement in
underlying cash flows used in the valuations,
coupled with cap rate improvement.

There have been portfolio transactions since
the onset of the pandemic, and there is
institutional money looking to invest in self
storage. At the prior year end, the valuation
risk was higher in the early stages of the
pandemic, and the valuers drew attention in
their prior year report to material valuation
uncertainty. There is no such clause in this
year's valuations.

Treasury risk

The Group may face increased
costs from adverse interest
rate movements.

Our financing policy is to fund-our current needs through a mix of debt, equity and
cash flow to allow us to selectively build out the remaining development pipeline and
achieve our strategic growth objectives, which we believe improve returns for

"shareholders. We have made it clear that we believe optimal leverage for a business

such as ours should be LTV in the range 20% to 30% and this informs our
management of treasury risk.

~Weaim to ensure that there are sufficient medium-term facilities in place to finance

our committed development programme, secured against the freehold portfolio,
with debt serviced by our strong operational cash flows.

We have a fixed rate loan in place from Aviva Commercial Finance Limited, with
seven years remaining. This loan was increased by £35 million in March 2020.
Our on-site solar generation plans helped us in securing a lower margin on this -
tranche of debt. ) ] ] S

The Bank of England base rate was reduced
to 10bps in March 2020, and the long-term
forecast is for rates to remain at low levels
for the foreseeable future! A significant
prop&rtion of the Group's debt is floating,
and hence the Group has benefited from
this reduction in base rate.

Debt providers currently remain supportive

to companies with a strong capital structure, -

as evidenced by the Group completing on
the loan from Aviva after the pandemic
started. That said, the current environment
has put pressure on banks’ margins, with a

" potential future increase in cost to the Group.
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Principal risks and uncertountles (continued) |

Risk and impact

Mitigation

Change during the year and outlook

. Treasury risk
(continued)

The Group has a £720 million loan from M&G Investments, which is 50% fixed and S0%
floating, repayable in 2023. For our bank debt, we borrow at floating rates of interest
and use swaps to hedge our interést rate exposure. Our policy is to have at least 40%
of our total borrowings fixed, with the balance floating. At 31 March 2021 53% of the
Group's tatal borrowings were fixed or subject to interest rate derivatives. The Group
reviews its current and forecast projections of cash flow, borrowing and interest
cover as part of its monthly management accounts. In addition, an analysis of the
impact of significant transactions is carried out regularly, as well as a sensitivity
analysis assuming movements in interest rates and store occupancy on gearing
and interest cover. This sensitivity testing underpins the viability statement below.

The Group regularly monitors its counterparty risk. The Group monitors compliance
with its banking covenants closely. During the year it complied with all its covenants
and is forecast to do so for the foreseeable future.

The Group’s interest cover ratio for the year
ended 31 March 2021 was 9.9 times,
comfortably ahead of our internal target N
of 5 times and ahead of our banking
covenants, as disclosed in note 19,

Tax and .
regulatory risk

The Group is exposed to
changes in the tax regime
affecting the cost of
corporation tax, property
rates, VAT, Stamp Duty and
Stamp Duty Land Tax (“SOLT"),
for example the imposition

of VAT on self storage from

1 October 2012.

The Group is exposed to
pdtemial tax penalties or
loss of its REIT status by
failing to c'omplg with the
REIT legislation.

We regularly monitor proposed and actual changes in legislation with the help of our
professional advisers, through direct liaison with HMRC, and through trade bodies to
understand and, if possible, mitigate or benefit from their impact. :

HMRC have designated the Group as having a low-risk tax status, and we hold regular
meetings with them. We carry out detailed planning ahead of any future regulatory
and tax changes using our expert advisers.

The Group has internal monitoring procedures in place to ensure that the appropriate
REIT rules and legislation are complied with. To date all REIT regulauons have been
complied with, |nclud|ng projected tests.

The Group experienced an increase in cost in
2017 following the Government's review of
business rates, and the next rating review
due in 2023 may bring additional cost to the
Group, given the rise in mdus(rlal rents over

the past few years.

. The corporanon tax rate was increased in the

March 2021 budget, and there is a risk that
tax rates will rise further in the medium-
term to fund the increased government
deficits that have arisen from the policg

. response to the pandemic.

Human
resources r!sk

Our people are key to our
success and as such we are
exposed to a risk of high staff
turnover, and a risk of the
loss of key personnel,

We have devéloped a professional, lively, and enjoyable working environment
and believe our'success stems from attracting and retaining the right people.

We encourage all our staff to build on their skills through appropriate training

and regular performance reviews, We believe in an accessible and open culture
and-everyone at all levels is encouraged to review and challenge accepted norms,
to contribute to the performance of the Group.

We were ranked in the Sunday Times 100
Best Companies to Work For survey in
February 2019 (the last time the Group
participated in the survey], showing strong

levels of engagement from our employees.

The Group carried out an engagement
survey of its employees during the prior
year, which showed very pleasing fesults -
of the level of engagement of our teams.

We have consulted regularly with our
employees during the year through a series
of pulse surveys to listen to their views,
Our staff turnover was at its lowest level

for a number of years in 2021.
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Risk and impact

Mitigation

Change during the year and outlook

Brand and
reputation risk

The Group is exposed to
the risk of a single serious -
incident materially affecting
our customers, people,
“financial performance and
hence our brand and
reputation, including the
risk of a data breach.-

We have ‘always aimed to run this busmess ina profess«onal way, which has
involved strict adherence with all regulations that affect our business, such as’
health and safety legislation, building regulations in relation to the construction
of our buuldmgs, anti-slavery, anti-bribery and data regulations,

We also invest'in cyber security [dlscussed below] and make an ongoing
investment in staff training, facilities management, and the maintenance of

our stores.

To ensure consistency of service and to understand the needs of our customers,

we send surveys to every customer who moves in and moves out of the business.
The results of the surveys and mystery shops are reviewed to continuouslg improve
and deliver consistent performance throughout the business. '

t

We maintain regular communication with our key stakehalders, customers,
employees, shareholders, and debt providers.

ADuring 2018, we developed a crisis response
plan with external consultants to ensure the
Group is well placed to deal with a. major
incident more éffectivelg.

During the prior year, we carried out an
exercise to stress-test the crisis response
plan with a scenario baséd on a disaster
atone of the Group's stores.

We have explained in the Operational and
Marketing Review how we have reacted
operationally to the Covid-19 pandemic
and ensured our staff and customers
remain safe. ’

Security risk

The Group is exposed to the
risk of the damage or loss

of a store due to vandalism,
fire, or natural incidents such
as flooding. This may also
cause reputational damage.

The safety and security of our customers, their belongings, stores, and our staff
remains a key priority. To achieve this we invest in state-of-the-art access control
systems, individual room alarms, digital CCTV systems, intruder and fire alarm
systems and the remote monitoring of all our stores outside of our trading hours.
We are the only major operator in the UK self storage industry that has every room
in every store individually alarmed.

We have implemented customer security procedures in line with advice from the
Police and continue to work with the regulatory authorities on issues of security,
reviewing our operational procedures regularly. The importance of security and the
need for vigilance is communicated to all store staff and reinforced through training
and routine operational procedures.

We have continued to run courses for all our
staff to enhance the awareness and
effectiveness of our procedures in relation
to security. '

We regularly review and implement v
improvements to our security processes
and procedures.

Cyber risk

High profile cyber- anacks and
data breaches are a regular
staple in today's news. The
results of any breach may
result in reputational damage,
fines, or customer _
compensation, causing a loss
of market share and income..

The Group receives épecialis} advice and consultancy in respect of cyber security,
and we have dedicated in-house monitoring and regular review of our security

- systems, we also limit the retention of customer data to the minimum requirement.

Policies and procedures are under regular review and benchmarked against industry
best practice by our consultants. These policies also include defend, detect and

response policies.

We don't consider the risk to have increased
more for the Group than any other business;
however, we consider that the threats in

the entire digital landscape do continue

to increase and evolve. As such we have
continued to invest in cyber security
upgrading or replacing components

as required.

Climate change
related risk -

The Group is exposed to
climate-change related
transition and physical risks.
Physical risks may affect the
- Group’s stores and may result
in higher maintenance and
repair costs. Failing to
transition to a low carbon
economy may cause an
increase in taxation, decrease
in access to loan facilities and
reputational damage.

The good workirig order of our stores is of critical irriportance 10 our business model.

" We visually inspect each of our stores at least once per annum and planned and

unplanned wark is discussed |mmed|atelg

Maintenance requirements are discussed at budget reviews; proposals are made to
raise climate change related issues to the Board, who may request more holistic
adaptation work to be carried out. -

The key mitigation strategy to address transitional risks is the delivery of the newly
launched Net Renewable Energy Positive Strategy and the Net Zero Scope 1 and
Scope 2 Emissions Strategy. Qur investment to decarbonise our business over the
next nine years is expected to mitigate fully against taxation (carbon tax) risk and

reputational nsks (bothi investors and customers).

Our newly established Sustainability
Committee, chaired by a Non-Executive )
Director, has delivered an ambitious
strategic plan to 2030.

We appreciate that both physical and
transition risks are expected to materialise
to lesser or greater extents over the coming
years and costs may go up gradually, hidden’

- within what may be perceived as ‘natural

variations’. Qur focus and strong governance
established during the year wilt allow us to
continue to mitigate the effects.

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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Pr1nc1pa1 risks and uncertalntles (continued) -

Internal audit

" The Group employs a Head of Store Compliance responsnble for
reviewing'store operational and financial controls. He reports to the
Chief Financial Officer, and also meets with the Audit Committee at
leastonce a year. This role is supported by three other team members,
enabling additional work and support to be carried out across the
Group's store portfolio. The Store Compliance team will visit each
operational store twice per year to carry out a detaited store audit.
These audits are unannounced, and the Store Compliance team carry

outdetailed tests on financial management, administrative standards,

- and operational standards within the stores. Part of the store staff’s
bonus is based on the scores they achieve in these audits. The results
of each audit are reviewed by the Chief Financial Officer, the Financial

. Controller, and the Head of Store Operations. This is the equivalent of
an internal audit function for the Group’s store operations.

For the key business cycles conducted at the Group’s head office,
external consultants are used to review the Group's controls on a
rotational basis. The consultants produce a report with recommendations
which is discussed with management and reviewed by the Audit
Committee. The cycles covered by this activity include construction
expenditure, treasury, taxation, and facilities management.

With the combination of the store internal audit process-and the
external assessment of the key business cycles, the Audit Committee
considers that this prowdes arobustinternal audit assessment for
the Group.

Going concermn

Areview of the Group's business activities, together with the factors
likely to affect its future development, performance and position are
setout in the Strategic Report. The financial position of the Group, its
cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are shown in the
balance sheet, cash flow statement and accompanying notes to the
financial statements. Further information concerning the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial
risk management objectives; details of its financial instruments and
hedging activities; and its exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk can
be found in IhlS Reportand in the notes to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2021 the Group had avallable liquidity of approximately
. £100 million, from a combination of cash and undrawn bank debt

facilities. The Group is cash generative and for the year ended

31 March 2021, had operational cash flow of £26.7 million, with

capital commitments at the balance sheet date of £17.3 million.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of

18 months from the date of approval of these financial statements,
taking into account the Group’s operating plan and budget for the year
ending 31 March 2022 and projections contained in the longer-term
business plan which cover the period to March 2025. After reviewing
these projected cash flows together with the Group's and Company’s
cash balances, borrowing facilities and covenant requirements, and
potential property valuation movements over that period, the Directors
believe that, taking account of severe but plausible downsides, the
Group and Company will have sufficient funds to meet their liabilities
as they fall due for that period.

a6

In making their assessment, the Directors have carefully considered
the outlook for the Group’s trading performance and cash flows as a
result of the economic shock brought on by the Covid-19 pandemic,
taking into account the trading performance of the Group from the

-onset of the pandemic to the date of these financial statements.

The Directors have also taken into account the performance of the
business during the Global Financial Crisis. The Directors modelled a
number of different scenarigs, including material reductions in the

" Group's occupancy rates and property valuations, and assessed the

impact of these scenarios against the Group’s liquidity and the Group’s
banking covenants. The scenarios considered did not lead to breaching
any of the banking covenants, and the Group retained sufficient
liquidity to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

Consequently, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the financial statements.

Viability statement .

The Directors have assessed the Group's viability over a four-year
period to March 2025. This period is selected based on the Group's
long-term strategic plan to give greater certainty over the forecasting
assumptions used. As in the assessment of going concern, the
Directors have modelled a number of different scenarios on the Group's
future prospects.

In makmgthelr assessment, the Directors took account of the Group's
current financial position, includingcbrﬁmitte»d capital expenditure.
The Directors carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the business, their potential financial impact
on the Group's cash flows, REIT compliance and financial covenants
and the likely effectiveness of the mitigating options detailed. The
Directors have assumed that funding for the business in the form

of equity, bank and insurance company debt will be available in all
reasonably plausible market conditions. Whilst the eventual impact
of Covid-19 on the Group is uncertain, and may not be known for some
time, the Group has a highly cash generative business, good liquidity
and has proved resilientin its trading since the onset of the pandemic.

‘Based on this assessment the Directors have a reasonable expectation

that the Company and the Group will be able to continue-operating and

. meeting all their liabilities as they fall due to March 2025.

John Trotman
Chief Financial Officer*

24 May 2021
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Section 172 Statement

Section 172 of the Cbmpanies Act 2006 requires a Director of a
company to actin the way he or she considers, in good faith, would be
the most likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit
of its members as a whole. In performing this Section 172 requires a
Directorto haye regards among other matters to:

= thelikely consequences of any decision in the long-term;

3 theinterests of the company’s employees; -

8 the need to foster the company’s business relationships with
suppliers customers and others; .

" the impactofthe company 's operanons on the community and the
environment;

" the deswabllltg of the compang malntalmnga reputation for h|gh
standards of business conduct; and

= the need toact fairly with members of the company.

" The Directors give careful con5|derat|on to the factors set out above
in discharging their duties under section 172.The Board's obligations
under Section 172 are considered at Board meetings within each
relevant section of the Board pack. The stakeholders we considerin
this regard are our employees, our customers, our shareholders, our

- suppliers, and the environment. The Board recognises that building
strong relationships with our stakeholders will help us to deliver our

- strategyin line with our Iong -term values and opera‘e the business in
a sustamable way. -

The Board regularly receives reports from management on issues
concerning customers, the environment, suppliers, employees, and
investors, which it takes into accountin its discussions and iniits
decision’-r’naking process under Section 172.

~ Stakeholder engagement

The Board is committed to effective engagement with all of our keg
stakeholders. The importance of each matter may differ to each
stakeholder group, and hence the Group seeks to understand the

relevantinterests and prigrities of each stakeholder Group, and to have

regard to these inits decision making. The Board does acknowledge
that not every decision that it makes will necessarilyresultina
positive outcome for all stakeholders.

Information on interaction with our key stakeholders is included in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 79 t0 84.
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‘Further information

You can read further information o stakeholder engagement and our
approach to S172in the followmg places: .

"Employees

— CEOintroduction [pages 18 to 19]

— Operationaland Marketing Review (pages 2510 29)
~  Risk Management [page 44]

= CSRReport (page 57)

—  Governance pages 82 and 84)

Customers

— Operationaland Markenng Review (pages 25 to 29)
= CSRReport [page 60)
— Governance (page 83)

Suppliers
— CSRReport (page 61]
— Governance (page 83)

Investors’
"= Chairman’s Statement [pages 14 t0 17)
—. Operational and Financial Review (pages 22 to 41)
~ Governance (page 83) '

Environment

= CEOintroduction [page 19)
—  Operational and Marketing Review (page 27)
— CSRReport [pages 5210 71)

Long-term
- ChalrmansStatement[pages 14 tol?]
‘= Ourinvestment Case (page 48)
— Risk Management [pages 42 t0 45)
- Viability Statement (page 46)
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‘Our investment case

In the twenty one

'years since flotation in -

May 2000, Big Yellow.
has delivered a Total
Shareholder Return
("TSR"), including
dividends reinvested,
of 147% per annum, in
‘aggregate 1,671% at the
closing price of L115p
~on 31 March 2021 This
compares to 56% per
annum for the FTSE
Real Estate Index and
47% per annum for
the FTSE All Share
index over the same
period. We feel this
illustrates the power
~ of compounding of

consistent incremental

- returns over the
longer term.

Our values:

Helpfulness

Big Yellow exists to help people out
and relieve pressure in their lives.
-We constantly strive'to make our
customers’ lives easier.

Empathy

We always listen and put ourselves
in the position of the individual we
are serving, understanding how
exactly we can lighten their load.

How wedo it |

Attractive market
dynamics

_®  UKselfstorage pénetrationin '
key urban conurbations remains
relatively low oo

¥ Limited new supply coming onto

" the market '

®  Resilient through the last
economic downturn and resilient
to date in the current crisis

®  Selfstorage is more partof the -
ecosystem today than it was in
2008 with increased domestic
‘and business awareness

" Our competitive

advantage -

" UKindustry's most recognised
brand with over 90% of enquiries
now onliné I C

= Prominent stores on arterial or

. mainroads, with extensive
frontage.and high visibility

= Contiriupus innovation and

investment into our mobile and
desktop digital channels

" ®  Strong customer satisfaction and

NPS scores reflecting excellent
customer service

= 6.0 million sq ft UK footprint (Big

Yellow and Armadillo combined)

®  Primarily freehold estate
concentrated in London and
‘South East and'other large
metropolitan cities

@ Largeraverage store capacity

- economies of scale, higher
operating margins

8 Secure financing structure with

strong balance sheet
®  (Continued significantinvestment
in sustainability and our culture .
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Flexibility '
We are always flexible and adapt our
service to best suit the needs and the

Innovativeness

We strive to innovate to help drive our
business forward and we never

* Integrity

We approach everg{hing we
do with a commitment to doing right.

desires of our customers. accept the status quo. . This goes beyond our customers
: ' toinclude our people, local
communities and environments.
Evergreen income - Strong'growth - ‘Conversion into
streams opportunities quality returns

s 62,000 customers from a diverse

base — individuals, SMEs, and
national customers

" Average length of stay for
existing customers of 27 months

8 35%of customersin stores
greater than two-year length

" ofstay

® Lowbad debtexpense
(0.1% of revenue in the year),
no deterioration since onset
.of current crisis

-8 Qpportunities’to drive further

- occupancy growth
®  Yield managementas occupancy:
increases ' o
®  Densification of living and
- scarcity of flexible business
warehouse space drives demand

‘= Growth in national customers

and business customer base
® Increasing the platform witha
. conservative capital structure
8 Growthin our Armadille platform

& Freeholdassets forhigh' ’

operating margins and
operational advantage

= . Lowtechnology and
obsolescence-product,

. maintenance capex fully

expensed - :

®  Annual compound adjusted eps
growth of 14% since 2004/5
(IFRS adoption) - '

_ ® Annual compound cash flow

growth of 14% since 20(]4/5
8 - Dividend pay-out ratio of 80%
of adjustedeps '

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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Our strategy

Brand, platform, and customer service

Our strategy from.the outset has been to develop Big Yellow into the.
market-leading self storage brand, delivering excellent customer
service, investing in sustainability and our market-leading operating
platform and digital channels, with a great culture and highly motivated
employees. We concentrate on developing our stores in main road
locations with high visibility, where our distinctive branding generates
high awareness of Big Yellow.

Creating shareholder value

We continue to believe that the medium-term opportunity to create
shareholder value consists of driving revenue and cash flow from our
existing portfolio through continued investment in sustainability, our
people, culture, and digital'operating and marketing platforms. In
addition, we aim to deliver external growth as new stores open through
continued investment in our development pipeline. As a REIT our key
financial objective is to produce sustainable returns.for shareholders
through a relatively low leverage, low volatility, high distribution
business. In addition, any successful business must have an effective
sustainability strategy, particularly around climate change, and this
continues to be a key strategic focus for our business.

We focus on the following key areas: -

. W leveraging our market-leading brand position to generate.new

" prospects, principally from our digital, moblle and desktop
platforms .
" focusing on training, selling skills, and customer satlsfacnon 0,
maX|m|se prospect conversion and referrals;

® growingoccupancyand net rentio drive revenue optimally at

eachstore; .

® maintaining a focus on cost control, so revenue growth is
transmitted through to earnings growth;

® increasing the footprint of the Big Yellow platform prmcnpallg
through new site development and where p055|ble exnstlng prime
-freehold stores that meet our quality criteria;

»  selectively acquiring existing self storage assets into the
Armadillo platform; )

® through our corporate social responsibility initiatives, aim to create
amare sustainable business which will incréase shareholder and
customer value in both the medium and long-term;

= ' maintaining Big Yellow's culture as an accessible, apolitical,
inclusive, non-hierarchical, socially responsible, and enjoyable
place to work; and '

'®  maintaining a conservative capital structure in the business with

Group interest cover of a minimum of five times.

Real estate

The other main plank of our strategy has been to build a portfolio of
Iérge purpose-built freehold self storage centres, focussed on London,
the South Eastand large metropolitan cities. We believe that by.owning
apredominantly freehold estate we are insulating ourselves against:
economic downturns.as we operate at higher margins; adverse rent
reviews; and in the long-term possible redevelopment of key stores by
the landlord. It also provides us financing ﬂexlbllltg asrentis aform

~ of gearing,

Approximately two thirds of our current annualised store revenue
derives from within the M25; for London and the South East, the
proportion of current annualised store revenue is 82%. Our.store

R development pipeline islargely in London and the South East, so we

expect to maintain this geographic focus overthe medium term.

New supply and competmon is a key risk to our business model, hence
our focus on London and its commuter towns, where barriers to entry
in terms of competition for fand and difficulty around obtaining
planning are highest. We continue to see limited new supply growth in
our key areas of operation. Looking back over the last five years, we
estimate capacity growthin London of approximately 1.5% per annum.
In 2020, there have been anly five store openings in London [including
two Big Yellow stores), and we anticipate four new stores in London in
2021, including one Big Yellow store opening in Uxbridge.

Since April 2020, we have acquired four development sites in Wapping,
Staines, Epsom, and Kentish Town (all London), with a total estimated
self storage development cost of £106 million. This increases our
pipeline to'14 freehold development opportunmes totallmg
approximately 1.0 million sq ft (20% of MLA).

Our Big Yellow stores are on average 63,000 sq ft, compared toan

industry average of approximately 44,000 sq ft (source: UK Self

Storage Association 2021 Annual Survey). The upside from filling our
larger than average sized stores is, in our view, only possible in large
metropolitan markets. As our operating costs are relatively fixed, larger’
stores in bigger urban conurbations, particularly London, drive higher

-revenues and higher operating margins.
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Capital structure

Following the Global Financial Crisis and the ensuifg economic-
‘recession, we have materially reduced the financial risk within the
business and diversified our sources of debt, whilst at the same time,
increasing our store platferm by deploying significant capital. '
investment. We measure leverage by looking at our interest cover
and that has increased from 1.9 times in 200810 9.9 times for the
yearended 31 March 2021. Our objective is to not let this fall below

5 times, compared to the consolidated EBITDA covenant of 1.5 times.
We manage this business on the basis that an external economic
shock could potentially happen at any time. This is reinforced by the
performance of the business through the current crisis, where we
have delivered a. strong trading performance whilst at the same time
con(inuingto investand expand. ‘

‘ Self storage demand drivers

Economic acnvng and change are.key drivers of selfstorage demand
and are greatest in the larger urban conurbations, and-in particular
London and the South East. The structural changes consisting of the
conversion of ex-industrial brownfield land to other uses, in particular
residential; the reduction in home ownership and increased proportion
of those choosing to rent; increasing density of living with new
properties being built with optimised living space and very little
provision for storage; will continue and are resulting inincreased
demand for our product. These changes have resulted in a significant
shortage of available warehousing space, particularly in London, which
has been accentuated by the current crisis. Self storage provides a
convenient flexible solution to businesses such as onlirie retailers,
importers and exporters, service providers, the public sector, and
marketing companies looking for mini-warehousing space.

In addition to domestic customers taking space-to declutter their
homes, our largest customer base is those using us short-term around

anevent,suchas moving home, refurbishment, inheritance, household

formation, separation, relocation, and students.

Resilience

The location of our stores, brand, security, and most importantly
customer service, together with the diversity of our 62,000 customers,
serve better than any lease contractin providing income security.

The business proved to be relatively resilient, but notimmune during
the Global Financial Crisis and recession of 2007 to 2009, with London
and the South East proving to be less volatile. During the current crisis
the business'has performed strongly with like-for-like occupancy
growth of 6.7 ppts durmgthe financial year ended 31 March 2021.

Over 80% of our customers pay by direct debit, and our cash collection
has remained robust throughout the pandemic, with 38.9% of our April
revenue collected as of 24 May. .

Total shareholder return

In the twenty one years since flotation in May 2000, Big Yellow has .
delivered a Total Shareholder Return (“TSR"), including dividends
reinvested, of 14.7% per annum, in aggregate 1,671% at the closing
price of 1,115p on 31.March 2021. This compares to 5.6% per annum for
the FTSE Real Estate Indexand 4.7% per annum for the FTSE All Share
index over the same period. We feel this illustrates the power of

~ compounding of consistent incremental returns over the longer term.

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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Wé continue to believe that

the medium-term opportunity

to create shareholder value
consists of driving revenue

and cash flow from our

existing portfolio through
continued investment in
sustainability, our people, culture,
and digital operating and
marketing platforms.

"We focus on the following key areas:

New prospects

leveraging our market-leading brand position to generate
new prospects, principally from our digital, mobile and

- desktop platforms;

Customer satisfaction

focusing on training, selling skills, and customersausfactlon
to maximise prospect conversion and referrals;

Driving revenue
growmgoccupancg and netrentto dnve revenue optlmallg

" ateachstore;

Cost control

maintaining a focus on cost control sorevenue growth is
transmitted through to earnings growth

lncreaslng footprint
mcreasungthe footprint of the Big Yellow platform principally

through new site development and where possible existing

prime freehold stores that meet our quality criteria;

‘

.Expanding Armadillo

selectively acquiring existing selfstorage assetsinto the
Armadillo platform

Susiulnabmgy :

through our corporate social responsibility initiatives, aim
to create a more sustainable business which willincrease
shareholder and customer value in both the medium and
long-term;

Culture

maintaining Big Yellow's culture as an accessible, apolitical,
inclusive, non-hierarchical, socially responsible, and enjogable
place to work; and

-. Capital
‘. maintaining a conservative capital structure in thé business

with Group interest cover of a minimum of five times.

51



52

Strategic Report

Corporate and
Social
Responsibility
Report

10 Introduction

Big Yellow Group PLC (“Big Yellow”) is committed to responsible and
sustainable business practices. The Big Yellow Board recognises that
corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) — when linked to ciear
commercial objectives, will create a more sustainable business and
increase shareholder and customer value, in both the medium and
long term. People, Planet and Profit need to be aligned to make a
sustamable business.

Big Yellow seeks to meet the demand for self storage from businesses
and private individuals by providing the storage space for their
commercial and/or domestic needs, whilst aiding local employment

. and contributing to the local community.

"Our CSR Policy covers all Big Yellow operations, as both an operator’

of self storage facilities and a developer of new self storage facilities.

We recognise that our operations can have significant economic,

“environmental, and social impacts. We are therefore committed to
assessing our CSR risks and opportunities, and taking appropriate
steps to mitigate negative impacts and, where possible, enhance
positive impacts for the benefit of our business, our stakeholders,
and our local environment. . )

In the last year, we created a Board Sustainability Committee to:

® . oversee Big Yellow's sustainability framework a'nd‘strategg;
" monitor Big Yellow's sustainébilitg performance

. provide guidance on emerging environmental i issues, mcludmg

environmental risks, and theirimpact on Big Yellow's business; and

= oversee the Big Yellow C_SR reporting, including our external
audit/assurance mechanisms. .

The Big Yellow Board also receives regular direct updates on.,
sustainability topics both from the Environmental Commmee and from
the Head ofCSR

The outcome ofoperatmg respons:blg is the social value that we create
and the lonig-term resilience of our business when faced with external
pressures and changes, such as a changing climate and a changmg
political and legislative environment.

Our full CSR Report and the relevant sections within our Annual Reports
and Accounts (the Directors’ Report and the CSR section) have been
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Directors’ Report] and

‘Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carban Report} Regulations '

2018 implementing the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
(“SECR*) requirements. The Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) section of the
CSRreport has been reported in accordance with the WRI/WBCSD GHG
Protocol —a Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard.

" Our health and safety reportingis stated in accordance with the UK
Health and Safety Executive guidance.

You can read more about our business model on pages 48 to 51 of the
Annual Report
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‘2.0 CSR ExecutiVe
Summary

This year has been a challénging one for us ali due to the Covid-19 -
pandemic — and the necessary lockdown restrictions imposed on us
‘all. Some of our colleagues have experienced personal family losses

as aresult of the pandemic, and we would like to take a moment to

. remember all of those who have been affected. '

We would like to thank all our colleagues for their dedication, hard work

" and perseverance in the face of the pandemic and lockdown controls;
for working hard to keep our stores open, working within the published
governmeht guidance; and also to thank our customers for their
patience in following the rules necessary to keep everyone safe. With
the NHS vaccination programme well underway, we sincerely hope we
will soon be able to live with fewer restrictions in our daily lives. -

In March this year, on Employee Appreciation Day, the Directors took a
moment to record amessage of thanks to everyone in the Company.

This is our 15th CSR Report and looking back at our very first offering
. in 2007 the way we deal with Environmental, Social and Governance
"matters has changed fundamentally over that time.

We have established a new Board level Sustainabillitg Committee,
.chaired by Heather Savory (our new Non-Executive Director with
responsibility for Sustainability). | and the entire Board take our
responsibilities for CSR to the heart of our business and we are
very pleased to have Heather assisting us with our ongoing
Sustainability Agenda. ‘

The work we have done to intégrate the-climate related risks and
opportunities within'our business process has led us to a better,
quantifiable understanding of the risks associated with a Real Estate
business, such as Big Yellow. It has also ~ and | would argue in our case
more importantly —this year led the Board to explore more

" opportunities for the future.

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021

As aresult, this year we are launching a new long-term strategy to’
become Net Renewable Energy Positive, as part of a wider plan to

. deliver on our Net Zero Scope 1 and 2 Emissions targets. We are

actively investing in the resources necessary to make this happen,
including significant capital expenditure over the next few years,
investing in solar generation on the roofs of our stores. By 2025,
we expect to have completed-a multi-million pound investmentin
renewable energy generation alone, both within and external to our
self storage estate.

Getting to Net Zero is a challenge all businesses need to face (Jp to,
to plan forand toinvestin. [t will not be easy. We have the great
advantage of owning the large majority of our buildings; a large
number of which have been assessed as suitable to proceed with
the retrofmmg of solar energy generating installations. We are,
furthermore, an entrepreneurial Company and we intend to remain
flexible and open to further innovation. This is particularly pertinent
as sustainable technologles develop.

As we work towards reaching our Net Renewable Energy Positive

_ target, we will be responsive and open to new, technological solutions;
fund pilots where such technology looks promising; push our local

infrastructures to the maximum; and build new stores equipped to deal

. with anincreased scale of solarinstallation.

Jim Gibson )
Chief Executive Officer

24 May 2021

21 Highlights

8" We have reviewed our energy and emissions strategy and set
new bold and ambitious medium and long -term targets to 2030 -
and beyond.

®  We have maintained ourinclusion in the FTSE4Good indices;
maintained our GRESB Green Starrating and achieved an A- award
fram COP.

®  We have built on our EPRA sBPR Silver Award from last yearand-
obtained our first ever GOLD Award.

= We have swiftly moved to support our customers, communities,

“and employees throughout the Covid-19 challenges.

" ®..Wehave added a seventh Big Yellow Foundatlon chamg partner

—Street’League — to our Foundation family.
®  We have refreshed our Materiality Assessment, replacing ‘Gender
Equality’ and ‘Diversity'with the much brdader topic of ‘Inclusivity'.
" Wehave adopted the Sustainable Development. Goals ("SDGs”),
set by the United Nations in 2015.
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Corporate and Socidal Responsrbrlrty Report (continued)

22 Climate Change and our Busrness - 23 Sustainability Performance Overview

anew Strategy The table below is of all our commitments, the progress we have made
" We are aligned with the Intergovernmental Panel.on Climate Change against them during the financial year 2020/21 and our [amended)
(“IPCC”] position that the world needs to limit any environmerital plans going forwards. They are aligned to our three corporate
temperature rise to no more than 1.5 degrees Celsius above strategic CSR themes. '
pre-industrial fevels. ) Some of the targets below were not met during the year as they relied
Aligning our strategy to achieve this goal meets the needs and views of on physical interactions, which were not possible to carry out as a
our stakeholders and this report sets out how we intend to achieve that.  resultof the distancing and mobility restrictions imposed during

. S . the pandemic. ’
Although the IPCC Net Zero Emissions target due date is 2050, our ..

new strategy plans to deliver significant aspects of our reduction
in emissions by 2030. We will focus on our most material emissions
—carbon — and look forward to updating you on the progress we are
making in each future CSR Report.

We are developing a standalone strategy document covering Big
Yellow's pathwayto 100% Net Renewable Energy Positive and Net Zero
Scope 1,2 and 3 Emissions. We arm to publish this along5|de the Annual.
Reportand Accounts. - :

Provide the place and spolce to make lives easier

SODG where . . ) ‘Byyear ending Progress during .
applicable - Target/ Commitment - ) ' 31 March the year . : Update to plans
" Toraise £150, 000 Foundanon donations from our Annual ) Raised . Maintain target -£60,900 wasdueto
customers, Employee fundraising contributions  £223,243 Directors’ personal donations in 2020
and Big Yellow matched amounts N . .
" Grants allocated to Big Yellow Foundation Charity. “Annual * Allocated 66% Maintain target — we added a 7th charity
partners: 75% of income allocated to chamg ' ) during the year, so expect to catch up.
partners ' ' .
100% of stores with volunteerlng opportunities 2022 No progress - See Communities / Qur Peaple section
. made due to i
. . the Pandemic ) .
* 10% of volunteering days taken up by our teams © 2021 No progress See Communities / Our People section
o : made due to
the Pandemic
Fourindividuals on work placement contract 2022 Noprogress  We will review how achievable this target‘is
. provided and supported by a BYF charity partner made due to during2021/22 -
. . ) Lo the Pandemic .
Number of individuals offered a permanent position 2022 .- Notdue  Wé will review how achievable this targetis
from the above cohort — 100% of yearly cohort - during 2021/22
Maintain Customer Engagernent as measured by Annual - Achieved Monitored and included in Director Store
engagement with the Big Yellow Foundation: o ’ Visit Discussion

Monitor move-in and move-out donatlons aim for

. . . o |
maintaining 2017/18 performance Targetwill remain in place

Engage our National Customers with our 2021 Notachieved  We will reprise this activity duri'ng 2021722
sustainability agenda define engagement . K ’
approach . o
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Plan and act for a Sustainable Future

SDG where By year ending - Progress during
pplicabl Target/C 31 March the year Update to plans
Scope 1 & 2 Store Emissions [from 2011 baseline 2021 We have reached a 68% reduction — Reformulated new
year] reduction of 34% by 2020 and 80% by 2050 (hetargets have beenbroughtinline  strategyand new KPls
’ with the UK Government created
commitments to be Net Zero by
. . 2050
NEW: ‘Net zero’ Store Scope 1 and 2 Carbon 2030 Set new targets: These targets will
Emissidns by 2030 : - i -
missidns by ‘Market-based: 100% net zero undergo a science
. based target
-Location-based: 100% net zero assessment during
. - 2021/22
Achieve 10.0 tC0,e per mé occupied Intensity metric 2021. We have reached 5.8 —as we have Reformulated new
: : set decarbonisation commitments,  strategyand new KPis
. this target has been broughtinline =~ created
NEW: Achieve 0 tC0,e per m? occupied Intensrtg 2030 n/a This target will
metric ‘ undergo a science-
based target
assessment during
. 2021/22
~ EnergyIntensity target: 60% decrease from our 2030. Achieved 60% Remains in place
. 2011baseline
Increase total Solar PV generanon capacng bg at Annual Achieved +46% Reformulated new ’
¢ least 10% i strategy and new KPls
. created
NEW: Generate renewable energy to meet at least 2030 36 stores identified for retrofitting = New strategy adopted
100% of our energy needs ' solarand work plan agreed
New-built stores pre-construction BREEAM Annual Met —Bracknell, Camberwelland ~ Maintain standards as
. standards 'Very Good’ or better ’ Battersea all achieved 'Excellent’ * applicable for each
’ : : : pipeline store
100% CLA (Current Lettable Area) covered bg Green Annual 100%  WescaledupourEPC
aspects (%) ’ assessments and |
have reached 100%
earlier than planned
- we will now look to
. e , © maintain this.
New built'stores fitted with Electric Vehicle (EV) Annual Met — Bracknell, Camberweli and "Maintain target
charging pods (where external space allows) Battersea all have twin 7kWh o
' charging pods
Review in-store water consumption against self Annual Complete ~ remaining at or below Maintain target
storage benchmark : benchmark ,
Contractors signing up to CCS scheme with a target Annual Exceeded: Maintain target
score of 35 out of 50 available points for both fit-out : : ’
37 for Battersea
. andshell . .
" 38 forBracknell ,
. 40 for Camberweli . .
Educate and engage store teams to improve 2025 * 32% sentto landfill Targetremains in

recycling performance —send zero waste to fandfill

place
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Strategic Report
Corporctte and Social Respon51b111ty Report (continued)

Treat everyone fairly ahd respectfully, as a partner

SDG where . Byyearending ’ Progress during .
applicable  Target/ Commitment 31 March the year Update to plans
'RAeporton ‘prompt payment’ statistics Annual Complete ~ -Maintain
% of invoices received & paid within 30 days 58%
Actual paid statistics ‘ Setoutin the ‘Our Suppliers’ section
n/a We will continue to reference and meet our most Annual Achieved GOLD for 2019/20 Continue as is
- relevant standard: EPRA reportmg'
n/a We continug to submit to all relevant Benchmarks, Annual Mostrecentscores: - Continue asis
namely GRESB, CDP and FTSE ESG ’ : :
hamely bR CDP: A-
FTSE4Good: included in index [3.3)
4 : ' GRESB: 80% _
Itis ouraim to keep everyone safe when visiting Annual No fatalities — accident statistics _Continue asis
orworking at our stores. ‘are publlshed in the H&S section of
- . L this report
Any accidentorincident is investigated and ) P
=~ where'within our contro! — efforts are made to
learn from the incident so that there are no repeats. . ) .
n/a Supply Chain Risks: We intend to canduct further 2021 - Notachieved, as visits werenot  Review activity during

supplier assessments by visiting premises,
reviewing documentatlon and conducnng
interviews

essential during the pandemic.

With the planned Government
review of the UK Modern Slavery Act

we focussed on assessing our -

current internal processes.

We also submitted our information
to the voluntary UK Government

2021/22

Modern Slavery Statement Registry.
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30 Our People

Our people are at the heart of Big Yellow's business, bringing our values

1 life through the service that they provide and through the energy
and passion that drives us to become an ever more responsible and .
sustainable business. ’ '

We continue to encourage a culture of partnership within the business

and believe in staff participating in corporate performance through

benefits such as customer feedback rewards, bonus schemes and

share incentives. We recognise and reward the exceptional ‘

performance, achievements, and ideas of our people through a

Recognition Points Scheme and allocated points with a value of over
.£71,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021.

We remain committed 16 our values and ethics, as well as recruiting,
retaining and motivating individuals with talent and integrity-and
ensuring that we listen to our people and maximise their skills and
performance. These factors are all key to the continued success of
our Company.

As the impact of Covid-19 continues to be felt we have been working
hard to support our employees with a range of tools-to keep them
physically and mentally well.

31 Highlights

8 We held our first Employee Appreciation Day in March 2021 —
recording messages from the Directors to take a moment to say
. Thank You to everyone at Big Yellow and Armadillo

® - Signed up to the Business in the Community Race at Work charter
® Achieved Bronze Armed Forces Covenant status
= Continue to report on our Gender Pay gap.

®  Formed an Inclusivity and Diversity Committee to ensure thatthe _

Companyimproves the diversity of its workforce and embeds
diversity and inclusivity in everything is does
®  Appointed four Inclusivity and Diversity Experts to support the
Company in creating an organisational cuiture that values,
* embraces and celebrates individual differences within the
. workplace . -
& " Achieved 96% of our store recruitment in-house, reducing our -
. reliance on agencies (March 2020: 78%) .
" Reduced our store team turnover on a 12 month rolling basis to
23.6% [March 2020: 35.3%)

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report cnd Accounts 2021
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: Strateglc Report

Corporate and Socmtl Respon51b111ty Report (continued)

40 Our Communitie_é

Our communities are made up of all the people who work and store
inour stores and everyone who lives around us.

© With Covid continuing to dominate all of this financial year and

everyone at times subject to local or national restrictions there will be
very few individuals who have not been personallg affected by the
pandemic and some of us will have lost loved ones.

We believe we have been conducting our business with integrity and
compassion and hope we have been able to make lives easier,
especially for those individuals and organisations that have been
tirelessly working to feed communities and help keep health workers
and carers safe. - .

41 Highlights

" Provided free storage space to the British Red Cross at
27 locations, worth just over £37,000.

" QOpenedthe dedlcated studio space atour Battersea store for the

London Children’s Baliet on a peppercorn rent under a Section 106
Social Agreement with Wandsworth Borough council.

= Big Yellow's community investment for the year, delivered via

discounted space, was £334,000, £307,000 ofwhu:h was given
‘free-of charge.

®  We raised over £223,000 for the Big Yellow Foundation and
distributed £146,500 toiits 7 charity partners.

* Produced our third Annual Report for the Big Yellow Foundation
(for FY 2019/20).

® Inspired one of our contractors to take up the opportunity
of contracting with a social enterprise.

42 Community Invéstments

Free Space donated for community or charity use (£) £270,570*
Free Space donated to the British Red Cross . £372021* °
Discounted space of up to 90% _ ) £26,867*
Payments to Social Enterprise Organisations (£) £0.00.
Total'emplogeé Big Yellow Foundation fundraising ' l )
& Big Yellow matched funds (£) ) ) £4,569*
One-off donations : ) : ) n/a
Total Community Investment : £339,027*

*Indicates data reviewed by SGS as part of their assurance work

£147,000

donated to seven Foundation

charity partners

£37,000

worth of storage space donated

to the Red Cross
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4.3. Big Yellow Foundation

During the year, the Big Yellow Foundation adopted a seventh charity

- partner: Street League; together with Bounce Back, Breaking Barriers,

the Back Up Trust, the Down's Syndrome Association, Hire a Hero and
-StGiles Trust; they form our permanent Foundation charitg group.

The Foundation has posted its annual report and accounts, which can
be found on the charity commlssnon website.

You can find out more about all ofour partners and the Blg Yellow
Foundation on our website https://www.bigyellow.co.uk/foundation/.

Big Yellow and our customers and employees provide the income to the
Big Yellow Foundation. Our Big Yellow Foundation Steering team, who'
meet on a quarterly basis, determines how best to raise funds, and
promote the Foundation to our employees, customers, and suppliers.

The Foundation is Big Yellow's main vehicle to deliver a consistent
‘customer and employee facing commumtg programme.

Big Yellow and the Big Yellow Steering Committee has seta target of
raising £150,000 for the financial year commencing 1 April 2021:

The Big-Yellow Foundation's income in the year was £223,243.

This consists of customer donations, Big Yellow donations, Directors’
one-off donations, employeé fundraising and Big Yellow matched
employee fundraising donations and Gift Aid.

As the Foundation’s income is dependent on customer move-ins,
the pandemic had impacted the income dramatically during the -
first lockdown.

Both the Big Yellow business as well as the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors stepped in to ensure the Foundation could

continue to  payoutgrants ata time when all charities were struggling.

The Foundation paid out just over £146,000 to its Seven charity
partners in the year. .

In addition to the Trustees’ time and the Steering Committee’s time,
Big Yellow furthermore supports the Big Yellow Foundation with
donations in kind, bg provudmgfmancml and accountancy services

"plus the secretariat to the Big Yellow Foundation Board of Trustees.

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Repcrt and Accounts 2021
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Strorteglc Report

Corporate otnd Socmtl Respon51b111ty Report continuea

| 5.0 Qur Customers

Our most material commitment.to all of our customers is a safe, secure,
welcoming, and friendly environment.-

We are very pleased to say that we have been able to continue to serve
our customers during all three Covid-19 related Lockdowns; playing our
partin keeping businesses going and helping our customers to manage
key events in their lives, both predictable and unpredictable.

At Big Yellow, the health and safety of our team members and
customersis our principal priority, and this has never been more so
than during the pandemic. Our storage facilities are large buildings,

" butnot crowded places and generally we have a low intensity of use.

Atthe beginning of the pandemic we provided.PP-E appropriate for our
team members to use and carried out risk assessments to confirm our
stores remain Covid-19 compliant, with appropriate measures,

- .including by way of example:

® we have provided Perspex barriers, floor distancing markers,

face coverings, protective gloves hand sanmsers and other
’ washmgfacnlmes . :

®. allour customers must wear a face covering at all times when in
our reception area or in our storage area; .

= ourstaff wear a face mask atall times when dealing wnh
customers in our reception or storage areas;

8. we haveinstalled appropriate Covid-19 customer signage, which
is keptunder review;

" onlyalimited number of customers are allowed into our reception
area and lifts atany one time; .

®  onlyone customeris allowed in aliftata time;

® we have intensified the daily cleaning levels of our storage
facilities, especially in the most commonly touched points; and

®  the vast majority of our team members drive, cycle or walk to work
and we.have encouraged more to follow suit; in the first Lockdown
we paid for staff to get taxis to work, rather than use public transport.

We intend to keep all the above protocols under review as government
regulatlons evolve over the year ahead. .

v

51 Highlights

We responded promptly to meet the needs of our customers during
the Pandemic: we continued operating with reduced reception
hours during the first Lockdown, reminded customers that out of
hours access was an availablé option and ensured our store
environment was clean. ' '

Our NPS' (Net PromoterScore)for combined move-in and move-out
responses was 82.9.

Strengthening our Customer Engagement activities with:

* — strongsocial media content;

— engaging customer journey content;

= visibility of our commitment tousing renewable energy .
throughin-store displays as wellas a centralised solar
generation display on our corporate site; and

- continued engagement.with our Big Yellow Foundation— .
over one third of customers donate at either move-in or -
move-out stage.

All of our stores now have an EPC (Energy Performance Certificate)

‘rating, with 89% of our stores in the ‘Green range’ — making our

customers aware of the energy efflmencg of the store that
they use.
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60 Our Suppliers

Big Yellow recognises thatit can have a significantimpactonits
suppliers and that its suppliers are integral to Big YeIIow deliveringits
own environmental and social responsmllltles

How we rmanage our suppliers

We manage our suppliers on a decentralised basis, with each
Department Head overseeing the onboarding, contracting and in-life
management of their suppliers. Many of our suppliers have become
trusted partners, having worked with us for many gears

In addition, our construction partners source a broad vanetg of
materials from companies all over the world on our behalf. Whilst these
goods are not sourced directly by us, some may be specified by us.
We place great value on using recycled materials in our construction
process and.these are procured in accordance with our guidelines.

We have c. 600 direct suppliers in total, but 80 of whom represent

c. 85% of our spend. These suppliers deliver creative and marketing
services, Iegél'and financial services, as well as the full range of

real estate products and éervices such as planning advice,
architectural services, project management for construction,
cleaning, and maintenance. :

Most of these suppliers provnde professmnal highly skilled advice
andservices. :

Supplier engagement

This year, we have engaged with our cardboard box suppliers to ensure
that the material for the boxes'w_e-sell comes from sustainable sources
that do not contribute to deforestation

All of our suppliers have been able to provnde us with chain ofcustodg
documentation assessed and cemfled by SGS,

62 Supplier Payment Terms
Apr-Sep 20

Air source heat pumps at our Battersea store.

61 Highlights

"®  Weare happy to report that we have beén able to retain our Prompt
- Payment Code(“PPC”) performance certificate due to our
continued strong payment performance.
® We have been recognised as a Supplier Engagement Leader by the
Carbon Dlsclosure project. -
®*  We have conducteda spend-based Scope 3 footprlnt assessment.
®  We have successfully rolled out our Invoice approvaland
. processing software, which utilises Optical Character Recognition
technology to automatically capture invoice data, significantly
increasing our capacity to process invoices. The software has
enabled us to move towards a paper-free purchase invoice process.
®  We continue to deliver strong payment performance:

= We paid 58% of invoices within 30 days and a further 39% °
between 30 and 60 days. The first half of the year was )
‘impacted by the pandemic, and the promptness of payment
improved in the second half, aided by the adoption of the '
invoice management technology referred to above.

= Ouraverage time to pay an invoice: 32 days.’

No issues were raised via our confidential Whistleblowing Helpline.

Oct 20 - Mar21 . Total number of Invoices

Days Number of invoices % paid Number of invoices % paid FY 2020/21 % paid

<30 2,813 50% 4,184 64% 6,997 58%

30-60 - 2,607 47% 2,125 33% 4,732 39%

>60 ' 194 3% 184 3% 378 3%
5,614 ) 6,493 12,107

Total ~ .
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,Strorteglc Report

Corporate and Social Respons1b111ty Report (continued)

6.3 Supply Chain Risk

We provide a full update of supply chain risks as part of our reporting on )

the UK Modern Slavery Act. However, as we do not report on the Modern

_ Slavery Actuntil later in the year, we would like toprovide a brief update

here. In July 2020 both our Construction team and our Facilities team

" engaged with their relevant partners and suppliers to prommentlg
‘display our anonymous whistleblowing helpline.

Our construction partners have been displaying the posterin our
construction site offices; our Facilities contractor in our store
communal areas.

The poster is kept unbranded on purpose to re-enforce the message
thatany calls are treated in confidence; in March 2021 we had changed

" the contact details for our Whistleblowing Hotline as the existing

supplier has merged with a second prowder we have been migrated to
the new supplier’s pIatform

64 Scope 3 Footprint ’

Having established a robustapproach to collecting and reporting
Scope 1 and 2 emission data, we also wanted to understand our
Scope 3 footprint better. We believe that understanding our wider
énvironmental impact allows us ta be better prepared to meet future
opportunities and challenges. A‘ssessin’gour Scope 3Footprintwas a
necessaryfirststep.to understand material aspects of our extended
value chain.

We have published our Scope 3 Assessment on our Corporate Website,
Case Studies. We'intend to develop plans to address these in the near

future. We furthermore intend to use our Scope 3 work to set science-

based targets later.during 2021/22.

62
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70 Our Health & Safety

Big Yellow Self Storage recognises the importance of maintaining high
standards of Health & Safety for our customers, staff, contractors, and
any visitors to our stores. Our Health & Safety Committee reviews
Policies, Risk Assessments, performance, and records on a quarterly
basis. The Policies cover two distinct areas - our routine store
operations and our fit-out construction activities.

As we navigated various measures such as local restrictions and,
nnational lockdowns throughout the year, we have continued to do our
utmost to protect our staff, our customers, and our visitors as much

as possible by, amongst other measures:

= issuing specific guidance on (additional] cleaning procedures;
-8 making available extra cleaning products and protective

equipment, such as hand sanitiser gel, facemasks, and gloves,
available to customers and staff;

" introducing temporary home working for all office-based staff
who could work from home we have since updated our working
-from home policy to increase flexible working for office-based -

* staff;and . .

= temporarily adjusting our reception trading hours and
controlling access to our store receptions to minimise the .~
risk of the virus spreading.

. Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021

71 .Highlights

Covid-13: We do not usually report on sickness absence and do not

‘intend to do so this year. We have had a number of staff self-isolating

and some have reported Covid-19 symptoms. We are asking staff with
symptoms or underlying health conditions to stay at/ work from home
in order to protect themselves, their colleagues, and our customers.

To date, we are pleased to report that none of our current employees
have lost their lives or been seriously ill due to Covid-19. Furthermore,
we can report our highlights this year as follows:

" There were no “Fatal Injuries, Notices or Prosecutions” during the -
year ended 31 March 2021 in any part of our operations.

"= Aformalinternal meeting was held on 14 May 2020 to review store

and Head Office working policies in conjunction withthe
" Government's advice for Covid-19. Signs and Posters have been

displayed around reception and loading bays areas, following this
meeting. Afollow-up meeting was held on 18 Januarg 2021 and no
changes were needed.

®  Qurexternal H&S consultant reviewed the implemented Covid-19
policies in November 2020. There was no adverse feedback.

®  Qutof the 37 minorinjuries to our customers, over 72% were the
result of minor cuts. All but one of these could have been avoided
by wearing gloves. ‘

" Qurstaff suffered 6 minor m;unes foravariety of reasons,

including cuts.and trips.

= There were 7,111 ‘Person Days’ worked on new-store construction

‘Fit-out’ projects-in 2020/21. This work was on our hew store
developnrienis in Camberwell; Battersea, and Bracknell, as well as
the last two weeks in March in Uxbridge. There were no reportable
accidents for our Construction fit-out activities. )

®  Duringthe year, we opened our new stores in Bracknell,
Camberwell, and Battersea. The Considerate Cohstructor Schemes
{"CCS"} for the three newly opened stores were as follows:
Camberwell 40, Bracknell 38, and Battersea 37.

= Camberwell achieved the highest ever CCS score and received
praise for how its Covid-19 measures were implemented.
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Strategic Report
Corporate and Soc1al Respon51b111ty Report (contmued)

72 KPIs
" Store Customer, Contractor and Visitor Health & Safety ,

. Year Ended 31 March o ' 2018 . 2019 2020 2021
Number of Customer Move-ins® : . 73,662 73,293 .. 70,661 . - 66,366
Number of Minor Injuries » . ’ 61 . 55 ) 56 - 37

“Number of Reportable Injuries (RIDDOR) ’ ) 1 4 . 0 ’ 2
RIDDOR per 100,000 CustomerMove-ins ‘ o 13 - 55 0. - 3.0

Indicates data reviewed by SGS as part of their assurance work
Notes : RIDDOR = Repomngofln]unes Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences.
{1} Piease note this number is provided by the cemral finance team and audited as par\ of our third- -panty financial audit. Any normalising data is not assured bg SGS.

-Big Yellow Staff Health & Safety (Stores & Head Ofﬁce)

YearEnded 31 March ) o 2018 © 209 ' 200 @ - 2021

Average Number of Staff? ’ ! 335 3473 3611 369.8
Number of Minor Injuries - : : 13 14 : 10 S 6
Number of Reportable Injuries (“RIDDOR”) - : . 1 ) 0 . 0 0
AlIR per 100,000 staff . v - : . 299 R 0 0

* Indicates data rev:ewed by S6S as part of their assurance work.
Notes: Annual ln;urg Incident Rate = the number of staff reportable m;unes/average numher of staff (x100,000).
l2] FIEis used

'Big Yellow Construction ‘Fit-Out’ Health &Safety -

Year Ended 31 March . R 2018 2019 2020 2021 -

NumberofTotaIPersonDagsworked .o : ' 2,726 ' 2,473 2,667 . 7111
Number of Minor Injuries < , 3 2 o1 7
NumberofReportable Injuries [RIDDOR] -0 o - 0 0

* Indicates data reviewed by SGS as part of their assurance work.
Notes: RIDDOR = Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences.,
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80 Our EnVironmerit

Environmental Responsibilities

Our CSR Palicy sets out the aspects of what we manage. Our CSR Policy
Standard and our web content provide furtherinformation on how we
manage the impact of our business on society and the local
environment, to control our risks and manage our opportunitiesin a
sustainable manner. '

Environmental compliance

Our full CSR Report and the relevant sections within this Annual Report
and Accounts (Directors’ Report and CSR section) have been prepared
in accordance with the Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited
Liability Partnerships ([Energy and Carbon Report} Regulations 2018
implementing the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (“SECR”)
requirements. The Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") section of the CSR report
has been reported in accordance with the WRI/WBCSD GHG Protocol
ACorporate Accountmg and Reporting Standard.

Approach

We have provided a specific section on energy, emissions, water, and
waste in our full CSR Report, reporting againstaall environmental
European Public Real Estate Association (“EPRA") indicators (and

Global Reporting Initiative indicators where relevant). Having achieved

Gold’ status in terms of transparency and quality of our reporting
- during 2019/20 we continue to present our data in this format.

Where we feel further KPIs may be insightful, we have provided these
" in each subsection'too, includinga brlefnarrauve to explain variances
where appllcable

Any changes we make 1o our reporting are tabled in our Basis of
Reporting document.

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report end Accounts 2021'

Benchmarking and Standards
We use the detail in this CSR Report to participate in external/indusirg

benchmarks, such as the annual Carbon Disclosure Project (“COP”), the

Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark (“GRESB”) and FTSE4Good
to engage with our other Ethical Investors. |

The GRESB and COP benchmarks inform our investor community of our
general ESG performance, our governance approach, risk management

protocols and a range of other |nd|cators that give reassurance thatour .

business is ‘sustainable’.

We consider GRESB and FTSE4Good tobe parncularlg relevantto the
nature of our business and our continued inclusion forms part ofselect
Big Yellow s senior managers performance conversations.’

We are aware of the limitations we face with taking partin benchmarks
designed for traditional Real Estate organisations rather than self
storage but value the opportunity to be transparent and are committed
to continued participation,

Assurance of Data

We have commissioned SGS United Kingdom Ltd to carry out
independent assurance of our Greenhouse Gas emissions disclosures
and other select voluntary disclosures, at a limited level of assurance
according to the International Organisation forStandardlsatlon S '
(2006) 150 14064-3.
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81 Big Yellow Net Renewable Errergy Pos;itrve

(C'NREP") Strategy and Net Zero Emissions Strategy’ .

The-Environmental Committee researched, designed, and proposed the
Company’s NREP Strategy, NetZero Scope 1 &2 Strategy and Net Zero
Scope 3 strategy during the last year. This was approved and adopted
by the Board at its Sustainability Committee meetmg held on

24 March 2021. .

We are developing a,standalone,Pathwég document, which is based on
the Better Building Partnership ‘Net Zero CarbonPathway Framework'’
to explain in more detail these CSR strategies. This document will be
published together with the Annual Report and Accounts FY 2020/21
inJune 2021.

As part of the NREP Strategy, the Sustainability Eommittee approved
budgets to deliver:

s Retro- fitting of 36 stores with solar PVinstallations.

® Adding further solar PVinstallations to 12 stores that have existing
smaller systems.

" - nstalling Pngstems ofup to 85kWp on our plpelme of new stores.

= Removing gas boilers from our 8 stores currently heated with gas.

% Switch our petrol van to an electric van — we have no other
company-owned vehicles. .

" Piloting —and subsequently deploglng batterg storage atour
stores, when feasible.

We will be reporting on progress as part of our annual reporting
processes.

Store Portfolio Long Term Grid Electricity Consumption (2009 to 2021)

8.2 Hrghhghts

B Weinstalled 6 new Solar PV sgstems 3 on existing stores,and 3on

" ournewly opened stores in the last year. We now have an estate
with 28 Solar PV installations - this has increased our renewable
electricity generation by 15% from the prrorgear

= Qurstores with Solar PV Installations generate just under 18% of
their total energy need [solar + electricity).

®  Despitethe operiing of three new stores, our absolute electricity
use shows a small decrease of 2.3%; our like-for-like store portfolio
electricity use has a stronger decrease of 3.3%.

.8 AsofOctober 2019, we purchase REGO-backed 100% renewable

electricity from Opus Energg, which allows us to report our
market-based electricity as ‘zero carbon’. :

" Weconducted a Scope 3 footprint assessment to further our
understandmg of our W|der|mpacts :

83 Energy

The chartbelow shows how grid bought electricity used in our stores
between 2008 and 2021 has changed overtime.

With increasing store numbers open, our long-term electricity use is
remaining pleasingly stable. This is because new stores coming on
board are built efficiently, using best available technology, and come
ready equipped with solarinstallations.

Some of our stores rent out roof space to a company that installs and’
operates telecoms masts. The masts are powered via our stores'
electricity supply, increasing the total store energy consumption.
This additional energy became a material percentage of our emissions
during 2018/19. As the masts are not within our control, we are
removing their electricity consumption from our total and have
restated affected electricity, energy, and emission data in this year’s
report for 2019 and 2020.

'
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Store Portfoho Long Term Solar Electricity Genercrhon (2009 to 2021)

Our portfolio of stores with roof-mounted solar PV installations generate carbon free electricity that is monitored for performance and generates
financial payments from energy companies we export to. We now have 28 stores that generate renewable solar electricity.

Next steps: we have identified 36 stores without salar PV mstallatrons thatare potentrallg suitable for solar — we expect to retrofit approximately
12 of these durlngthe year ending 31 March 2022 and subsequentlg approxrmatelg 12 per annum thereafter.

84 Emissions - .

Highlights

®  Qurabsolute Scope 1 and Scope 2 Store and non- Store emissions saw a decrease of 8.1%. There are three main causes for this decrease: a .
" favourable UK fuel mix; our investment in on-site renewables with six new solar PV installations during the year; and a small decrease of
electricity use in stores, likely driven by reduced activity during the 1ockdowns We have also removed the energy used to power telecoms
masts from our total.

»  We have completed our first [spend-based) assessment of our Scope 3 footprint. .
®  Qurmarket- based emissions [from electrucrtg] arenow 0 tCD ,€ thanks to our REGO backed 100% renewable elecmcntg contract.

Scope 1and 2 GHG Emission Inten51ty / Occupancy, Revenue & CLA (GHG Int)

Year Ended 31 March 2019 2019 restated . 2020 . 2020 restated 2021

Total GHG Scope 1& 2 Emissions location-based (Total tonnes'CU,e] ' . 2,°98.8 . 2,640 2,571 - ) 2,369 2,177*
Total GHG scope 2 Emissions market-based (Total tonnes C0,e) " New for 2019/20 1,274 . 1,100 . 0*
Scape 3 Electricity Transmission Losses and Employee Buslness travel ] : . )

(Total tonnes CO,e) . 366 366 ) 315 303 250
1C0, e/ revenue [EOOOS] —location-based - . B . - 223 21.1 . 206 ~19.9 .- 16.1*
1C0,e/ revenue (£000s) — market-based - " New for2019/20 10.2 : . 85 - 0.0
kgC0,e/ m? occupied space ) .79 24 . 72 6.6 5.8°
kgCO,e/'m2 cLA . . ) 6.5.. 6:1 59 5.5 4.8°*

Please note that in this report, we do not include emissions from fit-out activity that may have occurred during the year. Therefore, dunnggears where fit-out activities take place, these metrics may vary
slightly from those presented in the SECR. Excluding our fit-out data allows us to compare per(ormance year on year wnh more consrstencg

Carbon intensity.(per clc: sq m)

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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Strategic Report

Corporate and Social Respons1b111ty Report (continued)

85 Watef

. We have been working on improving our data collection for water

and have documented our approach in this year’s Basis of

- Reporting document.

We benchmark our water consumption against the Better Building

" Partnership’s (“BBP") Real Estate Environmental Benchmarks (Water).

We have selected: 'Water Benchmarks - Enclosed Shopping Centres’ —

~‘Water intensity' — Water Intensity by space (litres/m? CPA/ year).

"With a water intensity measure of 78, we're very pleased to share

thatour water consumptlon remains significantly Iowerthan BBP ]
‘Good’ level.

We have asked our auditors to conduct an assurance gap analysis for
‘Water"”. This should allow us ta identify further opportunities for data
collection. We will review the findings of our auditors and establish a
plan of action accordingly. '

86 Waste

During the year, we have had increased demand from our business
customers for waste servicés. In several instances, we facilitated
the separate collection of customers’ waste (which is not reported in

-our figures) but understand some stores are likely to have permitted

Big Yellow bins to be used for customer waste. This has impacted on
our performance. .

We are working with our waste contractors to better understand our
waste data — we have included ‘waste’ in our assurance work with SGS
and hope to improve on our data reporting and subsequently on our
recycling performance. ' '

87 Resources Use

As we are looking towards other potential opportunities, we are likely to
focus our efforts on other areas of our business, such as paper use and
will report onindividual |nmat|ves over time.

Packaging: The eight product lines we had identified for modification by )
., 2022 have all now had their single use plastic packaging removed. )

Paper-free customer move-ins have gone live in our stores, saving
approximately 800,000 pieces of paper each year.

Ourinternal ‘weekly bulletin’ sign off process has moved online, savnng '

approximately 60, 000 pieces of paper each year.

Avoidance of unnecessary waste helps to reduce our carbon emiséions;
minimises waste going to landfill and demonstrates our commitment to
sustainability. We have identified 20 processes that invoive the
printing of paper, totalling around 1.5 million pieces of paper. We have
graded each process into difficulty in terms of finding an alternative
solution and intend to work our way through these over the next few
years to reduce paper usage as much as possible.

28

solar stores

'EVCs

Electric Vehicle charging pomts
at all new stores

88 Green Store Portfolio

There are a number of measures we can use to demonstrate that at

.BigY Yellow environmental considerations are embedded into our

operations. The overwhelming majority of our stores are in the green
banding for energy efficiency and several of our stores have other
features, such as solar PV and green roofs or wall.

®  100%of our CLA [Current Lettable Area) is covered by Green
aspects.

®*  We added to our solar PV estate by equnpplng ourthree newest
stores — Camberwell, Bracknell, and Battersea — with a
S0kWp installation.

= Weretro-fitted three existing stores with a SO0kWp installation—

Tunbridge Wells, Watford, and Norwich. These stores are'patt of

loan security provided to one of our lenders, Aviva. Following the
installation of these solar panels, we received a S bps reduction

in the margin on the “green loan” that Aviva provided to us.

"= 98.7%of our certified stores achleve an EPC performance of

Corabove.
®  Allof our estate is covered bg an Energy Performance Certificate.
®  Electric Vehicle Charging pods now provided as standard for all
new stores. . '

\
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90 Benchmarks and
Standards

91 Highlights
" Weachieved a “Gold” standard for EPRA sBPR (sustainable best
* practice reporting). .
® Weachieved a GRESB score of 80% (4 stars) - desplte arevised
" scoring approach by GRESB.
®  Weachieved a‘A-’ (Management) ratlngfrom CDP 2020 - our
highest ever rating. i i .
= We maintained our MSC| score of ‘AA. .
®  We maintained our FTSE4Good scores.
®  We have developed a risk and opportunities assessment as part
" of our commitment to implement the TCFD recommendations — -
for more information, please see the Managmg Risks and
Opportunities’ section.
. For Construction activities, we also sign up to BREAAM standards
“and the Considerate Constructor Scheme (‘CCS’); Camberwell '
achieved an outstanding CCS score of 40. -

10, Legislation

Big Yellow has obligations under several regumes and regulations,.
namely:

=  The Companies [Directors' Report) and Limited Liability
Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018
- ['SECR");
®  EUEnergy Efficiency Directive, The UK Energy Savings
Opportunities Scheme [‘ESOS’); .
»  Energy Performance Certificate (‘EPCs’) — please see ‘asset list &

. green store portfolio’ section in this report for more information. .
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Environmental and
Climate Change Risks
and Opportunities

111 Task Force on Climate related Financial
Disclosure ("TCFD") - Risks and Opportunities

‘During the year, we have strengthened the Company’s governance of- -

climate-related risks and opportunities by creating a Sustainability
Committee. The Board level Sustalnabmtg Committee is chaired by our
Non-Executive Dlrector Heather Savory.

Until the creation of ourSustamablIltg Committee, the TCFD
recommendations were managed as part of the Environmental
Committee and reported to the CEQ-and CFO.

Our new Net Renewable Energy Positive (NREP) Stratégy and Net Zero
Emissions Strategy will both aim to deliver the opportunities we have
identified through the TCFD assessments and mitigate the risks, in
particular our Transition Risks. ' ' ‘ :

112 Work Goihg Forward

" .®  Usingthe 27 stores that may experience an increase in total

number of “hot days” and a temperature increase of hottest day,
model potential increase in energy costs for cooling.

8 Understand better the suitability of external tools, such as the
Carbon Risk Real Estate Monitor [“CRREM"] tool methodology.
Please note the CRREM tool at present only covers offices.

= External reporting —we are committed to transparent external:
reporting and providing investor assurance that we are taking

“appropriate steps to ensure our Company's ability to thrive in
achanging environment.’

1.3 Mefrics

We hope our TCFD related metrics will provide a snapshot for all
interested stakeholders. We have been taking partin voluntary
‘Resilience’ modules as part of GRESB and have submitted more
details to the CDP risk questions; the GRESB Resilience module
has now been integrated into the overall list of questions, but
unfortunately is not scored and therefore is likely to be onlg of
limited use to external readers.

We aim to achieve a good balance between disclosing ourrisks and

" any mitigating actions we are taking and protecting commercially

sensitive information. We trust this section achieves this balance;
forany further questions, please contact csr@bigyellow.co.uk.
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Strortegrc Report
Corporate crnd Social Responsrbrhty Report (continued)

Climcrte~related Risks and Opportunities .

Climate-related Risks

Aspect - - KPI . 2019 - 2020 2024 Target
Regulation Number of EPCs rated F or G ' o 0o 0 ) 0 © Maintain .
Extreme Weather % of current lettable are (sq ft) located in Planning flood Zone 3 New for 2020/21 - ‘0.87 n/a

& at least medium to high risk of surface water flooding*

% of at risk current lettable area protected by adaptive measures, 100% 100% 100% 100%
such as raiseéd floors or SUDs® ! '

(3] See our Performance section for specific breakdown
{4) m? from ground and below ground level floors
(S}, Slightincrease due to the reopening of Battersea

- {B) SuDS- Sustainable Urban Drainage

Attenuation tank for the
-SubDS infrastructﬁre at

our new store.in Uxbridge -

being installed

~ Climate-related Opportunities
Aspect ’ KPI 2019 2020 021 - . Target

Transitioning % of electricity from renewable’ 35% - 6.1% ?21% 100%+ by 2030
to a low carbon " energy generation ’ .
economy ) S - -

: £000s investment in retro-fitting activities £100k -0 . “£600k N £5.5mto 2025

to drive decarbonisation (approximately)

% of electricity purchased from renewable . n/a n/a © o 100% 100%
sources (‘market-based’) ’

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissio.ns' . . 61 .. + 88§ 48 ) See notes
intensity from building energy consumption ’
(Scope 1 &2) - tC0,e/CLA[m?)

Market . Deploy electric vehicle charging pods 1 ’ .2 5 . " Allnew stores
opportunities . for customers and employees at each newly :
built store (total installed)”

Notes to the table: Will be set as part of the science-based target work 2021/22.
[7)  2019: Oxford only. 2020: Oxford and Manchester. 2021: Oxford, Manchester, Camberwell, Bracknell, and Battersea
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12, Our Stc:ke:h_olders'-'

This year, the Board of Directors has set out in the Governance section
of our Annual Report and Accounts an overview dfengag‘ement
activities with our key stakeholder groups. These are identified as

(1) our employees, {2 our shareholders, (3) our customers, (4] our
suppliers and (5] our communities. Please note that in our CSR
Stakeholder assessment we also name 'the Environment’ as well as

local and national Government as further stakeholder groups, and their

needs and'olUr engagement activities are set out here.

Ourkey stakeholders are closely aligned to our material impacts —itis
important to us to make sure we understand what matters to them so
we can meet theirneeds. We also set out how we engage with-them,
how we obtain their thoughts and oplmons and how we report on
progress where appropnate

Investors

The GRESB and CDP benchmarks inform ourinvestor'clommunitg ofour

general ESG performance, our governance approach, risk management
protocols and a range of other indicators that give reassurance that our
business is ‘sustainable’.

a-

For more information on these benchmarks, please see the '
‘Benchmarks, Legislation and Standards’ section.

Our Directors run aprogramme of face-to face investor engagement "
activitiesby holdlng roadshows following annual and interim reporting
cycles:and attend investor conferences, both inthe UK and

- internationally. :

We also provide specmc mformatlon on request to othermvestor
benchmarks, where available.

f

CbpP.
A- .

EPRA sBPR

Gold Standard "

GRESB

Sector Leader

Big Yellow Gréup PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021 -

7



72

Strateglc Report

Independent Assurance Opinion on the
Corporate Social Responsibility Report

SGS United Kingdom Ltd's Assurance
Opinion On Selected Sustainability

KPIs In Big Yellow’s Corporate Social -
Responsibility Report 2020/21 ‘

Nature, Scope dnd Purpose of the Assurance

SGSUnited Kingdom.Ltd was commissioned by Big Yellow Group PLC (Big Yellow)
to conduct an independent assurance of selected sustainability KPt data in
their Corporate Social Responsibility Report 2020721 (‘the Report’). The scope
ofthe assurance included FY2020 data onlg for the following KPls:

Carbon footprint (Scope 1 & 2) data

" ® -Store electricity (tC0,e)

»  Store flexi-office gas emissions (xC0,e)”
®  Refrigerant emissions (tC0,e)

" m Absolute carbon dioxide emissions (tC0,e)

Store Electricity use (kWh)

Like-for-like electricity use (1C0,e)

Absolute carbon emissions (tC0,e)

Carbon intensity (kgC0,e/m? current lettable area]
Carbon intensity (kgC0,e/m? occupied space)
Carbon intensity (1€0,e/£000s revenue)

Total renewable energy (kWh)

Renewable energy percentage of total store use (%)

Carbon footprint Scope 3 data
®  Water Supply and Water Treatment ’
®  Store waste disposal

Health & Safety data

®  Staff, customer, and visitor minor injuries

®  Staff, customer, and visitor reportable injuries [RIDDOR]

®  Staff, customer, and visitor annual Injury Incrdence rate (AIR)
per 100,000 staff

®  Staff, customer, and visitor notices

s Construction ‘fit-out’ mindr Injuries

®  (Construction ‘fit-out’ reportable injuries (RIDDOR]

Community investment data

= Free Space donated for community or charity use (£}

" Charity discounts of up to 90% (£)

. Pagmerns to Social Enterprise organisations (£)

= Total employee Big Yellow Foundauon fundrausrng& Big Yellow
matched funds (£)

®  One-off donations (£)

s Total Community Investment (£)

People data -

'8 Total number of employees

»  %female employees at each managemefu level -

®  Number of new employees: stores, head office, and total
®  Proportion of new employees- .

®  Number of leavers: stores, head office, and total

®  Proportion of leavers

®  Training hours: total, and average hours by gender

Financial data and other data drawn directly from independently audited
financial accounts has not been checked back to source as part of this
assurance process. This includes data used to normalize ﬁgureé: revenue;
average number of émployees; current iettable area; occupied space.

The purpose of this assurance exercise was, by review of objective evidence,
toindependently review whether the KPJ data is'as declared by Big Yellow,
and reported in the Report, is accurate, complete, consistent, transparent
andfree of material error or omission.

The Reporthas been assured ata hmrted levet ofassurance accordlngto

"ISAE3000 (Revised), Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews

of Historical Financial Information, to evaluate veracity of specific KPIs as
described above using SGS Sustainability Report Assurance protocols,
including the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Principles of for Report Content
and Quality to enable robust evaluation of data subject to verification. '

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) data

C0, emissions from own operations were verified at a limited level of assurance
according to standard EN 1S014064-3:2006 Specification With Guidance For
The Validation And Verification Of Greenhouse Gas Assertions, to establish
conformance with the requirements of Big Yellow's reporting methodology as
stated inits ‘Basis of Reporting 2020/21" and the WRI/WBCSD GHG Protocol -
ACorporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (‘The WRI/WBCSD GHG
Protocol’), within the scope of the verification. The materiality required of the
verification was considered by SGS to be below 10%, based on the needs of

the intended user.

The engagement included verification of emissions from anthropogenic
sources of greenhouse gases included within the organisation’s boundary and
meeting the requirements of Big Yellow’s ‘Basis of reporting 2020/21’, and the
WRI/WBCSD GHG Protacol. The organisational boundary was established

- following the operational control approach.

s Description of activities: Self-Storage services

®  Location/boundary of the activities: United Kingdom

®  Physicalinfrastructure, activities, technologies and processes ofthe
organisation: Self-storage stores and administrative offices

8 GHG sources, sinks and/or reservoirs irrcluded:

- Scope 1—stationargc'ombustiorr,mobileandfugitiveemissidns;
- Scope2'—purchasedelecrriqii_gandsplargeneration;
—  Scope 3 - Store Water and waste
. TgpesofGHGsincluded:COz,N20,CH4[HFCs, PFCs,SF6 and NF3
are excluded) :
* Directed actions: none
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Methodology

The assurance comprised a combination of pre-assurance research, interviews
with relevant management representatives and external data management
providers, documentation and record review. Verification was conducted upon
all KPis within the verification scope-as an evaluation of historical data and:
information to determine whether the reported KPI data is materially correct .
and conforms to cnterua described above.

SGS'approachis rlsk-based, drawing on an understanding of the risks
associated with modelling GHG emission and other KPl information and the
controls in place to mitigate these risks. Qur examination included assessment,
on a sample basis, of evidence relevant to the valuntary reporting of KPls,
mcludlng emission information.

Statement ot Responsibilities, Independence
and Competence

The information in the Repart and its presentation, including the underlying
systems, procedures and records, are the responsibility of the directors and
the management of Big Yellow. SGS United Kingdom Ltd has not been involved in
the preparation of any of the material included in the Report. Qur responsibility
is to express an opinion on the data within'the scope of verification with the
intention to inform Big Yellow’s stakeholders.

The SGS Group of companies is the world leader in inspection, testing and
verification, operatingin more than 140 countries and providing services including
management systems and service certification; quality, environmental, social
and ethical auditing and training; environmental, social and sustainability -
report assurance. SGS United Kingdom Ltd affirm ourindependence from

Big Yellow, being free from bias and conflicts of interest with the organisation,
its subsidiaries and stakeholders. The assurance team was assembled based
on theirknowledge, experience and qualifications for this assignment and
conducted the assurance in accordance with the SGS Code of Integrity.

Assurance Opinion and Conclusion

0On the basis of the methodology described and the verification work performed,
nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the KPI data
within the scope of our verification as reported by Big Yellow in the Report is
not, in all material respects, fairly stated. We believe that the organisation has
chosen an appropriate level of assurance for this stage in their reporting.

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) data

SGS concludes with limited assurance that there is no evidence to suggest that
the presented C0, equivalent assertion is not materially correct and is not a fair
representation of the (0, equivalent data and information and is not prepared
following the requirements of Big Yellow's ‘Basis of reporting 2020/21’, and the
WRI/WBCSD GHG Pratocol.

We planned and performed our work to obtain the information, explanations and

evidence that we considered necessary to provide a limited level of assurance
that the C0, equivalent emissions for the period 01/04/2020 - 31/03/2021 are
fairly stated. This statement shall be interpreted with the C0, equivalent
assertion of Big Yellow as a whole.

Big Yellow provided the GHG assertion based on the requirements of its ‘Basis of
reporting 2020/' and the WRI/WBCSD GHG Protocol. The GHG information for the
period 01/04/2020 - 31/03/2021 disclosing gross emissions of 2,177 metric
tonnes of C0, equivalent (Location-Based) and 139 metric tonnes of CO,
equivalent (Market Based) are verified by SGStoalimited level of assurance, .
consistent with the agreed verification scope, objectives and criteria.

Verified emissions byscope are as follows:

*  Scope 1 (Direct): 139C0e

& Scope 2 - Location based (Indirect): 2,038 tCO,e.
®  Scope 2-Market-based (Indirect]: 0tCO e

® Scope3-Water-30.71C0,e

®  Scope 3~-Waste~25.91C0,e
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Health & Safety, People and Community
Investment data

SGS concludes with limited assurance that there is no evidence to suggest
that the reported data is not materially correct and is not a fair representation
of data and information, and is not prepared following the requirements of -
Big Yellow's ‘Basis of reporting 2020/21’, and the GRI Report Quality principles
of transparency accuracy, consistency, relevance and completeness.

Good Practice and Opportunities fot Improvement

During the verification process some examples of good practice as well as some
opportunities forimprovement in underlying processes were identified and
reported to Big Yellow with the aim of enabling a process of continual
improvement in collection and reporting KPI data. It may be possible to roll out
examples of good practice to other KPIs, or parts of the business and the
opportunities forimprovement identified may be considered for
implementation during future reporting cycles:

Good Practice

®  Theimprovements to the health and safety management and reporting’
made lastyear have been consolidated

% People and Community data is generated from well managed sgstems
using clear and consistent reporting parameters
Big Yellow operates a robust data collection process and the GHG data
reporting platform used was found to be rebust enough to provide accurate
and consistent data reporting when tested.

Opportunities for Improvement

®  Qverallreporting and verification processes could be strengthéned by
consolidating collection of KPIs into a single tool cantaining all definitions,
calculations and parameters. This would assist with identifying errors in
calculations, and also identifying gaps in verification or reporting.

®  Considerusingan online reporting database for managing health and
safety reports at stores and fit-out sites. ) ’
Continue efforts with obtaining detailed waste data and water data based
onactual rather than estimated data.

8 Wewelcome the decision to include Community Investment and People
datain the scope of the assurance this year, and we encourage Big Yellow
to continue to extent the scope of data assurance in future years.

Signed:

Authorised by:

H. Crick
UK Business Manager

-For and on behalf of SGS United Kingdom Ltd

Reg Office: Rossmore Business Park, Ellesmere Port, Cheshire CH65 3EN -
Registered in England No: 1193985

Date 24 May 2021

Note: This Statement is issued, on behalf of Big Yellow, by SGS United Kingdom Ltd, Rossmare
Business Park, Inward Way, Ellesmere Port, Cheshire, CH6S 3EN (“SGS”) under its General Conditions
for GHG Validation and Verification Services. The findings recorded hereon are based upon an audit
performed by SGS. A fult copy of this statement and the supporting GHG Assertion.may be consulted
at Big Yellow and address. This Statement does not relieve Big Yellow from compliance with any
bylaws, federal, natjonal or regional acts and regulations or with any guidelines issued pursuant to
such regulations. Stipulations to the contrary dre not binding on S6S and SGS shall have no
responsibility vis-a-vis parties other than its Big Yellow.
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Governance

Dear Shareholder,

lam pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report for 2021..
This report should be read in conjunction with the report on pages 79

" 10’84, which set out how we have complied with the UK Corporate.

Governance Codein 2021.

As outlmed in my report on pages 14 to 17,2021 hasbeena gear of
growth for the Compang, with revenue, cash flow and dividends all up
on the prior year, and an increase in our development pupellne to help -
drive the future growth ofthe Compang

Governance

The Board believes that the effective delivery of the Company's
strategy requires the underpinning of strong corporate governance.

" The governance of the Group is supported by a robust structure which
* allows for constructive debate and challenge by its members. This

allows the Directors to make effective decisions.

- Engagement with our stakeholders

The Board is conscious that there are a number of stakeholders in our
business and considers thg interests of each of our stakeholder groups
inits discussions.

* We have a comprehensive investor relations programme in place, with

the Executive team carrying out a significant number of meetings with

.our shareholders during the year. The Non-Executive Directors engage’

with our shareholders as appropriate. Independent feedback on

presentations by the Executive Board Directors to major shareholders

is provided to the Non-Executive Directors on a regular basis.

The culture of the business is a key part of our success. In the year to
31 March 2021, the Executive Board Directors have continued to visit

_ each of the Group’s stores, where restrictions have allowed, and

maintain a flat, apolitical, non-hierarchical culture within the business.

We'continue to monitor the Net Promoter Score that we receive from
our customers, which remains at a very high level of 82.9(2020: 81.9).

.

A Executlve Chalrman s 1ntroduct10n

Looking ahead

Following our performance this year, our attention for the coming year
is focussed on managing the business through this period of
uncertainty induced by the Covid-19 pandemic. We have placed a
significant emphasis during this year on ensuring the safety of our
employees and customers through additional investment in Covid-19
compliance, communication, training, and employee welfare
programmes. We will continue to invest in our Big Yellow Foundation
and its partner charities and also work with local charities throughout
our network assnstlng with space which they need to deliver their )
programmes. We have been reviewing many aspects of our business .-
stimulated by this crisis, such as working from home, flexible working -

and enhanced online operations.

We will continue to focus on delivering attractive long-term shareholder
returns, behaving responsibly to our stakeholders including

employees, customers, suppliers, and the commumtg,and

appropnatelg managing risk.

7Y

Nicholas Vetch

Executive Chairman

24 May 2021
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How we are structured-

The Board has overall respor_lsibility
for the manner in which the
Company runs its affairs.

" The Board

Nicholas Vetch
Executive Chairman

The Board is responsible for:

— setting the strategic direction of the business -
— setting the culture and the values of the Big Yellow

— overseeing the internal control system of the
Group and its risk management

— approving the annual business plan for the Group

" Executive Directors

’ The\xxecutlve Directors are responsible for:
— implementing the Group's business plan and strétegg
- mana'gingthe risk of the business

— focussing on financial performance

@ Turn to page 79 for more informatjon

Audit Committee
'rhé Audit Commmee is responsible foh

- overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

— overseeing the Group’s internal control framework and risk
management process :

— overseeing the relationship with the external auditor and
monitoring theirindependence

@  Tturntopages 112 to 116 for more information

Sustainability Committee

‘The Sustainability Committee is responsible for: -

" — overseeing the Group’s sustainabﬂitg framework and strategy

— monitoring sustainability performance

— providing guidance on emerging environmental issues,

. including environmental risks, and thelrlmpact on the Group’s

business

— overseeing the Group’s CSR repornng, mcludmg external
audit/assurance mechanisms :

-Turntopagés88t089‘formoreinformation s
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‘= approving site and store acqulsmons and maJor
items of capital expenditure

_ —.approving the Group’s financing structure

— ensuring a-positive dialogue with our stakeholders
is maintained

Nomination Committee

The Nominations Committee is responsible for:
— reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
— succession planning for Directors and other senior Executives

= promoting diversity

" Turnto pages 85 to 87 for more information

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is resbbnéib!e for:

— setting, reviewing and recommending the policy on
the remuneration of the Executive Directors

— overseeing the senior management team and general
workforce remuneration approach

= monitoring the implementation of the Remuneration policy

— overseeing the alignment'of reward, incentives and culture

‘

Turn to pages 90 to 111 for more information
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Governance

Dlrectors Officers c:tnd Adv1sers

Executive Directors

Nicholéas Vetch,
Executive Charman

Appomtment to the Board

Nicholas was a co-founder of BngeIIow in
September 1998 and held the position of
CEQ until July 2003, when he became
Executive Chairman. .

Background and relevant experience

Prior to Big Yellow, Nicholas was joint Chief
Executive of Edge Properties plc, which he
co-founded in 1989, was subsequentlylisted
on the Official List of the London Stock
Exchange in 1396 and then sold to
Grantchester Properties plcin 1998:

Other appointments

Nicholas is a Trustee of Global Human nghts ’

- and Global Human Rights UK.

Committee Membership
None

Skills and contribution

The Company under Nicholas Vetch's
leadership has an outstandmgtrack record
for delivering consistently strong returns and
share price outperformance. Nicholas, along

with his co-founder Jim Gibson, developed the

strategy of the business and this continues to
this day. He is also responsible for leading
-the property team and has over 35 years’.
experience working within the UK property
sector. Further details on Nicholas’
contribution to the business is included

inthe annual reporton page ?‘9‘.

Other appointments

Jim Gibson

Chief Executive Officer

Appointment to the Board

Jim was a co-founder of Big Yellowin
September 1998, initially as Finance Director
and he was subsequently appointed

Chief Executive in July 2003.

Background and relevant experience
Jimis a Chartered Accountant by background

_ having trained with Arthur Andersen & Co.

where he specialised in the property and

construction sectors, before leavingin 1989. -

He was Finance Director of Heron Property
Corporation Limited and then Edge Properties
plc which he joined in 1994, Edge Properties
was listed on the Official List of the London |
Stock Exchange in 1996 and then sold to
Grantchester Prpperiie»s plcin 1998. '

Jimis a Non-Executive Directorand
shareholder of AnyJunk Limited, a Non-

_Executive Director and shareholder of

CityStasher Limited, a Non-Executive Director
andinvestor in Moby Self Storage, a Brazilian
Self Storage business, and.is the Chairman of
Trustees of the London Children's Ballet.

Committee Membershlp

None

Skills and contribution

-, Jim has been with Big Yellow sinceits

formation, and along with his co-founder
Nicholas Vetch, has been instrumental in
developing the strategy of the business.

He leads the day-to-day running of the
business and brings substantial knowledge .
of self storage to the Board, which is
invaluable to Big Yellow as it continues to
grow. As CEQ, the Board believes Jim has

- demonstrated outstanding leadership and

drive, notably in managing the business
through the recent period of uncertainty
caused by Covid-19. He will continue to be
instrumental in maintaining Big Yellow S

‘market- leadmg position.

" Adrian Lee

Operations Director

Appointment to the Board .

Adrian joined Big Yellow in January 1999 was -
appointed to the Board in May 2000.

Background and relevant experience
Adrian was previously a Senior Executive at

.Edge Properties plc, which he joined in 1996.

Prior to that he was a corporate financier at,
Lazard for five years, having previously
qualified as a surveyor at Knight Frank.

Other appointments
None

Committee Membership
None. ° '

Skills and contribution

Adrian has twenty two years of operational
experience in the'self storage sector. He has
responsibility for Operations, Human

- Resources, Corporate Social Responsibility

and Construction. His experience has proved :
invaluable as wie have navigated the
uncertainties caused by Covid-19.
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' Comnﬁﬂee Rey

@ Nomination Committee @ Audit Committee @ Remunératipn Committee @ Sustainability Committee O Committee Chair

John Trétman

Chief Financial Officer

Appointment to the Board

" John joined Big Yellow in June 2007 and'was
appointed to the Board'in September 2007,

Background and relevant experience

Johnis a Chartered Accountant having trained
.with Deloitte LLP, where he specialised in the

real estate sector and self storage. On leaving

Deloitte in 2005, John worked for a subsidiary
. of the Kajima Corporation until he joined

Big Yellow.

Other appointments
Johnis on the Board of the UK Self Storage
Association. .

Committee Membership
‘None

§kills and:contribution .

John brings strong financial experience to

" the Group from his 14'years with Big Yellow
and prior to thatin his prev'ious roles. As CFO,

“in addition to dealing with the traditional

- aspects of the role, John is involved in
strategy, and in particular all aspects of

‘the dag-to-dag operations})fthe business,
working alongside Adrian Lee. He has
extensive knowledge of the self

storage sector.

Non-Executive Directors

Richard Cotton D@ ® )

Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director

Appointment to the Board

Richard joined the Board in July 2012

Background and relevant experience -
Richard headed the real estate corporéte
finance team at JP Morgan Cazenove until
April 2009, and subsequen't tothatwasa
Managing Director of Forum Partners.

Other appointments

Richard is currently the Senior Independent’
Director of Helical plc as well as a Member of
the Commercial Development Advisory Group
of Transport for London.

Committee Membership
Chair of Nominations Committee, Chair
of Remuneration Committee (from

‘ August 2020) and Member of Audit and

Sustainability Committees:

Skills and contribution

-Richard has extensive knowledge of the

property sector and corporate finance. .
Richard’s leadership of the Nominations
Committee has ensured that retiring
Non:Executive Directors have been replaced
with equally high calibre individuals and
further improving the gender balance on the
Board. He has also led consultations with
shareholders in the prior year on the new
Corporate Governance Code and during the
yearon the new Remuneration Policy. '
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‘Dr Anna Keay @ @@

Non-Executive Director
Appointment to the Board
Anna joined the Board in March 2018.

Background and relevant experience
Anna has been CEO of the Landmark Trust

. since 2012, operating a portfolio of 200

historic buildings let for holidays. She has a
PhD from London University, starting her

" career at Historic Royal Palaces and from

2002 t0 2012 she was Curatorial Director of
English Heritage. She was a trustee of Leeds

" Castle Foundation from 2009 to 2016. She

writes and broadcasts widély, presenting on
history and buildings forChannel 4. ’

_ Other appointments ) -

Annais a Trustee of the Royal Collection Trust
and is a Governor and Chair of the Buildings
and Projects Committee at Bedales School.

Committee Membership

Member of Audit, Nominations, Remuneration
and Sustainability Committees. Annais also
the designated Non-Executive Director for
workforce engagement

Skills and contribution o
Anna, as a historian, and with significant
experiencé in the third sector, adds another
dimension to the Board alongside her
operational experience from her current role
as CEQ of the Landmark Trust. In her role as
the designated Non-Executive Director for
workforcé engagement, she has worked |
closely with the HR team in all aspects of
employee engagement reporting back to the
Board on a regular basis. '
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Directors, Officers and AdVisers continued

Vince Niblett @O ® )

Non-Executive Director

* Appointment to the Board
Vince was appointed to thé Board in
June 2017

Backgroun'd and relevant experience

Vince was the Global Managing Partner Audit
for Deloitte. He previously held a number of
senior leadership roles within Deloitte
including as a member of the UK Board of
Partners and of the Global Executive Group
and the UK Executive Group before his
retirement from Deloitte in May 2015. -

Other appointments

Vince is also a Non-Executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee of
Forterraplc. :

Committee Membership

Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member
of the Nominations, Remuneration and
Sustainability Committees.

_ Skills and contribution,
Vince has many years of financial and
commercial experience gained from his

leadership roles at Deloitte. He has overseen -

the work of the audit committee, which

included monitoring KPMG LLP as auditors to -

the Company, and meeting with the external
valuers of the Company. He has maintained
close dialogue with the external auditors and
~ the senior finance team throughout the year

- and also worked with Richard Cotton on the
shareholder consultation exercise in the prior
year and the Remuneration consultation in
the currentyear.

Company Secretary and
- Registered office

Shauna Beavis

2 The Deans

Bridge Road

Bagshot”

Surrey
- GU13 5AT

Company Registration No. 03625139

Laela Pakpour Tabrizi @@@ @ .

‘Non-Executive Director

Appointment to the Board

_Laelawas appointed to the Board in

July 2020.

Background and relevant experience

Laela has 15 years' experience in corporate
finance, and’s currently the Chief Financial
Officer of OpenClassrooms, an online platform
offering top quality, educétion-to-empiogment
programs, and career coaching services for
students worldwide. She was previously ~ ~
the Group Chief Financial Dfficer of MotorK,
aventure-backed software as a service tech
scale-up, the Group CFQ of VistaJet, the global
private jet operator, and before that worked

in Structured Finance for BNP Paribas. She is
a graduate of the Institut d'Etudes Politiques
de Paris (Sciences-Po) and the London School
of Economics.

. Other appointments
- Laelaalso currently serves as a Non-

Executive Director of an award-winning East
London women's refuge charity called
Ashlana Network and as a Trustee of the
British Library, where she sits on the audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Committee Membership
Member of Audit, Nominations, Remuneration
and Sustainability Committees.-

Skills and contribution )

Laela has significant corporate and finéncial
experience in high growth businesses, adds
to the diversity of the Board and'brings her
own perspective to Board discussions.’

Bankers

Lloyds Bank plc

HSBC Bank plc

Bank of Ireland

Aviva Commercial Finance Limited
M&G Investments Limited

Solicitors

CMS Cameron McKenna I\iabvarro Olswang LLP
Lester Aldridge LLP
Slaughter and May

Heather Savory @ @ @ @

Non-Executive Director

Appointment to the Board
Heather joined the board of the Big Yellow in
March 2021.

Background and relevant experience
Heather was Vice President of Engineering
and Operations for 3Dlabs, a high-tech
start-up delivering the world's first,
semi'conductorBD-graphicsaccélerators .
for consumer devices and moved on into
leadership and advisory roles for high-tech
UK SMEs. Heather then worked in various
senior government roles including as Director

" -General for Data Capability at the Office for

National Statistics which she modernised
through a cross-organisation digital, data
and workforce ti'arisformatio'n. She was
also co-Chair of the United Nations Global
Working Group on-Big Data, developing
innovative global data solutions to assist

- with the measurement and delivery of

the United Nations 2030 Agenda for
Sustainable Development.

Other appointments
Heather serves as a Non-Executivé Director.

.of the UK House of Lords Information Authority

" and on several Not-for-profit Advisory Boards.

Committee Membership

Chair of the Sustainability Committee,
Member of Audit, Nominations and
Remuneration Committees

Skills and contribution
Heather brings a track record on
sustainability to Big Yellow, following her work

- with the UN. She has a wealth of experience in

the private and public sectors.

Financial advisers
and stockbrokers
JP Morgan Cazenove

Stdtutory Auditor

KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountant and Statutory Auditors.

Valuers
CBRE

. Jones Lang LaSalle
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Corporate Governance Report

Introduction

The Company is committed to the principles of corporate governance

contained in the.UK Corporate Governance Code issued by the Financial-

Reporting Council in 2018. The Board also takes accountofthe
"Corporate Governance guidelines of institutional shareholders and
- theirrepresentative bodies.

At Big Yellow, we aim to create a culture in which integrity, openness
and fairness are rewarded.

We continue to review the composition of the Board to ensure thatit
has the appropriate skills, knowledge, and balance for the effective
stewardship of the Company. The Board has overall responsibility for
the manner in which the Company runs its affairs.

Statement of compliance with the Code

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, th¢ Company has been in
compliance with the Code provisions setout in section.1 of the 2018
UK Corporate Governance Code, with the exception of the Executive
Chairman of the Company having served in position for longer than the
recommended period of nine years.

Chuuman's position

During the prior year, which was the Company’s first operating under

* the principals of the new Combined Code, Richard Cotton (“SID”) and
Vince Niblett consulted with a number of the Company’s largest '
shareholders about the length.of Nicholas Vetch’s tenuré as Executive
‘Chairman (18 years), which is in contravention of the Combined Code.
Itis now advised as governance best practice that the Chairman
should serve for a maximum of 9 years. Itis the view of the Board that
itisin the Company’s bestinterest for Nicholas Vetch to continue as
Executive Chairman for the foreseeable future.

Inarriving at this conclusion, the Non-Executive Directors have
carefully considered the leadership position that Nicholas Vetch fulfils
in the Company and also his leadership of the property team. Moreover,
they looked at the governance checks and balances, which are, in their
opinion, strong and effective. Itis recognised that having a founder

. Director in post as Chairman for considerably longer than advised,
needs justification and the reasons detailed below should inform
shareholders that this has been given very thorough scrutiny.

1. The Companyunder Nicholas Vetch's leadership has an
outstanding track record for delivering consistently strong returns
and share price outperformance. In the twenty one years since
flotation in May 2000, Big Yellow has delivered a Total Shareholder
Return (*TSR"), including dividends reinvested, of 14.7% per-
annum, in aggregate 1,671% at the closing price of 1,115p on
31 March 2021. This compares to 5.6% per annum for the FTSE Real
Estate Index and 4.7% per annum for the FTSE All Share index over
the same period. He has been an integral part of the business
since inception.

2. BigYellow has a strong culture, which has benefited from stable
and consistent leadership of the business. This was demonstrated
in the Company's response to Covid-19, when all stores.remained
open and new working practices were introduced very swiftly to
safeguard staff and customers.

.
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3. The Board has five independent NEDs, four of whom have been
appointed within the past four years, providing fresh perspective
and challenge. Furthermore, Michael 0'Donnell is joining the Board
in September 2021 as an additional independent NED. The NEDs
have a wide range of corporate experience and provide effective
challenge to the Chairman and the other Executive Directors, which
was endorsed bg the external appraisal undertaken by S:mon )
Robertson Associates in 2020.

4. The Board has separate committees for Audit, Nommatlon
Remuneration and Sustainability, each of which are chaired by a
Non-Executive Birector, and we have a Senior Independent Director
who is considered importantin sharing the role of Chairman’s

- duties. Specific examples of the board discussion include
examination and engagement in the acquisition of new sites,
funding decisions, and the strength and quality of the ¢
property team.

5. AsaBoard, we have contingency plans in place in the event one of
the Executive Directars cannot fulfit their responsibilities, witha
matrix of who would step in to cover their roles. Considerable
thought has been given by the Board to succession, which has
been approached in the context of a very successful senior.team
of whom the majority have been in post since the Company wa's
listed in 2000. More detail is provided in the Nominations
Committee Report.

The Board were enco'uraged by the support ofits major.independent
shareholders as it chose to explain rather than comiply with the Code on
this issue.

Statement abéut gpplylng the brinclples of the Code

The Company has applied the principles set outin the Code, including *
both the main principles and the supporting principles, by complying

_with the Code as reported above. Further explanation of how the.’

principles and supporting principles have been applied is set out below
and in the Nominations Committee Report the Remuneration Report,
and the Audit Committee Report.

Leadership

" The Board's role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of the

Company within a framework of prudent and effective controls which
enables risk to be assessed and managed.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The division oﬁesponsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive'has been agreed by the Board and encompasses the
following parameters:

®  the Chairman's role is to provide continuity, experience,
governance, and strategic advice, while the Chief Executive
provides leadership, drives the day-to-day operations of the
business, and works with the Chairman on overall strategy;

® the Chairman, working with the Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director, is viewed by investors as the ultimate steward of the
business and the guardian of the interests of all the shareholders;

®  the Board believes that the Chairman and the Chief Executive work
together to'provide effective and complementary stewardship; )
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Corporate Governo:nce Report (continued)

8 the Chairman:

"= takesoverall responsibility for the composition and capability
_ oftheBoard;
- takes overall executive responsibility for the property
developmentteam;and )
= consults regularly with the Chief Executive and is available on
a flexible basis for providing advice, counsel, and support to
the Chief Executive.

.. IhelChIEfEXECUtlve

- manages the CFO and Operatlons Director and the Group’s
day-te-day activities;

- prepares and presents to the Board strategic optlons for
growth in shareholder value;

— sets the operating plans and budgets required to deliver
agreed strategy;and -~

— ensures that the Group hasin place appropriate risk
management and control mechanisms.

The Directors believe itis essentlal for the Group to be led and

controlled by an effective Board that provides entrepreneurial

leadership within a framework of sound controls which enables risk to

be assessed and managed. The Board is responsible for setting the

* Group's strategic aims, its values and standards and ensuring the
necessary financial and human resources are in place to achieve its

"goals. The Board ensures that its obligations to shareholders and other

stakeholders are understood and met. The Board also regularlg reviews .

the performance of management.

Effectiveness

Composition of the Boaxd

The Nominations Committee is responsible for revrewmgthe Board
Composition and makes recommendations to the Board on the
.appointment of Directors. There are presently five independent
Non-Executive Directors on the Board, with Richard Cotton being the
Senior Independent Director. The Company complies with the UK
Corparate Governance Code in that at least half of The Board is
comprised of independent Non-Executive Directors.

All of the Non-Executive Directors bring considerable knowledge;
judgement, and experience to Board deliberations. Non-Executive
Directors do not participate in any of the Company’s share option or
bonus schemes and their service is non-pensionable. The Non-

" Executive Directors are encouraged to communicate directly with
Executive Board Directors between formal Board meetings. The
Non-Executive Directors meet at least once a year without the
Executive Board Directors being present.

The Non-Executive Directors scrutinise the performance of
management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor the
reporting of performance. They are required to satisfy themselves on
the integrity of the financial information and that financial controls and
systems of risk management are robust and defensible. They are
responsible for determining appropriate levels of remuneration for
Executive Board Directors and have a prime role in appointing and,
where necessary, removing Executive Board Directors, andiin
succession planning.

. The tenure of the independent Non-Executive Directors at 31 March 2021

is set out below:

Changes to the Board and its Committees

Steve Johnson and Georgina Harvey retired from the Board with effect
from the Annual General Meeting in August 2020. Julia Hailes stepped’
down as a Non-Executive Director with effect from January 2021.

"Laela Pakpour Tabrizi joined the Board with effect from 1 July 2020 as’

anindependent Non-Executive Director. Heather Savory was appointed '
to the Board as an independent Non-Executive Director with effect

from 1 March 2021. Michael 0'Donnell ha$ been appointed as an
independent Non-Executive Director, joining the Board with effect

from 1 September 2021.

Vince Niblett will succeed Richard Cotton as the Senior Independent
Director and Chair of the'Nominations Committee with effect from the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, Richard Cotton will retire from the
Board with effect from the 2022 Annual General Meeting. Lagla’
Pakpour Tabrizi will succeed Vince Niblett as the Chair of the Audit
Committee with effect from the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
Heather Savory succeeded Julia Hailes as the Chair'of the Company's
Sustainability Comrittee on her appointment. ' 4

The Board and its Committees

Standing committees of the Board

The Board has Audit, Remuneration, Nominations and Suatainabilitg
Committees, each of which has written terms of reference. They deal
clearly with the authorities and duties of each Committee and are
formally reviewed annually. Copies.of these terms of reference are
available on the Company's website. Each of these Committees is

-comprised of Independent Non:Executive Directors of the Company

who are appointed by the Board onthe recommendatlon of the
Nominations Committee.

All the Committees are authorised to obtain legal or other profeésional
advice as necessary; to secure, where appropriate, the attendance of
external advisers atits meetings and to seek information required from
any.employee of the Company in order to perform its duties. .

" The Chairman of each Committee reports the outcome of the meetings

to the Board. The Company Secretary is secretary to each Committee.

-
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Attendance at meetings of the individual Directors at the Board Meetings that they were eligible to attend is shown in the table below:

. Director

Position

Richard Cotton
Jim Gibson
JuliaHailes
Georgina Harvey -
Steve Johnson
Anna Keay
Adrian Lee

. Vince Nibleét ]
Laela Pakpour Tabrizi
Heather Savory
John Trotman

Nicholas Vetch

Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer
Non-Exeputive Director

Non-Executive Director

" Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Dperations Director

Non-Executive Director

. Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer

Executive Chairman

00000000
00000000
00000000
00000000
00000000
OO000000
‘ 00000000
00000000
00000000
00000000
00000000

O attended
O absent

O not applicable

The Board meets abproximatelg once every two months to discuss a
whole range of significant matters including stratégic decisions, major
assetacquisitions and performance. A procedure to enable Directors to
take independent professional advice if required has been agreed by
the Board and formally confirmed by ail Directors.

There is a formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board's attention
including the approval of Group strategy and policies; major
-acquisitions and disposals, major capital projects and financing, Group
"budgets and material contracts other than in the normal course of
business. The Board also considers matters such as cyber security,
reputational risks, and other non-financial risks as part of its review of
the Group's risk register. :

At each Board meeting, the latest available financial information is
produced which consists of detailed management accounts with the
refevant comparisons to budget. Acurrent tradmg appraisati 1s given by
the Execuuve Board Directors.

Intozmauon and professional development

All Directors are provided with detailed financial information throughout
the year. On a weekly basis they receive a detailed occupancy report
. showing the performance of each of the Group’s open stores.

" Management accounts are circulated to the Executive monthlyand a -
detailed Board pack is distributed a week prior to each Board meeting.

All Directors are keptinformed of changes in-relevant legislation and
changing commercial risks with the assistance of the Company’s'legal
advisers and auditor where appropriate. All Directors have access to

- the advice of the Company Secretary on governance matters,

The professional development requiréments of Executive Board
Directors are identified and progressed as part of each individual's
annual appraisal. All new Directors are provided with a full induction
programme on joining the Board.

Non-Executive Directors are encouraged to attend seminars and’
undertake external training at the Company’s expense in areas they
consider to be appropriate for their own professional development.
Each year, the programme of senior management meetings is tailored
to enable meetings to be held at the Company's stores. During the year,
the Executive Board Directors made visits to all of the Group’s stores.
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Accountabiiity

Risk managemeht and internal control

The Group operates a rigorous system of risk management and

internat control, which is designed to ensure that the possibility of
misstatement or loss is kept to a minimum. There is a comprehensive
system in place for financial reporting and the Board receives a number
of reports to enable it to carry out these functions in the most efficient
manner. These procedures include the preparation of management
accounts, forecastvariance analysis and other ad hoc reports. There
are clearly defined authority limits throughout the Group, including
those matters which are reserved specifically for the Board.

The Board has established a continuous process for identifying,
evaluating, and managing the significant risks the Group faces and for

determining the nature and extent of the significant risks itis willing to

take in achieving its strategic objectives. The Board regularly reviews
the process, which has been in place from the start of the year to the
date of-approval of this report and which is in accordance with revised
guidance oninternal control published in October 2005 (the Turnbull
Guidance). The Board is also responsible for the Group’s system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasenable and not absolute
assurance against material mnsstatement orloss.

The Board regularly reviews the effectiveness ofthe Group’s rlsk
management and internal contro] systems. The Board's monitoring
covers all controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. Itis based principally on reviewing
reports from management to considér whether significant risks are
identified, evaluated, managed, and controlled and whether any
significant weaknesses are promptly remedied and indicate a need for
more extensive monitoring. The Board has also performed a specific
assessment for the purpose of this annual report. This assessment
considers all significant aspects of risk management and internal
control arising during the period covered by the report, including the
work carried out by the Group's Store Compliance team. The Audit-
Committee assists the Board in discharging its review responsibilities.
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Aformal risk identification and assessment exercise has been carried
outresultingin arisk framework document summarising the key risks,

potential impact and the mitigating factors or controls in place. The key

risks the Group faces are detailed-on pages 42 to 46 in the Financial
Review. The Board has a stated policy of reviewing this risk framework

- atleastonce ayearorin the event of a material change. The risk
_identification process also considered significant non-financial risks.

During the reviews in the year, the Directors:

®  challenged the framework to ensure that the list of significant risks
to business objectives is still valid and complete;

» ¢onsidered newand emerging risks to business objectives and
included them in the framework if significant; .

= ensured thatany changes in the impact or likelihood of the risks .
are reflected in the risk framework; and

® ' ensured that there-are appropriate action plans in place to address
unacceptable risks. '

" The results’of this exercise have been communicated to the Board

and the Audit Committee. Thls was in the form ofa summary, report
which included:

® aprioritised summary of the key risks and their significance;

® anychangesin thelist of significant risks or theirimpactand
likelihood since the last assessment;

" new oremerging risks that may become sngnmcam to business
objectivesin the future;

™ progress on action plans t0 addre'ss significant risks; and

® anyactual or potential control failures or weaknesses during the
period (including “near misses").

Stakeholder Group Farm of engagement

During the course of its review of the risk management and internal
control systems, the Board has not identified, nor been advised of any
failings or weaknesses which it has determined to be significant,
consistent with the prior year. Therefore, a confirmation in respect of
necessary actions has not been considered appropriate.

All management are encouraged to stay abreast of all technical and
other competitive advancesthat could impact the business.

At 31 March 2021, the Group had two associates, Armadillo Storage
Holding Company Limited and Armadillo Storage Holding Company 2
Limited. Jim Gibson and John Trotman are Directors of both associates,
and reportback to the Big Yellow Group PLC board on the business
planning, risk management and internal controls of the businesses.

Going Concern

The Group'’s activities, and a fair review of the business, are included
in the Strategic Report on pages 18 to 50. The financial position of the

" - Group, including its cash flow, liquidity, and committed debt facilities

are discussed in the Financial Review on pages 36 to 41.

The Directors have areasonable expectation that the Group and
Company have adequate resources to continue operations for the
foreseeablé future. They have therefore continued to adopt the going
concern basis in-preparing the financial statements.

Engagement With Stakeholders

The long-term success of our business is dependent on the way we
work with our various stakeholders. The table below shows our key
stakeholder groups, how we engage with them, and how the results
of this engagement are reported up to the Board and influence the

" decision making with the business. Not all the information is reported

directly to the Board, however itinforms business-level decisions
with an overview of developments being reported on a regular basis
to the Board.

The Board has identified a number of key stakeholders which it seeks
to engage with on a regular basis. The key stakeholders are our

. employees, our shareholders, our customers, our suppliers, and

our communities. 5

How this influenced the Board during the year

Ouremployees

The Directors have continued to visit every store this year,
albeit some of the visits this year have been virtual due to

lockdown restrictions.

We also carried out a number of pulse surveys of our staff during
the year.on matters such as preferred choices of PPE, and the

provision af Covid testing kits.

Further detail is provided below on how Anna Keay, the
designated Workforce Engagement Director has carried out her

. role during the year.

During the year, the Executive Directors have been actively
engaging with our teams on working practices and ensuring our
team members and our customers are in a safe environment.

Store teams have been encouraged to email the
Directors directly with any recommendations or
observations to improve our working protocols, -
particularly in light of the pandemic.

The Directors have responded directly to all these
emails, and changes have been made to the Group’s
practices where applicable.

The pulse-surveys provide the Board with an insight
into how our employees are feeling and whatis
important to them.

There s further detail on how the Board engage with
.our people on page 84.
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Our shareholders

The Company has an active dialogue with its shareholders
through a programme of investor meetings which include formal
presentation of the full and half year results. The Executive Board
Directors have participatedin a number of virtual investor °
conferences and meetings during the year. During the year ended
31 March 2021, the Chief Executive and other Executive Board
Directors carried out 167 meetings with UK and overseas
institutional shareholders and potential investors. These
meetings comprised group and individual presentations.

The Board also welcomes the interest of private investors and
believes that, in addition to the Annual Report and the Company’s
website, the Annual General Meeting is an ideal forum at which

to communicate with investors and the Board encourages

their participation.

The Board receives regular feedback on investor
perceptions about the Company. After each set of
results, key investors are interviewed on their
perceptions of the performance of the businéss and
management. The findings are reviewed by the
Board. At each Board Meeting, the Board is updated
on any shareholder meetings that have taken place,
and any views expressed, orissues raised by the
shareholders in these meetings.

The Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Richard Cotton, and the Chair of the Audit Committee

Vince Niblett, engaged with a number of our
investors during the year. Meetings mainly focussed
on the proposed new Remuneration Policy.

Our customers

The Group sends surveys to all customers who have moved inand
moved out of the business. A high response rate is received to
these surveys, which show a net promoter score of 82.9.

The netpromoter scores are reported to the Board
ateach Board meeting and any recurring themes

highlighted to allow discussion around the approach -

to our customers.

The net piromoter scores achieved from our
customers are used as one of the metrics in the
bonus plan of the Executive Board Directors. "

'dur supplieré

Regular meetings are held between suppliers and their Big Yellow
contact. Appropriate external tendering is carried out for any
new suppliers.

On anti-cérruption and anti-bribery matters, we expect all our
suppliers to be compliant with the Modern Slavery Act and we

" work closely with our suppliers to promote best practice. During

the year this included engaging with suppliers we had identified
as being within potentially high-risk categories and carrying out
_audits of their compliance with these regulations and provndmg
support tothem.

The Board annually approves the Group’s Modern
Slaverg statement.

The Group is a member of the Prompt Payment
Code, supporting our smaller suppliers with on
time payments.

Our communities

We demonstrate Big Yellow’s culture and commitment to our
communities through the work of the Big Yellow Foundation
which aims to help vulnerable people lead better lives, working
in partnership with several charities.

Big Yellow matches any donations from our customers at
move-in and move-out. We also match any funds raised by our
employees and allow each member of our team one paid day
peryear for volunteering.

We also support over 200 local charities with free or discounted
space throughout our network.

The Board receives regular updates regarding the -
Foundation’s activities. The Board endorses the
culture of giving back time to support these
charities and the flnanual commitment made by
Big Yellow.

--Jim Gibson, CEQ, is the Chairof the Trustees ofthe

Big Yellow Foundation.

Our Environment

- We engage relevantsubject matter experts to assess the impact
our business has in the firstinstance as part of the planning and
construction process. Our partners perform detailed assessment
on likely impacts on land, water, biodiversity, air quality and other
key aspects. Itis our aim to not just minimize any negative
aspects, butalso ‘listen’ carefully and enhance where possible,
through the installation of green roofs or bird or bat nesting boxes
for example. We extensively report on our Operational impacts,
such as energy consumption, carbon emissions, waste we create
and water we use as part of our Full CSR Report and have systems

.and processes in-place to manage material aspects, such
as energy. )

The Board receives regular updates on our

“environmental performance and activities.

‘The Board endorses the Company’s commitment

toinvesting at all stages of our stores’ lifespanto
ensure ourimpact on the Environment is minimised.
Itsigns off on the budgets to deliver solar
installations and electric vehicle charging pods
forexample. .

The Board established a formal Sustainabnitg
Committee this year chaired by Non-Executive
Director Heather Savory:
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K Empl_oyeé Relations and Company Culture

Ourteams are a key resource of the business. From the start we have
always aimed to create a culture which is accessible, apolitical,.

"inclusive, non-hierarchical, socially responsible, and very importantly, '

afun and enjoyable place to work. We believe in the employees
benefiting from the success of the business. All staff are eligible for an
annual bonus; a Sharesave scheme is open to all employees; and the
Company’s Long Term Incentive Plan is provided to a significant
number of employees. ’

The Executive Board Directors spend a considerable amount of time

" meeting with the Group s employees and in normal circumstances visit
every store at least once a year. This year, for the stores that they have
notbeen able to attend in person due to lockdown restrictions, video
meetings have been held with the store teams. We recognise the value
of the culture of the business and these visits create an opportunity for
itto be cascaded from the boardroom. The Group’s Non-Executive
Directors also participate in some of these visits, allowing them to
develop and maintain a greater insight into the business, producing an
informed and higher quality Board discussion on employee matters.

The Group carries out regular engagement surveys of its staff. These )
surveys tell us what our staff value about the business and the" ’
importance of continued personal development. Detailed action plans
are created following these engagement surveys and a number of
changes to the way we operate have been made as a result of these
surveys. The level of employee engagement evidenced by these
surveys remained very high.

Regular training is provided to the Group’s employees, and detailed
courses are provided to allow employees to further their careers and -
seek promotion opportunmes within the business.

TheBoard has, in conjunctron wnh the work ofthe Audit Commmee
reviewed the whistleblowing policies thatare in place for the Group’s
employees. There have been no significantissues raised under the
Group's whistleblowing arrangements during the course ofthe
financial year.

' Workforce Engagement Director

The Code requires that the Board should understand the views of

"its key stakeholders, with a particular reference to engagement

with the workforce. Specifically, it states that for engagement with
the workforce, one or a combination ofthe followmg methods

"should be used:

= ADirector to the main Board ‘'should be appornted from
the workforce; .

" ® Aformal workforce advnsorg panel should report to the Board; and /or

®  Adesignated Non-Executive Director should siton the workforce
advisory panel.

Adesignated Non-Executive Director, Anna Keay, has been chosen as
the primary method of workforce engagement for Big Yellow.

She oversees and is responsible for the following:

® Involvementin the Workforce Engagement Group discussions and
occasional attendance at Workforce Engagement Group Meetings;’

®  |nvolvementin key employee project groups where for example
employee views are sought.on the business or policy and
procedural change;

®  Maintaining an awareness of the suggestions made under the

. Company's Bright Ideas Scheme toinclude key trends and

awards made; . .

®  Along with all the Company’s Non-Executive Directors, participation

. onstoretours (pre-planned visits to individual stores); )

8- Alongwith all the Compéng’s Non-Executive Directors attending
the Annual Sales Conference;

®  Provision of feedback to the Board on the annual emplogee
engagement survey, with assistance from the Human Resources

. tear and our survey partner; '

® ° Receiving detailed feedback from the Executive Board Directors on
their interaction with employees;

= Acting as an alternative contact to whom employees can report
confidential matters and raise concerns under the Company's

. Whistleblowing Policy; and

®  Reporting back to the Board and Non-Executive Directors on

the above.
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Report of the Nominations Committee

Committee membefé_ and attendance

Number

of meetings
Member attended <
Richard Cotton - Chairman and
Senior.Independent Director 00O
Julia Hailes — Member o000

Georgina Harvég ~Member
Steve Johnsén —Member-
Anna Keay = Member
Vince Niblett - Mémber :

Laela Pakpour Tabrizi - Member

00O
00O
000
000

Q00 -
000

Heather Savory — Member

O anended'
O “absent

O not applicable |
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Introduction

The Committee is responsible for reviewing the Composition of the
Board. It also makes recommendations for membership of the Board
and considers succession planning for Directors. The Committee is also
responsible for evaluating Board and Committee performance.

" The Nominations Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and giving consideration to

succession planning for Directors and other senior Executives. Where

. changes are required, it is also responsible for the identificatibn,

selection and proposal to the Board for approval of persons suitable for
appointment or reappointment to the Board, whether as Executive or
Non-Executive Directors and to seek approval from the Remuneration
Committee of the remuneration and terms and conditions of service of
any proposed-Executive Director appgointment. The Chairman of the
Committee reports to the Board as appropriate to enable the Board as a
whole to agree the appointments of new Directors. The Committee
meets atleastonce a yearand otherwise as required and as

" determined by its members. .

The terms and conditions of appointment for the Non-Executive
Directors are available for inspection at the Company’s Head Office *
during normal working hours. They are also available for inspection at
the Company’s AGM.

Board performance evaluation

. During the prior year, the effectiveness of the Board and its

Committees was evaluated by Simon Robertson Associates LLP
(“SRA"). Simon Robertson Assdciates have no other business:
relationship with the Group-or any of the Company's Directors.’'SRA met
individually each Director, the Company Secretary, many of the senior

management team and certain external advisers to the Company. They

also attended Board and Committee meetings, with the results of the
evaluation presented to the full Board. ’

dutcome

Overall, SRA’s evaluation was complimentary of the high standards of
performance and governance set by the Board. SRA commented on the
culture and strategic coherence of the Board and the strong balance
between prpcess and governance on the one hand and long-term
strategic planning on the other. SRA gained comfort that the Board
provides an environment where robust debate is encouraged, and a
good level of challenge and diversity of thought exists. The Board is
appropriately structured to provide the right balance of internal

scrutiny, taking account of its own particular construct.

SRA made a number of recommendations including:

= continuing to develop the Board's existing succession plansto

cover the Board as awhole, executive and non-executive;

‘" maximising the opportunity and education around Board debate on

long-term strategic and financial planning; and
® increasingthe interaction of the entire Board with the wider
executive team.’
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During the current year, the Senior Independent Director led an internal
evaluation of the Board's performance. This consisted of a review with
each Director of their assessment of the effectiveness of the Board and
its discussions. The Senior Independent Director provided a summary -

_ ofthese discussions to the Board. It was considered that the .-
Board was operating effectively, with some minor areas identified

forimprovement. - .

Director evaluation

During the current year, the Executive Chairman evaluated the
performance of the other Executive Board Directors, and the
performance of the Chairman was evaluated by the Senior independent
Non-Executive Director. It was considered that the individuals were
operating effectively, with appropriate procedures putin place for
mlnorareas identified for i |mprovement

Succession plunning
Itisakey responsnblhtg of the Commmee to advise the Board on

succession planning. The Committee ensures that any future changes -

inthe Board’s composition are foreseen and effectively managed.

The Board comprises a team of four Executive Board Directors,

“two-of whom were co-founders of the Company, complemented by

Non-Executive Directors who have wide business experience and
skills as well as a detailed understandingofthé Group's philosophy
and strategy. The Executive Board Directors have worked together
forasignificant length of time, with no change in composition since
John Trotman joined in 2007. Continuity of experience and knowledge,
particularly of self storage, within the executive team is importantin
along-term focussed busuness such as Big Yellow. ’

The team have confirmed individually and collectwelg that theyali
remain committed to the business for the foreseeable future. Each
Executive has a significant personal financialinterestin the Company.
The risk of unforced succession within the business is therefore low.

Given the financial interest of each member of the teamin the

" Company, any planned change in the team in the medium-term

(e.g. upon retirement) will be staggered to ensure there is not
significant disruption to the overall team. This will be in a similar
way to how the Company has managed the replacement of the
Non-Executive Directors over recentyears.

The Directors work closely together across the various departments

that each manages, and so each carries knowledge of the way the
whole business operates and would be able to take over the running
of that department in the short-term should a vacancy arise. Equally
important is the strength of the Senior Management team within the
business. The majority of the department heads have worked for the
business for a substantial period of time and are highly capable

“individuals. We have confidence that they would be able to step up
] if thereis a gap in the Executive Director team at any point.

In the event of unforeseen changes, the Committee ensures that
management and oversight of the Group’s busmess and long-term”
strategg will not be affected. . .

The Committee also addresses the development and continuity of

- the Senior Management team below Boardlevel and has considered

succession planning for this team during the year.

- Report of the Nomlnatlons Commlttee (continued)

o

Board and Company
gender diversity

Bdard

Total § | o =

6 3 67:33

Male Female .Male / female ratio

Key Executives A ’
Total8 - L

3 5 3862

Male ~ Female Male/ female ratio

Board and Key Executives

Total 17 : '
9 8 53:47

Male . ‘ Female Male / female ratio
All employees o

Total4l2 . ' o
227 185 55:45

Male ) Fgmcxlé

Male / female ratio
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Big Yellow Executlve team

Big Yellow operates with a Ieadershlp team of twelve, comprising of four
Executive Board Directors, supported by eight key executives within.
the business. The Group does not have a formal Executive Committee
or formal Operating Board, as we use a more flexible approach-to the
day-to-day management of the business within a relatively flat
managemem structure.

In addition to the four Executive Board Dlrectors the.other members
of the Executive team cover finance, sales and marketing, operations,
construction, humanresources, information technologg and digital
security,and CSR.

We run the business through small sub-groups of decision-making
committees, which meet regularly throughout the year around
particular key delivery areas which contribute to our growth and
success. These committees are attended by members across the
leadership team and other employees as required. All of these
meetings are also attended by at least one of the Executive Board
Directors, and in many cases more than one Executive Director.

All strategic and acquisition decisions are made at the PLC Board
level and'then the Committees implement and take the detailed
decisions to drive operational performance and detiver growth. -
There are also specific thematic executive committees, such as an
Environmental Committee and a Health and Safety Committee.

Policy on diversity

All aspects of diversity, including gender are considered at every level
of recruitment. All appointments to the Board are made on merit. The
Board’s policy states that the Board seeks a compaosition with the right
balance of skills and diversity to meet the demands of the business.
The Company meets the 30% recommended minimum proportion of
women on the Board.

Gender diversity of the Board, Key Executives and Company is set
out below: '

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021

External appointments

On making new appointments, the Board takes into account the other
demands on a Director’s time. Prior to any appointment, significant
commitments are disclosed with an |nd|_cat|on of the time involved.
Any additional external appointments are only undertaken with prior
approval of the Board. The Group’s Executive Board Directors may not
take on more than one non-executive Directorship within a FTSE 350
company or other significant and time-consuming appointment.

Directors standing for re-election

"All of the Directors will retire in accordance with the UK Corporate

Governance Code and will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting,

Following a performance appraisal process, the Board has concluded
that the Directors retiring are effective, committed to their roles and
operate as effective members of the Board.: ‘ )

The Board, on the advice of the Committee, therefore recommends the
re-election of each Director standing for re-election. Full biographical
details of each Director are available on pages 76.t0 78. ‘

Richard Cotton
Nominations Committee Chairman

24 May 2021
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Sustainability Cornmlttee Report

Committee members and attendance

Number
of meetings
attended

OO
OO
o
Q0O
0/0)
OO

" Member

HeatherSaQorg—Chair ’
Richard Cotton — Member
Anna Keay - Member
Vince N'iblett —Member
Laela Pakpour Tabrizi —»Mer'nber

Julia Hailes — Former Chair

O attended
O absent

O not applicable

‘Introduction.

The Sustainability Committee was established during 2020 with the
purpose of:

L overseeing the Group’s éustainébilitg framework and strategy;
. momtonngsustamabllngperformance

" providing guidance on emerging environmental i issues, |nclud|ng
environmental risks, and theirimpacton the Group's business; and

»  overseeing the Group's CSR reporting, mcludmg external audn/

assurance mechanisms.

Introducing our Chair

_ The Chairof the Sustainability Committee, HelatherSavorg, who took on

the role in March 2021, has a background in Science, Engineering, and
Public Policy with a strong personal interest in the better use of data
for Public Good. Her previous role as Director General at the UK Dffice
for National Statistics included Chairing the United Nations Global
Working Group on Big Data, looking at how Big Data can contribute

“to international reporting against the 17 Sustainable Development

Goals (SDGs) defined to drive the UN’ s 2030 Agenda for
Sustainable Development.

Heather is keen that Big Yellow should continue to develop and mature
its approach to and delivery of sustainability, building on the firm .
foundations which have been established over previous years.

Big Yellow plans to do this through a sustainability strategy which

s ambitiousand'willdelivervalueto the environment and for all
- Big Yellow's stakeholders: mvestors customers, suppllers

emplogees and the communltg

Introducing the'scqpe of the Sustainability Committee.

The Sustainability Committee has determined its scope as:

% material, covermgallenwronmentalaspectsofBngeIlows
business, i.e. the ‘E’in ESG; and

%  comprehensive, from energy to waste, con5|dered in order ofthenr

impact on the business.

" The scope of the Sustainability Committee excludes:

® social and personnel aspects of ESG, which the Big Yellow Board
considers elsewhere, under the gu|dance of Non-Executive Director
Anna Keay; and

® governance aspects of ESG which are consudered directly by the
Big Yellow Board.
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Overview :
The Sustamabrlltg Committee meets twice ayear:in September andin
March, attended by all Big Yellow Board Members and the Head of CSR.

The Head of CSR and Big Yellow’s sustainability strategy are supported
and delivered within the business through an ‘executive level,

cross-disciplinary Environmental Committee. Big Yellow.staff form this ]

committee and external experts may be called to the Sustainability
Committee on an ad hoc basis, as determined by the meeting agenda.

- Atthe first meeting of the Sustainability Committee in September
2020, the Head of CSR and the Environmental Committee proposed a
new energy and emissions strategy. This was broadly accepted by the
Board, and more work has been progressed since September to assess
the options set out, their delivery potential and the financial impact.
This has led ta the development of Big Yellow’s published Shstainabilitg
Strategy which was approved at the second Sustainability Committee
meetingin March 2021. .

The Sustainability Strategg has been now published as a stand-alone '
document which comprises two strands: ’

" 1. NetRenewable Energy Positive Strategy '

Delivery of this strand will commence in 2021/22 and is'expected to be

completedin 2025.
2. NetZeroScope 1and 2 Emissions target

Work is underway to delivera Net Zero Emissions strategy in paralle! to
the energy strategy. Big Yellow's path to Net Zero will be baselined
through the creation of a science-based target.

In addition, at the March Sustainability Committee, the Board
undertook a review of CSR benchmarks, campaigns, and frameworks
to determine which berichmarks and framewarks are appticable for
Big Yellow’s operations and which campaigns Big Yellow might support.
Big Yellow will continue to report against CDP, GRESB and FTSE4Good
dnd will use the EPRA sustainability best practice reporting framework
: to present its yearly data. The committee will keep a  watching brief
overlocal and national developments in the relatively new area of
emissions benchmarkung, also the legislative landscape, to ensure
that Big Yellow keeps apace with developments as they occur.

The Sustainability Committee agreed that Big Yellow is currently
well placed, through previous and planned work to meet an overall
target of becoming Net Zero for all carbon emissions, by 2040.
Big Yellow's Board is strongly committed to achieving this goal.

Accessing the Sustainability strategy: The detail of the
NetRenewable Energy Positive Strategy andthe plans forthe
Net Zero Scope 1and 2 Emissions targets can be accessed at
corporate bigyellow.co.uk/sustainability.

- Heather Savory
Sustainability Committee Chair

24 May 2021

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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Remuneration Report

Committee members and attendance

Number
. of meetings
Member attended
Richard Cotton — Chair 0]0/0]0)

Julia Hailes — Member
Georgina Hérveg — Former Chair .
Steve Johnson — Member.
* AnnaKeay—Member
Vince Niblett - Member
Laela Pakpour Tabrizi - Member

- Heather Savory — Member

0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000

) “attended
O absent

O not applicable

Introduction

This report details the activities of the Remuneration Committee for
the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. The report has been
prepared by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.
It sets out the proposed Remunération Policy which will be put to
shareholder vote atthe forthcoming 2021 AGM and remuneration
details for the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the Company.
It has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 of the Large and
Medium-size Companies and Groups {Accounts and Report)
(Amendment) Regulations 2013 (the Regulanons ):The reportis

' divided into three main sections:

= TheAnnual Statement— which summarises the'remuneration

outcomes in the year ended 31 March 2021 and how the new V
" Remuneration Policy will be operated in the year ending

31 March 2022;

® " The Remuneration Policy Report — which sets out the proposed

- Remuneration Policy to be approved bg shareholders at the 2021

~ AGM;and

®  The Annual Report on Remuneratlon ‘which sets out how the
Committee intends to operate the Remuneranon Policy for the year
ending 31 March 2022, the link between Company performance
and remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2021 and payments
and awards made to the Directors in respect of the year justended.

The Companies Act 2006 requires the-auditor to report to the
shareholders on certain parts of the Remuneration Report and to state
whether, in their opinion, those parts of the report have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Regulations. The parts of the Annual
Reporton Remuneration that are subject to audit are indicated in

the report. ' a

Annual Statement >

Dear Shareholder

1am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year
ended 31 March 2021 which has been operated under our existing
Directors’ Remuneration Policy, forwhlch shareholderapproval was
obtained in 2018.

Performance, Decisions and Reward Outcomes for the
year ended 31 March 2021 o

The business conditions and performance of the Group in.the year
ended 31 March 2021 are described more fully inthe Chairman's
Statement and the Operating and Financial Review of this Annual
Report. In summary: .

8 The business of the Group performed strongly despite the |mpact
of Covid-19 throughout the financial year;

o Big Yellow remains the clear UK brand leader in self storageand

delivered growth in revenue, cash flow and earnings for the twelfth
_ yearinarow;
" Revenue, operating cash flow and adjusted profit before tax
increased 4.6%, 4.2% and 5.1% respectively; and .
8 Dividends are beingincreased by 0.6%.

Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Big Yellow Group PLC.



Pagments_made to the Executive Board Directors under the cash In reépect of the Long Term Incentive Plan [“LTIP") awards granted in

annual bonus plan for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to 2017, which vested in July 2020, three-year EPS and TSR performance

15.7% of salary (out of a maximum of 25% of Salary), basedon - resulted in 84% of awards vestlng
performance against pre-set targets for occupancy, store profitability,”
store audits and customer satisfaction. The targets set, and the
out-turn, were identical to the average bonus awarded across the

cash and deferred annual bonus plans and share award vesting levels
‘'stores and head office. -

are set outin the Annual Report on Remuneration..

Awards made to the Executive Board Directors under the deferred
annual bonus plan for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to
118.75% of salary (out of a maximum of 125% of salary), based on
performance against financial and non -financial performance targets
linked to the business plan.

The Commlttee and-its Work Dunng the Year
Committee Chair: Richard Cotton

Current Committee members: Richard Cotton 'Vince Niblett, Anna Keag, Laela PakpourTabrlzl and Heather Savory
Terms of Reference https //corporate. blggellow co. uk/lnvestors/corporate governance '

_The Committee met four times during the year under review. The Committee’s main activities durlng the gear ended 31 March 2021
(full details are set outin the relevant sectlons of this report] included: .

% Agreeing Executive Director base salary increases from 1 April 2021;
»  Agreeing the cash annual bonus awards for the year ended 31 March 2020 and setting the targets for the yearended 31 March 2021;
. W Agreeing the deferred annual bonus plan awards for the gear ended 31 March 2020 and setting the targets forthe year ended
" 31March 2021; . .
®  Reviewing the EPSand Total Shareholder Return (“TSR") performance targets and determining the percentage vestung for the 2017 LTIP
" awards which vested in 2020;
% Reviewing the CEQ Pay Ratio caiculations and disclosures;
. Revrewnngthe Company's Gender Pay calculations and dlsclosures and
% . Reviewing the Company's Ethmcntg Pay calculations and disclosures:

In addmon the Committee has considered how the Policy and practices are consistent with the six factors set outin Prowsnon 40 of the UK
Corporate Governance Code:

Clarity — Our Policy is understood by our senior executive team and has been clearly articulated to our shareholders and representative bodies
(both on an ongoing basis and when changes are proposed).

Simplicity — The Committee is mindful of the need to avoid overly complex remuneration structures which can be misunderstood and deliver
_unintended outcomes. Therefore, a key objéctive of the Committee is to ensure that our executtve remuneration policies and. practtces continue
" to be straightforward to communicate and operate

Risk - Our Pollcg has been desugned to ensure that |napproprtate risk- taklngts discouraged and will not be rewarded via: (i) the balanced use -
of annual and long-term pay which employ a blend of financial, non-financial and shareholder return targets; (ii} the S|gntflcant role plaged
by equity in ourincentive plans and (iii) malus/clawback provusuons . .

Predlctabllltg Ouri mcenttve plans are subject to individual caps, our share plans are also subject to market standard dllutlon limits.

Proportlonalltg There is a clear link between individual awards, delivery of strategy and ourlong -term performance In addition, the srgnrfrcant
role played by incentive/‘at-risk’ pay, together with the structure of the Executive Board Directors’ service contracts, ensures that poor
performance is not rewarded.

Alignment to culture - Our executive pay policies are fully aligned to Big Yellow’s culture through the use of metrics in both the annual bonus,
deferred bonus and LTIP that measure how we perform agamst ourKPls.

' Big Yellow Group' PLC Annuci R_eport and Accounts 2021
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" Remuneration Report continueay

Operation of the Poi\lcv and use of discretion

The Remuneration Policy operated as intended for the year ended
31 March 2021.with one exception. At the outset of the Covid-19
pandemic, the Board agreed to support our customers by deferring the
normal rent increases for the first four months of the financial year. °

- Additionally, the Group provided assistance discounts to many of our
customers, in particular small businesses, who were struggling for
cash flow during the initial Iockdown Given the impact of these
decisions in reducing the average netrent persq ftachieved over the
year, the Committee agreed toincrease the weighting on the like-for-
like occupancy growth (from 25% to 35% of potential) and reduce the
weighting on the net rent metric (from 15% to 5%) so as not to penalise
management foracting in the interests of our customers. Given the
relationship of these two metrics to revenue (which combined for the
year ended 31 March 2021 to produce like-for like store revenue

" growth of 4:9% over the.year, which was well ahead of budget), the
Committee has decided to simplify the approach in respect of the year
ending 31 March 2022 by just focussingon revenue rather than

measuring its principal constituent drivers of occupancy and netrent.

Policy review

As the current remuneration policy approved by shareholders in 2018
is reaching the end of its three-year life, the Committee carried outa
detailed review of the policy and consuited with Big Yellow Group's
majorshareholders and the main representative bodies on a number
“of potential changes. After-considering all of the feedback-received,
the Committee decided ta roll-forward the existing Remuneration
" Policy at the 2021 AGM, albeit updated for the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code provisions around pension and post-cessation.
As such, incumbent Executive Director pension provision wasreduced
to workforce levels from 1 April 2021 and post-cessation shareholding
guidelines will, subject to shareholder approval be introduced from
the 2021 AGM. .

Implementing the Policy for the Year Ending'
31 March 2022 )

Base salary

The Committee has operated a policy of targeting base salaries
“close to (but generally just below) median” for some time. However,
notwithstanding that Executive Director base salary levels are

- currently well below the market level fora FTSE 250 company of

Big Yellow's size and complexity, salary levels were increased by 2%
in line with the general workforce increase:

. - Executive
Chief Chairman , Chief Financial Operations
_ Executive ' (Nicholas ' Officer Director . .
(Jim Gibsen) Vetch) [John Trotman) (Adrian Lee}
From 1 July2020*  £440,000 £375,000 £325,000 . £285,000
From 1 April 2021 £448,800 £382,500 £331,500 £290,700
% increase 2% 2% .2% 2%

* Increases were originally intended for 1 April 2020 but'were postponed until 1 July 2020 due
to the Covid- 19 pandemic.

Pension and benetits

-As part of the Remuneration Policy review, the Committee determined

;ha't Executive Director pension provision should be aligned, in
percentage of salary terms, to the general workforce contribution rate.
As such, pension provision was reduced from 10% to 6% of salary from
1 April 2021 for incumbent Executive Directors and any new Executive
Directors would receive a pensnon at this level. -

Benefit provision will remain unchanged (private fuel, private medical .
insurance, permanent health insurance, life assurance and relocatlon

~ allowances, where relevant).

Am\ual bonus ’

Annual bonus potential will continue to be capped at 150% ofsalarg for
the year ending 31 March 2022.

“Upto 25% of salary will continue to be aligned to the workforce annual
_bonus (measured against store performance, through occupancy

growth, store profitability, store audits and customer satisfaction -
scores). Any bonus earned under this part will be payablein cash,
following the year ending 31 March 2022.

_ The remaining 125% of salary will continue to be measured'against .

financial, operational, real estate and strategic targets measured over
the financial year ending 31 March 2022. Any award under this part will
be deferred into Big Yellow shares for three years (with vesting subject

to continued employment).

LT!P

LTIP awards will continue to be granted to Executive Board Dlrectors
annually, over shares equal to. 100% of salary. Following a review of the
LTIPin light of Big Yellow’s strategic initiatives, the performance

" metrics and conditions for awards intended to be granted to Executive

Board Directors in 2021 will be based on performance against three -
key metrics: Adjusted EPS, Relative TSR, and ESG targets. As the

~ performance targets have yet to be agreed by the Committee, the

targets and weighting of each metric will be set outin the RNSissued
immediately following the grant. A two-year post vesting holding period .
will continue to apply. . '

Shareholdlng guideunes in emplovmem

The requirement to build and maintain a holding of atleast 200% of
salary in shares of the Company will continue to apply and has been
met by all of the Executive Board Directors. Where this guideline has -
not been met, there is a requirement to retain atleast 50% of shares
vesting (net oftaxes] from d|screuonarg share-based incentive plans.

Shareholdlng guidelines - posi employment .

"Subject to shareholders approving the new Policy at the 2021 AGM,

a post-cessation shareholding guideline will be introduced. Going
forward, Executive Directors will need to retain shares equal to 100%
of the shareholding guideline (or the actual number of shares held
against the guideline if the guideline is notmet at cessation) up until
the second anniversary of.cessation.
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Charitable donations

Following a shortfallin donations to the Big Yellow Foundation (* the
Foundation” ]durmgthe initial Covid-19 lockdown, the.Executive

Directors doriated a total of £50,000 to the Foundation during the year. -

- The Company’s Non- Executive Directors also donated £11,000to the
Foundation durmgthe gear

Conclusion

I hope that, at the AGM on 22 July 2021, you will support the
resolutions on: (i) the remuneration paid to the Directors in the last
financial year, and the implementation of the new Remuneration
Policy for the forthcoming year; and (i) the new Directors' -
Remuneration Policy. :

Finally,1would like to extend my thanks to my fellow colleagues on
the Committee for their support and work in 2020/21.

Richard Cotton
Chair of the Remuneration Committee’

24 May 2021 -

+
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy

This section of the Remuneration Report contains details of the

Company’s Directors’ Remuneration Policy (the “Policy”) which
governs the Company’s approach to remuneration.

Itis the policy of the Company to ensure that the executivé
remuneration packages are designed to attract, motivate, and retain _
Directors of a high calibre and reward the executives for enhancmg
value to shareholders

As aresult, a substantial element of thé remuneration of the Execuuve

Board Directors is structured to be dependent on the performance of
the Company. Thé policy aims t6 support a performance culture where
there is appropriate reward for the achievement of strong Company
performance without creating incentives which will encourage

" excessive risk-taking or unsustainable Company performance.

Policy Scope

The Policy applies to the Executive Board Dlrectors and
Non Executive Directors.

-Policy Duration

The current Directors' Remuneration Pblicg Reportwas approved‘bg a . .

binding'shareholder vote at the AGM on 19 July 2018. Anew policy is
being put to shareholders for approval at the forthcoming AGM.

Policy Changes

‘ Following a consultation exercise wnh Big Yellow's ma;or shareholders

and the main'shareholder representatives, the Committee concluded
that the e'xisting‘ Remuneration Policy should be rolled forward, albeit
updated for the main developments in corporate governance since
the last Policy was approved. As such, the followmg changes are
being proposed:

.

®  The maximum ;Sension contribution rate of 10% of salary will be .
removed. Going forwards, pension provision for new Executive
Directors and incumbent provision from 1 April 2021 will be
aligned, in percentage of salary terms, to the general workforce
contribution rate (currently 6% of salary}); and :

" @ Apost-cessation shareholding guideline will be introduced. Going

forward, Executive-Directors will need to retain shares equal to
100% of the shareholding gmdelme (or the actual pumber of shares
held agamst thé guideline if the guldelune isnotmetat cessatlon]
- up until the second anmversarg of cessation.
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Summary Policv table (Bxecutlve Board Dlrectors)

The main components of the Directors’ Remuneration Pollcg, and howtheg are hnked toand support the Compang s business strategg,

Execut!ve Board Directors
" Purpose and link

_ which will be presented to shareholders.for approval at the 2021 AGM, are summarised below:

_Performance conditions

20 strategy Operation i Maximum boieritle] value and assessment .
Base salary To provide Base salary is normally Set annually on 1 April. . Salaries are typically set. None
competitive ' . - : L after considering the salary
- When considering anyincreases to base salaries in . f
fixed levels in companies of a
. the normal course {as opposed to a change in role or S N
remuneration responsibility), the Committee will take i to similar size and complexity
. in . y
that will P J in the FTSE 250.
: con5|derat|on .
- attractand . L .
L . . . . o Our overall policy is normally
retain key L level of skill, experience, scope of responsibilities .
. to target salaries at close to
employees - . and performance; ;
} Aoct ‘ o median levels.
and reflect ® business performance, economic climate, and
their market conditions; Base salaries are intended to
EXperiencé . g . payandemployment conditions of employees increase in line with inflation
and position throughout the Group, mcludmg increases f’“d general employee
I(? the provided to staff; _ increases in salary.
ompany. . . . )
. P g . ® inflation; and Higher increases may apply if
" increases provided to Executive Board Directors  -thereisachangeinrole, level
in comparable companies [although such data of responsubllng or
would be used wnth caution). - experience or if the individual
’ : is new to the role.
: There is no maximum salary -
capin place.
Annualbonus  Theannual Executive Board Directors participate inan- annual -150% of salary. Assessed
.bonus aligns performance- -related bonus scheme. R annuallyand
reward to ke determined bt
J Up to 25% of salary will be paid in cash, Up to 125% of 0y
Group . . S the Committee
. . salary will be deferred into shares for three years. -
strategic , based on
objectives Dividend equivalents may be pagable on deferred financial, .
_ anddrives share awards. strategic and/or
short-term T b | in clawb k d personal '
R performance. elannua bonus plan rules coritain clawbac ae performance
malus provisions. against the
‘Group’s business
plan for each
financial year.
LongTerm - The Long Awards are made annuallyto the Executive Board 100% of salary: Vesting under the
Incentive Term Directors (and certain senior managers who are in a LTIP will be based
Plan -~ Incentive position to significantly influence the performance of on financial,
Plan aligns ‘the Group] in the form ofml -paid options. . share-price, )
Executive * strategic and/or
. The awards granted under the Long Term Incenuve g
Director ESG related
. e Plan are subject to performance conditions to be met :
.interests with erforma iod of three uears performance
ver reorm rl rs. - .
those of overap ancepe ye measures.

shareholders
and rewards
value
creation.

Dividend equivalents may be payable on LTIP awards
during the vesting period, to the extent awards vest.

The LTIP contain clawback and malus provisions.

Atwo gear post vest'ing holding period is applied to
LTIP awards granted to.Executive Directors followmg
the 2018 AGM.
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Purpose and link

Performance conditions

ownership by
all
employees.
This allows’
themtoalign’
their

interests with

those of”
investors and
tosharein
the long-term
success of

the Company. .

HMRC tax favoured all employee arrangements.

10 strategy Operation Maximum potential value and agsessment -
Pension . Toprovide Contribution made into Executive Director's personal ~ Workfofce aligned [currently ~ None
' ‘ competitive = pension plan, or a cash supplement 6f equivalent 6% of salary)
" levels of . value paid in lieu of pension contribution. .
retirement . '
benefit.
" Other To provide Benefits include: ' Maximum opportunity is the None
benefits competitive S total cost of providing the : '
. levels of ! Prfvate ﬁ.",a"‘ o benefits. There is no
employment = * Privatemedicalinsurance; - monetary cap on benefits.
benefits. ®  Permanent healthinsurance; . . :
: = Life assurance of four times base salary; and
®  Relocation allowances (where relevant).
Otherbenefits may be provided where appropriate.
- _The type and level of benefits provided is reviewed
ahnuallg to.ensure they remain market competitive.
Shareholding To ensure . Requirement to build and maintain a holding of 200% of sala(g, N/A
_policy—in  that shares in the Company, through retaining'at least ’ ’
employment  Executive 50% of shares vesting in discretionary share-based ©
" Board- incentive plans if this guideline has not been met.
Directors’ - .
Shareholding - interestsare . Requirement to retain shares equal to 100% of the
policy—post  alignedwith . shareholding guideline (or the actual number of
employment those of shares held against the guideline if the guideline is )
: shareholders  not met at cessation) up until the second '
overalonger  anhiversary of cessation.
time horizon. Own shares purchased and share awards granted
prior to the 2021 AGM will be excluded from the .
" post-cessation guideline.
All Employee Toencourage  Executive Board Directors may participateinany Inline with the prévailing ~ None
Scheme ~ share HMRClimits.” -~ - :
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- Notes to the policy table
. The'key principle for the short and long-term incentives is to provide a strong link between reward and individual and Group performance to alrgn

thei interests of Executlve Board Directors with those of shareholders.

1. Annual bonus pertoxmance measures and turgets

Annual bonuses for the Executive Board Directors are based on:

8 - 25%of salary cash bonus: the average of the stores’ performance against therr quarterly targets providing direct alignment ofthe Directors’
bonuses to performance (and the bonus levels) of the staff. The four Key Performance Indicators used to assess store performance are
occupancy growth, store profitability, store audits and customer satisfaction. Store targets are set every quarter and an average of the four
quarters is taken. . .

. 125% of salarg deferred share bonus measured against pre setfrnancral operational, real estate and strategnc targets.

2. Long Term Incentive Plan performance measures and targets

Performance metrics and targets for LTIP awards will provrde adirect link between the incentive'for the Executrve Board Directors and
the long-term value created for shareholders. The main two performance metrics, which may be supplemented by strategic and/or
ESG-related metrics are:

" Relative TSR against the constituents of the FTSE Real Estate Index, grven that Big YeIIow s hrstorrc performance has been closely alignedto -

the performance of this Index.

" Adjusted EPS figure as reported in the audited results of the Group for the last complete financial year endmg before the startof the
performance perrod and the last complete financial year ending before the end of the performance period. .

3. Malus and clawback
The cash annual bonus, deferred annual bonus plan and LTIP mclude malus and clawback provtsrons

Malus is the adjustment of outstandrng deferred bonus and LTIP awards as a result ofthe occurrence of one or more of the circbmstances listed
below. The adjustment may result in the value being reduced to zero. Malus will apply for the three year period from grant to vesting for the deferred
bonus and LTIP awards. . o . '

Clawback is the recovery of payments/vestings under the cash bonus and LTIP as a result of the occurrence of one or more circumstances
listed below. Clawback will apply for three gears post payment of.a cash bonus/grant of deferred share awards and three years post vestrngfor
LTIP awards.

The circumstances in which malus and clawback could applg are as follows

discovery of a material misstatement resulting in an adjustmentin the audited consolidated accounts of the Company;

the assessment of any performance target or condition in respect of an award-was based, on error, or inaccurate or misleading rnformatron
the discovery thatany information used to determine the amount ofan award was based on error or rnaccurate ormisleading mformatron
,corporate failure or the occurrence of aninsolvency event; L :

actionor conduct of an award holder which, in the reasonable opinion of the Board, amounts to fraud- 'or gross misconduct; and

events or behaviour which have led.to the censure ofthe Companybya regulatorg authority or have had a significant detnmental impacton
the reputation of any Group Compang :

" 4. Discretion

The Committee has discretion in several areas of policy as setoutin this report. The Committee may also exercise operational and administrative
discretion under relevant plan rules approved by shareholders as set outin those rules. in addition, the Committee has-the discretion to amend 2
policy with regard to minor or administrative matters where it would be, in the opinion of the Committee, dlsproportronate toseek or await
shareholder approval. . . -

In certain circumstances the Committee will be required to exércise its discretion, taking into consideration the particular circumstances of an -
Executive Director's departure and/or the recent performance of.the Company in determunrngthe specific level of payments to be made.

In addition to the discretion underthe terms of the annual bonus plan (both cash and deferred shares] and LTIP, the Committee has discretion to

. determine whether anindividual is classified as a “good leaver”.

Itshould be noted thatitis the Commrttee s policy to only applg its discretion if the crrcumstances at the time'are, in its opinion, suffrcrentlg
exceptronal and to provide a full explanation to shareholders where drscretron is exercised. The Committee does not currently intend to amend or
waive any performance condrtrons
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5. Dil!exences in remunemtion policy for all employees

Al employees are currently entitled to base salary, benefits, pensions, and the Sharesave Scheme. Addmonaug, allemployees are ellglble for
-annual bonuses with the maximum opportunity available based on the semontg and responsubllltg of the role held. .

The Company's'LTIPs are granted to a number ofsenlor managers wnthln Head Office, the area managerteam and also to store managers.

Illustrations of appllcauon of Remuneratlon Policy
The graphs below seek to demonstrate how pay varies with performance for the Executive Board Dlrectors based on the current Remuneration Policy. -

"The assumptions used'in determumngthe level of pay out under glven scenarios are as follows

Scenario Descnptmn
Fixed Pay Chief Executive Executive Chairman . Chief Financial Officer ' Opei'a_tions Director '
Base salary, £448,800 . £382500 £331,500 £290,700
(from 1 April 2021) ) . . ’ ’ R :
Estimated : : £5,000 £5000  £2000. © £5,000
Benefits : . .
. Pension ' 6% - 8% . 6% . 6%
" (%ofsalary) . : o . .
On-target 50% of annual bonus award being paia and 50% vesting of the LTIP.
Maximum - " 100% of annual bonus award being paid [i.e. 150% of salary) and 100% vesting of the LTIP.

Maximum Plus 50%
share price growth

As per thé Maximum scenario but as§uming 50% share price growth on LTIP awards,

" Chief Executive Officer ‘Exe'cutive Chairman'.'v Chief Financial;Otﬁci'er . Operations Director .

' Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report anpl Accounts 2021
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Summarv Poucy table (Non-Executive Directors)

“Objective and link to . ' ) Performance conditions
the strategy - Operation Maximum potential value : and assessment

Fees To attract Fee Ievels are normally reviewed annually Feelevels are normallysetat  N/A
Non-Executive . in March - broadly median levels for
Directors with the . * comparable roles at

requisite skills,
and experience.

The Non Executive Director fee structureis a

companies of a similar size
matter for the full Board P

_ and complexity within the
Non-Executive Directors mag be enmled t0 FTSE 250.

benefits relating to travel and office support
and such other benefits as may be
considered appropriate.

Fees are normallyintended to -
increase in line withinflation.

' The fees may be paid'in~the form of shares. , - o ’ \

Non-Execuitive Dlrectors fees comprrse ofa base fee, withan addmonal fee for Committee Chairs, the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
andthe Emplogee Representative Drrector

Approuch to recruitmem remunetauon

The table' bélow summarises our key policies with respect to recrurtment remuneratlon

.Salarg and -
benefits

Setby reference to market and taking account of individual experience and expertise in the context of the role.
Salary would also be set with reference to the salarg ofang departing Executive Director and the remaumng
Executive Board Directors. : .

The Executive Director would be eligible to receive benefits in line with Big Yellow Group’s benefits policy as setoutin
the remuneration policy table ~ this includes either a contribution to a personal pension scheme or cash allowance in
lieu of pension benefits in line with the policies set out in the policy table. :

Maximum
variable incentive

" Annual bonus of up to 150% of base salary.

Long term incentive plan award ofequivalen't to 100% of base salary.

_Sign-on payments

The Company does nbrprovide sign-on payments to Executive Board Directors.

- Share buy-outs

Any previous outstanding share awards which the Executive Director holds which would be forfeited on cessation of -
his or her previous employment may be compensated. '

Where this is the case, the general prmcrple is that the outstandmg award will be valued based on the consuderauon of .
the following factors:

— The proportion of the performance period completed on the date of the Director’s cessation ofempldgment;

— The performance conditions attached to the vesting of the incentives and the Irkelrhood of them being
satisfied; and

- Anyother terms and conditions having a material impact on their value.

The valuation will be conducted using a recoghised valuation methodology by an independent party and the
equivalent ‘fair value’ may be awarded as a one-off LTIP on date of joining under the Company’s existing long- -term
incentive plan. To the extent that this is hot possible, a bespoke arrangement will.be used. .

To ensure effective retention of the Executive Director upon recruitment, any new award will be granted subject to

- performance conditions and vesting may be over the same period as those forfeited from the prevrous employerora

new three year penod

" The exact terms will be determmed by the Remuneration Commmee on a case-by-case basis taking mto account all

relevant factors.

Relocation
policies

Ih instances where the new Executive Directoris relocaungfrom one work location to another the Company may
provide, as aone- -off or otherwise, a refocation allowance as part of the Director’s relotation benefits.

The level of the relocation package will be assessed on a case- bg case basis but wull take into consideration any cost
oflrvmg differences, housmg allowance and schoolmg ’
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Service contracts

The Company’s policy on Directors’ service contracts is that they should be on a-rolling basis wnhout a specific end-date provndmgfor one year 's
notice. All Executive Board Directors have contracts which reflect this policy..

The Non-Executive Directors do not have service contracts with the Company. Their appointments are governed by letters of appointment which -
are available forinspection on request at the Compang'§ registered office and which will be available for inspection at the Company’s AGM. Each
appointment is for a period of up to three years, although the continued appointment of all Directors is put to shareholders atthe AGM onanannual
basns In addmon the appointment is terminable by either.party giving notice.of three months.

-Pavments for loss of ofﬁce

« Element Approach
Salary and ' . Salarg and benefits may be paid in lieu of natice. In cases where a contract is terminated other than on the terms of the
benefits service contract, the Compang WI|| seek to mitigate any damages payable. : :

-There will be no compensation for normal resignation or inthe event of termination by the Company due to misconduct.

Annual bonus If the individual is a good leaver, any bonus will be paid on a pro-rata basis in respect of the period from the start of the
o fmancnal year. Any pro-rated bonus would normally be payablein cash (i.e. noaward of deferred shares would be made).

' Deferred share awards would normallg vestat the normal vestlng date (although may vest at the date ofcessatlon]

Agood leaveris defined as an individual ceasing emplogmem due to ill-health, dlsabllng, redundancy, or retirement or in
any other circumstances which the Committee permns -

. Abad leaverisan Executive Dlrectorwho does not fall within the category of good leaver” and bad leavers will forfeitany
entitlement to a bonus paymentin respect of the current hnanual yearor ang comple(ed financial year in respect of which
the bonus has not been paid at the cessation date. :

Long term Aproportion of the LTIP awards held by good leavers will vest at the Committee’s discretion determined by takinginto
incentives (LTIP) account whether, and to what extent, any performance conditions have been satisfied and the length of time the LTIP
award has been held at the date of cessation of employment.

The LTIP-awards will not normally vest until the end of the performance period with performance tésted at that time,
although exceptionally such awards may, at the discretion.of the Committee, vest at cessation of employment.

Agood leaver is defined as an individual ceasing employment as a result of ill-health, injury, disability, redundancy, - i
retirement, orthe sale out of the Group of his emplognng busuness orany other reason which the Committee in its absolute
discretion permits. a

Abadleaverisan Executlve Director who does not fall within the categorg of good leaver, and bad Ieavers will forfeit ang
unvested awards

Other The Group mag meet relocation and other incidental expenses on termination of emplogmeht, the fees of legal or other’
professional advisers, outplacement, compensation in respect of statutory rights under relevant employment protection
legislation and accrued but untaken hohdag ltmay also elect to continue to prowde certain beneflts rather than making
payment in lieu of the benefitin question.

Statemem of consideration of shcneholders’ views.

The views of our shareholders are very important to the Committee and we acnvelg consulted with our major shareholders and the main
representatlve bodies to help formulate the proposed new Remuneration Policy. :

Any consultations on remuneratlon with shareholders and representauve bodies will usuallg beled bg the [Ihalr of the Remunerauon Committee.

The Remuneratlon Committee also considers shareholder feedback received in relation to the AGM each year atits first meeting following the
relevant AGM. This feedback, as well as any additional feedback réceived during any other meetmgs with shareholdeérs throughout the year, is then
" considered as part of the Company's annual review of remuneration policy.

The Remuneration Committee notes that shareholders do not speakwitha sungle voice, but we engage with our Iargestshareholders to ensure we
understand the range of views which exist on remuneration issues. When any material changes are pmposed to the Remuneration Policy, the
Remuneration Committee Chair will consult major shareholders in advance and will offera meeting to discuss these.
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Shareholder vollng )
The Group is committed to ongoing shareholder dlalogue and takes an active interestinvoting outcomes Where there are substantlal votes

.against resolutions in relation to Directors’ remuneration, the reasons for that voting will be sought and ang actions’in response erI be detailed
here. There have been no sngmflcant issues ralsed bg shareholders in respect of remuneration in the year.

- The table below shows the advisory vote on the 2020 Remuneratlon Reportand the blndlngvote onthe Remuneratlon Pohcg atthe AGM held on

) 19 July 2018.
’ . ] . . Votesfor - % Votes Against _ % . Voteswithheld
2020 Remuneration'Report ’ . - .139,729,155 ) 978% . 3f155,808 2.2% . 7204
2018 Remuneration Policy - ) : 123,499,408 86.4% 4,603,796 3.6% 260,131

Annuctl Report on Remunercttlon
- This'section of the Remuneration Report contains details of how the Directors’ Remuneratlon Policy will be |mplemented for the year endlng

31 March 2022 and how it was implemented during the year ended 31 March 2021:

-lmplémenﬂng the Policy tor the Year Ending 31 March 2022

Base salary
While the Committee has operated a policy of targeting base salarles close to [but generally just below) median” for some time, actual salaries

" have been set significantly below median levels. ,

Notwithstanding that Executive Director base salary levels are well below (he market level for a FTSE 250 compang of Big YeIIow 's size and
complexng, salary levels were mcreased by 2% inline with the general warkforce increase: :

. Executive -Chief Financial * Qperations.

Chief Executive Chairman Officer ~ Director

. . . (Jim Gibson}  (Nicholas Vetch} (John Trotman) (Adrian Lee)
From 1 July 2020* ) ) ' £440,000 £375,000 £325,000 ~ '£285,000

. FromiAprll 2021 - . ) ’ - £448,800 . £382,500 £331,500 £290,700
% increase : : S S 2% 2% 2% 2%

_*Increases were originally intended for 1 April 2020 but were postponed until 1 July 2020in llighr of the Covid-13 pandemic.

Pension & benefits

As part of the Remuneration Policy review, the Commmee pension provision for new Executive Dlrectors and mcumbem provision should be
aligned, in percentage of salary terms, to the general workforce contribution rate from 1 Apnl 2021. As such, pensron provrsmn was reduced from
10%to 6% of salary from 1 April 2021. : :

Benefit provision will remain unchanged [prlvate fuel private medical insurance, permanent healthinsurance, life assurance and relocatlon

- allowances, where relevant).

Annual bonus

‘Annual bonus potential will continue to be capped at 150% ofsalarg for the year ending 31- March 2022.

Up to 25% of salary will continue to be aligned to the workforce annual bonus (measured against store performance, through occupancy growth,
store profitability, store audits and customersatlsfacnon scores] Ang bonus earned under this part will be pagable in cash, following the year
ending 31 March 2022. : .

The remaining 125% ofsalarg will be. measured against financial operational, real estaté and strategic ta'rgets measured overthe financial
year ending 31 March.2022. Any award undertms partwill be deferred into Big Yellow shares for three years (with vestlng subjectto '
continued employment]. . .

ine

LTIP awards will continue to be- granted to Executive Board Directors annuallg, over shares equal to 100% ofsalarg Following a review ofthe LTIP
in light of Big Yellow’s strategic initiatives and longer-term objectives, the performance metrics and conditions for awards intended to be granted
to Executive BoardDirectors in 2021 will be based on performance against three key metrics : Adjusted EPS, Relative TSR, and ESG targets.

As the performance targets have get tobe agreed by the Committee, the targets and weighting of each metric will be set outin the RNS |ssued

o |mmed|atelg following the grant. Atwo gear post- vesnngholdlng period will continue to applg
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Shareholding guidelines - in employmenl

The requirement to build and maintain a holding of at least 200% of salary in shares of the Compang will continue to apply and has been met bg allof

the Executive Board-Directors. If this guideline has not been met, then there is a requirement.to retam atleast 50%. ofshares vesting [net oftaxes]

indiscretionary share-based incentive plans.

Shareholdtng guidellnes post employment

Subject to shareholders approvmgthe new Policy at the 2021 AGM, a post cessation shareholdlnggundelme will be |ntroduced Going forward,

“Executive Directors will need to retain shares equal to 100% of the shareholding guideline (or the actual number of shares held against the guudellne
- if the guideline is not met at cessation) up until the second anniversary of cessation. : RN

Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Director base fees for.the year ending 31 March 2022 have been increased by 2% (in line with the general workforce increase)
10 £43,200. The increment for Committee Chairs and additional respon5|bllmes has also been increased by 2% to £10,506 for the gear ending
31 March 2022. These increases took effect from 1 Apnl 2021 : :

' Singlg total ﬂgulje of remunemuon (Audlted)

' The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration and breakdown for each Executive Director paid in the year ended 31 March 2021.

Year ended 31 March 2021

Fixed pay
Salany Taxable benefits' Pensions? Total fixed pay

. 2021 2020 o202 2020 2021 . 2020 2021 ' 2020

. £ £ . £ £ £ © £ £ £

Nicholas Vetch 358,?50 350,000 4,930 5,645 - 36,875 35,000 410,555 390,645
Jim Gibson 430,000 400,000 6,130 5,645 43,000 40,000 479,130 + 445,645
Adrian Lee 281,250 270,000 5,167 : 4,?3?, .28,125 27,000 314,542 301,737

* John Trotman . 318,750 300,000 1,620 2,199 31,875 30,000 352,245 332,198
Total - 1,398,750 1,320,000 17,847 18,226 139,875 . 132,000 1,556,472 1,470,226

Variable pay R Total pay
Annual bonus - cash "Annual bonus — deferred Long term incentives® Total variable pag

C 2021 2020- -7 202 2020 2021 - 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

. . i £ . £ £ £ £ £ £ . £ £ ) £
Nicholas Vetch 5?,894 32,550 437,891 202813 301,057 379,439 796,842 619,802 1,207,397 1,010,447

"+ Jim Gibson - 67,510 37200 ° 510,625 . 237500 336,225 416,288 914,360 690,988 1,393,490 1,136,633
Adrian Lee 44,156 - 25,110 333,984 160,313 244,717 308,418 . 622,857 493,841 937399 795,578
John Trotman '50,044. 27,900 378,516 178,125 256,432 308,418 684,992 © 514,443 1,037,237 846,642
. Total 219,604 122,760° 1,664, 015 783,751 1,138,431 1412563 3,019,051 ° ?,319,074 4,575,523 . 3,789,300 - °

(1) Taxable benefits comprise rnedlcal cover, permanent health insurance, life insurance and private fuelusage

(2) Nicholas Vetch and Jim Gibson recelve a3 cash supplement in lieu of their full pension contnbuuons Adrian Lée and John Trotman receive cash supplements in lieu of pension contributions to the extent

that they exceed £10,000.

{3) Thevalues shown in long-termincentives in the current year are the LTIP award gran(ed in 2017 which vested on 3 August 2020 to 83.6% of its maximum value and is valued using the share price on
that date of 1012p. The award granted for 2021 is 100% of salary for each Executive Director. For Jlm Gibson and John Trotman, the value also includes a gain on Sharesave Scheme awards which

vested on 31 March 2021:

- The: average salarg increase across the Group in the year was 3%

Cash Am\ual Bdnus Plan awards - cash (25% of sdlary maximum)

The policy of the Company is that the cash bonus paid to the Executive Board Directors is the same as the average of the bonus awards [as a % of
salary) paid to all the Group’s stores on achieving their targets during the course of the year. Itis animportant part ofthe Group’s culture that the
Executive team are rewarded with the same level of annual bonus as the average for alf staff.

In respect ofthe year Under review, and in line with the average bonus as a percentage of salary paid across the stores the Executive Board
" . Directors' received a cash bonus of 15.7% of salary (out of a maximum of 25% of salary). .

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report cnd Accounts 2021 v

101



‘102

Governomce
Remunercrtlon Report (continued)

Overview of the statt (and Executive Diiectéx) cash bonus scheme

The staff bonus scheme is designed, on a quarterly basis, to reward each store witha bonus ofup to 25% of their quarterly salary, made up ofthe
following four key elements setout below: :

Occupancv performance against target

Each store is set a quarterly target for occupancy growth. The welghtlng of the contribution ofthese metrics to the bonus varies based on store
occupancy, with higher occupied stores having a lower weighting towards their performance agarnst their occupancy target.

The bonus, awarded to each store increases as the. store moves further ahead of target. No bonus is awarded if the store fails to meet its target.
The individual store targets have not been drsclosed as itwould be impractical and commercjally sensitive to disclose the targets foreverg one
of our stores in this report. .

However following feedback received from our shareholders on- prevrous remuneration reports to increase the drsclosure around the annual bonus,

we have shown the average annual distribution of performance against target for each of the bonus measures across our stores and the

'correspondmg average pay-out as a percentage ofsalarg which drrectlg corresponds to the bonus percentage pag out forthe Executive
‘Board Drrectors

The average performance against the four key targets and the associated reward for the stores were as follows

1. Occupancy . . .
) 0to 10% ahead 100 20% 2010 30% 300 40% > 40% ahead

4-Performanceagainsnarget Ty ’ Beiowtarget of target ahead of target ahead of target ahead of target of target " Total
No of stores 31 1 -3 ’ 3 2 38 78
Average bonus paid ~ 0.0% . 10% 2.0% < 3.5% 5.5% 100% - 4.5%

Additionally, 32 stores were awarded bonuses for averaging 85% occupancy and above earning a total weighted average'bonus of 2.1%. The
weighted average bonus paid to stores for performance against occupancy targets is therefore 6.6% of salary for the year.

2. Proﬂtnblmv
Eachstoreis seta quarterly target for profltabllltg The weighting of the contribution of these metrics to the bonus varies based on store
occupancy, with higher occupied stores having a higher weighting towards their performance against their profnabrlrtg target.

The bonus awarded to each store increases as the store moves further ahead of target. No bonus is awarded if the store fails to meetits target
The performance distribution of the store's performance agalnst thelr individual targets are provided below

Otol%shead  1to2%shead  2t0 3% ahead >3% ahead .
Performance against target ’ i Below target of target of target . oftarget oftarget - Total
No of storés : : . 12 S 19° 15 20 - 78
Average bonus paid = B - 0.5% 23% 4.6% 6% . | 9.6% 4.8%

The weighted average bonus paid to stores for performance against profitability targets is therefore 4.8% of salary for the year. -

3. store audits

Stores receive abonus if they receive an audit score of in excess of 85% based onvisits carried out by the Group’s store complrance team. There
were 60 instances of stores recervrng an audit score of 85% and above across the year, leading to a weighted average bonus paid to the stores of
1 8% of salary. .

4. Cusiqmer satistaction
Stores are rewarded based on two elements of customer satisfaction, net promoter scores and individual customer service awards. The awards

‘based on net promoter scores are summarised in the table below.

NPSscore . . o ' . : S <75 575 Total

Noofstores : . L ' “16 T
Average bonus paid . : S ) : © 0% - 1.2% C 0%

The weighted average bonus paid tostores for performance againstnet promoter scores is therefore 0.7% ofsalarg for the year.

. The bonus pard to stores forindividual customer service awards amounted to afurther 1.8% of salary, which, combined with the net promoter

score,amounted to a werghted average bonus paid to the stores for customer satisfaction of 2.5% of salary.

Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Big Yellow‘ Group PLC



Summary o ’ S

The bonus received by the stores against their targets in the year is summarised.as follows.

Category Actual % welghtin.g for category Average % of salary bonus paid across stores

1. Occupancy : 6.6% ' 42.0%,

2. Profitability S 48% 306%

3. Store audits - 1.8% 11.5%

4. Customer satisfaction’ 2.5% 15.9%
15.7% ) : 100.0%

Total ’

Inline. wrth the Remuneratlon Pollcg an award of 15.7% of salary has therefore also been paid to the Executlve Board Directors forthe year, which

_equated to the followmg payments:

& Nichoias Vetch—£57,894 -
= JimGibson—-£67,510
8 Adrian Lee - £44,156
s JohnTrotman—£50,044

De!erred Annual Bonus Plan cwards de!erred shares (125% of salary maximum)

This is the third year of operation of the Group's deferred annual bonus plan. The Remuneration Committee set targets at the start ofthe financial
year across a broad range of financial and non-financial targets. Targets are either on a sliding scale or bnnarg The targets and the performance :

againstthem in the year is shown in the table below.

Below Target Target " Above Target

Maximum ) . .
Pay-out ~ s 0% © 50% . 100% Actual-performance Pay-out
1. Like-for-like dccupancy grovnh (ppts) E o . ’
Weight: 35% 0 010 . - 1.0-2.0 »2.0. 6.7 ppts ~100%
2. Average net rent persq'ft growth (%) . : . .
" Weight: 5% S <125 . 1.25-2 2-2.75 >2.75 L 11% 0%
3. Operating profit (£m} : : ' ' :
Weight: 15% : ' <777 ?772.78.2 . 782800 - >80.0. . £81.5m 100%
4. Staff turnover o ' . : o .
Weight: 5% >33 . 3332 3231 <31 20.5 100%
. . " Fail ' : Pass
" Pay-out ; 0% . ) 100% Actual performance Pay-out
- 5. Net promoter score ‘ . . : . . .
© Weight: 10% Based on move-ins and move-outs. Achieve an NPS score of 75, which  The Group'é NPS score in the yearwas 82.9. . 100% .
B represents exceptional levels of customer service.
. 6. Property Acquisitions L ) _
Weight: 10% Seek to acquire at least two sites for new stores in the year, which . * The Group acquired three high quality London 100%
’ complement the existing portfolio, and which are consistent with the sites during the year in Wapping, Staines,
Group's strategy and long-term plans. and Epsom.
2 Piannir_lg' ' . . .
Weight: 10% . ‘Obtain planmng consent on Klngs Cross and at least one otherofthe The Group obtained plannin'g on five 100%
Group's development sites during the year, consistent with the strategg development sites during the year, including ’
t0 continue to add high quality capacity to the Group’s existing open atKings Cross.
store portfolio (5% for Kings Cross and 5% for one other location). .
8.E56 R
" Reduce carbon intensity-by 5% or better year on year (2020: reduction - Carbon intensity reduced by 12% year 100%

"Weight: 10%
: achieved of 8%) (5% weighting).

The Group uses three external benchmarks in COP, FTSE 4 Good and

GRESB. The Committee will review performance against these

benchmarks in.determining the pay-out [5% vesting]:

on year.
Our external benchmarklng performance has

- exceeded expectations: we have been

awarded an A- from CDP; and have been rated
a ‘Leader’ for CDPs Supplier Engagement
Rating (SER), a first for us. We have

maintained our performance with GRESBand |
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Atthe outset of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Board agreed to supportour customers by deferring the normal rent increases for the first four months
of the financial year. Additionally, the Group provided assistance discounts to many of our customers, in particular small businesses, who were
struggling for cash flow during the initial lockdown. Given the impact of these decisions in reducing the average netrent per sq ftachieved over the
year, the Committee agreed toincrease the welghung on the like-for-like occupancy growth (from 25% to 35% of potential) and reduce the weighting
on the net rent metric.(from 15% to 5%)s0as not to penalise management for acting in the interests of our customers. Given the relationship of .
these two metrics to revenue (which combined for the year ended 31 March 2021 to produce like-for like store revenue growth of 4.9% over the
year, which was well ahead of budget), the Committee has decided to simplify the approach in respect of the year endmg 31 March 2022 bgjust
: focussmgon revenue rather than measurmgnts principal consmuent drivers of occupancy and netrent.

'Summurv table
The performance agamst each target, andits conmbunon to the deferred bonus payable is summansed in the table below:

Contributionto

o . . . . plan vesting
Target L X % achieved Weighting ' L (%)
Occupancy growth s : ' o . . .- - 100% 35% 35%
Average net rent growth ' ) . - L 0% . 5% . 0%
Operating profit ; : L ‘ ' ©100% " 15% 15%
Staff turnover o ' A . - 100% 5% 5%
Net promoter score . N - ‘ . . 100% . 10% | 10%
Property acquisitions o - _— . w0% " 10% 10% -
Planning consents : . . - . ' 005 . 0% - o10%
ESG S . R . 100% Co. 10% 10%
Total’ Lo : . ' 100% 95%

" The above performance assessment of 35% translates into the following awards for each of the Executive Board Directors:

Director. ’ oo R : L ' . o E Value of award
Nicholas Vetch ' .- ' . £437891
JmGibson . : ' ' R . : £510,625
Adrian Lee ‘ o - C : . £333,984
John Trotman ' ‘ o : R £378.516

. The number ofshares will be calculated bg reference to the closmg share price on the date of grant, which willbe afterthe Compang ] Prellmmarg
Announcernent in May 2021. The awards will vest three years after the date of grant of each.award.

Long Term !ncentive Plan (“LTIP”) awurds (Audited) ) . . .
The awards granted under the LTIP are subject to performance conditions to be met over a performance penod of three gears Thereis no retesting
of performance conditions and, if they are not satisfied, the awards will lapse. . .

The performance conditions applicable to the LTIP which vested in the year, which relate to EPS and TSR, are set out below. The Committee
‘assessed the extent to which the EPS and TSR performance condition has been satisfied for the 2017 award which vested in 2020, with the
following results:

LTIP value for meeting

Per »
Threshald Per Per

Conditi Weighting - ired Requlred - performance (% salary) Performance achieved Vesting %

&' S hl
Adjustedeps  70% Adjusted EPS growth ofRPI Adjusted EPS growth of RPt  25% to 100% ) " 9.2%adjusted EPS growth,  76.6%
growth . +3% perannum + 8% perannum . compared to 5.77% :
S - (RP1+3%), and 10.77%
- ' L . (RP! plus 8%).
+° Relative TSR -30% " Median of comparator Upper quartileofthe - 25%to 100% . Soutofdlincomparator ° 100%
S group of real estate comparator group ) . ."group of companies in the .
. ) companies . ) ' : . . . FTSEReal Estate Index

Total 100% ' : . 83.6%
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The vesting of the 2017 LTIP award in 2020; equated to the followmgvalue for the Executive Board Directors based on the share price at the date
of vesting: . . ) ' ] :

: " oL . . - Gain attributable to share pnce
Director . ‘Shares Awarded  Shares Vested (based on 83.6% vesting) * Value at Vesting appreciation®

Nicholas Vetch 35,588 297249 - ) £301,05? S n/a

JimGibson . . 39,053 32,645 ' £330,369 . £39,576
Adrian Lee | - 28,928 24,181 . | f44217 - £23,966
John Trotman 28,928 24,181 ¢ " £244717 £29,330

*Calculated by taking the difference between the share price atvesting and share price atexercise and multiplying by the number of shares which vested.

I.'I'IP awards granted in year ended 31 March 2021 (Audited)

The table below sets out the details of the long-termiincentive awards grantedin the year ended 31 March 2021 where vesnng wili be determined
accordlngto the achievement of performance conditions that will be tested in future reporting periods.

P ge of award

Lo . "Awards as a " Facevalue vesting at threshold  of face valuethat ~  Performance Period  Performance
Director . Award Type % of salary . ofaward!" performance could vest end date . conditions
Nicholas Vetch . - £375,000 o : '

Jim Gibson - Annual cgcle.df . £440,000 ) : . . . Adjusted EPS
————— awardsoverail _ 100%ofsalary ~ —_—————— 25% 100% . S August 2023 growth and
Adrantee LEFT costoptions o ———EZSS’OOO. o o ' relative TSR

John Trotman  ~ , - £325,000 )

(1) The face value of the award is calculated u's.ing the average share price three days prior to the grant date of 5 August 2020 (average share price of 1015 pence).

Following a review of the LTIP performance conditions, and difﬁeultg in setting fobust long-term earnings targets in light of Covid-19, the
Committee made a minor change in respect of the 2020 awards. Rather than a 70:30 EPS:TSR weighting, the targets were rewerghted 10 30:70
EPS:TSR for the 2020 awards. No changes were made to the EPS and TSR target ranges The performance condmons applicable to the awards .
granted in August 2020 are setout below:

LTIP value for meeting

. Threshold Performance  Maximum Performance  threshold and max :
Condition - Weighting required - Required * " performance (% salary)  Basis for measurement

Relative TSR 70% Median of comparator  Upper quartile of the  25% to 100% . The average of the Group's closing mid- market share price
group of real estate comparator group . over the three months preceding the start of the performance
companies ' : : o period and preceding the end of the performance period w:II
) ) ) be used, including dividends re-invested. . .
AdjustedEPS  30% - Adjusted EPSgrowth . Adjusted EPSgrowth  25% to 100% - The adjusted EPS figure reported in the audited results of the’
- of RPI+3% perannum  of RPI+8% per annum Group for the last complete financial year endmg before(he

. start of the performance period and the last complete
financial year ending before the end of the performance
period will be used.

— ; y
Between threshold and maximum performance, vesting will take place on a straight-line basis.

Sharesuve Scheme ' . ; ‘ ' . ’ : .

" The Group’s Sharesave Scheme is open to all UK employees [|nc|ud|ng Executive Board Directors) with a minimum of six months’ service and meets
UK HMRC requirements, thus giving all eligible employees the opportunity to acquire shares in the Company in a tax efficient manner. All of the
Executive Board Directors participated in the scheme during the financial year. The details of the Sharesave scheme,opnons are shown on page 102.

Pension entitlements

The Company pays pension contributions into the Executive Board Directors’ pérsonal pension plans or makes a cash contribution in lieu of
" pension contributions. Theg do not'participate in any defined benefit scheme. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Compang contribution.was
10% of salarg for the Executive Board Directors. This has been reduced to 6% of salary from 1 April 2021.

Payments to past Directors (Audited)

No payments of money or any other assets were made to any former Director ofthe Compang in the financial gear ended 31 March 2021 (2020
fo payments). :
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) Pavments on loss of office (Audited)

- Julia Hailes stepped down from the Board on 14 January 2021. She received a payment of £13, 163inrespectof her 3 month notice period.
No payments were made to Julia (or ang other Dlrector] in respect ofloss of office during the financial year ended 31 March 2021 (2020:
- nopayments). _ S .

Non-Executive Directors (Audited)
. The table below setsout the smgle total flgure of remuneratlon and breakdown foreach.Non- Executlve Dlrector paidin the year ended 31 March 2021.

- 2021 - 2020 -
. ] ) £ L f
- Richard Cotton S ‘ . ' R " ss.129 51,100
Georgina Harvey . o o R : ' 17,9687 51,100
Steve Johnson - ST o : : . 144528 . 41100
Anna Keay - ' : : o ‘ . .+ 52,263 51,100
Vince Niblett - C . _ © 52,263 51,100
Julia Hailes . : : : o : : , 54,282 4,258
Laela Pakpour Tabrizi : - : . ' o : L 31,763 -
Heather Savory R . ) ) : 4388° . -
Total o ' o - 286,508 249,758

(1) from appoin(wment on 1'March 2020

‘(2)  until retirement from the Board on 5 August 2020

(3) until stepping down from the Board on 14 January 2021
(4) from appointment on 1 July 2020 R

(5) from appointmenton 1 March 2021~

Non-Executive Directors received no taxable benefits for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Statement of Directors’ shareholding (Audited)

The Executive Board Directors are required to build and majntain a holding of two times base salary. These réquirements have been met by all
Executive Board Directors throughout the year. Non- Executive Directors are not subject to a shareholding requirement. Details of the Dlrectors
interests in shares are set out below (allinterests are beneficial interests).

The table below shows, in relation to each Director, the total number of shares and share bptions in which théy have an interest at 31 March 2021:

Share C . - - .

ownership Share. "~ Holding as : LTIP awards . . . Qptions ~

quirer i hip. . of subject to - Deferred . Unexercised exercised in .

(multiple of requi March 2021 Beneficially perf bonus plan u ised . Sh ! the fl ial
Executive Director. salary) met salary owned shares conditions awards LTIP options options . year
Nicholas Vetch 2x Yes 201x 6,753,458 103,376 51,210 29,749 2,400 -
Jim Gibson 2x . Yes - Bix 2,414.939 118,236 - 572557 ) - 3,528 . 32,645
Adrian Lee Co2x Yes . 34x 874,735 o 80,047 . 40,183 ) - 2,400 . 24,181
John Trotman o Yes 8x 236,123 87,927 42,925, s 4,657 24,181 °

Non-Exécutive,Dlrectoxs’ shureholdlngs (Audited)

. ' . : - ' ’ : Beneficially
Non-Executive ) : : ) . . owned shares
Richard Cotton ' T ' : L : 96,317
Vince Niblett ' S - ; _— 3,000

AhnaKeag o e e ' : . -
Laela Pakpour Tabrizi . ] L . o . - A -

Heather Savory Co : ) . ) : : . : -
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' Directors’ share awards (Audited)

To provrde further context on the shareholding of the Execunve Board Directors, options in respect of grdinary shares for Directors who servedin
the year are as below: .

‘No.of No. of
shares shares .
under under Market L
optionat Granted Exercised Lapsed option at o price at Date from
. Date option 31 March . during the during the .during the 31 March  Exercise date of which first .
Name granted Scheme 2020 year - year year 2021 price exercise exercisable Expiry Date
Nicholas Vetch -3 August 2017 . e ! 35588 - - (5.839) 29,749 ailp - - 3August2020. " 2August2027
19 July 2018 e 32,525 - - - 32,525 nilp - 19 July 2021 18 July 2028
11 March 2019 SAYE 2,400 - - - 2,400 743.9p" - 1April 2022 1 October 2022,
. 23May2019 08P . 30519 - - - 30,519 ailp - 23 May 2022 " 22May2029
19 July 2019 Lme 33,305 - - - 33,905 nil p - ¢ 19July 2622 18 July 2029
15 June 2020 osp - 20,691 = - 20,691 nilp - 15 Juné 2023, 14 June 2030
S August 2020 ) e - 36,946 . - - - 36,946 nilp - . S August 2023 ' 4 August 2030+
Jim Gibson 3 August.2017 e 39,053 - (32,645) (6.408) - nilp 1,133p 3 August 2020 2 August 2027 .
12 March 2018 SAYE . 1,332 - - - 1,332 675.4p - - 31 March 2021 10ctober 2021
19 July 2018 e " 36,138 - - - 36,138 . il p - 19 July 2021 . 18 July2028
11 March 2019 SAYE 1,200 - - - 1,200 749.9p - 1 April 2022 - 1'0ctober 2022
. 23May2019 * P 33,910 . - - - 33,910 nilp - 23 May 2022 22 May 2029
19 ity 2019 P 3878 - - - 38,748 nilp - 19 July 2022 18 July 2029
15 June 2020 Gep - 23,647 - - 23,607 " nilp - 15 June 2023 14 June 2030
S August 2020 e - 43,350 - - 43,350 “oilp . - S August 2023 4 August 2030
1 March 202 SAYE - ' ) §95 N - " 996 803.2p - . L April 2024 1 October 2024
. Adrian Loe 3 Augusi 2017 (TP 28,928 = (24,181) (4,74?) .- oilp 1,i 11p 3 August 2020 2 August 2027
19'July 2018 Lmp 25,813 - - - 25,813 nilp - 19 July 2021 18-July 2028
11 March 2019 SAYE 2,400 - - - 2,400 298p - 1 April 2022 1 October 2022
23 May 2018 08P 24,221 - - = 2221 nilp - 23 May 2022 22 May 2029
19 July 2019 e 26,155 - - - 26,155 nilp - 19 July 2022 18 July 2029
15 June 2020 8P - 15,962 - z 15,962 nilp - 15 June 2023 14 June 2030
. S August 2020 LTIP - 28,079 ' - - 28,079 ailp - S August 2023 | 4 August 2030
- John Trotman 3 August 2017 " mp 28,928 - - {24,181) (4,747) - nilp ' 1,133p 3 August 2020 2 August 2027
" 12 March 2018 SAYE 2,665 B - - 2665 - 675.4p - 1 April 2021 1 October 2021
19 July 2018 [\ ‘é6,846 . - - - 26;84_6 nilp . - 19 July 2021 18 July 2028
23 Mag 2019 bep 25,190 - - - 25,190 . nilp - 23 May 2022 22 May 2029
18 July 2018 P 29,061 - - - 29,061 nilp - 19 July2022 . 18 July 2029
15 June 2020 osp - 17,235 - - - 12735 nilp - '15 June 2023 14 June 2030
S August 2020 Lme - 32,020 - - 32,020 nilp - 5 Algust 2023 4 August 2030
1 March 2021 SAYE - 1,992 - - 1982 903.2p - 1 Aprit 2024 1 October 2024

A proportion of the LTIP awards that were exercised in the year by the Jim Gibson, Adrian Lee and John Trotman were delivered through CSOP -

approved options. Theg each exercised an option over 3 242 approved shares. The value delivered through these approved options was

: surrendered in the unapproved LTIPs above
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Pexlormance cnd pay -

- The graph befow shows the Group’s performance, measured by TSR, compared with the performance of the FTSE All Share Real Estate Index and the"
FTSE All Share Index for the period since flotation. The FTSE All Share Real Estate Index is used for the assessment of the Company's LTIP.

\

'

CEO Remunezation _ . ) )
The table below sets out the details of remuneration of the CEQ over the past ten financial years.

Long term lhcemnve

. CEO single figure of- : © : Annual bt;nus (cash) . Annual bonus.(deferred]- - weighted average vesting rates against
total remuneration . pay out % against maximum of ' pay out % against maximum of maximum opponunhy

Year ’ (£) 25% of salary * . o 125% of salary
2021 ’ 1,393,490 62.8% (15.7% of salary) , 95% (118.75% of salary) ’ o 836% .
2020 1,136,633 ’ 3724 (9.3% of salary] 47.5% (59.4% of salary) , _ 100% °
2019 - 1,182,482 40.8% (10:2% of salary)’ . 81.875% [‘102.3% of salary) . C ) 100%
2018 . 2,178,066 © . 516%(129%ofsalary) n/a o 95%
2007 ) . 850,619 . . 40% (10% of salary) . : n/a 100%
2016 © oesgul . © 7 48% (12% of salary) S T . 100%
2015 . 1,756,290 . 50%(12.5% of salary) ' n/a N ' 98%
2014 ) 536,262 _ . 40% 10% of salary) I nfa S 53%
2013 335891 40% (10%of salary) © - ' na 0%
2012 1,400,570 - - - " 40% (10% of salary) A . na . " g9%

The single figure of remuneration for 2018, 2015 and 2012 are higher than in other gears dueto the vestlng of the three gear Long Term Bohus
Performance Plan in those years delivering a reward of £1,343,995 [93 33% vestmg] £945,750 (97% vesting) and £900,000 [90%vestlng]
respectively for the three year period ended in that year.
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Percenlage change in the Director remuneration

The table below compares the percentage change in each Director’s annual remuneration (i.e. salary/fees, benefits, and annual bonus) with the
remuneration of Big Yellow Group emplogees ' : ‘ ’

% Change from 2019/2020 to 2020/2021

B Salary/Fee " ‘Benefits ‘Bonus
Nicholas Vetch : . o o ‘ } 5% (13%) 8% .
Jim Gibson L ' T 1 - 81%
Adrian Lee . o . . : . . 4% 9% 76%
John Trotman ) » ) ' ' . 6% (26%) 79%
‘Richard Cotton - . ’ ' - o ' . 16% . na 7 nha
Georgina Harvey . ‘ - o ©n/a : n/a : n/a
Steve Johnson - L . L ' _ na - n/a < n/a
Anna Keay . ) T . : 2% - o " n/a
'Vince Nibjett o - . . o 2% n/a n/a
Julia Hailes . - ' S T e n/a n/a
Laela Pakpour Tabrizi - o o S " ola S VR n/a
Heather Savory ' . . ) . . ’ ’ T n/a . n/a n/a
Average employees ' . : . . © 3% 2% T 4%

Georgina Harvey, Steve Johnson Julia Hailes, Laela PakpourTabruzn and Heather Savory did not serve on the Board for the full fmancnal gear and
hence have been shown as “n/a”in the salary/fee column ofthls table. " :
The increase in Rlchard Cotton's feé is due to him taking on an additional Committee Cha|rmansh|p durlngthe gear

N

- CEO pay ratio

* The data shows how the CEO's single figure remuneration for the year.ended 31 March 2021 (as taken from-the single figure remuneration table)
compares to equivalent single figure.remuneration for full-time equwalent UK emplogees ona Group basis, ranked at the 25th, SOth and ?Sth
percentile.

" 25th percentile Medianpay  75th percentile

Year . LT ) ) ' . : . : Method pay ratio ratlo pay ratio
2021 i : } L e Option A 58101 47101 30t01
2020 Option A S0tol 42101 28101

No components of pay and benefits have been omitted for the purpose of the above calculations. Option A was selected given that this method of
calculation was considered to bethe robust approach in respect of gathering the requrred data. The underlglng quartiles for salarg andtotal
remuneratlon numbers for.full-time equwalent UK emplogees are set out below:

Salary . ) Tota! pay and benefits .
Year s < . 25th %tile Median 75th Ltile - 25th %tile " Median - 75th %tile
2021 ' EZQ,QBZ . £24,190 £34,008 £24,109 | £29,406 £46,162

" 2020 . ) ) £20,4395 - £24,035 £35,330 £22,555 £27232 ' . £40,975

Statement of consideration of emplovinent conditions elsewhere in the Group

The Committee reviews the reward and retention of the'whole employee population periodically throughout the gearto ensure thatitcan attract
and retain toptalent Consideration is given to the general basic salary increase, remuneration arrangements and employment conditions.
Furthermore the'annual cash bonus awarded to Executive Board Directors is dlrectlg linked to the bonuses awarded to all staff.

The Directors are invited to be present at this review of the proposals for salary increase for the employee population generally and onanyother -

changes to remuneration policy within the'Company. The information presented at this review is taken into conisideration when setting the pay

* levels of the executive population. Additionally, the Committee has guidelines for the grant of all LTIP awards across the Company and
responsibility for approving the total annual bonus cost of the Company. The Company does not invite employees to comment on the remuneratlon

ofDlrectors :

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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~Remuneration Report continued

Relative importance of spend on pay

) The graph below sets out the relative importance of spend on payin the gear ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 compared with other

disbursements fram praofit, being the distributions to shareholders and retained earnings [comprehensive gain for the year less dividends).

) ‘Gender and ethnlcitv pay ) )
-The Group has. reported onits gender pag gap for April 2020. The full reportcan be found on our investor relations website http: //corporate

bigyellow.co.uk/investors.aspx. The Group’s mean gender pay gap was 26% (2019: 28%), with a median gap of 10% (2019: 10%). Excluding . .
Executive Board Directors (three of whom were founders of the business), the mean gender pay gap falls to 10% {2019: 13%) with a median gap of
8% (2019: 9%). All staffare paidequally accordmgto;ob role. :

Itis pleasing to see that our Mean Gender Pay Gap has decreased t0 26% from 28% in April 2019 This is caused in part by the delayed pay increases
to our Executive Directors; if their pay award had increased in April 2020 then the mean Pay Gap would have been 27%. This reducnon from 28%. was
due to two new female senior managers being appomted to positions previously occupied by males

The Group has also analysed its ethnicity pay for April 2020. The Group’s mean ethnicity pay gap was 7%, witha medlan gap of 9%, Excluding
Executive Board Directors, the mean ethnicity pay gap increases to 18% with a median gap of 8%. All staffare paid equally according to job role.

We believe that diversity and inclusion are key to a successful and sustainable business and we are committed to creating a culture where all team
members can be themselves, feel empowered to succeed and deliver acustomer expe’rience thatis second to none. We encourage and enable all
employees, regardless of their gender, race, background, or any other characteristics, to reach their full potential as we believe that havmga
diverse workforce with fair representatlon is strategically important and generates value to our stakeholders.

We have continued our focus on diversity and inclusion and over the Iast yearwe have-

Formed an Inclussvng and Diversity Commlttee which has initially focussed on gender and ethnlcrtg,
Reviewed our job advertlsements to remove any gender bias;
Focussed on attracting more female candidates via our website and social media posts;

-Useda specialist recruitment consultancy who specmcallg represents female: applrcants and other duverse groups, te support the recruitment
" ofasenior management position; .

" Invested in e-learning for our stores, with 20% more females taking upthrs trammgthan males;

Encouraged more women to take partin our management development programmes. 57% of Sales Advnsor pamupants who are currently -
completing the programme are female (50% in 2020); '

Increased our proportion of female Store Managers from 30% in March 2020 to 33% in March.2021;
Increased our proportion of female Store Managers and Assistant ‘Store Managers from 38%in 2020 to 40%in March 2021;and

Increased our proportion of female Non-Executive Directors from 50% in March 2020 to 60%in March 2021.
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We have made significant progress in relation to inclusion and diversity initiatives over the last 12 months and will continue to challenge our -
thinking around how we recruit new skills and manage and develop éxisting talent going forward. This will include:

®  Introducing a Working From Home Policy within qur head office, eriablrngéll team members to achieve a better work life balance;
= Reviewing our job advertisements, benefits and worklng practices so that they have a greater appeal to female applicants, based upon
. feedback from new team members :
= Holding regular meetlngs between line managers and the People and Deve!opment Team to review Inc|usron and Dlversrtg and |dent|fg on-going
’ - opportunities forimprovement across the different areas of the business; .
®  Furtherincreasing e-learning opportunities to include vrdeo e- Iearnlng relating to wellbemgfor parents and womenin Ieadershlp, and
L] Introducmga Menopause Pollcg to support women who are expenencmgthe impact of the menopause.

In conclusion, whilst we would like to have seen a greater | reduction in our Gender Pag Gap, we are making progress in |mprovmgthe diversity of our
" teadership and operational management team and we can therefore expect the further changes we have putin place to result in a reduction of the
pay gap over time. :

We will therefore continue to challenge our own preconceptions ofhow we work and established ways ofthlnkmg We consnderthrs as essential i in
enablirig us to understand what.our team members and customers want and expect from us, thereby being able to better represent the
communities that we serve .

Advisers to the Remuneration 'Commme_e

In undertaking its responsibilities, the Committee seeks indeperident external advice as necessérg FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP have been
advisers to the Committee since 2017, The Committee is comfortable that the FIT team provides independent remuneration advice to the
Committee and does not have any other connections with Big Yellow thatmay impair their mdependence FITis a founding member and signatory of
the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consultants, details of which can be found at www.remunerationconsultantsgroup.com.

During the year, FIT provided indeper1dent advice on a wide range of remuneration matters including the proposed_.new Remuneration Policy. FIT
provides no other services to the:Company. The fees paid to FITin respect of work carried out for the year under review were £27,000 (ex VAT).

Approval
This polrcg report was approved by the Board of Drrectors on 24 Mag 2021 and sngned onits behalf by

Richard Cotton
Remuneration Committee Chair

N
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Audit Committee Report

Committee members and cxtteriddné:e _

N;meer V

. © of meetings
Member . attended
Vince Niblett - Chair 000 .
Richard Cotton — Member ' OOO
Julia Hailes—Member. A OOO
Georgina Harvey - Member ‘ . O00
Steve Johnson - Member OO0
Anna Keay - Member . OOO
Laela Pakpour Tabrizi— Member OOO
HeatherSavorg—Member 00O -

O attended
O ssem -

O notapplicable
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Introductlon

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board from the Non- Executlve
Directors of the Company. The Audit Committee’s terms of reference .
include all matters indicated by Disclosure and Transparency Rule 7.1,
the UK Corporate Governance Code, and the new FRC ethical standard.
The terms of reference are considered annually by the Audit Committee
and are then.referred to.the Board for approval. The terms of reference
are available on the Company’s website. https:/corporate. buggellow
co. uk/unvestors/corporate governance

The Audit Committee is cesponsuble for:

. monitoririgth;e integrity of the financial statements of the Group
and any formal announcements relating to the Group’s financial
performance and reviewing significant financial reporting '
Judgementscontalnedtherem )

® reviewing the Group's internal ‘financial contrpls and the Group’s

internal control and risk management systems, including
consideration of the need for an internal audit function;

®  making recommendations to the Board, for a resolution ta be put
to the shareholders for.their approval in general'meetings, on the

_appointment of the external auditor, and the approval of the

remuneration and terms.of engagement of the external auditor;

® ' reviewing and monitoring the-externalauditor’s independence and .
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, takinginto
consideration'relevant UK professmnal and regulatorg
reqmremems and .

- ®  ensuring the external auditor only provudes those services

permitted by the Ethical Standard of the FRC.

_ The Audit Cormittee is required to repartits findings to the Board,

|dent|fgmg any matters on which it considers that action or
improvement is needed, and make recommendauons on the steps
to'be taken. -

This year the Committee has continued to focus on the narrative

‘reporting-and corporate governance disclosures'in the Annual Report.

The.Committee-was asked by the Board to review the statement by
the Directors that the Annual Report presents a fair, balanced, and
understandable view of the Group’s performance, strategy, and
business model. The Committee also reviewed the  Group’s going
concern and viability statements.
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Commiitee members

* All Audit Committee members are expected tobe financially l|terate
Furthermore, the Audit Committee structure requires the inclusion of
one financially qualified member (as recognised by the Consultative -
Committee of Accountancy Bodies). Curreritly Vince Niblett, as a Fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales fulfils
this requirement. ’

The Group provides an induction programme for new Audit Committee
members and ongoing training to enable all of the Committee members
to carry out their duties. The induction programme covers the role of
the Audit Committee, its terms of reference and expected time
commitment by members and an overview of the Group's business,
including the main business and financial dynamics and risks. New

- Committee members also meet some of the Group's staff. Ongoing

training includes attendance at formal conferences internal compang

_seminars and briefings by external adwsers

Meetings

" The Audit Committee is reqmred to meet three times per gear and has
an agenda linked to events in'the Group's financial calendar. The agenda
is predominantly cyclical and is-therefore approved by the Audit -
Committee Chairman on behalf of his fellow members. Each Audit

- Committee member has the right to require reports on matters of
mterest in addition to the cyclicalitems.

The Audit Committee invites the Chief Executive, Chlef Financial Officer,
Financial Controller, and senior representatives of the external auditor

' .10 attend its meetings infull, although it reserves the right to request )
any of these individuals to withdraw. The Committee meets as required

.with the external auditor without the Executive Board Directors or
senior management present. Other senior management are invited to
present such reports as are required forthe Committee to discharge
its dutles

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and A,ccour}ts 2021

Overview of the actions taken by the Audit Committee
to discharge its duties

. Since the begmnlng of the financial year the Audit Committee has

. revuewed published financial information mcludmgthe year
end results, Annual Report, half year results and the Ouarterlg
Trading Statements - :

& consideredwhether the Annual Report prowdes a fair, balanced,
and understandable view of the Group's performance, strategy,
and business model;

= assessedand concluded on the Group's Vlabl|ltg statementand
the going concern assessment for the annual and halfgearlg
financial statements;

‘@ considered the butput from the Group- -wide process used to

identify, evaluate, and mitigate risks;
= - reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls and

disclosures made in the annual report and financial statements on

this matter;

® reviewed and agreed the scope of the audit work to be undertaken

" by the external auditor;

" agreedthe fees to be paid to the external auditor for their audit of
the financial statements and half- yearlyreport;

" considered and agreed the approach of performing Directors’
valuations of investment properties for the half-year report;

® undertaken an assessment of the qualification, expertise and -
resources, and independence of the-external auditor and the
effectiveness of the audit process;

' considered the audit partner and audit firm rotation including

meeting and approvmgthe proposed new audit partner for the
2022 audit; .

®  undertakenan evaluatio_n of the performance of the external
auditor and assessed their effectiveness;

*  held discussions with the auditors on key judgements;

= considered the need for an internal audit funct’ion‘ ‘

" considered the FRC ethical standard governmg non-audit services
and audit committees;

" ® . reviewed the arrangements for“whistleblowing“bg employees to

~ensure thatthere is a consistent policy in the Group to enable
. employees to voice concerns particularlyin respect of possible
financial reporting improprieties. A whistleblowing policy is
included in the employee handbook and there is an external
whistleblowing monitoring service; :

®  met the Group’s external valuers and considered their competence .

and independence; )
®  metthe Group’s Store Compliance Manager;

"m  reviewed the Audit Committee’s Report; and

= ‘reviewed its own effectiveness.
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Audit Committee Report continuew

Financial reporting and significant financial judgements

The Committee reviews all financial information published by the
Group in year end and half-year financial statements, including the
presentation and disclosure of the financial information. It also
considers the appropriateness of the accounting policies adopted

" by the Group and the accounting judgements made by management
in the preparation of the financial information.

The Committee has considered whether the Annual Report for the year
ended 31 March 2021 provides a fair, balanced and understandable
view of the Group's performance, strategy and business model and
whether it provides the necessary information to enable sharehalders

"and prospective shareholders to assess the Group's perforniance,

" strategy and business model. The Committee is satisfied that the
Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 provides a fair,
balanced, and understandable view and includes the necessary

" information as set out above. The Committee has confirmed this to the
Board, whose statement is included in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities on page 121.

The Committee focuses on matters it considers important in their.
" impacton the reported results of the Group, and on matters where
there is a.high degree of complexity and/or judgement.

The key area of judgement that the Committee focuses on at the
reporting date is the valuation of the investment property portfolio.
This is carried out by independent external valuers, but by its nature it
‘is subjective, with significant judgement applied to the valuation, -
particularly given the lack of transactional evidence for prime self
storage assets. The Chairman of the Committee met the external
valuers to discuss the valuations, review the kegjudgements and
discussed whether there were any disagreements with management.
This year the Committee reviewed and challenged the valuers onthe
cap rates, rental growth assumptions and stabilised occupancy levels,
to agree on the appropriateness of the assumptions adopted. The
_Committee also challenged the valuers and satisfied itself on their
independence, their quality control processes (including peer partner
review) and qualifications to carry out the valuations. Management
also have processes in place to review the external valuations. In
addition, the external auditors use valuation specialists to review the
valuations and report the:rfmdmgs and conclusions to the
Audit Committee.

The Committee has also considered anumber ofotherjudgements
made by management in the preparation of the financial statements.
There have been no business combinations in the year. The Committee

. has concluded that there are'not significant levels of judgements
involved, other than the valuation described above.

There has been no change to the other key judgement included in the
financial statements, which is that the Group’s stores should be.
accounted for as Investment Property.

Managementhave reported to the Audit Committee that they are
satisfied that they are not aware of any material misstatements in the
financial statements. The external auditors confirmed in their report to

" the Audit Committee that they had not found any material

misstatements during their audit work.

Based on the above, the Committee concluded that the financial
statements appropriately apply the key estimates and critical *
judgements, in respect of the disclosures and the amounts reported. -
The Committee also concluded that the annual report and financial
statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced, and understandable
and provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company’s performance, bysiness model énd-strategg.

Exlen{ul auditor

The Audit Committee is responsible forthe development
|mplementat|on and monitoring of the Group’s policy on external audit.

~The policy assigns oversight responsibility for monitoring the

independence, objectivity, and compliance with ethical and regulatory
requirements to the Audit Committee, and day-to-day responsibility to .

‘the Chief Financial Officer. The policy states that the external auditor is

jointly responsible to the Board and the Audit Committee and that the
Audit Committee is the primary contact.

To fulfilits reéponsibilitg 'regardingthe independence of the external
auditor, the Audit Committee reviewed: .

= the external auditor’s plan for the current year, noting the role of
-the senior statutory audit partner, who signs the audit reportand |
who, in accordance with professional rules, has not held office for
more than five years, and any changes in the key audit staff;

" the arrangements for day-to-day management of the audit
relationship; :

® areportfrom the external audnor describing their arrangements
to identify, report and manage any conflicts of interest; and

® -the overall extent of non-audit services provuded by the external
auditor, in addition to its case-by- -case approval of the position of
non-audit services by the external auditor.

Audit rotation

During 2016 following a robust tendér process, the Committee
appointed KPMG LLP as auditors. As part of the tender process, the
Committee reviewed KPMG’s proposals for the audit and determined
that they had an appropriate planin place to carryout an effective
audit. KPMG confirmed to the Committee that it maintained appropriate

_internal safeguards to ensure its independence and objectivity. Steve

Masters is the current audit partner and has been the signatory to the,
Group's financial statements since 2018.

The Companyis in compliance with the requirements of the Statutory
Audit Services for Large Companies Market Investigation (Mandatory
Use of Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 2014 and the Code.
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Anmml auditor assessment . 4 ‘Risk management and internal control

The Audit Committee has adopted a formal framework in its review of The Committee and the Board reviewed the internal control processes
the effectiveness of the external audit process and audit qualltg which  .of the business and the Group's risk register during the year. The risks -+
. include the following areas: . . and uncertainties facing the Group, and its internal control processes

- . . * aré considered in the Strategic Report on page 42.
L] thearrangementsforensurlngthe external auditor’s independence g P pag

] and objectivity;
®  the senior statutory auditor and the audit team;
® the external auditor’s fulfilment oftlie agreed audit plan and .
variations from the plan; .
® ' the quality of the formal audit report to shareholders; )

Internal audit

The Committee has considered the Board's view that, given the
relatively straightforward nature of the Group’s business and the
control environment in place, no formalinternal audit function is
required. The Group has a store compliance team, which effectively

® theeffectiveness of the external audit process, taking into carriés out an internal audit role for the Gfoup’s stares, visiting each
consideration relevant UK professional and regulatory store twice a year. This provides the Committee comfort over the store
requirements; . related aspects of the Group's business. The Committee meets with the

~®  therobustness and perceptiveness of the auditor in his handling of Store Compliance Manager as required, and at least once ayear.

" the key accounting and audit judgements; and :

= thecontent of the external auditor’s comments on control
improvement recommendations.

Additionally, on a regular cycle, the Board appoints external
- consultants to assess specific business areas of risk and provide a
report to the Board and the Committee on this area. The cycles covered

Regard is paid to the nature of, and remuneration received, for other by this activity include construction expenditure, treasury, taxation,
services provided by KPMG LLP to the Group and, inter alia, and facilities management. This gives the Committee comfort over the
confirmation is sought from them that the fee payable for the annual controls over key business cycles within the Company. :

audltrsadequatetoenablethemtoperformthelrobllgatlons|n . L Ny o ' R '

With the combination of the store internal audit and the'external
accordance with the scope of the audit. The only non-audit service ] . o . . :

assessment of the key business cycles, the Committee considers that
provided is the auditors’ review of the half year report. .

this provides a robust internal audit assessment for the Group:

Non-audit work Overview

The Group’s policyon external audit sets out the categories of

non -audit services which the external auditor will and will not be
allowed to provide to the Group, including those that are pre- approved
by the Audit Committee and those which require specific approval -
before they are contracted for, subject to de minimis levels. The Group's

As a result of its work during the year, the Audit Committee

has concluded thatit has acted in accordance with its terms of
reference and has ensured the independence and objectlvntg
of the external auditor. -

non-audit palicy reflects the Ethical Standard on Non-Audit Services ' The Chairman of the Audit Committee will be available at the . o
which came into effect on 15 March 2020. The Committee's policy is Annual General Meeting to answer any questions about the work
that the auditors will not be asked to carry out non-audit work with of the Commmee

ion of the half iew and regulat d bar
the e‘xceptlon ofthehall yearreviewand regulatory an an~k- Approved by the Audit Committee and signed on its behalfbg
required reporting. . .
Vince Niblett

More generally, the auditors may not provide a service which places- ! ., .
& Y Y P P Audit Committee Chairman

them in a position where they may be required to audit their own work.

Specifically, they are precluded from prowdlng services relating to 24 May 2021 -
bookkeeping, financial mformanon system design and implementation,

appraisal or evaluation services, actuarial services, any management
.functions, taxation advisory services, investment banking services,

legal services unrelated to the audit oradvocacy servuces

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2021, the auditor’s remuneration
comprised £263,000 for audit work and £42,000 for o(her work, solely
relating to the interim review. Over a three year rolling period, the level
of non-audit fees is below the audit fee, with non-audit fees
representing 14% of audit fees in 2020 and 15%in 2019.
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Governance
Directors’ Report

The Directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Group, together with the audited financial statements and audltor s report for the
year ended 31 March 2021. The Reporton Corporate Governance on pages 791084 forms part of thisreport.

Details ofsngmf:cam events since the balance sheet date are included in note 25 to the financial statements An mducatlon ofhkelg future
developments in the business of the Company is included in the strategic report.

Information about the use of financial instruments by the Company and its subsidiaries is given in note 18-to the financial statements.

‘Dividends »
The Directors are recommending the payment of a final dividénd of 17.0 pence per share forthe year [2020 16.7 pence per ordinary share).
An interim dividend of 17.0 pence per share was paid in the year (2020:17.1 pence pershare).

Aproperty income distribution of 32.0 penceis payable for the year, of which 1?0 pence per share was pa:d with the interim dividend, and
15.0 pence pershareis proposed for the fmal dividend. .

Subject toapproval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be-held on 22 July 2021 the final dividend will be pald on 30 July 2021
- The Ex-div date is 8 July 2021 and the Record date is'9 Julg 2021

From Apnl 2018 dividend tax credits have been replaced by an annual £2,000 tax-free allowance on dividend i income across an individual's'entire -

" share portfolio. Above this amount, individuals will pay tax on their dividend income at a rate dependent on theirincome tax bracket and personal
circumstances. The Company will continue to provide registered shareholders with a confirmation of the dividends paid by Big Yellow Group PLC,
and this should be included with any other dividend income received when calculating and reporting total dividend income received. Itis the ’
shareholder’s responsibility to include all dividend income when calculatlng any.tax habulltg This change was announced bg the Chancellor, as part
ofthe UK governmentBudget in Julg 2015. T

SECR and Mandatory GHG Reportmg

The Companies (Directors’ Report] and Limited Liability Partnerships [Energg and Carbon Report) Regulanons 2018 [ SECR' ) came into force on
1 Aprll 2019 and applies to companies with financial years starting on or after 1 Apnl 2019.

The 2018 Regulations define what must be |ncluded in the Directors’ Report, namely:

® Annual GHG emissions from activities for which the Company is responsible including combustion of fuel and operation of any facility, such as
" suchas our flexi-office gas heating, air conditioner coolant replacement, one Company van diesel fuel use emissions and fit-out ‘diesel’ use
emissions [assumlng qualifying fit-outactivities have taken place during the year); . .
®  Annual emissions from the purchase of electricity, heat, steam or coohng by the Company fori ns own use, such as electncng for our stores and
© fit-out activities; :

8 Underlying global energy use;’

Previous year's figures for energy use and GHG
Atleast one intensity ratio;

Energy efficiency action taken; and
Methodology used. o

We will also continue to report on our Scope 3 emissions: Electricity supplier ‘transmission and distribution’ emissions — currently, voluntary GHG
emissions, from our waste and water supply chains are assessed as ‘not material’ — we are now including ‘employee business travel’ (from car
_mileage ctaims only). We will also retain the practice of reporting our previous few gears to show longer term trends.

We have introduced ‘Market-based emission "reporting for this financial year. The'emissions reported here reflect the emissions associated with
the electricity tariff we have purchased; whereas ‘Location-based emissions’ are emissions associated with the UK grid and applies the required
DEFRA conversion factors. Where we have notindicated market-based or location-based figures, location-based can be assumed.

Please note, our operations are solelg based in the UK and we therefore will be reporting a single geographlcal scope — UK and offshore area onlg
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a) Data . )
-2019 ’ 2020

Year ending 31 March UK and offshore area - ¢ 2019 - restated 2020 - restated L 2021
‘GHG Scope 1 total tonnes C0,e Total Scope 1 Emissions location-based' ) 1335 - _nochange - “131.7 - nochange 166.6
GHG Scope 2 total tonnes co, e ' Total Scope 2 Emissions location-based ... 26654 . 2,5150 . 2,4397 2,2376 2,049.9
GHG Scope 2 total tonnes CO, e Total Scope 2 Emissions market-based o : New for2019/20 = 1,1420 1,026 . 0.0

" Total GHG Scope 182 ] ~ Total Scope 18& 2 Emissions location-based 2,798.8 L 26485 25714 2,369.3 2,216.5
Total tonnes C0,e . C : : - ) o ; )
Total GHGScope 1&2 - . - Total Scope 1& 2 Emissions market-based" ' New for 2019/20 12737 12043 166.6
Totaltonnes CO,e . . v ' . v ’ S
Scope 3 total tonnes CDze' ) 'Electncntg Transmission Losses and Emplogee 366 | © 366 315 303 250

) . o Business travél ' ' . o
1€0,¢e/ revenue (£000s) - - Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions |ntenS|tg from 22.3 ' 211 206 18.3 © 164
location-based buuldmg energy consumption ' . o . ’ ..
tC0,¢/ revenue (£000s) - Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions mtensrtg from . New for 2019/20 99 ‘9.3 12
market-based building energy consumption ' : ’ ' )
1€0,e/.0ccupied space (000s m?)  Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions intensity from 79 S 24 72 " 66 5.9
' : building energy consumption (scope 1 and 2) C ) .
tC0,e/ CLA (000s m?) Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions intensity from 6.5 . 61 . 59 - 5.5 449
c : . " building energy consumption {scope 1and 2) e ’ : . . )

Energy data ’ " Underlying Scope 1 and 2 emissions energg . - New for 2019/20 10,214,794 9,626,987 9,627,876 .

data (kWhs)

- Notes.to the'data table: Regarding restating, each year, the last 3 months of our emissions datais reported using prior year's conversion factors,
due t0 ah emission factor publication lag — we operate ona best available data’' prlnmple and will therefore restate each gear —'see the. Basrs of
Reporting document for specmcs :

We also restate if there were matenal changes durungthe year. This gear we became aware of electricity consumptlon belng reported as part of our

-total energy rather than the 3rd party who rents space on some of our stores. The 3rd party installs and manages telecoms masts and uses
electricity from our stores. This electricity consumption has been removed from our figures and we have restated back to 2018/19 when the

. amount became material. Regarding Market-based emissions, as of 1 October 2019 we purchase Rego backed 100% renewable energg fram Opus

Energg, so are able to provide both location- based and market- based CO L€ emissions.

The three location-based mtensng metrics are calculated from the Iocatlon based Scope 1 & 2 totals. The one market based |ntensng ‘metricis -
calculated from the market- based Scope 1& 2 totals.

b) Methodologv for Calculating Emissions

Please note that we produce a yearly Basis of Reporting document'which sets out the methodologg we use for all of our KPls, including GHG
emissions. We have included a special section for the Companies [Dlrectors Report] and-Limited Llabmtg Partnershrps [Energg and Carbon Report]
Regulations 2018. .

Please access the Basis of Reporting document at corporate.bigyellow.co.uk/sustainability.

c) kEnergvA Efficiency Measures

Background . . .

We have a long-standing strategy ofpro actively managing our energy consumpnon and becomlng an ever more efficient business. We have
reported progress over the years both in our Annual Reports as well as'our standalone annual CSR Reports all available online in our Investor and
Sustainability sections respectlvelg

" Between 2012 and 2017 we undertook a compang -wide upgrade of ourlighting to LED and to installing motion sensor controls to ensure lights are - '

only tufned on when customers need them; plus a small amount of permanent emergency Ilghtmgwas improved to LED.

Although the majontg ofthat work has been done, a smalinumber of ‘mop up’ activities continue to take place, especially where we have not been
able to gain access to customers’ units to execute the changeover. .

All of our electricity and gas meters are fitted with HH automatic meter readers; the datais avallable tousvia an externallg hosted platform and’
used by the internal Environmental Committee (formally the CSR Steering Committee) to revnew our performance ona quarterly basis.

During the year, we created a more formalised board lével governance structure, which can be accessed-here. We appomted Heather Savorg as
‘Non-Executive Director to the Board Heather chalrs the Sustainability Commlttee

.
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Most recent ESOS assessment !indmgs & resulting actions -

Our: E£SOS Phase 2 assessment has emphasised the fact that — due to the non-complex nature of our stores - weare Iumned bg the amount of
eriergy saving measures we are able to undertake : .

Our mdependent ESOS assessor’s recommendations lherefore focussed onincreasing our existing Solar PV estate. Thls recommendation is in
alignment with our broader Sustainability Strategy and durung the year we added six more solar installations, makmg itatotal of 28 stores.

Durmgthe year, we have opened three new stores:

' in Ellesﬂelgi Avenue, Bracknell, which was fitted out with a S50kWp solarinstallation;
" ® inSouthampton Way, Camberwell, which was fitted out with a. 50kWp solar installation; and
= inLombard Road, Battersea which was fitted out with a S0kWp solar installation.

In July 2020, we retrofitted Norwich, Watford, and Tunbridge Wells with 50kWp Solar PV installations each.

During the year, we have generated‘SGS 118 kWh of solar energy (an increase of 15% from the previous gear]. thereby a) reducing our energy ~ .
demand from the grid by the kWH we are using on site and b] nncreasmgthe grid’s renewable mix by exportlng part ofour energy as the size of our
solar installations exceed our demand. .

* During the year, we have setan ambitious 100% renewable energg and zero carbon emission strategg to 2030; delivered viaa comblnatuon of
on- sne solarand off-site renewable energy installations. .

For our full Enwronmemal reporting agamst EPRAKPIs, please see our annual CSR report 2020/21 and our BaS|s of Reportmg document 2020/21
Ouestlons can be directed to csr@bigyellow.co.uk. - .

Capltal structure = :
- Details of the authorised and issued share capital, together wnh details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital during the.year

are shown in note 22. The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no rlght to fixed income. Each share carries the nght toonevote at’
general meetings of the Company.

3

- There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general provisions of the
Articles of Association and prevailing legislation. The Directors are not aware of any agreerents between holders of the Company’s sharés that
" may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or on voting r|ghts :

Details ofemplogee share schemes aresetout in note 23, and details of shares held bg the Compang S Emplogee Benefit Trust are set outin °
‘note 22. :

No person has any speCIaI rlghts of control overthe Compang s share caplta| and all issued shares are fully paid. .

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors, the Compang is governed by its Articles of Association, the Corporate Governance
Code, the Companies Acts and related legislation. The Articles themselves may be améndedby special resolution of the shareholders The powers
of Dlrectors are descrlbed in the Reporton Corporate Governance on page 79. :

There are anumber ofagreements that take effect, alter, or terminate upon a change of control of the Company such as commercial contracts,
bank loan agreements, property lease arrangements and employee share plans. The Directors are not aware of any agreements between the
Company and its Directors or employees that prowde for compensation for loss of office or emplogment that occurs because of a takeover bld

During the gearthe Company lssued 406 900 shares to satlsfg the exercise of share options [2020 473 369]
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who served throughout the gear and to the date of approval of the financial statements except as noted below, were
as follows: . . .

Richard Cotton SeniorlndependentDirector

Jim Gibson Chief Executive Officer L .
JuliaHailes Non-Executive Director (resigned 14 January 2021) o
Georgina Harvey _ Non-Executive Director {resigned 5 August 2020)

Steve Johnson Non-Executive Director {resigned 5 August 2020]

Anna Keay. . . Non-Executive Director

AdrianLee | -+ ’Operations Director .

Vince Niblett - Non-Executive Director : '

Heather Savory . Non-Executive Director (appointed 1 March 2021) o

Laela Pakpour Tabrizi ©  Non-Executive Director (appointed 1 Julg 2020)

John Trotman Chief Financial Officer

Nicholas Vetch Executive Chairman"

‘Biographical detail‘s of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors standing for re-election are set out on pages 76 to 78.

Directors’ 1ndemn1t1es , , ,
The Company purchases liability insurance covermgthe Directors and officers ofthe Compang andits sub5|d|anes

Political contribu’tions ]
No political donations were made by the Company in either the current or preceding financial year.

. Substantial shareholdings

The Company had been notified, in accordance with Chapter S ofthe Disclosure and Transparencg rules, of the follownng votmg rightsasa
shareholder ofthe Compang at 31 March 2021 and 24 May 2021. .

Percemage of . .Parcen(age of

- voting rights voting rights

 No.of ordinary andissued ~  No.of ordinary and issued

. shares _share capita! - shares share capital

. 31 March2021 ~ 31 March 2021 21 May 2021 21 May 2021

Blackrock Inc : - LT | 14754971 - 84% 15225781 . B8.7%
Ameriprise Financiallne . © - . ' : 8,472,728 48% 8297780 4.7%
The Vanguard Group Inc : ) . 8404499 - ‘4.8% 8,630,002 4.9%
Jupiter Asset Management Limited . ’ o 18,192,446 A 8,176,220 © 4.7%
Resolution Capital : . 8,171,661 4.7% 8,703,115 ) 5.0%
"FMRLLC: . : ’ - o . 8042548 46% 8,019,274 46%
MFS Investment Management ' . ' . 6,247,276 3.6% 6,406,040 ' 3.6%

The interest of the Directors in the share capital of the Corﬁpang is shown on page 106 of the Remuneration Report.

Purchase of own shares”

The Company was granted authority at the AGMin 2020 to purchase its own shares up to a total aggregate value of 10% of the issued nominal
‘capital. That authontg expires at this year's AGM and a resolution will be proposed for its renewal. Dunng the year the Compang made no purchases
oflts own shares. :

Employee consultation

The Group seeks to ensure employee commitment to its objectives in a number of ways. Strategic changes aré communicated directly to all staff
who are encouraged to address queries to the Executive Directors. The Directors' executive meetings are frequently held in stores and in addition

- Directors and senior management visit the stores on a regular basis. Furthermore, there are regular team bnefmgs atstore level to provide
emplogees with information about the performance of and initiatives in their stare. A wide range of infarmation is also cernimunicated across

the Group's Intranet, including the e-publication of the Group's financial results and all press releases, the publication of a quarterly newsletter
and the publication of a weeklg operanons bulletin.
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As discussediin the Corporate Governance Report the Board has appornted a desrgnated Non-Executive Dlrector Anna Keay,toactas the pnmarg
method ofworkforce engagement for Big Yellow in accordance with the new Corporate Governance Code.

Employees are encouraged to participate inthe Group's performance through Employee Share Schemes and perforrnance related bonuses. 52% of
eligible employees participate in the Group s Sharesave Scheme.

The Group’s recruitment policy is commmed to promote equality, judging neither by race, nationality, religion, age, gender, dlsabllltg, sexual
orientation, nor political opinion and to treat allstakeholders falrlg ) )

Disabled employees -

Applications for employment bg disabled persons are always fully consrdered bearingin mind the aptnudes ‘of the applicant concerned in the
event of members of staff becoming disabled every effortis.made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues and that appropriate
training is arranged. Itis the policy of the Group that the tra:mng, career development and promotlon of disabled persons should, as far as possible,
be identical to that of ather emplogees :

Human Rights

Big Yellow respects Human Rrghts and aims to provide assurance to mternal and external stakeholders that weare commrtted to human rights
and the principles of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights.

We are committed to creating and maintaining a posmve and professional work environment that reflects and respects the basic rights of
freedom to lead a dignified life, free from fear or want, and where stakeholders are free to express their independent beliefs. Our employment

. ~poI|cres and practices reflecta culture where decisions are made solely on the basns of individual capabllltg and potential in relation to the needs
- of the business. :

Modern Slavery Act

The Group iscommitted to ensuring that there is no modern slaverg or human traffickingin our supply chains orin ang part of our business. Our
Anti-slavery Policy reflects our commitment to acting ethically and with integrity in all our business relationships and to implementing and
enforcmg effective systems and controls to ensure slaverg and human trafhckung is not taking place angwhere in our supply chains. Qur policy is

_published in full on our website.

‘ ‘Aud1tor

Inaccordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG LLP as audltor ofthe Companyis to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Disclosure of information to auditor

. The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm’ that sofaras theg are each aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps that he/ she ought to have taken as a Director to - . .-

make himself/ herself aware of any relevant audlt lnformatlon and to.establish that the Company’s auditors is aware ofthat information. -
This conflrmatron is given and should be mterpreted in accordance wrth s418of the Compames Act 2006.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalfofthe Board

. Shauna Beavis - .
© CompanySecretary

24 May 2021
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Statement of Diredtgfs’ 'R'esponsibilities

Statemént of Directors’\responsibilities in
" respect of the Annual Report and the
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Reportand the
Group and parent Compang financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations. :

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Grqd‘p and parent‘
Company financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
they are required to prepare the Group financial stdtements in
accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with
" the requirements-of the Companies Act 2006 and applicable law and
have elected to prepare the parent Company financial statements in
accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law, including
FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework: In addition the Group financial
statements are required under the UK Disclosure and Transparency
Rules to be prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union (“IFRSs as adopted by’
the EU").

Under company law the Director's must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and parent Company'and of the
Group’s profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group and
parent Campany financial statements, the Directors are required to:

B selectsuitable accounting pohcues and then applg them
consistently; .

. ™ makejudgements and estimates thatare reasonable, relevant

and reliable;

® forthe Group financial statements, state whethertheg have been
prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements-of the Companies Act 2006 and.
International Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to”
Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union
(“IFRSs as adopted by the EU");

- @ forthe parent Company financial statements, state whether
applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and. explainedin the parent
Company financial statements; .

®  assess the Group and parent Company’s ability to continue as a '
going concern, dnsclosmg, as appllcable, matters related to going
concern; and .

®  use the going concern basis ofaccountmg unless they either

" intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records .

that are sufficient to show and explain the parent Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy atany time the

_ financial position of the parent Company and enable them to ensure
thatits financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. -
Theyare responsible for such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
opento them to safeguardt the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraid and other irregularities,

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible
for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report, Directors’ ’
Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that -
complies with that law and those regulations. E

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s
website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions. :

Responsibility statement of the Directors in
respect of the annual financial report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

. W the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the

applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken
as awhole; and . ) .
& the Strategic Reportincludes a fair review of the development and
- performance of the business and the position of the issuer and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that they face. .

We consider the annual reportand accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced, and understandable and provides the information necessary .
for shareholders to assess the Group’s posmon and performance,
busmess model and strategg

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board ofDlrectors
on24 Mag 2021 andis sngned on its behalf by:

John Trotman
Chief Financial Officer

W

Jim Gibson o
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members
of Big Yellow Group PLC. .

1. Our oplnloﬁ is unmodified

We bave audited the financial statements of Big YelIoW'Group PLC

- (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise

the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Changesin

Equity, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, Company Balance
Sheet, Company Statement of Changes in Equity, and the related
notes, including the accounting palicies in note 2 and 29.

In our opinion:

® ° the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
the Group’s and of the parent Company’s affairs as at 31 March
2021 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended;

®  the'Group financial statements have been properly prepared -
in accordance with international accounting standards i in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

" and International Financial Reporting Standards adopted

pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the
European Union;

- ® the parent Company financial statements have been properly

prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards,
including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

® the financial statements have been prepared in accordance

. with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.and, as
-fegards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation to the extent applicable.

. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK} (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.

Our responsibilities are described below. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis
for our opinion. Qur audit opinion is consistent with ouf.report to
the audit committee.

We were first appointed as auditor by the shareholders on
20 July 2017. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is
for the four financial years ended 31 March 2021. We have fulfilled

. our ethical responsibilities under, and we remain independent of

the Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including
the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest
entities. No non-audit services prohibited by that standard
were provided. ' :

Overview .
Materialitg:‘ £13.6m(2020:£12m)
Group financial 0.74% (2020: 0.74%)
statementsasa of Total Assets
whole ’
Coverage . 199% (2020:100%) of Total Assets

. Key audit matters - . ‘ vs 2020

Recurring risks Valuation of Investment’ <4p
Property, including '
Investment Property Under

Construction

Parent Company: Amounts . 4P
owed by Group Undertakings

2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of

material misstatement
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

_judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial

statements and include the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by
us, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall.
audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and
directing the efforts of the engagement team, We summarise
below the key audit matters, in decreasing order of audit
significance, in arriving at our audit opinion above, together with
our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as
required for public interest entities, our results from those )
procedures. These matters were addressed, and our results are ’
based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for
the purpose of, our audit of the financial statements as a whale,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are
incidental to that opinion, and we do not prowde aseparate opinion -
on these matters. .
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2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement (continued)

The risk

Our response

Valuation of
Investment ]
Property, including

" Investment Property
under Construction

Investment Property .

£1,622.0m; (2020:
£1,385.1m)

Investment Property
Under Construction
£163.5m; (2020:
£136.3m)

--Refertopage 112
{Audit Committée
Report), page 134
{accounting policy)
andpage 151
{financial

_disclosures].

Subjective valuation: - o

investment property valuation is subjective,

‘and inherently judgmental in nature.

Investmentproperty fair values are calculated
using actual and subjective assumptions
inputs such as store occupancy, net rent

per square foot, discount rates and exit
capitalisation rates. For investment property
under.construction additional estimates
include expected costs to complete and the
risk of iot obtaining planning permission

for non-consented sites.

The Group employs-external valuers to
apply professional judgment cancerning
market conditions and factors |mpact|ng
individual properties. -

" The investment market for prime self storage
"is subject to market uncertainty due to the
_ low volume ofcomparabletransactions

The effect of these matters is that, as part
of our risk assessment, we determined that
the valuation of investment properties has a
high degree of estimation uncertainty, with
apotential range of reasonable outcomes
greater than our materiality for the financiai

" statements as a whole, and possmlg many

times that amount.
Disclosure quality:

The financial statements (note 15) disclose
the sensitivity estimated by the Group.

The Directors’ assessment of the extent of the
disclosure is based on an evaluation of the

inherent risks to the valuation.

The risk for our audit is whether or not those

disclosures adequately address the
- uncertainties within the valuation, and if so,

whether those uncertainties are fundamental
to the users' understanding of the financial ’
statements.

Our protedures included:.

‘w ' Assessing valuers credentials: We assessed the external

valuers qualifications and expertise and read their terms of
engagement with the Group to determine whether there were
any matters that might have affected theirindependence
and objecnvng or may have |mposed scope limitations upon
-their work.

= Methodology choice: We read the external valuation reports

which cover 100% of the investment properties and assessed
whether the valuation approach was in accordance with RICS,
standards and suitable for use in determining the value for the
purpose of the financial statements. .
" Personnelinterview: We met with the external valuer and the

audit committee chairman with our own internal valuation
specialists to discuss the valuation process, key assumption
inputs such as occupancy, capitalisation and discount rates,

"and the rationale behind the more significant orunusual
valuation movements during the year. '

= Qursector experience: We used our knowledge of the entitg, our

experience of the real estate industry and observéd industry
norms when assessing the key assumptions and the significant’
or unusual valuation movements and for investment property
‘under construction we considered the judgment made by the
‘Directors and'external valuers for, planning risk for non-

~ consented sites. .

=  Dataprovided to the valuer: We performed property.visits and
tested the current and historical accuracy of information used
to generate key inputs to the valuation such as'maximum
lettable area, store otcupancg and nét rental income by

. physicallyinspecting a sample of storage units and inspecting .
asample of customer storage licence-agreements. .

8 Independent re-performance: Usir_\gk_)ur own ihterhallg .
praduced model and the external valuer and Directors’ inputs
we assessed the reasaonableness of valuation as produced by
the external valuer. )

=  Tests of detail: Forinvestment property under construction'we
compared'the historical accuracy of Management's forecast
construction costs to actual spend on similar construction
projects in the past three years. We checked that supporting
information for construction contracts and budgets such as
original construction cost reports, which was also supplied to

- the valuer, was consistent with the Group's records. We also
obtained evidence that planning permission had been obtained
for those d'ev'elopme.nt sites for which this'was appropriate.

" Assessingtransparency: We assessed whether the group’s

" disclosures about the sensitivity of the valuation of investment
_properties to changes in Key assumptions adequately reflected .
the related risks.

Qurresults

- We found the valuation of investment properties, and investment -

properties under construction and the disclosure of the associated

. level of uncertainty to be acceptable (2020 result: acceptable).

. Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Mernbers ‘ o '. _'
of B1g Yellow Group PLC (continued) I |

The risk i : Our response

. -Amounts owed by Low risk, high value: - Our procedures included: -

- Group Undertakings The carrying amount of the intra- -group debtor - ®  Test of details: We assessed 100% of Group debtors to ideniifg,

E‘:T;;m Company balance represents 95% [2020 95%) of the - . withreference to the relevant debtor’s ﬁnéncial statements/
s Company’s total assets at 31 March 2021. . " draft balance sheet, whether they have a positive net asset

' £533.2m; (2020: Théir recoverabilitu is not at a hish risk'o’f . value and therefore coverage ofthe_ debt owed, as well as

£568. Grn] significant rhiésta?ement orsubjgect t assessing whether those subsidiary companies have

Refertopage 112 significant judgment. However, due to their . . historically been profit-making.

(Audit Committee , . materialityin the context of the Company Assessing subsidiary audits: We assessed the results of the

Report), page 134 financial statements, this is considered to be Yvork. perf'ormed on the subsidiary audits, mcIu.d.lngessessmg

(accounting policy] - the area that had the greatest effect on our the liquidity of the assets and therefore the ability of the

and page 172 overall parent Company audit. . subsidiaries to fund the repagment of the receivable.

(financial : o ‘ - Ourresults

-disclosures). C :

& We found the Company's assessment that the carrying amount
of the Group debtor balance is recoverable to be acceptable
[2020 acceptable]

In the pr|or gearwe reporteda keg audit matter in respect of the impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union. Following the
trade agreement between the UK and the EU, and the end of the EU-exit implernentation period, the nature of these uncertainties has changed.

We continue to perform procedures over material assumptions in forward looking assessments such-as going concern and valuation of investment
property and investment propertg under construction howeverwe no longer con5|derthe effect ofthe UK'’s departure from the EU to be a separate

 keyaudit matter. . L . . -
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3. :' Our'appucauon of maieriamv and an overview of the
‘scope of our audit

M'aterialitg for the group financial statements as'a whole was setat
£13.6m {2020: £12m), determined with reference to a benchmark
of total assets (of which it represents 0.74% (2020: 0.74%).

" In addition, we applied materiality of £3.4m (2020: £3.2m) to all
balances and classes of transactions impacting adjusted profit'
before tax (as reconciled to profit before taxin noté 10 of the
financial statements) for which we believe misstatements of lésser
émounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole
could be reasonably expected to influence the company’s
members’ assessment of the financial pefformance of the Group.

Materiality for the oarent company financial statements as a whole
was setat £6.1m (2020: £5.4m), determined with reference to a

i benchmarkofcompang totalassets of whichitrépresents 1. 1% oo
(2020:0.91%). . , ‘ . Group Revenue

Inline with ouraudit methodology, our-procedures on individual
account balances and disclosures were performed to a lower
threshold, performance materiality, so as to reduce toan
acceptable level the risk thatindividually immaterial
misstatements in individual account balances add up to a material 1007
amountacross thefunancualstatements as awhole.- : o

. 2020:100%

. Performance materlahtg was set at ?5% (2020: 75%): ofmatenalltg : Lo

for the financial statements as a whole, which equates to £10.2m

(2020: £9m] for the group and £4.6m (2020: £4.1m) for the parent

company. We applied this percentage in our detei'minatio_n of

performance materiality because we did riot identify any factors

indicating an elevated level of risk. - - :
[ndicatingan efev VElOTTISE:, Total profits and losses that

" Weagreed toreport to the Audit Committee any correctedor ~ °~  made up group profit before tax .
uncorrected identified misstatements'exceeding £0.68m (2020: ~ - .
£0. 6m), in addition to other identified misstatements that
warramed reporting on qualitative grounds

" Ofthe group 's-20 (2020: 22) reporting components we sub;ected
seven [2020: six) to full scope audits for group purposes.

. . : 0
The components within the scope of our work accounted for the .o 1006
‘percentages illustrated opposite. - . : " . 2020:100%

The remaining 0% (2020: 0%) of total group revenue, 0% [2020 0%)
- of group profit before tax and 0% (2020: 0%) of total group assets
is represented by 16 (2020: 15) reporting components, none of
which individually represented more than 0% (2020: 0%) of any of . o
total group revenue, group profit before tax or total group assets. Group total assets
For the residual components, we performed analysis at an’ .
aggregated group level tore- examine our assessment that there
were no sngnlﬂcant r|sks of materlal mlsstatement within these.

" . Thework on all the components mcludmgthe audit of the parent
Company, was performed bg the Group team.

. . ) 0
The Group team used component materiality's, which ranged from . 100 A)
£0.9m to-£10.9m (2020: £0.6m.to £7.2m), having regard to the mix 2020:100%

- of size and risk profile of the Group across the components.  ° ’
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Mernbers

of Big Yellow Group PLC (continuea)

4. Going concem

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going
concern basis as they do ot intend to liquidate the Group or the-

" Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded

. that the Group's and the Company's financial position means that '
this is realistic. Théy have also concluded that there are no material
‘uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their

abllltg to continue as a going concern for a period of 18 month from

_ the date of approval of the financial statements( the gomg
" concern period”).

We used our knowledge of the Group, its industry, and the general
economic environment to identify the inherentrisks-to its business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group's and
Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations
over the going concern period. The risks that we considered most

.likely to adversely affect the Group’s and Company's available
financial resources and metrics relevant to debt covenants over
thls period were: : .

% Theimpact of macro economnc trends on customer acuvrtg,
particularly customer occupancy rates.
& Increase in LIBOR rates, increasing Group interest rates

We considered whether these risks could plausiblg affectthe
liquidity or covenant compliance in the going concern period by
assessing the degree of downside assumption that, individually
and collectively, could resultin a liquidity issue, taking into
account the Group's current and projected cash and facilities
(areverse stress test).

Our procedures also included:

® _ Critically assessing assumptions in base case and downside
scenarios relevant to covenant metrics, i.n particularin relation
to customer performance (namely occupanicy rates and net '
rent levels) by comparing to historical trends in severe
economic situations and overlaying knowledge of the entity's
trading performance to date and our knowledge of the enmg
and the sectorin which it operates

®  Wealsocompared past budgets to actual results to assess the

' directors' track record ofbudgetlng accurately. ;

B Weinspected the loan agreements in order to confirm the

nature of the associated covenant requrrements

= Weconsidered whether the gomg concern disclosurein note 2

to the financial statements gives a fulland accurate
description of the Directors’ assessment of going concern,
including the identified risks, dependencres and related
sensitivities. . :

" We assessed the completeness ofthe gomg
concern disclosures.

~ We performed the tests above ratherthan seekungto rely onany of
the Group's contrals because the nature of the balance is such that
we would expect to obtain audit evidence primarily through the
detalled procedures described.

126 o . R

Our conclusions based on this work:

®  we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern.
basis'ofacéountingin the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate; .
®  we have notidentified, and concur with the directors’
assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related
to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
castsignificant doubt on the Group’s or Company’s ability to
. continue as a going concern for the gorng concern period;
® we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation
to the directors’ statement in note 2 to the financial o
statements on the use of the'going concern basis of c.
accounting with ho material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt over the Group and Company’s use of that
"basis for the going concern period, and we foundthe going
~ concern disclosure in note 2 to be acceptable; and
" therelated statement under the Listing Rules setouton
page 46 is n’wateriallg consistent with the financial statements
and our audit knowledge. -

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and
as subsequent events may resultin outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time

. they were made, the above conclusions are nota guarantee that

the Group or the Company will continue in operation.

"
N

N
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5. Fraud and breaches ot laws and regulations -
. ability to detect )

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

" Toidentify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud
risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could indicate an -
incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity .
to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included:

-8 Enquiring of directors, the audit committee, and the store -
compliance function and inspection of policy documentation
as ta the Group's high-level policies and procedures to prevent
and detect fraud, including the Group’s channel for . .
“whistleblowing”, as well as whether they have knowledge of
anyactual, suspected or alleged fraud.

= Reading Board and audit committee minutes.
n Uéing analytical procedui-es to identify any unusual or
unexpected relationships. '

We communicated identified fraud rlsks throughout the audit team
and remamed alert to any indications of fraud (hroughout the audit.

As reqmred bg auditing standards, we perform procedures to

" address the risk ofmanagement override of controls, in particular
the risk that Group management may be in a position to make

" inappropriate accounting entries and the risk of bias in accounting
estimates and judgements such as the valuation of investment
property and investment property under construction. On this
auditwe dd not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue
recognition because there are limited judgmental aspects to the
Group’s low value, high volume revenue streams.

We also identified a fraud risk related to valuation of investment

property and investment property under Construction in response

to the subjective and inherently judgmental nature of this area.

Further detail in réSpect of valuation of investment property,
including investment property under construction is set outin the
key audit matter disclosures in section 2 of this report.

We also performed procedures including:

‘®  |dentifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and
comparing the identified entries to supporting documentation.
These included those posted to the investment property and
investment property under construction account, those
posted to the cash suspense account and unexpected
revenue pairings.

s Evaluated the business purpose of significant
unusual transactions. ] )
= Assessingsignificant accounnng estimates for blas

Bfg Yellow Group PLC Annual Report cnd Accox_mts 2021
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Identitying and responding to risks of material’
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws .
and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations thatcould reasonably
be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements
from our general commercial and sector experience-and through

discussion with the directors and other management [as required
by auditing standards), and discussed with the directors and other

management the policies and procedures regarding compliance
with laws and regulations.

‘Weé communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our

team and remained alertto any indications of non-compliance
throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial

. statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulatioris thatdirectly
affect the financial statements including financial reporting

. . . i AN . . . . .
legislation (including related ¢ompanies legislation), distributable

_ profits legislation, REIT legislation and taxation legislation, and we
. assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations

as part of ourprocedures on the related financial statementitems.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations

. where the consequences of non-compliance could have a material

effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for
instance through the |mposmon of fines or litigation, We identified .
the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect:
health and safety, anti-bribery, employment law, Covid-19
regulations and certain aspects of company legislation recognising
the financial nature of the Company's activities and its legal form.
Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify )
non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the
directors and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence,
lfang Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not
disclosed tous or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit
will not detect that breach. '

‘ Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud
.or breaches of law or regulation ’

‘Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an

unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material

‘misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have

properly planned and performed our auditin accordance with -
auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely
the inherently Ilmlted procedures required by audmng standards
would identify it.’

In addition, as with ang audit, there remained a higher risk of
non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect

‘material misstatement, We are ot responsible for prevénting

non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect:
non-compliance with all laws and regulations.
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7. We have nothing to report on the other matters on

which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if,
in our opinion:

® adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

® the parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

* - certaindisclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made; or B

" we have not received all the information and explanations we

" require for our audit. .

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Respective responsibilities

Directors' responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 121,
the directors are responsibie for: the preparation of the financial
statements including being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing
the Group and parent Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and toissue our
opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
orerror and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Afuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021

9. The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe

our responsibilities -

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
and the terms of our engagement by the Company. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to theminan
auditor's report and the further matters we are required (o state

to them in accordance with the terms agreed with the Company,
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,

we do notaccept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the Company and the Company’s members, as a'body, for our

audit work, for this repart, ot for the opinions we have formed.
Steve Masters (Senior Statutory Auditor) &M
for and on beha!f of KPMG LLP, Statutary Auditor

Chartered Accountants

2 Forbury Place, 33 Forbury Road, Reading, RG1 3JH

24 May 2021
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Financial Statements v < : :
‘Consolidated Stc:tement of Comprehenswe Income

i Yearended 31 March 2021

o 2021 2020 - .

. Note £000 £000 .
Revenue _ : . ' : 3. 135281 129,313
Cost of sales . : ) . ' : : (41,589) (38,873)
Gross profit : - . S R 93,652 90,440
*. Administrative expenses . . _— : [12,159)  © (10,462)
“Operating proﬂt before galns on propeng assets . ’ ’ o N - L S 81,493 79,978
Gain'on the revaluation of investment propemes . ) ’ 143,15 189,277 23:193
Gain on disposal of investment propeng T . . ’ 14a ) - s
© Operating profit = _ o L o : o 270,770 103,228
Share of profit of associates o o B A 4 i4e - 3,148 . 856
Investment income — interest receivable ’ 7 69 : “114
Finance costs — interest payable 8 (8,017) - (9,843])

’ — fair value movement on derivatives .8 (148) (908)
Profit before taxation : C o ‘ 2 - ' - 265,822 93,447
Taxation ) ’ . - o L 9 (636) (871)
Profit for the year (attributable to equity sharehdlder_s] : ’ ) . 5 . 265,186 92,576
Total comprehensive income for the year (attributable to e'quitgAshgreholders] ' ! L - o 265,186 ‘92,'5?8

- Basic earnings per share ' ' . AN ’ 2 152.3p Ss.ép
Diluted earnings pershare . - o . - o 2 . 151.8p° 55.6p

EPRA earnings per share are shown in Note 12.
Allitems in thé statement of comprehensive income relate to continuing operations.

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
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Consohdated Balcmce Sheet"

31 March 2021

T 2021 2020

Note £000 . £000
. Non-current assets . - . o R
Investment property - . o o . . - . 14a 1,621,990 1,385,120
Investment property under construction i T ) 14a 163,537 136,299
Right-of-use assets o : C o o N 14a 16,644 . 17829
Piant, equipment, and owner-occupied property - o ) ' . : 14b 3,910 | 4,008
Intangible assets , : ' ' o o : 14c 1,433 . 1433
Investment - ) L . : o T " 14d 450 -
Investment in associate’s _. ) : ’ . ' . . e 13,720 11,260
Capital Goods Scheme receivable  * ' ) ) : . ' 16 163 660. -

1,821,847 1,556,609

Current assets

" Inventories R ) ) o ) . ) N 366° 412
Trade and other receivables -° o . C - . - L. ) 16 - . 2764 7,882
Cash and cash equivalents - S ) . E . . 12,322 - - 51,418
. . ‘ . 20,452 . 69,712

" Total assets - ' o ' ' R - 1,842,299 1616321

“Current Ilabllitiés

Trade and other payables . . . ' ' . : h 17 (34,563) {33,446)
Borrowings _ . . C . ) 19 (2,865) (2,728)
Obligations under lease liabilities - ’ ’ ) . <. -2 - - (1,751) " [1,751)
. (39,179) (37,925)
Non-current liabilities . o ’ . : o c
Denvanvef‘nanmalmstruments L . : . © 18¢ - (475) - (3272)
Borrowings - . . - _ - ) e ’ 19 (332,573) (397,007)
Obligations under lease liabilities ' ) . o a (16,177) (17,1886)
‘ (349,225) (414,520)
Total liabilities . ' : _ | (388,404) | (452,445)
Net assets e o A ' ' _ o .. 1,453,895 ' 1,163,876
Equity . o . _
Share capital S o Co L .22 12588 16,214,
Share premium account .- ) . T 192,218 112,320
Reserves S : C o - 1,244,089 1,034,842
Equity shareholders’ funds B ' - . , 1453895 1,163,876

The financial statements were approved by the Board of 0|rectors and authorised for issue on 24 May 2021. They were sngned on its behalf bg

' JimGibson " John Trotman
Director Dlrect%

any Reglstratlon No 03625199 o ' T

- The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
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chtncml Stcttements
Consohdated Statement of Changes in Equlty

Year ended 31 March 2021
R Share " Other non- © Capital . . .
. Share premium.  distributable redemption . Retained Own
capital, . _account reserve " reserve . earnings . - shares - Total
. - . £000 : £000 £000, + . £000 £000 £000 £000
At1April 2020 ° . C 16,714 112,320 . 74,950 ’ 1,795 959,116 (1,019) 1,163,876
Totalcomprehensnvemcomeforthegear . - - . ’ - L~ 265,186 - 265,186
Issue of share capital - : 874 79,898 C- - - R 80,772
Dividend . ’ : - = ' - : - (s8,808) " .- . " (s8808) .
Credlttoequngforequttg -settled share- ) ’ . . S
based payments . " - S - - - ©2,869. - T 2,868
. At3LMarch2021 . - . 17,588 . 192,218 74,950 1,795 1,168,363 (1,019) 1,453,895

The other non-distributable reserve arose in the year ended 31 March 2015 followmg the placing of 14.35 mllhon ordinary shares.

The issue of share capital is net of expenses

Year ended 31 March é020

Share Other non- Capital

Share ' ‘premium distributable redemption - Retained Own -

capital account reserve reserve . earnings shares S Total
, - £000 £000 £000 . £000° - £000 t £000 . £000
At 1 April 2018 - . 16,667 111,514 74,950 L1795 919,990 - (1,019)- 1,123,897
Total comptehehsive income for the year - - - - . 92,576 - 92,576
" Issue of share capital * e 47 . 806 = - - - - - 853
Dividend . - . - - " - [55,008) - (ss ?os]

Credit to equity for equitg-settled share- ' C ) ' . .
based payments ' o e = - - - .. 2256 L - 2 256

‘At 31 March 2020 - . isr4. - 112,320 74950 17295 . 959,116 . - (1,019) 1,163,876

The accompanying notes form bart of the financial'statements.
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Consohdctted Cash Flow Statement

Year ended 31 March 2021

.-y

2020

- Closing cash and cash equivalents

2021
Note ‘ £000 £000
) Cash generated from operations 26 . 87,131 . 85,074
Bank interest paid ’ (8,850) (10,211)
Interest on obligations under lease liabilities . (772) (820)
Interest received 26 - 33
Tax paid (823) {461)
‘Cash ﬂdws from operating activities ’ 76,712 73,615
Investing activities - .
Purchase of non-current assets (73,010) (63,748)
Proceeds on disposal of investment property - 14,105
‘Investment : 14d (450) < -

- Receipts frém Capital Goods Scheme ) 737 ' 1,226
Dividend received from associates 14e 688 649
Cash flows from investing activities " [72,035) (42,768)
Financing activities ' :

Issue of share capital ' . 80,772 853
Payment of lease liabilities (1,009) - (9862)
Equity dividends paid 11 (58,808) (55,708)
Loan arrangement fees paid - . = (918)
Drawing of new Aviva loan - 35,000
(Decrease)/increase in burrowiﬁgs (64,728) 29,403
Cash flows from financing activities [43,773) 7,669
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (39,096) * 33,516 |
Opening cash and cash eqﬁivalqnts - 51,418 17,902
12,322 - 51,418

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements. -
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General information .

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2021 -

i

Big Yellow Group PLCis a Company incorporated in the United Kingdom under: the Companies Act 2006, with registration number 03625199 The
address of the registered office is 2 The Deans, Bridge Road, Bagshot, Surrey, GU19 SAT. The nature of the Group’s operations and its principal activities
are set outin note 4 and in the Strategic Report on pages 18 to 51.

. Slgmﬁcant accountmg policies

: Busls of prepumtion ot financial statements’

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international accountlng standards in conformity with the requuements of the
CompaniesAct 2006. . :

In addition the Group financial statements are requrred under the UK Dlsclosure and Transparency Rules 4.1.6, 10 have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulatlon (EC) No 1606/2002 as itapplies in the European Union [“IFRSs as -
adopted by the EU).

The group financial statements consolrdate those of the Compang and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and equitg account the
Group's interestin assouates The parent compang financial statements present information about'the Compang as a separate entity and not about
its group.

The financial statements are presented in Sterling, being the currency of the pnmarg economic envrronment in WhICh the Group operates Unless
otherwise stated, figures are rounded to the nearest thousand. : -

The accountung.polncres adopted are consistent wnth those of the previous financial year.

New and revlsed IFRSs in issue but not yet effective . .
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not applred the followmg new and revised IFRSs-that have been issued but

" are not yet effective:
Amendments to IAS 16 . Property, Plant and Equipment, Proceeds before Intended Use
IAS1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 " . Disclosure of Accounting Policy '
IFRS 17 . . Insurance Contracts
Amendments to |AS1 ' ' Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
Amendments to IAS8 - _ Definition of Accounting Estimate. -

. Amendments to [FRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between and Investor and its Associate or Jount Venture
IFRS Standards - o Amendments 10 References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
Amendments to IFRS 3 o - ' Definition of a Business . :
Amendments to IAS 1'and IAS 8 ’ Definition of Material
Amendments to IFRS 9,1AS39and IFRS 7 -Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
Amendment to IFRS 16 : COvID 19- Related Rent: Concessrons

The Directors do not expect that the adoptron of the Standards listed above erI have a material rmpact on the financial statements of the Group
in future periods.

There are no other Standards or Interpretations get to be effective that would be expécted to have a material impact on the financial statements
of the Group. - :

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared onthe hlstorlcal cost baS|s except for the revaluat|on ofmvestment properties and derivative financial
instruments. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for the assets. The principal accounting pOlICIES
adopted, which have been applied consistently to.the results, other gains and losses, assets, liabilities and cash flows of entities included in the
consolidated financial statements in the current and preceding year, are set out below :
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Notes to the Financial Sta'teménts

2. Significant accounting policiés (continued)

Investment in associates

Anassociate is an entity over which the Group is in a position to exercise signifi'cant influence, but not control or joint control, through participation
in the financial and operatmg policy decisions of the investee. Significant influence is the power to pamcrpate in the financial and operattng policy -
_decisions of the investee but i$ not control or Jomt control. over those policies. .

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are |ncorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting except when
classified as held for sale. Investments in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of thé net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group's
_interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate) are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of associates to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the
Group. Where a Group Compang transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
tin the relevant associate. Losses mag provide evidence of an |mpa|rment of the asset transferred in which case approprlate provrsron is made
for impairment.

Revenue recogniuon

Revenue represents amounts derived from the provision of services which fall within the Group's ordinary activities after deduction of trade discounts .
and any applicable value added tax. Self storage income'is recognised over the period for which the storage room is occupied by the customer ona
straight-line basns The opening offer d|scount of 50% off for up to 8 weeks is spread evenly over the term of the discount period.

Other storage related income comprlses

8 packing material sales are recognlsed atthe pomt of sale, as there is no further ongoing performance obligation begond the pomt of sale; and

8 insurance income which is recognlsed on a straight-line basis over the period a customer occupies their room. The Group recognises.insurance
income as a principal, as the insurance contract is between the Group and the customer. The Group is also responsible for settlng the pricing for
the sale.of i insurance to customers. :

The Group recogmses non-storage income, WhICh is pnnapallg rental income from tenants of properttes awaiting development ona stralght line
basis over the period in which it is earned. : :

Managementfees earned are recognised on a stratght-lme basis over the' period for which the services are provided. Fees earned from assbciates are
recognised in full in the statement of comprehensive income through revenue with the proportionate debit shown in the share of profit of associate.
Performance fees are earned from the Group's management contract with the Armadillo associate. These fees are subject to performance thresholds

.such that revenue is not recognlsed until the specific conditions have been met, and it is htghlg probable that no significant reversal ofamounts
would occur.

' Borrowings . .
Interest-bearing loans and overdrafts are m:trallg measured at fair value, net of direct issue costs. Premiums pagable on sett|ement or redemption
and-direct issue costs are accounted for on an accruals basis in the statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest rate method and
are added to the carrying value amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise. Borrowings are
subsequently held at amortised cost.- .

Plna:tqe costs and income

All borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred, unless the costs are incurred
as part of the development of a qualifying asset, when they will be capitalised. Commencement of capitalisation is the date when the Group incurs

B expendnture for the qualifying asset, incurs borrowing costs and undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
when itis probable that they will resuit in future-economic-benefits to the entity and the costs can be measured reliably. In the case of suspension of
activities during extended periods, the Group suspends capitalisation. The Group ceases capitalisation of borrowing costs when substantuallg altof the
activities necessarg to prepare the asset for use are complete, typically when a store opens : .. .

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the pnncrpal outstanding and the effective interest rate applrcable whrch is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

The Group classifies finance costs and income as operating cash flow in the cash flow statement.

136 ’ o ‘ L Annual Report and Accounts 2021 Big Yellow Group PLC



2 Slgmncctnt accountmg pohc1es (contlnued)

Debt modification

Achange in debt carried at amomsed cost that is considered substantial is accounted for asan extrngmshment WhICh means that the original debt
is derecognised, with any gain or loss recorded in the statement of comprehensive income, and a new financial liability recorded based on the new
terms. If the change is not considered to be substantial (substantial is defined as a change in the net present value of the cash flows of more than
10%] the original debt remains on the books and there is no current statement of comprehensrve income impact.

Operating proﬂt

- Operating profit i is stated after gains and Iosses on surplus Iand movements on the revaluation of investment properues and before the share
of results of associates, investment income and finance costs.

Taxation

The Group is a REIT and as a result the Group does not pay UK corporation tax on the profits and gains from its qualifying rental business in the UK
provided that it meets certain conditions. Non-qualifying profits and gains of the Group are subject to corporauon taxas normal. The tax expense
represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from the net profit as reported in the statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other yearsand it further excludes items that

" are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted bg V
the balance sheet date. : :

Deferred taxis the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the frnanual
statements and the correspondlngtax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.

. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that itis *
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are-not
recognised if the temporary differences arise from goodwill or from the initial recognition other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in.a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit. :

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that itis no Ionger probable that
suffument taxable profits will be-available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. |

" Deferred taxis calculated at the tax rates substantively enacted at the balance sheet date that are expected to apply in the period when the tiability is
settled, or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates to items charged
" orcredited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset as there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities:

Leases

“The Group adopted IFRS 16 (Leases) in the prior year. The Group applied the modified retrospectrve approach in adoptmg IFRS 16 to operating leases.
This method includes the calculated lease liabilities and right-of-use assets to be recognised in the consolidated balance sheet on the Group's -
transition date of 1 April 2019, without the requirement to restate prior periods. Under the standard, the Group also had the option to set the balance
of the right-of-use assets, on transition, at an amount equal to the lease liabilities. This option was taken s

.The Group recognises a rlght of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adJusted for ang lease pagments made at or béfore the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received. . .

The right-of-use asset is subsequentlg depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful
life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those
of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use assetis penodlcallg reduced by lmpalrment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain

" remeasurements of the lease Ilabrhtg :

The lease liability is mmallg measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the
“interest rate implicitin the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group's incremental borrowmg rate..Generally, the Group usés its
|ncremental borrowmg rate as the discount rate. .
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Signiﬁccznt accounting policies (continued)
Leases (conﬂnued)
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability compnse the-following:

®  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
s variable lease payments that dependon an index or rate, initially measured usrng the index or rate at the commencement date
& ‘amounts expected to bé payable under a residual value guarantee; and - : .
®  the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is.reasonably certain
.notto terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there i is achange in future lease
payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination dption.

Where the lease I|ab|||tg is remeasured in thls way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrgmgamount of the rlght-of use asset or is
recorded |n profn orloss if the carrgmg amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Plant, equipment, and owner occupied properly
All property, plant, and equrpment not classified as |nvestmem property, is carried at historic cost less deprecratron andany recogmsed
impairment loss. :

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, other than land and investrnent properties, less any residual value over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases: :

Freehold property 50 years
‘Leasehold improvements over period of the lease
Plantand machinery ~ 10'years
Motor vehicles . 4years
Fixtures and fittings Syears i . .
' Computer eqmpment 3two5years . : o C . N ' “

< The gain or loss arising on the disposal or.retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrgmg
amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of comprehenswe income. :

lnvestmem' property

The criteria-used to distinguish investment property from owner-occupied property is to consider whether the property is held for rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. Where this is the case, the Group recognises these owned or leased properties as investment properties. Investment
property is initially recognised at cost and revalued at the balance sheet date to fair value as determined by professionally qualified external valuers.
In accordance with IAS 40, investment property held as a leasehold is stated gross of the recognised right-of-use liability.

Gains or losses arising from the changes in fair value oflnvestment property are included in the statement of comprehensrve income for the period in
which they arise. In accordance with 1AS 40, as the Group uses the fair value model, no deprecuatron is provided in respect of investment properties
including integral plant .

Leasehold properties are classified as invéstment properties and included in the baldnce sheet at fair value. The obligation to the lessor for the
buildings element of the leasehold is included in the balance sheet at the present value of the minimum lease pagments at |ncepnon andis shown
within note 21. Note 21 does also include leases which are not classified as mvestment properties. - -

When the Group redevelops an emsung investment property for-continued future use as investment propertg, the propertg remains-an investment

property measured at fair value and is not reclassnfled

lnvesiment properlv under construction

Investment propertg under construction is mmallg recognised at cost and revaluéd at the balance sheet date to fair value as determmed by
professronallg qualified external valuers.’

Gains or losses arising from the changes in fair value of investment propertg under constructron are included in the Statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which- theg arise. : :
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets .
At each balance sheet date the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets [excluding investment property and derivative frnancnal instruments
which are carried at fair value) to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such'indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value-in-use (i.e. the net present value of its future cash flows discounted at the Group’s average

_ pre-taxinterest rate that reflects the borrowing costs and risk for the asset] :

Inventories - . .
lnventories, representing the cost of packing matérials; are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

‘ Financial lnstrumems

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognlsed on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a partg to the contractual provns:ons .
of the instrument. Financial assets at fairvalue through profit and loss (“FVTPL") are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on '
re-measurement recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. The net gain o loss recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is |ncluded in the ‘other gains and losses' line item in the statement of
comprehensrve income. :

A - Derivative financial instruments and hedge crccountlng

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of i interest rates, The Group uses |nterest rate swap contracts t0 hedge these exposures,
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group's policies
approved by the Board of Directors. The polrcg in respect of interest rates is to maintain a balance between flexibility and the hedging of interest

rate risk. . . .

Dérivatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequentlg reviewed at each balance sheet date. The fair-value of interest rate derivatives
at the reporting date is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the forward curves at the reporting date and the credit risk inherent in
the contract. ‘ :

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognlsed in the statement of comprehenswe income as they arise. The Group has
not adopted hedge accountmg :

B - Financial assets

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when theg are ongrnated All other financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially recognlsed when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

_Afinancial asset (unless itis a trade recelvable without a significant financing componentj-or fmancral liability is initially measured at fair value plus,
for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are dlrectlg attrlbutable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is |n|t|allg measured at the transaction price. . :

On initial recognition a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost~ FVOC! - debt investment; FVOCI - equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassufled subsequent to their initial recognmon unless the Company changes its business model for managing financial
assetsin which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the firstreporting period following the change in the business model.

Afinancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

® jtis held withina busmess model:whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractua) cash flows; and . .
8 its contractual terms give rise on SPECIerd dates to cash flows that are solely pagments of prmcnpal and interest on the principal amount
outstandmg

A debtinvestment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions:

® itis held withina business' model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
® jts contractual terms gnve rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prmcupal and interest on the principal
amount outstandlng . _ N
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2. Sighiﬁcqnt accounting policiés (continued)

E- Pinanclal liabilities and equnv

Notes to the Finaricial Statements

B - Financial assets (continued)
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by- -investment basis.

AII financial assets not classified as measured-at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. Th|s includes all derrvatrve
flnanual assets.

Subsequenl measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL — these assets (other than derivatives desrgnated as hedging instruments)-are subsequentlg measured at fair value. Net
gams and Iosses including any interest or dividend income, are recogmsed in profit or loss.

Frnanctal assets at amortised cost — these assets are subsequentlg ‘measured at amortised cost usmgthe effectrve interest method. The amortised
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and rmpalrment are recognised in profit or loss Any gain or
loss on derecognltlon is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI - these assets are - subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecogpnition,

" gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or Ioss .

Equity i investments at FVOCI - these assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Drvrdends are recogmsed as income in proflt or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents.a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognrsed in0Cland are never
reclassified to profit or loss. . .

C-~ lmpalrment of ﬁnanclal assets

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses [“ECLs”). When determining -
whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since-initial recognition and when estimating ECLs; the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available wrthout undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.
The Company considers a financial asset o be in default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations ta the Company in full. Such assets
have historically had immaterial Ievels of bad debt and consequentlg the Group has not recognlsed any impairment provision agalnst them.

: Meusurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value ‘of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the entltg in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Compang expects to receive ). ECLs are
discounted at the effectrve interest rate of the financial asset. :

wme-oﬂs

.The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off [elther part|a|lg orin full] to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recoverg

' D -Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible .
10 a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. The carrying amounts of these assets approxrmate to the
fair value.

Finaricial instruments issued by the Company are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the followmg two condmons

a) theyinclude no contractual obligations upon the Company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange ﬂnancral assets or frnancral
liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Company; and .

b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-derivative that includes no obligation to
deliver a variable number of the Company’s own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the Company exchangmg a fixed
amount of cash or other flnancnal assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument 5o classified takes the -
legal form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called up share capital and share premlum account
exclude amounts in relation to those shares. : :
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2. Significant accounting policies‘(coritinued)
E - Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

. Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability i is classified as-at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading, itis a derivative or itis designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains. and.
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured atamortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognmon is also recognised in‘profit or loss.

Retirement benem costs

Pension costs represent contributions payable to défined contribution schemes and are charged as an expense 10 the statement of corﬁprehensive
income as they fall due. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group.

" Share-based payments . ' )
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees. These are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the share-based payment is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of shares that will eventually vest. ’

Fair value is measured by use of the Black-Scholes model and excludes the effect of non-market based vesting condmons The expected life used
in the mode! has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural
considerations. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recovered in the statement of
comprehensive income such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate with a corresponding adjustment to equity reserves.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is recognised for the goods or services acquired, measured initially at the fair value of the liability.
At each balance sheet date until the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement; the fair value of the Ilabrlltg isre- measured with any changes in
fair value recognrsed in the statement of comprehensive i mcome for the gear :

Critical uccounm\g estimates and judgements

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described above, rhe Directors are required to make judgements; estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated .
assumptions are based on historical expenence and other factors that are consrdered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estlmates

The estimates and underlying assumptnons are reviéwed on an ongoing basns Revisions to accounting estlmates are recognised in the penod in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects onlg that perrod -or in the period of the revision and future periods 'if the revision affects both
currentand future penods :

l-:stimate of tair value o! Investment Properues and Investment Property under Construchon (cmical

accounting estlmate) .
The Group’s self storage centres and stores under development are valued using a discounted cash flow methodology which is based on projections of
net operating income. The Group emplogs expert external valuers, CBRE, who report on the values of the Group’s stores on an annual basis. The stores
within the Armadillo Partnerships are valued by Jones Lang LaSalle. The principal assumptions underlying the estimation of the fair value are those
related to: stabilised occupancy levels; expected future growth in stdrage rents; capitalisation rates; and discount rates. A more detailed explanation
of the background and methodology adopted in the.valuation of the Group’s investment properties is set outin note 15 to the financial statements.

Judgemem of business combinations . ' L ' e

The Directors assess whether the acquisition of property through the purchase of a corporate vehicle should be accoumed for asan assetpurchase -
.orabusiness combination. Where the acquired corporate vehicle is an integrated set of activities and assets that is capable of being conducted and
managed to provide a return to investors, the transaction is accounted for as a business combination. Where there are no such significant items,

the transaction is treated as an asset purchase. The Directors assess when the risks and rewards assocrated with an acquisition or disposal have
transferred. There have been no business combinations in the year. : -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Revenue o ,
_ Analysis of the Group's operating revenue can be found below and in the Portfolio Summary on page 30.

2021 .o 2020

£000. £000

Open stores . ) . . '
Self storage income : . ] 113,119 107,293
Insurance income ' . 14,517 - 13,432
Packing materials income L ’ ) ' ‘ . 2,771 2,505
- Dtherincome from storage customers . o LT ’ 1,275 1,434
Anciltary store rental income ' . o N - _ : . 786 710
. . 132,468 125,374°

. Other revenue . .

Non-storage income * T o o . ) 1,420 1,706
Management fees earned e . S : ) . 1,353 2,233
Totalrevenue - ) A A . 135,241 129,313

.

Non:storage income derives principallg from rental income earned from tenants of properties awaiting development. .

4. 'Segmental information

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be |dent|f|ed on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the.
Chief Executive to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance Given the nature of the Group s business, there is one
segment which is the provision of self storage and related services.

Revenue represents amounts derived from the provision of self starage and, related services which faII within the Group’s ordmarg activities after
deduction of trade discounts and value added tax. The Group’s net assets, revenue and profit before tax are attributable to one activity, the provrsnon
ofselfstorage and related services. These all arlse in the United Kingdom in the current gear and prior year.

Profit for the year
" a) Profit for the year has been arrived at after charglng/(creditlngj:
‘ ' : 0 2020
Note . £000 . - £000 -
Depreciation ofplant equnpment and owner- occupned prcpertg D ’ . 14p - 803 783
Depreciation of interest in leasehold properties . o ' ) 1,272 1,198
Gain on the revaluation of investment property - - R . ' - (189,277) (23,193)
Profit on disposal of investment property . : . . B - (57} - .
Cost ofinventories,recqgnised as an expense . : ”~_ ’ ;.189 1,021
.Employee costs (see note 6} - . ’ . : N i - 19,769 | 12,292
QOperating lease rentals  ~ ' ) . Co ' . o ' 4 : 5
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5. Profit for the year (continued) -

b) Analysis of cuditor's remuneration:

2021 - 2020

£000 £000

Fees payable to the Company’s-auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 227 223

Fess payable to the Company's auditar for the- subsidiaries’ annaual accounts, - 36 33
Total audit fees 263 256

. Audit related'assurance services - interim review - 42 35

a2 35

Total non-audit fees

Fees payable to KPMG LLP and their associates for non-audit services to the Company are not requlred to be disclosed because the consohdated .

financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis. Fees charged by KPMG LLP to'the Group’s associates, Armadillo -
Storage Holding Compang Limited and Armadillo Storage Holding Compang 2 Limited in the year amounted to £80,000 (2020 £6?000] which aif

refated to statutorg financial statement audnt services.

6 Employee costs . . o .
The average monthlg number of full-time equwalent employees [mcludmg Executive Dlrectors] was:

2021 2020
Number Nuamber
Sales . 310 304
" Administration 60 57
370 .. 3681
At 31 March 2021 the total number of Group employees was 412.(2020: 405).

2021 2020
£000 £000

Their aggregate remuneration compnsed .
Wages and salaries 13,935 12,741
Social security costs 2,291 .. 1,681
Other pension costs. 674 614
+ Share-based payments 2,869 2,256

' 17292

" 19,769

Details of Directors’ Remuneration is given on pages 90 to 111, The Directors are the only employees assessed as key management personnel.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

7. Investment income

(%

- 2021 . » 2020

v £000 £000

Bankmterest receivable - : : . L : . ] ’ . 26 "33

UnwmdmgcfdlscountonCapxtalGoodsSchemerecelvable : . . 43 .8

Totat investment income ' . . T . : " 69 ‘ N 114"

. 8 Finance costs .

2021 - 12020 -

£000 . £000

In'terest'on bank borrowings A ’ e ’ ’ - 79,380 10,579
- Capitalised interest - o . ) (2.435) (1,556)
‘Interest on obligations under lease liabilities ‘ ' . ) .72 . 820 -

Total interest payable - . . o A 8,017 9',843‘

‘ Fair value movement on derivatives S _ o ' . 148 908

Total finance costs . N o . ' 8165 10,751

. 9 Taxation .

~ The Group converted to a REIT in January 2007, As a result, the Group does not pag UK corporatlon tax on the profits and gains from |ts qualifying
* rental business in-the UK prov:ded that it meets certain conditions. Non- quahfgmg profits and gains of the Group are sub)ect to corporation tax as
_normal. The Group monitors its compliance with the REIT conditions. There have been no breaches of the. condmons to date.

AUK corporation tax rate of 19% (effective 1 April 2020) was substantlvely enacted on 17 March 2020, reversing the previously enacted reduction
in the rate from 19% to 17%. In the March 2021 Budget 2021 it was announced that the main rate of corporation tax was going to increase to 25% from .
1 April 2023, but this was not substantively enacted by 31 March 2021. Any deferred tax at 31 March 2021 has been calculated at 19% (2020: 19%).

3

2021 . - 2020

’ UK current tax . B X . ) . - £000 £000
=Current gear - . ’ . . B . ' “. . 298 940 .
= Prior year . B : R ' ) - - (162) (69)

R 636 87t

B
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9 Taxation (continued)
Areconciliation of the tax charge is shown below:

2021 . 2020

£000- © £000
Profit before tax 25,822 . 93447

. Tax charge at 19% (2020 - 19%]_ihereon 50,506 - 172,755 -
Effects of: : , . ‘

* Revaluation of investment properties : . - (35,963} (4,407)
Share of profit of associates (598) (163)
Other permanent differences (1,921) (2,262)
Profits from the tax-exempt business (11,226) - (9,983)
Current year tax charge 798 - - 340

. Prior year adjustment (162) . (69) .
Total tax charge 636 871

. .

At 31 March 2021 the Group has unutilised tax [osses from the non- REIT taxable business of £34.2 million (2020 £34.2 mllhon] available for offset
against certam types of future taxable profits. All Iosses can be carried forward mdeflmtelg

" 10. Adjusted profit -

2021 © 2020
£000 £000
Profit before tax ) 265,822 . 93,447
Gain on revaluation of invéstment properties — Group ) - [188,277) ~[23,193)
- in associate [net of deferred tax) ' ’ (2,074) {100].
Change in fair value of interest rate derivatives: - Group . ) . ] — 148 908 -
' ) - in associate : : .. B . (?)
Gain on disposal of investment property - Co(57)
Adjusted profit before tax 174,625 ?0,998"
CTax : (636) (871)."
Adjusted profit after tax 73,989 70,127

Adjuéted profit before tax which excludes gains and losses on the revaluation of investment properties, changes in fair value of interest rate -

derivatives and net gains and losses on disposal of investment property have been disclosed as, in the Board s view, this provides a clearer
" understanding of the Group's underlying trading performance.
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.‘ 11 Dividends

2024 2020

£000 © E000
Amounts recogmsed as distributions to equity holders in the year. : . .
Final dividend far the year ended 31 March 2020 of 16.7p (2019: 16. 5p) per share. . ' : 29,124 27,319
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 17.0p (2020: 121p) per share. o ' . 29,684 28,387
i : i 7 -
58,808 .55,206 ,
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 17.0p (2020: 16.7p) per share. ’ A : 29746 - - 29,124

: SubJect to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meetmg tobe held on 22 July 2021 the final dividend will be pald on 30 July 2021. The
ex-div date is 8.July 2021 and the record date is 9 Julg 2021 '

The Propertg Income Distribution [“PID") payable for the year is32.0 pence per share [2020 30.6 pence‘per share]
12. Earnings per share

Yearended N March 2024 ) Yeavrended 31 March 2020

Earnings . Shares Pence Earnings Shares Pence.
] £000 million . per'share £000 - : million per share
Basic - C ' , 265,186 A7a1 1523 92,57 165.8 | 558
Dilutive share options : L . - 06 - (0.5) . - - 02 3 (0.2)
Dituted . o 265486 247 1518 92,5% 1665 556 .
Adjustments: . : . : .
Gain on revaluation of investment properties . [189,2??] ’ .- (108:3) [23,193] ' - {13.9)
Change in fair value of interest rate derivatives .. 148 - 0.1 908 5 - 0.5
Gain on disposal of investment property R - - - - (52) - (0.0)
Share of associate fair value gains and losses ' (2,0868) ' e (1.2) (107) . - (0.1) .
EPRA - diluted : ’ 73089 17 . 424 0122 . 1865 - 424

EPRA-basic - "73,989 . 141 425 20122 . 1658 423 -

]

The calculation of basic earmngs is based on profit after tax for the year. The welghted average number of shares used to calculate diluted earmngs
~ per share has been adjusted for the conversion of share options.

EPRA earmngs and earmngs per ordinary share have been dlsclosed togivea clearer understandmg of the Group S underlgnng tradmg performance

~
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13. Net assets per share

- In October 2019 EPRA issued new Best Practices Recommendations guidelines for NetAsset Value (NAV) metrics, these recommendanons are ,
effective for accounting penods starting on 1 January 2020 and have been adopted by the Group this year.

- EPRA have introduced three new NAV metncs EPRA Net Tang|ble Assets [NTA], EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (NRV) and EPRA Net Disposal Value [NDV]

EPRANTA s considered to be most consistent with the nature of B|g Yellow S busnness which provides sustainable long-term progressive returns.
- EPRANTAis shown in the table below. This measure is further adjusted by the adjustment the Group makes for purchaser’s costs, which is the Group’s

- Adjusted Net Asset Value (or Adjusted NAV]

Net assets pér share are equity shareholders’ funds divided by the number of shares at the year end. The shares currently held in the.Group’s. ’
Employee Benefit Trust are excluded from both net assets and the number of shares. Adjusted net assets per share include the effect of those shares
:ssuable under employee share option schemes and the effect of alternative valuation methodologg assumptions (see note-15).

Year ended 31 March 2020

Year ended 31 March 2021 .
Equity . Equity
attributable . attributable”
to ordinary . to ordinary - .
shareholders Shares Pence shareholders Shares Pence
. £000 miltion pershare £000 million per share,
BasicNAV . : 1,453,895 174,757,563 " 831.9 1,163,876 166,015,620 7011
Share and save.as you earn schemes . 1,451 1,427,948 (5.9): 1,262 1,371,985 (5.0)
Diluted NAV : , o 1,455,386 176,185,511 8260 . 165,138 167,387,605 6961
Fair value of derivatives — Group . as - 03" 327- - 0.2
Fair value of derivatives — share of associate 6 - - N = =
Deferred tax in respect of valuation surpluses associate 1,818 - 1.0 1,332 - 08
Intangible assets ) (1,433) . - . - [(08) (1433) ° - (0.9)
EPRANTA S ; : " 1456212 176,185,511 - 826.5 1,165364 167387605 696.2
Valuation methoddlogg assumption [_sée note 15).(£000} 110,393 - 62.7 91,789 - 54.8
Adjusted NAV : ' " 1,566,605 176,185,511 " -989.2 1,257153 167387605 751.0
~14. Non-current assets .
a) Investment property, investment property under construction and rlght-q!—hse assets
' ’ . . investment
Investment property under- Right-of-use
property construction assets . Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At3iMarch2019 . . oo T 1,354,430 91,115 18774 1464319
Additions - : ’ . 9,860 56,859 . - 253 .66,9?2
Transfer on opening of stores - ' i ) . ) 9,070 (8,070) - -
Revaluation (see note 15) . ) . 23,405 (2i2) - 23,193
Disposals = ; ‘ T (11,645) {2,393) - (14,038)
Depreciation . . E o . - - (1198) - - (1,198) -
At 31 March 2020 . ] S ' | 1,385,120 136,299, 17829 .~ - 1,539,248
Additions Do ) : 11‘,65?' 63,174' - 74,831
Transfer on opening of stores - _ ) ’ 36,070 (36,070 . - -
Revaluation (see note 15] S ) B © 189,143 134 - '189,277
Depreciation . : o - - (1,185) {1,185)
At 31 March 2021 - ) ' 1,621,980 163,537 16,644 1,802,171
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14 Non-current assets (contmued)

u) lnvestmenl properiy, investment propextv under construction and rlgm-oi-use asseis (continued)

The right-of-use assets represent the present value of minimum lease payments for leasehold propertles see note 21 for further details of the
obligations under lease Ilabnlmes

The income from self storage accommodatuon earned by the Group from its investment property is disclosed in note 3. Direct Operatlng expenses,
which are all applied to generating rental income, arising on the investment property in the year are disclosed in.the Portfolio Summary on page 30.
Included within additions is £2.1 million-of capitalised interest (2620: £1.6 million}, calculated at the Group’s average borrowing cost for the year
of 2.9%. 56 of the Group's |nvestment properties are pledged as security for loans, with a total external value.of £1, 283 1 million.

_The disposal in investment propertg in the prior year is the sale of the part, ofthe Wyvern Industrial Estate in New Malden London for £11.8 million.
The disposal in investment property under construction is the sale of a plot oflandin Slough for £2.4 million. The net proflt on d|sposal
of these. two properties was £57,000. :

bj Pla_nl, equipment, and ownex-ot:cuxiled.properlv

Fixtures,

" Freehold Leasehold ‘Plam and - Motor  fittings & office ~ Right of use
property impr " machinery vehicles equipment ‘assets - Total
£000 . £000 £000 - £000 £000 £000 "£000
Cost . o » ' . ' S ’ .
At 31 March 2018 - 2235 74 62 .3 918 - 3931
Retirement of fully depreciated assets - S (3) {283) - T - (581} - . (867) - -
" Additions 40 - 6 101 ' - .'833 - 980
Accounting policy change - C - L= - - 872 o8
At31March2020 . 2275 . 7 490 o3 1,170 872 4,916
Retirement of fully depreciated assets - . (18) (167) : - (602) e = (782)
Additions X - - 116 - 694 - 810
At 31 March 2021 o X A 53 - . 439 o3 1,262 872 4,939
' bepreclatlon : , ) ' - ' ’ _ - :
At31March2019 . (494). - - (24) (348} ) (21) " (105) - (992)
_ Retirement of fully depreciated assets - 3 283 - 581 o= 867
Charge forthe year - ° . (a2) R ) (115) . ey (508). (106): (783)
At 31 March 2020 R - (536) o (28 . (180) -~ (28) (32) - " (106) (g08) -
- Retirement of fully depreciated assets - 18 167 ) - .. 802 - 787
Charge forthe year (57) [4] : [1115] (4) . " .[622) (105) . - . (S08)
At 31 March 2021 o (s93) . (12) - (=9) .- (=& (s (21)  (1029)
Net book value ' C ' » . .
At3tMarch2021 < 1,682 a7 , 310 - 1,210 661 3,910

AU3LMarch2020 e o5t 310 4 L38 . %6 4,008°
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14, Non-currént assets (continued).

c) lntanglble assets’

The intangible asset relates to the Big Yellow brand, which was acquired through the acquisition of Big Yellow SeIfStorage Company Limited in
19989; The carrying value remains Unchanged from the prior year as there is considered to be no impairment in the value of the asset. The asset
has an indefinite life and is tested annually for i impairment ar more frequentlg if there are indicators of impairment.

d) Investment o ] . o
During the year, the Group invested £450,000 in DS Operatioris Centre Limited, a company which provides out-of-hours monitoring and alarm
receiving services, including for the Group’s stores. The investment is carried at cost and tested annually for impairment.
_e) Investment in associates
Armadillo

The Group has a 20% interest in Armadillo Storage Holding Company Limited [“Armad|llo 1) and a 20% interest in Armadillo Storage Holdmg
Compang 2 Limited [“Armadnllo 27}. Both interests are accounted for as associates, using the equity method of accounting, Both companies are
incorporated, reg|stered and operate in England and Wales. Their reglstered ‘office is 2 The Deans, Bridge Road, Bagshot, Surrey, GU19 SAT.

. C . . ’ Armadillo 1 o Armadnln 2 . . . Total. ’
1’31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 . 31 March 2020 31 March ZOZi 31 March 2020
. £000 £000 £000 . £000 ¢ EQ00 £000
At the beginning of the year . - 7,027 ' §,804. _ 4,233 ’ 4,249 11,260 - 11,053 .
Share of results (see below) ) o 2,013 549 1,135 307 348 . 856
Dividends . '_ (342) (326) . (348) (323) - " (688} . [649)
Share of net assets . ’ © 8,698 7027 5022 . 4,233 " 13,220 . 11,260

The Group s total subscription for partnershlp capltal and advances in Armadillo 1 is £1,920,000 and £2,689,000 in. Armadillo 2.

The investment properties owned by Armadillo’1 and Armadlllo 2 have been valued at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 by Jones Lang LaSalle
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14. Non-current assets (continued)

_ e) Investmem in assoclates (contmued)

The figures below show the trading results of the Armadnllo Pannershlps and the Group’s share of the results and the net assets of the
Armadillo Partnershnps .

Armadillo 1 : Armadillo 2

Yeerended Yearén(ied Yearendad' " Yearended
31 March " 31 March 31'March . 31 March’
2021 2020 2021 2020
* - £000 £000 £000 fooo
Statement of comprehensive income (100%) : . . :
Revenue - o N : 11,338 - 10,525 ' 6,664 6,212
_Cost of sales - . ' : N o (5.967) (5608)  (2953) .  (2940)
Administrative expenses . . i . (345) (395) ‘{161) © o {L133)°
Operatingprofit . ' ' ' . 5026 4522 3,550 2,139
" Gain on the revaluation oflnvestment propemes ) 8,565 - . 749 4,235 812
Net interest payable | * . T (14727) {1,295) . (752) (923)
Fair value movement of interest rate derivatives . - . ' '[18] T 4 (11) ) 32
Deferred and curent tax ' : © (2,330) - (1,238) (1,347) (520)
" Profit attributable to shareholders ° ‘ . ' 10,066 2,744 . 5675 . 1,540
Dividends paid ’ o © 7 (4,708) (1,630) (1,730) (1,615)
Retained profit/(loss) , A - 8,358 1,114 3,945 (73
Batance sheet (100%) . ) ) : . ) :
investment property : : . o 81,075 70,825 . . 48425 © 43,825
Interest in leasehold properties . . o 2,750 1,950 - o9 2,574
‘Other non-current assets . . o . 1,204 1,219 2,004 © 2,029
Current assets ) . - ) : 1,169 - 3,621 339 © 3,100
Current liabilities - o ) : (2,923) . ' (35122) (1,946) (24,583)
Derivative financial instruments . ’ ) ) {18) - (11) -
Non-current liabilities . - ' (38,767) (7361) (25,918) " (5,778)
‘Net assets {100%) : s ) ) © . 43490 - 35132 . 25412 . 21,167
Group share : _ . ] : . .
Operating profit : Co . .- 1,008 904 .- 710 428
Gain on the revaluation of investment properties . ) 1,713 " 150 847 162
Netinterest payable - . (235) (259) - (150) -(185)
' Falrvaluemovemen(ofln(erestra(ederlvanves . . - : ©(4) B 1 ) (2) 6
Deferred and current tax : : (466) (247) - (270) *(104)
Profit attributable to shareholders - N ' . 2013 - 543 . 1135 307
Dividends paid L ‘ : h (342) © (328) . (346) .(323)
Retained profit/[loss) o : 1671 - 23 . 789 TS
Associates’ net assets . . : T ' 8,698 . - 7,027 ‘ . 5.022. 4,233

. » .
Included within administrative expenses in Armadlllo 2in the prioryearis a performance fee pagable to Big Yellow of £1 mitlion.

The loans in Armadlllo 1 and Armadillo 2 in the prior year were shown as due within one gear as their expiry at that balance sheet date was
July 2020. Both loans were refinanced subsequent to the March 2020 year end through to April 2023.
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15. Va]uatidn of investment projoérty '

. Revaluation on
Deemed cost deemed cost Valuation

) £000 . £000 © £000
Freehold stores - . ] . . ) L

‘At 31 March 2020 C . ) 672,842 679,868 1,352,710
Transfér from investment property under construction ) : . - 36,885 - (815) 36,070
Movement in year ‘ B ' o 11,334 190,716 © . 202,110
At 31 March 2021 o . o TR 869,769 1,590,890
Leasehold stores . . . . .

At31 March 2020 o . : - - 13,027 19,383 32410
Movementinyear : : S 263 [1,573) (1,310)
' At3tMarch 2021 . ' : ' . ' 13,290 17810 31,100

'To'tal of open stores . ) .

At 31 March 2020 ’ o ’ - 685,869 699,251 1,385,120
Transfer from investment property under construction . . ) o 36,885 (815) 36,070
Movement in year _ . 11,652 189,143 200,800
At 31 March 2021 ) ’ . ’ . 734,411 887,579 -+ 1,621,990
Investmém property under construction . B .o -

- At 31 March 2020 ' : : 136,303 - (4) 136,299
Transfer to investment property  ° ) . . (36,885) 815 (36,070}
Movement in year ) - ’ _ ’ 63,174 ] 134 63,308
At 31 March 2021 ' . o o " 162,592 . 945 163,537
Valuation of all investment property
At 31 March 2020 : : o B 822,172 699,247 1,521,419

* Movement in year : < , ’ _ o 74,831 189,277 264,108

At-31 March 2021 ) . ' “ 897,003 888,524 1,785,527

The Group has classmed the fair value investment property and the investment property under construction within Level 3 ofthe falr value hierarchy.
There has been no transfer t0 or from Level 3inthe year.

The wholly owned freehold and leasehold investment properties have been valued at 31 March 2021 by external valuers, CBRE Limited (* CBRE").

The Valuation has been prepared in accordance with the version of the RICS Valudtion — Global Standards [mcorporatrng the International Valuation
Standards] and the UK national supplement (“the Red Book”] current as at the valuation dateé. The valuation of each of the investment properties and
the investment properties under construction has been prepared on the basis of either Fair Value or Fair Value as a fully equupped operatlonal entity,
having regard to trading potennal as appropriate. -

The valuation has been provrded for financial reportlng purposes and as such, is a Regulated Purpose Valuation as defnned in the Red Book. In
complrance with the dusclosure requlrements of the Red Book, CBRE have confirmed that:

& thisis CBRE’s second annual valuation for these purposes on behalf of the-Group;

® one of the members of the RICS who is a signatory to the valuation has provided valuation advice to the Group for the same purposes as this
valuation on a regular basis since September 2004. This is the second dccasion on WhICh the other member has been a signatory;

®  (BRE do not provide other sugmﬂcam professional or agency services to the Group; .

® . inrelation to the precedrngﬂnancral year of CBRE, the proportion of the total fees pagable bg the Group to the total fee income ofthe firmis less
than 5%; and

®  the fee payable to CBRE:is a fixed amount per asset and is not contmgent on the apprarsed value
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15, Vc:lucrtlon of mvestment property (contmued)

l.imlted Comparable Market Evidence Self Storage

Thé self storage properties have been valued on the basis of Fair Value as fully equipped operational entities, havrng regard to trading potential. Due to
. the specialised nature and use of the buildings the approach is to adopt a profits method of valuation and then consider the Tesults in the context of
recent comparable evidence of transactions in the sector. : :

The profits method requires an estimate of the future cashflow that can be generated from the use of the bmldlng as a self storage facility, assumlng
areasonably efficient operator, and then applying a suitable multiple to the net operating profit. The comparison with recent transactiors requires the
evidence to be considered in terms of the multiple on net operating profit (or EBITDA/EBITDAR] value per square foot, yield profile etc and then
adjusted to reflect differences in |ocat|on building factors, tenure, trading maturity and tradmg risk.

,Thls mirrors the tgpn:al approach of purchasers in the self storage market. However, in vnew of the relatively limited availability of comparable market
evidence this requires a degree of valuer judgment. In particular, most of the transactions have comprised share sales due to the nature of the asset’
class and the terms of those transactions have mostlg been kept confrdennal between the.parties.

Portfolio Premlum )

CBRE's valuation report-confirms that the propemes have been valued |nd|V|duaIIg but that |fthe portfoho was to be sold as asingle lotorin '
selected groups  of properties, the total value could d|ffer CBRE state that in current market conditions they are ofthe view that there could be
a portfolio premlum

Lssumptlons .

A. -Net operatirig income is based on projected revenue received less projected operating costs, which include a management fee to take account of
central/head office Costs. The initial net operating income is calculated by estimating the net operating income in.the first 12 months following
the valuation date.

8. The net operatmg income in future years is ca|culated assummg elther straight- Ime absorption from day.one actual occupancg orvariable
' absorption over years one to five of the cash flow penod 10 an estimated stabilised/mature occupancy level. In the valuation the assumed
stabilised occupancy level for the 78 trading stores (both freeholds and leaseholds) open at 31 March 2021 averages 86.7% (31 March 2020: 75
stores averaging 84.4%): The projected revenues and costs have been adjusted for estimated cost inflation and revenue growth. The average time
assumed for the 78 stores to trade at their maturity levels'is 8.7 months (31 March 2020: 21. S months]. - :

C.. The capitalisation rates applied to exrstmg and future net cash flow have been estimated by reference to underfgmg yields for asset types such
as industrial, distribution and retail vvarehousmg, yields for other trading property types such as student housing and hotels, bank base rates,
ten-year money rates, inflation and the available evidence of transactions in the sector. The valuation included in the accounts assumes rental
growth in future periods. If an assumption of no rental growth is applied to the external valuation, the netinitial yield pre-administration expenses
for the 78 stores is 5.90% {31 March 2020: 6.15%) rising to a stabilised net yield pre-administration expenses of 6.25% (31 March 2020: 6.78%).

. The weighted.average exit capitalisation rate adopted [for both freeholds and leaseholds] is 5.70% (31 March 2020: 6. 07%).

D. The future net cash flow projections [|nclud|ng revenue growth and cost inflation) have been discounted at a rate that reflects the risk associated
.with each asset. The weighted average annual dlscount rate adopted (for both freeholds and leaseholds ) is 8.73% (31 March 2020 9. 29%]

E.” Weighted average purchaser’s costs of 6. 752% have been adopted reﬂectmg current progressive Stamp Duty Land Tax rates. Purchasers costs
(calculated on the same basis] plus sale costs of 1% have been adopted on the notional sales in the tenth year in relation to the freehold and long
leasehold stores . .

Short leasehold

The same methodologg has been used as for freeholds but the exit capitalisation rate is adjusted to reﬂect the unexplred Iease termat extt
The average unexplred term ofthe Group’s six short leasehold properties is 11.9 years (31 March 2020: 12.9 years unexplred]
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"15. Valuation of investment property '(c‘onfi_nued) :

Sensillvmes

As noted in ‘Significant judgements and key estimates’ on page 141, self storage valuatlons are complex, derived from data whuch is not widely
publicly available and involve a degree of judgement. For these reasons we have classified the valuations of our property portfolio as Level 3 as
defined by IFRS 13. inputs to the valuations, some of which are ‘unobservable’ as defined by IFRS 13, include capitalisation yields, stable occupancy
rates, and rental growth rates. The existence of an increase of more than one unobservable mput would augment the impact on valuation. The impact

. on the valuation would be mitigated by the inter-relationship between unobservable inputs moving in opposite directions. For example, an increase
in stable occupancy may be offset by an increase in yield, resutting in no netimpact on the valuatlon A sensmvntg analysis shownng the impact on
valuations of changes in glelds and stable occupancg is shown below:’

Impact of a change in : : Impact of a change in

capitallsation rates ) stabilised occupancy assumption
25bpsdecrease  25bpsincrease 1%increase 1% decrease
Reported Group Co . - ' . 4.44% (4.06%). 1.55% (1.55%)

Asensitivity analysis has not been provided for a change in the rental growth rate adopted as there'is a'relationship between this measure and the
discount rate adopted. So, in theary, an |ncrease in the rental growth rate would give rise to a corresponding increase in the discount rate and the
-resulting value |mpact would be limited. .

Investment properties under construcuon

CBRE have valued the stores in development adopting the same methodology as set-out above but on the basis of the cash flow projection expected
for the store at opening and after allowing for the outstanding costs to take each scheme from its current state to completion and full fit-out. CBRE
have allowed for holding costs and construction contingency, as appropriate. Four of the schemes valued do not yet have planning consent and CBRE
have reflected the planmng risk in their valuation. . .

Immature stores. valuer judgement

" CBRE have assessed the value of each propertg individually. However, three of the Group’s stores are reIatlveIg immature and have low initial cash
flows. CBRE have endeavoured to reflect the nature of the cash flow profile for these properties in their valuation, and the higher associated risks
relating to the as yet unproven future cash flows, by adjustment to the capitalisation rates and discount rates adopted Immature low cash flow stores
of this nature are rarely, if ever, traded individually in the market, unless as part of a distressed sale or similar situation, although there have beeh
transactions where immature low cash flow stores have been traded as part of a group or portfolio transaction. Please note CBRE's comments above

* in refation to limited comparable market evidence in the self storage sector. The degree of valuation judgement relating to the immature stores is
greater than in relation to the balance of the properties due to there being even less market evidence that might be available for more mature
properties and portfolios. CBRE state that i in practice, if an actual sale of the properties were to be contemplated then any immature low cash flow
stores would normally be presented to the market for sale lotted or grouped with other more mature assets owned by the same entity, in order to
alleviate the issue of negative or low short-term cash flow. This approach would enhance the marketabnlltg of the group of assets and assistin
achlevmgthe best price available in the market by diluting the cash flow risk. .

CBRE have not adjusted their opinion of Fair Value to reflect such a grouplng of the immature assets with other propertles in the portfolio and all stores
have been valued individually. However, they hlghhght the matter to alert the Group to the manner in which the properties might be grouped or lotted
in‘'order to maximise their attractlveness 1o the marketplace. CBRE consider this approach to be a valuation agsumption but not a Special Assumption,
the latter being an assumptlon that assumes facts that differ from the actual facts existing at the valuation date and which, if not adopted, could
produce a material difference in value. As noted above, CBRE have not assumed that the entire partfolio of properties owned by the entity would be
sold as a single lot and the value for the whole portfalio in the context of a sale as a single lot may differ significantly from the aggregate of the
individual values for each property in the portfolio, reflecting the lotting assumption described above. '
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15. Valuation of inve‘stment‘ property (continued)

" Valuation ussumpilon for purchaser s costs

The Group's investment property assets have been valued for the purposes of the financial statements after deductmg notional welghted average
purchaser’s cost ofS.?SZ% on the net value, as if they were sold directly as property assets. The valuation is an asset valuation which is entirely
linked to'the operating performance of the business. The assets would have to be sold with the benefit of operational contracts, erﬁplogment contracts
and customer contracts, which would be very difficult to achieve except in a corporate structure. This approach follows the logic of the valuation

" methodology in that the valuation is based on a capitalisation of the net operating income after allowing a deduction for operational cost and an

“allowance for central administration costs. Sale in a corporate structure would result in a reduction in the assumed Stamp, Duty Land Tax butan
increase in other transaction costs reflecting additional due diligence resultmg in a reduced notional purchaser's cost of 2.75% of gross value. All the
significant sized transactions that have been concluded in the UK in recent years were completed in a corporate structure. The Group therefare
instructed CBRE to carry out an additional valuation on the above basis, and this results in a higher property valuation at 31 March 2021 of £1,895.0°
million (£109.4 million higher than the value recorded in the financial statements). Under the revised valuation of purchaser’s costs of 2.75%, the total .

- valuations in the two Armadillo Partnerships performed by Jones Lang LaSalle are £4.9 million higher than the value recorded in the financial
statements, of which the Groups share is £1.0 million. The sum of these is £110.4 million and translates 10-62.7 pence per share. We have included-
this revised valuation in the adjusted diluted net asset calculation (see no(e 13). . :

16. Trade and other- receivables

31 March 31 March

2021 . 2020
“ . -£000° £000
Current ) : . . .
Trade receivables > . . o ' ) 3,562 4,399 - -
Capital Goods Scheme receivable ) ’ . : v 525 722
Other receivables ’ - . . 1,474 602.
Prepayments and accrued income . : . . : ) " 2,203 - 2,158
72,764 7.882
. Non-current - v
Capital Goods Scheme receivable ) T . ) ’ ' 163 . 660

Trade receivables are net of a bad debt prowsnon of £223,000 (2020: £176 000] The Directors consader that the carrgmg amount of trade and other
receivables approxmates their fair value. . .

The Financial Review contains commentary on the Capital Goods Scheme receivable.

Trade receivables

The Group does not typically.offer credit terms toits customers, requmngthem to pay in advance of their storage period and hence the Group is'not-
exposed to significant credit risk. A late charge of 10% is applied to a customer’s account if they are more than 10 days overdue in their payment.

The Group provides for receivables on'a specific basis. There is a right of lien over the customers’ goods, so if they have not paid within a certain time
frame, we have the right to sell the items they store to recoup the debt owed. Trade receivables that are ovéerdue are provnded for based on estimated
irrecoverable amounts determined by reference to past default experience. ' -

~ * Forindividual storage cusmmers, the Group does not perform credit checks, however this is mitigated by the fact that these customers are required -
0 pay in advance, and also to pay a deposit ranging from one week to four weeks’ storage income. Before accepting a new business customer who
wishes to use a number of the Group's stores, the Group uses an external credit rating to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. There are no customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors with a carrying amount of £210,000 (2020: £3?9 ,000) WhICh are past due at the
repomng date for which the Group has not provided as there has not been a significant change in credit qualng and the amounts are still con5|dered
recoverable. The average age of these receivables is 25 days past due (2020: 16 days past due).
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16 Trade and other recelvables (contmued)

Ageing of past due but not impuued receivables

2024 - 2020

‘ _ . £000 . £000

1-30 days . L o 163 " 200

31-60 days L . T S o ' ‘15 a5

60 + days ! - o o g _ 32 134

Total - ’ S ' ' « 4 210 38
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts ’

2021 - 2020

- £000 £000

Balance at the beginning of the year . - T - : . S . 176 - o30

Amounts provided inyear . - o . C ) ' : © 239 © 368

“Amounts written off as uncallectible B : . L . ) (192) (222)

Balance at the end of the year R . : 223 176

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated Accordingly, the Oirectors believe that there isno
further crednt provision requued in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts.

Ageing of impaired h'ade receivables

2021 2020

B . £000 '£000 .
1—'30&ags . . o L ) ) i ' . ' - o
30- 60 days . . oL : . " T8 © 45

< '60+days e ' : S . L 215 130

Towl A s o ' SR 223 " 176

17. Trade and other payables
3 Ma'rch 31 March
. 2021 2020.
- £000 - £000
- Current . . . . o B

Trade payables - ’ - ' ) . 4,052 4,748

Other payables - . ) ) 8,036 10,734
Accruals and deferred income . - e 22,475 © 17964 -

‘ ‘ ‘ o ) 34,563 - 33,446

.

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all pagables are paid within the credn terms The Directors consider the
_carrying amount of trade and other payables and accruals and deferred income approxnmates fair value.
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Notes tothe Financial Statements

18 chrncml instruments

The Group manages its capltal to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the return to

" stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the
borrowings disclosed in note 19, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity halders of the parent, comprising issued capital, -
reserves and retained earnrngs The Group’s debt facilities requrre 40% oftotal drawn’ debt to be fixed. The Group has comp!red with this during

" theyear

- With the exception of derivative instruments which are classified as a financial liability at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income
{“FVOCr), financial liabilities are categorised under amortised cost. All financial assets are categorised as fair value to profitand loss (“FVTPL’).

’ Exposure to credit and interest rate rrsks arise in the normal course of the Group's busmess Derivative flnancral |nstruments are used to manage -
exposure to fluctuations in interest rates but are not employed for speculatrve purposes:

A.

Balance sheet management

. The Group's Board reviews the capital structure on an ongoing basrs As part of this review, the Board considers the cost ofcaprtal and the risks

o .

- associated with each class of capital. The Group seeks to have a conservative gearing ratio [the proportion of net debt to equttg] The Board

considers at each review the appropriateness of the current ratio in light of the above. The Board is currentlg satisfied with the Groups
gearing ratio.

The gearing ratio at the year rendis as follows:

2021 2020 -

: . £000 £000
Debt . . . - .. i , o . ‘ (337300} (402,028} -
Cashand cashequrvalents : : L : o . 12322 51418
Net debt L o ' : : (324,878) (350,610) °
* Balance sheet equity ' 4 : : : 1,453,895 1,163,876

. Net debt to equity ratio o o ) : ' ‘22.4% ©301%

Debt management -

The Group currently borrows through asenior term loan, secured on 26 selfstorage assets, a loan with.Aviva Commercial Finance Limited secured.
on a portfolio of 15 self storage assets, and a £70 million toan from M&GInvestments Limited secured on a portfolio of 15 self storage assets.
Borrowmgs are arranged to.ensure an approprnate maturity profrle and to maintain short-term Irqurdrtg Fundrng is arranged through banks and
financialinstitutions with whaom the Group has a strong working reIatronshrp .

Interest rate risk managemem o .
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at both fixed and ﬂoatrng interest rates. The risk is managed by

‘the Group by maintaining an ‘appropriate mix between fixed and ﬂoatrng rate borrowings, and by the use of interest rate swap contracts. Hedging
" activities are evaluated regularlg to.align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite; ensuring optimal hedging strategres are applied, by

erther posmonrng the balance sheet or protecting interest expense through different interest rate cgcles

At 31 March 2021 the Group had two lnterest rate derrvatuves in place; £30 million fixed at 0.4% [excludmg the margin on the underlying debt
instrument] until October 2021, and £35 million fixed at 0.76% (excluding the margin on the underlying debt instrument) until June 2023.

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interestamounts calculated on .
agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed
rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable rate debt held: The fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date is
determined by discounting the future cash flows using the curves at the reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract and is

" disclosed below The average interest rate'is based on the outstanding balances at the end of the financial gear

The £30 million interest rate swap settles on a monthlg basis. The floating rateon the interest rate swap is one month LIBOR. The Group-settles
the difference between the flxed and floating interest rate on a net basis. ’

The £35 million interest rate swap settles on a three- monthlg basis. The floating rate on the interest rate swap is. three month LIBOR. The Group

) settles the difference between the fixed and floating.interest rate on anet basis.
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" 18. Financial instruments (continued)

C. Interest rate risk management (continued)

" The Group does not hedge account for its interest rate swaps and states them at fair value, with changes in fair value included in the statement
of comprehensive income. A reconciliation of the movement in derivatives is provided in the table below:

. _ : ' 2021 2020

» . £000 £000

At 1 Apiil I S - _ (322) © 581
Fair value movementin theyear ‘ 4 . ' _ . " (148) . - (908)
At 31 March o . : o . (475) " (327

" The table below reconci'l’es' the opening and closing balances of the Group's finance related liabilities for the current and prior year.

ﬁbligatlnns under’ Interest rate ’
Loans _ lease liabilities derivatives . . Total ot
) £000 £000 £000 . £000
At 1 April 2020 . . - o . . " (402,028) (18937) (327). (421,292)
.Cash movement in the year i Lo ' . o 64,728 - 1,009 - . 65,737
Fair value movement ’ ] : . . . - . = . (148) (148)
At31 March 2021 . (337300)  (17928). (475) (355,703)

* The difference between the loans balance-above and the balance sheet is loan arrangement‘fees of £1,862,000.

Obligations under Interest rate

Loans lease liabilities derivatives . ' Totat

) £000 £000 £000 - 'A £000
AU1April 2019 . o - .. (337625) (19,899) 581 (356,943)
Cash'movement in the year * S » - [64/403) 962 - (63,441)
Nori-cash movement . o ' - - (s08) (908)
At 31 March 2020 - ' - (402,028) (18,937) (327) (421,292)

I
D

The difference between the loans balance above and the balance sheet is loan arrangement fees of £2,293,000

-D.” Interest rate sensitivity analysis ‘ . . ’

In managing interest rate risks the Group aims to reduce (he impact of short-term ﬂuctuatlons on the Group s earnings, without ;eopardlsmg its
flexibility. Over the longer term, permanent changes in interest rates may have an impact on consolidated earnings.

At 31 March 2021, it is estimated that an increase of 0.25 percentage paints in interest rates would have reduced the Group's adjusted proﬂt
before tax and net equity by £394,000 (2020: reduced adjusted profit before tax by £549 ,000) and a decrease of 0.25 percentage points in
interest rates would have increased the Group’s adjusted profit before tax and net equity by £394,000 (2020: increased adjusted profit before fax ’

by £549,000). The sensmvrtg has been calculated bg applying the |nterest rate change to (he variable rate borrowmgs net of interest rate swaps,
atthe year end. . - .

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has. reduced durmg the year, following the reductlon in the amount of floating rate debt The. Board
monitors closely the exposure to the floating rate element of our deb(
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Notes to the Financial Statemeri_ts

'18. Financial instruments (continued)

E. Cush munugement and liquidity

‘Uitimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests wnh the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate I|qu1d|tg risk management:

~ framework for the management of the Groups short, medium, and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages I|qu1dltg risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously-monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles-of financial assets and liabilities. Includéd in note 19 is a description of addmonal
undrawn facilities that the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk. : .

- Short term money market deposnts are used to manage liquidity whllst maxnmusmgthe rate of return on cash resources; glvmg due con5|derat|on
torisk. . : .

F. Foreign currency management .
The Group does not have any foreigh currency exposure.

v

“G. Credit risk

The credit risk management policies of the Group withrespect to trade recelvables are discussed in note 16. The Group has'no s:gmhcant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over 62,000 customers in our stores.

The credlt risk on Inquld funds is limited because the counterpames are banks with high credn ratings a55|gned by lntematlonal
credit: ratlng agencies. . .

H. l-'lncmcial mcﬂuritv unalvsls ) :
In respect of interest- beanng financial liabilities, the follow-ngtable provudes a maturity analgS|s for individual elements

. “Lessthan -." Oneto Twoto More than

. : .- s . ) . Total one year two years five years * five years

‘2021 Maturity . o . . £000 £000 - © £000 . £000 £000
Debt - v o

Aviva loan ) . : ) - 114,800 © 2,865 3,008 9,959 98,968

M&G loan payable at variable-r‘a(e . Lo . _ 35,000 o C - ’ - - . 35000 - .-

M&G loan fixed by interest rate derivatives . ' - ' 35,000 . - - 35,000 ' -

Bank loan payable at variable rate . : o 122,500 To- - . 122,500 R

Debt fixed by interest rate derivatives ' 30,000 - - 30000 - . -

, Total o o S 337,300 . 2,865 . 3,008 232,459 98,968

) * Lessthan - Oneto Two te More than

. . . . Total one year two ears five years five years’

2020 Maturity . : ) . - £000 - £000 £000 £000 ) £000

Debt : . ) : ’ g

Aviva loan: _ . C 117528 2,728 2865 - 9484 102451

. M&G loan payable at variable raté . ' . 35,000 - - *35,000 . -

AM&GA loan fixed by interest rate dérivatives B - 35,000 . - ) = 35,000 - -

Bank I’oanvpagable atvariable rate’ - . . .. 184,500 . - - 184,.500 ) ) -

_Debt fixed by interest rate derivatives . ) RE ’ 130,000 - - . 30000 -

=

otal A S Y 02008 27228 . 2865 203,984 102451
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18. Fihcmcial instruments (continued)

1. Fair values of financial instruments

’

The fair values of the Group’s cash and short-term deposits and those of other financial assets equate 10 their book values. Details of the Group's

receivables at amortised cost are set out in note 16. The amounts are presented net of provisions for doubtful receivables, and allowances for

impairment are made where appropriate. Trade and other payables, including bank borrowings, are carried at amortised cost. Obligations under
.lease liabilities are included at the present value of their minimum lease payments. Derivatives are carried at fair value.

For those financial instruments held at valuation, the Group has categorised them into a three level fair value hierarchy based on the priority of
the inputs to the valuation technique in accordance with IFRS 7. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for
_“identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs [Level 3).Ifthe inputs used to measure fair value fall within
different levels of the hierarchy, the category level is.based on the lowest priority level input that is Slgnlflcant to the fair value measurement of
the instrument in its entirety. The fair value of the Group’s outstanding interest rate derivatives, as detajled in note 18C, have been estimated by
calculatmgthe present value of future cash flows, using appropriate market discount rates, representing Level 2 fair value measurements as

defined by IFRS 7. There are no financial instruments which have been categorised as Level 1 or Level 3. The fair value of the Groups debt equates

. toits book va!ue

J. Muturltv unalvsis of ﬁncmcial liabilities

The contractual maturities based on market conditions and expected gleld curves prevallmg at the year end date are as follows:

Trade and other

. Interest

. Borrowings Obligations under

" Total

payables rate swaps and interest lease liabilitles
2021 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
From five to twenty years - - 104,576 - 18,274 122,850
From two to five years - 25 249,913 5,267 255,205
From one to two years - 162 11,638 1,780 13,580
Due after more than one year - 187 s 366,127 . - 25,321 391,635
Due within one year 12,088 271 11,639 1,780 25,778
Total 12,088 458 377,766 . 27101 417,413
Trade and other Interest Borrowings 4 Obligations under
payables rate swaps and interest lease liabilities Total
2020 £000 © .£000 ~ fooo £000 £000
From five to twenty years - Do 111,440 18,979 131,419
From two to five years’ - 154 318,004 5,342 324,500
From one to two years - - - 178 12,746 1,780 14,704
Due after more than one year - 332 443190 272,101 470,623
Due within one year : 15,482 176 . 12,746 1,780 30,184
15,482 508 -455,936 28,881 500,807

Total

Big Yeilow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021

159



‘Notes to the Financial Statements

18. Financial instruments (continued)

K. Reconciliation of maturity analyses

The maturity analysis in note 18J shows non-discounted cash ﬂows forall fmanmal liabilities mcIudlng interest pagments. The table below
reconcnes the borrowmgs column in note 19 with the borrowings and interest column inthe matuntg analysis presented in note 18J.

. - Unamortised §drro'wings
. . o . - Borrowings Interest  borrowing costs and interest
2021 - L s . £000 £000° ) £000 ., E00O
From five to twenty years R © . 98,968 " 4703 .. 905 - 104,576 .
. From twao to five years . : o ' : ' . 232,459 16,497 - 957 249,913
‘fromonetotwoyears © ' : : ) 3,008 © 8,630 .- © 11,638
Dueaftermorethanone year - - _ - A 334,435 29,830 1862° 366,127
-Due within.one year - ) . e - 2,865 .oare - 11,639
Total R 3 ' 1332300 38604 1,862 327,766
. Unamortised Borrb;uings
. . . . : L . Borrowings - . Interest borrowing costs . and interest-
2020 . - - : . £000 £000 £000 © £000
Fromfive totwenty years. . - - » R o 102,451 7967 1022 - 111,440
_Fromtwotofiveyears- + . . . . L 293,984 23,749 1,271 - 319,004
- From one to two years A o 2865 . ° 9881 . - - 12,746
DQ_eafte[more'(hanone:gear . o : _ ) ‘ 399,300 ’ 41,597 2,293 .443,190 .
Duewithinoneyear =~ * . - E R 2728 10018 - . - .. 12,748
Total o : . S : ’ © - 402,028 S1615 - 2,293 455936
19. Borrowings
- . ’ . ' : : 31 March 31 March
o ‘ I o i . e021 2020
Secured borrowings at amortised cost - T o . . ) £000 - £000
. Current liabilities - - ) - R L .
Aviva loan - _ . ‘ ' , : S 2,865 2,728
: ' 2865 2728
Non-current liabilities : - . )
Bank borrowings : ~ ’ - . _— © 152,500 214,500
Avivaloan * L e . , 111,935 ) 114,800
- M&G toan . S AR ) . 20,000 20,000
Unamortised loan arrangemént costs L o S . o - [1,862), . {2,293)
Total non-current borrowings S ' ’ ) . L '332,573 . 392,007
Totat borrowings , S S : 335438 398,735 .
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19, Borrowmgs (continued)-

The weighted average interest rate paid on the borrowmgs durrng the year was 2 9% [2020 2. 6%]

. The Group has £87,500, 000 in undrawn committed bank borrowing facilities at 31 March 2021, which expire after between three and four years
. (2020: £25,500,000 expiring after between four and five years}. -

The Group has a £100 million 15 year ﬂxed rate loan with Aviva Commercial Finance Limited, exptrtng in AprlI 2027. The Ioan is secured over a portfclio
of 15 freehold self storage centres. The annual fixed interest rate on the ioan is 4.9%. The loan amortises to £60 million over the course of the 15

. years. The debt service is'payable monthly based on fixed annual amounts. In March 2020, the Group agreed a new 7 year debt facility with Aviva of

£35million at an all-in cost of 1.96%, secured over the existing Aviva security pool of 15 stores. The all-in cost of this tranche of the loan reduced to
1.91% following the installation of 50 kWp capacity solar panels at three of the stores, which took place during the year. The'total debt facilities from
Aviva are now £114.8 million of which £19.8 million is amortising over the remaining seven yearsof the loan.

The Group hais a secured £240 million five year revalving bank facility with Lloyds, HSBC and Bank.of Ireland expiring in October 2024, with a margin
of 1.25%. The Group has an option to increase the amount of the loan facility by a further £30 million during the course of the loan’s term.

The Group has a £70 million seven gear loan with M&G Investmerits Limited, with a bullet repayment in June 2023. The loan i is secured over a portfolio
of 15 freehold self storage centres Half of the loan is variable, and half is subject to an interest rate derivative.

The movement inthe Group s loans are shown net in the cash flow statement asthe bank loan is a revolving facuhtg and is repaid and redrawn

-each month..

The Group was in compliance with its banklng covenants at 31 March 2021 and throughout the gear The main covenants are summansed inthe .
table below: CoL

At 31 March

Covenant : . v Covenant level ‘ . ' 2021
Consolidated EBITIA” - : Minimum 1.5% S : 8.9
Consolidated net tangible assets o ) Minimum £250m : : ' £1,454m
Bank loan interest cover . . . . Minimum 1.75x s B 15.0x
Aviva loan interest service cover ratio . . Minimum 1.5x ’ ) 4.4x
Aviva loan debt service cover ritio T Minimum 1.2x ' . . - 28x
ME&G interest cover : - -~ Minimum 1.5x . . - - 9.6x
Interest rate profile of tinancial liabilities
Welghted Periodfor- -~ Weighted
Total Floating rate Fixed rate, average which the average period”
R £000 : £000 £000 " interest rate rate s fixed _ until maturity
At3iMarch 2021 . e ’ : . : L .o
Gross financial liabilities ) a2 337300 - 157,500 179,800° 2.6% 4.6 years 4.0 years
At 31 March 2020 L . o
Gross financial liabilities . ' ’ . 402,028 . 219,500 182,528 ) 2.5% 5.6 years 4.9 years

All monetary liabilities, including short-term receivables and payables are denominated in sterling. The weighted average interest rate includes the

- effectof the Groups interest rate derivatives. The Directors have concluded that the carrying value of borrowmgs approximates to its fair value.

Narrative disclosures on the Group's palicy. for financial mstruments are included within the Strateglc Report and in note 18.
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20. Deferred tax

Déferred tax assets in respect of IFRS 2 [£0 1 million), corporatlon tax losses (£4.9 million}, capital allowances in excess ofdepreuatlon
(£0.2 million) and capital losses [£1 6 million) in respect of the non-REIT taxable business have not been recogmsed as itis not considered probable
that sufficient (axable profits will arise in the relevant taxable entity. .

21. Obligations under lease liabilities

- Present value of minimum lease
Minimum leage payments ’ payments

2021 - 2020 . 202 2020 °

) £000 . £000 £000 £000
Amounts payable underAIease_Iiabiliti'es: . . ' ’

Within one year - . . ) ! : . . . 1,780 1,780 1,751 1,751

" Within two to five years inclusive - . ) 7047 7122 6,208 6,266

Greater than five years ' ' ‘ N ’ 18,274 19,979 9,969 10,920

A . 27101 - 28,881 12,928 18,937

_Less: future finance charges : ) . (9,173} A [9,9'44]
Present value of lease liabilities ' - : 12928 . 189%

AII oblnganons under lease liabilities are denommated in sterlmg Interest rates are flxed at the contract date. Alf leases are on a fixed repayment basis
and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments. The carrglng amount ofthe Groups lease obllgatlons approximates their
fair value. :

22.Share capital
' Called up, allotted, and fully paid
2021 © 2020 .

£000 £000
Ordinary shares of 10 pence each ' L L o 17,568 16,714

- Movement in Issued share capital . . .
‘Number of shares at 31 March 2019 ) o ' . ’ A -7 166,665,158
. Exercise of share options — Share option schemes R ) .. 473,369
Number of shares at 31 March 2020 . ) . o o : - 167,138,527
Issue of shares — placing = : : C ) ' 8,335,043
Exercise of share options — Share option schemes . : o - . 406,300
~ Number ofshares at 31 March 2021 ) ‘ K o ' 175,880,470

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.
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22. Share capital (continued)

. . . . » R Numberof .  Numberof

- Date option : : . Date onwhichthe | ordinaryshares  ordinary shares,
-, Granted . Option price per ordinary share ~  Date first exercisable “exercise period expires . 2021 . 2020 -

29 July 2014 ' nil p** . " 29July201?7 . 29 July 2024 ... 830 ’ 830

21 July 2015 nil p** ’ 21 July2018 . . - 21 July 2025 ) " 16,268 13,873

22 July2016 - B nil p‘*' . 22 July 2019 21 July 2026 30,703 58,674

15 March 2017 . 580.0p* . : 1April2020 T 1 October 2020 - ) ) = - 46,900

2 August 2017 - ©onilp*™ 2 August 2020 2 August 2027 68,034. 382,490

13 March 2018 675.4p* . 1April2021 - 1 October 2021 87,000 30,063

24 July 2018 - nil p** . _ 24 July2021 24 July 2028 . 334,201 343,868

11 March 2019 749.9p* © 1April 2022 " 1 0ctober 2022° 48,124 50,884

19 July 2019 ) nilp** 19 July 2022 - : - 18July2029 - " 362,730 366,985

2March 2020 © 94720p . 1 April 2023, ' 1 October 2023 51,889 - - 52,725

S August 2020 nilp**- . S August 2023 . S August 2030 . - 410,767 -

1 March 2021 '803.2p* .. 1 April 2024 | October 2024 ' _ 94,695 - -

2

At 31 March 2021 options in issue to Directors and employees were as follows:

1,505,241 - . 1,413,298

* SAYE (see note 23) ** LTIP (see note 23)

Own shares

The'own shares reserve represents the cost of shares.in Big Yellow: Group PLC purchased in the market and held by the Big Yellow Group PLC Employee
Benefit Trust, along with shares issued directly to the Employee Benefit Trust 1,122, 90? shares are held in the Emplogee Benefit Trust [2020
1,122,907),'and no shares are held in treasurg

Share- based payments

The Company has three equity share-based payment arrangements namely an LTIP scheme (with approved and unapproved components),
an Employee Share Save Scheme [“SAYE") and a Deferred Bonus Plan. The Group recognised a total expense in the year related to equity-seéttled
share-based payment transactions of £2,869,000 (2020: £2,256,000).

Equity-settled share option plans

Since 2004 the Group has operated an Employee Share Save Scheme (“SAYE™] which allows any employee who has more than six months service to
purchase shares at a 20% discount to the average quoted market price of the Group shares at the date of grant. The associated’savings tontracts are

- three years at which point the employee can exercise their opnon to purchase the shares or take the amount saved including interest, in cash The
) scheme is admlmstered by Yorkshire Building Society. .

‘Big-Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2021

Un an annual basis since 2004 the Group awarded nil-paid options to senior management under the Group’s Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP"].
The awards are conditional on the achievement of challenging performance targets as described on page 105 of the Remuneration Report.
The'awards granted in 2004, 2005 and 2006 vested in full. The awards granted in 2007 and 2009 lapsed, and the awards granted in 2008

and 2010 partially vested. The awards granted in 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 fully vested. The award granted in 2017 vested to 83. 6%
of its potential. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for options exercised in the year was £10.64 (2020: £9.88).
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23 Share-based payments (continued) °

Co2021 . 2020

LTIP scheme ’ . . ) v . No. nfop(ian_s No. of options
Outstanding at beginning of year ‘ I T - 1472726 1,212,765
Granted during the year ' _ ' v ' ) | s08878 457058
Lapsed during the year o T . . ’ . {98,071) . (62,097)
Exercised duringthe year : ) : . ] .. . [(360,000) ~  [435,000)] - -
Outstanding at the end of the year . B S : ) T 1,223,533 1,172,726
Exercisable at the end of the year S . o 131,282 - 79,383
The weighted average fair value of opnons granted during the year was £1, 512,000 [2020 £1,499 000]
Options outstandlng at 31 March 2021 had a weighted average contractual life of 8.1 years [2020 8.2 gears]
2021 - 2020
Weighted Weighted "
. average - - . average
. L 2021 exercise price 2020 exercise price
Employee Share Save Scheme [“SAYE"} C . .. No.of options (£) ‘No of options -
Outstanding at beginning of year ' ‘ 240,572 232 242,849 " 663
Granted during the year . . : S ' © 94,695 9.03: 52,725 9.4?
Forfeited during theyear =~~~ . 4 - (6659) . . 740  (16633) 689 -
Exercised du]"ing the year " o - S . L. (46,900) 5.80 .. [38,369) 6.08
Outstanding at the end of the year ' o o ) . 281,708 8.15 - 240,572 . 732
Exercisable at the end of the year - . ‘ : . : i o= - - -
Options outstanding at 31 March 2021 had a weighted average contractual life of 2.0 years (2020: 1.9 years).
The inputs into the Black-Scholes model for the options granted during the year are as follows:
) rie | SAYE
Expected volatility e o ‘ . ) ‘ _ ) © - nfa 35%.
Expected life .. C - ’ . o . 3years . 3years
Risk-free rate . o o : B ’ . 0.7% 0.7%

- Expected dividends e o . o ’ 4 2.7% 4.7%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group’s share price over the year prior to grant.

Deferred bonus plan

- The Executive Directors receive awards under the Deferred Bonus Plan. Thns is accounted for as an equity instrument. The plan wassetup -
in Julg 2018. The vesting criteria and scheme mechanlcs are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
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24 Capital commltments

. At 31 March 2021 the Group had £17.3 million of amounts contracted but not provided in respect of the Group's propemes [2020 £10. 0 million -

of capital commltments]

25 Events aﬁer the bctlance sheet date

0n'23 April 2021t the Group exchanged contracts to acquire a sute in Kentish Town for£16 5 mnllnon

26.Caish flow notes

a) Reconcluutloh of proﬁt'cmer tax to cash generuted from operdt;ons

2024

2020

Note £000 - £000
. Profit after tax © 265186 92,576
- Taxation ) ‘636 - . 871
Share of profit of associates (3.148) - (856)
Investment income (69) (114]
" Finance costs ’ 8,165 10,751
Operating profit . ' 2%0.??0 103,228
(Gain on the revaluation of.investment properties 43,15 (189,27?) -(23,183)
Gain on disposal of investment property - (52)
Depreciation of plant, equipment, and owner-occupied property ’ 4p 803 677
. Depreciation of lease liability capital obllgauons 143, 14b 1,290 . 1,198 -
Employee share options - 6, 2,869 - 2,256 .
Cash generated from operations pre working capltal movements 86,455 84,109,
Decrease/(increase) in inventories : " 46, (130)
Decrease in receivables 841 ~ . 564
(Decrease)/ihcrease in payables (211) 53t
Cash generated from operations 87,131 85,074
'b) ‘Reconciliation of net cash flow movement to net debt
2021 2020
. ] Note . .. £000 £000
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year ' : (39,096) 33,516°
Cash flow from decrease/(increase) in debt financing 64,728 (64,403)
Change ir net debt resulting from cash flows 25,632 '(30,887)
Movément in net debt In the year 25,632 [3q,é8?] '
Net debt at the start of the gear (350,610)  ° .(319,723)
Net debt at the end ofthe year “18a [324,9??] (350,610} -

- Big Yellow Group PLC Annual Report and Accounts 202} .
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27. Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its sub5|dnanes which are refated pames have been ehmunated on consolidation and are not dlsclosed
in this note. . - - - :

Txansuct!ons with Armadillo Stoxage Holding Company Limlted

As described in note 14, the, Group has a 20% interest in Armadillo Storage Holding Compang Limited (“Armadillo 1), and entered |nto transactions with
_Armadillo’1 during the gear on normal commercral terms as shown inthe table below. -

Transacﬂons with Armadillo Storage Holding Companv 2 Limited

As described in note 14, the Group has a 20% interest in Armadillo Storage Holding Company 2 Limited (“Armadillo 2"] and entered into transactions
with Armadillo 2 durrng the gear on normal commercial terms as shown in the table below.

. 31 March

. 31March-
2021 2020
£000  £000
Fees earned from Armaditio 1 ’ o . : - 977 ) 839
Fees earned from Armadillo 2 ) » : - 376 . 1,394
Balance due from Armadillo 1 : ' ‘ AN 51

Balance due from Armadillo 2 o o ' 27 2 1,018

. The balance due from Armadlllo 2in the prior year mcludes a performance feeof £1 mrllron

. Direciors' Remuneration

The remuneration of the Executive and Non Executive Directors, who are the keg management personnel of the. Group, is setout below in aggregate
Further information on the remuneration of individual Directors is found in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 9010 111.

31 March o3 March
2021 2020

£000 ' £000 -
" Short term employee benefits 1,636 1,461
Post-employment benefits 140 o132
Share-based payments 2,800 2,196

4,5% 3,789

- AnyJunk Limited . .
Jim Gibson is a Non-Executive Director and shareholder in AnyJunk Lifnited and Adrian Lee is a sharehqlder in AnyJunk Limited. During the year
AnyJunk Limited provided waste disposal services to the Group on normal commercial terms, amounting to £25,000 (2020: £37,000).

. No other related party tra'nsaction's took place during the Qears ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

London Children's Ballei

" The Group signed a Section 106 agreement 5|gned with Wandsworth Council relating to the development of our Battersea store, which required
the Group to provide free cultural space under a Social Agreement with the Council. In conjunction with.this, subsequent to the year end, the
Group granted a lease over this space to London Children's Ballet ata peppercorn rent. Jim Gibson i is the Chairman of.Trustees of the London
Children's Ballet, :

DS Opemtlons Centre Limited

In December.2020, the Group invested £450,000 in DS Operations Centre Limited (“DSOC”}. 0SOC provided alarm and CCTV momtortng services
to the Group under normal commercial terms during the year, amounting to £22,000 (2020: £nit].
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- Company Balance_ Sheet

Year ended 31 March 2021

T 2021 . 2020

Note £000 - © £000 -
Non-current assets ) . ’ . . .
Plant, equipment, and owner-occupied property : . ) ' ) 30a . 1,780 1,875
Investment in subsidiary companies : ’ .30b 27,960 ' 25,091
' ' ' 29,740. 26,966.
Current assets . . . .
Trade and other receivables : -7 T ' N 3 533,352 568,776 .
Derivative financial instrurments ’ . o . ' . ’ - 86 .
Cashand cash equivalents ) : - ' 1 S1.
§33,353 568,863
Total assets’ ’ - : , 563,093 595,829
Current liabilities - . . . . ' E
Trade and other payables - . . s T . . 32 (9.,457) " (3,867)
Obligations under lease liabilities N . S . [e9) "(23)
' ' S (9,486) - (3,890)
Non-current liabilities X R .
Derivative financial instruments . : ) N : (59). -
Obligations under lease liabilities .+ - : e . : (95) (123)
Bank borrowings . ' ’ . — . ' © (151,874) (213,708)
(152,028) . (213,831)
Total liabilities . ) ' Lo = ) e ) . J v (161,514) (217721)
Net assets o : ' . ‘ : . 401,579 378,108
Equity . ‘ ' . ’ .
Share capital - o ' : _ . 22 . 12588 16,714
Share premium account ) o . : . . 192,218 112,320
Reserves ’ o C ‘ . . .. ' 28 . 191,773 249,074
Equity shareholders'fu,ndé o : co A L 401,579 378,108

" The Company reported aloss for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 of £1.4 million (2020: loss of £1.3 million). The financial statements were
approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 24 May 2021. They were signed on its behalf by:

JimGibson ~ JohnTrotman
Director Dirgctor

Compdny Registration No. 03625199

The accompanying notes form pai't of the financial stateméms. :
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Company Statement of Chcmges in Equlty

. Year ended 31 March 2021

: : Share Other non- ’ .Capitat
Share premi b : dempti Retained Own
capital - account reserve - reserve earnings shares Total
£000 © £000 £000 ‘£000 ) " £000 £000 £000
At 1 April 2020 16,714 112,320 74,950 T1,795 173,348 (1,019). 378,108
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - . - (1,362) - (1,362)
. Issue of share capital 874 . 79,898 - - . - - 80,772
Dividend = ) - ’ - - : - (58,808) - (58,808)
Credit to equity for equity:settled share; . :
based payments - -. - - ‘2,859V - 2,869
At 31 March 2021 17,588 192,218 74,950 0 - 1,795 116,047 (1,019) 401,579
\
The Company’s share capital is disclosed in note 22.
The own shares balarice represents amounts held by the Emplogee Bénefit Trust (see note 22).
Year ended 31 M‘archAZOZO
Share Other non- ’ Capital
Share premium _distributable redemption Retained Own’
capital account reserve . - reserve earnings shares Totat
) £000 ' £000 - £000 .+ £000 £000 £000 - £000
At 1 April 2019 . 16,667 "111,514 74,950 1,795 228,062 (1,019) 431,969
" Total comprehensive income for the year - - ~ - (1,264) - (1,264}
Issue of share capital a7 806 ~ C - ©- -~ "853
Dividend ) - - ~ - (55,706} - (55.706) ,
Credit to equity for equity-settied share- . .
based payments . - - - = " 2,256 ~ 2,256
. At 31 March 2020 16,714 112,320 1 74,950 . 1',?95 173,348 (1,019)

338,108'

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.

T
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Notes to the Financial' Stqt"emen:ts

28 Profit for the year

" As permitted bg section 408 of the Companles Act 2006, the statement of comprehensuve income of the Compang is not presented as part of these
financial statements. The loss for the year attributable to equng shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of the Company was £1.4 mitlion
.(2020: loss of £1.3 million). .

29 Basis of accountmg

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Repomng Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (“FRS 101"). In
preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognmon measurement and disclosure requirements of international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply with -
Companles Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken:

®  Cash Flow Statement and related notes .
. Comparative penod reconcnllauons for plant equipment and owner- occupled property and mvestmem properues
= Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned sub5|d|ar|es
Disclosures in respect of capital management; - ‘
8. The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs; and
® Disclosuresin reSpect of the compensatlon of Key Management Personnel.

As the consolidated financial statéments mclude the equwalem disclosures, the Compang has also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 available
in respect of the following disclosures: . .

®  |FRS 2 Share-Based Pagments in-respect of group settled shaye-bésedpagments; and . .
® ‘Certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and the disclosures required by IFRS ? Financial Instrument Disclosures.

. The financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost basis except that derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value:
The Company's principal accounting policies are the same as those applied in the Group financial statements.

Going concern ) .
See note 2 for the review-of going concernifor the Group and the Company.

" Investment in subsidiaries : ' ‘ : B . . A
These are recognised at cost less provision for any impairment. '

IFRIC 11, IFRS 2 Group and Treasurv Share Transactions

The Company makes equity settled share-based pagmen(s to certain emplogees of certain subsndlarg undertakings. Equity settled Share-based
payments that are made to the employees of the Compang s subsidiaries are treated as increases in equity over the vesting period of the award,
with a corresponding increase in the Compang s investments in subsidiaries, based on an estimate of the number of shares that WI|| eventually vest.
This is the only addmon to investment in subsudlarles in the current year.
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30. Non-current assets
" a) Plant, equipment, and owner-occupied property

Fixtures,

Freehold - Leasehold fittings & office IFRS 16
property impi quip leases Total
£000 . £000 £000 £000 "£000
.- . Cost T . A . . - )

' At 31 March 2020 o = - . ‘ L2203 64 7 174 ©2512
Additions . o : - - 1 s - - - . 1
Retirement of fully depreciated assets ' ! - (18) (59) . - ‘ (7?)

© At 31 March 2021 . 2,204 . % 12 . 174 2435
- Accumulated deﬁreclation . ' . .
At31March2020 : o - (534) (23) c(54) . (28). - [637):
Charge for the year } . S (s8) (13 . [11]‘ (26) . [96)
Retirement of fully depreciated assets . ’ C - 18 59 ' : - ’ '_ ’?
Av31March2021 . ' ' . (se2) - (8) (6) (s2) (656)
Netbookvalue . - . : ' o ' '
At 31 March 2021 | I 1,612 L .40 6 122 1,780 -
At31 March 2020 A 4 o ' g 1,669 a4 - s 187
“'b) Investments in subsidiary companies
. Investment | °
In subsidiary
undertakings
£000
Cost . : . . . ) . .
At31March2020 . o ' S . 25,001
Additions_ : : ] ' . _ . - _ . 2,869

At3iMarch202t : e e 27960

The Directors assessed the carrging'value of the investment in subsidiary undertaking for indicators of impairment. There were no indications
of impairment. .o - : .
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30. Non-current assets (continued) .

The Group's subsidiaries are all wholly-owned, the Group holds 100% of the voting power and the cohpanies are incorporated, registered, and operate.

in England and Walés. The registered office of all subsidiaries is 2 The Deans, Bridge Road, Bagshm Surreg, GU19 5AT. All subsidiaries are included in

the consolidated accounts. The subsidiaries at 31 March 2021 are listed below:

Name of subsidiary

Principal activity

- Big Yellow Self Storage (GP) Limitéd

_Big Yellow Self Storage Company Limited
Big Yellow (Battersea) Limited .
The Big Yellow Construction Company Limited
- The Big Yellow Holding Company Limited
Big Yellow Limited'Partnership

Big Yellow Nominee No. 1 Limited ,.
Big Yellow Nominee No. 2 Limited
Big Yellow Self Storage Company 1 Limited
Big Yellow Self Storage Company 2 Limited
. Big Yellow Self Storage Company 3 Limited
Big Yellow Self Storage Company 4 Limited
Big Yellow Self Storage Company 8 Limited
_ Big Yellow Self Storage Company A Limited
Big Yellow Self Storage Company M Li}nited
Big Yellow (Wapping 2) Limited - -

BYRCo Limited

BYSSCo A Limited

BYSSCo Limited

Kator Storage Limited
The Last Mile Company Limited -
Lock & Leave Limited '
Lock & Leave {Twickenham] Limited

General Partner

Self storage :

Self storage

Construction management

. Holding Company

Self stm‘ége
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant *

- Dormant

Self storage

* Self storage

Self storage

Self storage ’

Property managemem
Dormant

" Self storage

Self storage
Holding Company -
Self storage A
Self storage

In addition, the Group has a 100% interest in Pramerica Bell Investment Trust Jersey, a trust registered in Jersey.
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‘Notes to the Finqncidl Statements

30. Non-current assets (continued)- .

Audit exemption statement

For its most recent year end the compames listed below were entitled to exemptlon from audit under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 relating.
to subsidiary companies. The members of these compames have not required them to obtain an-audit ofthelr flnanual statements for the year ended

-31'March 2021
Name ofsubsldiarg . ) ) _ Prihcl;;alqctlvhg'
Big Yellow Self Storage (GP) Limited o *"  Big Yellow Self Storage Company 8 Limited
The Big Yellow Construction Company Limited . - Big Yellow (Wapping 2] Limited
Big Yellow Holding Company Limited C ' BYRCo Limited
Big Yellow Nominee No. 1 Limited " BYSSColLimited .
Big Yellow Nominee No. 2 Limited ‘ : BYSSCo A Limited )
Big Yellow Self Storage Company 1 Limited . ' . Kator Storage Limited
. Big Yellow Self Storage Company 2 Limited . The Last Mile Company Limited
Big Yellow Self Storage Company 3 Limited S : . Lock & Leave Limited !

Big Yellow Self Storage Company 4 Limited . Lock and Leave (Twickenham) Limited

3l. Trade qn‘dvother receivables

31 March . 31 March
2021 2020
. £000 . £000
Amounts owed by Group undenakmgs - ) ) . o ) . 533,228 568,636
Prepagments and accrued income . .. . N : - . 124 © 140
533,352 568,776

Amounts owed by Grdup undertakings are unsecured and are repayable on demand. The Company recharges its external interest cost to its

subsidiaries. Amounts owed by Group unidertakings have h|stor|callg had immaterial levels of bad debt and consequently the Company has not

recognised any impairment provusnon against them
32 'Imde and other payables

3tMarch _ 3iMarch

028 2020
£000 £000
Current (all 1due within one geér] . . . L . ' .
Other payables - . ‘ ’ - T 9,245 3,774
y Accruals.and deferred income ) ) : . . . 212 . 93
9,457 - 3,867
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: _Not_‘es to the Fiﬁqncictl Stdtements

33. Glossary (continued)

Like-for-like revenue.

- LTV (loan to value)

Maximum lettable area (MLA)

- Move-ins

Move:outs -

NAV

Net debt

" Netinitial yield

Net operating income on stabilisation

- Net promgter scare (NPS]

Net rent per sq ft
Occupancy ,

Occupied space’ -

. Other storage related income .

Pipeline

Property Income Distribution (PID)

'REGO
REIT ~

REVPAF

. Store EBITDA

TCFD

- Total shareholdeér return (TSR)

Excludes the impact of new stores acquired, opened or stores closed in the current or preceding

‘financial year in both the current year and comparative figures. This excludes Manchester

(opened May 2019), Camberwell(opened Julg 2020), Bracknell (opened September 2020]
and Battersea [opened November 2020]

Net debt expressed as a percentage of the external valuation of the Groups mvestment propert:es

The total square foot (sq ft] avallable 10 rent to customers.

. The number of customers taking a storage room in the defined period. .

The number of customers-vacating a storage room in the defined period.

" Netasset value.

Gross borrowings'less cash-and cash equivalents.

The forthcommg year's net operating income expressed as a percentage of capital value after addmg
notional purchaser’s costs.

The pro;ected net operatlng mcome delivered by a store when it reaches a stable level of occupancg

The Net Promoter Score is an index ranging from -100 to 100 that measures the willingness of
customers to recommend a company’s products or services to others The Company measures NPS
based on surveys sent to all its move-ins and move-outs. :

Storage revenue generated fromin place customers divided by occupancy. - -

" The space occupied by customers divided by the MLA expressed as a %.

The space OCCUpIEd bg customers in sq ft: .
Packmg materlals |n5urance and other storage related fees
The Group's development sites. '

Adividend, generally subject to withholding tax, thata UK REIT is required to pag‘from its tax-exempt
property rental business, and which is taxable for UK-resident shareholders at their margmal tax rate.

Renewable Energy Guarantees of Origin

Real Estate Investment Trust Atax reglme which in the UK exempts participants from corporat|on
tax both on UK rental income and gains arlsmg on UK investment property sales, subject to
certain conditions.

- Total store revenue divided by the average-maximum Iettable area in the period.

. Store earnings before interest, tax deprecuatlon and amortisation, see recongiliation in the

portfolio summarg )
Task Force on Climate Related Financial Disclosure

The growth in value of a shareholding overa speufled penod assumlng dividends are reinvested '

to purchase additional units of shares.
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Ten Year Surhmary

Year ended 31 March 202"

2001 2020 2019 . 2018 Car 2016 2015 2014 “2083 2002
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 - £000
Results . , ' )

~ Revenue 135,241 129,313 - 125414 116,660 109,6?0 101,382 84,276 72,196 69,671 GS,BGS
Operating profit before '
gains and losses on . . :
property assets : 81,493 79,978 76,662 70,921 65,316 59,854 48,420 -39,537 37454 35,079
Cash flow from _ ' ) . ’

_ operating activities 76,7212 73615 72,173 -62,977 - 55,974 55,467 42,397 32,752 30,186 27,388
Profit/(loss) before - ' ‘ L
taxation 265,822 93,447 126,855 134,139 99,783 112,246 . 105,236 59,848 31,876 © {35,551)

- Adjusted proﬁt before : . . o . :
taxation 74,625 70,998 67,465 61,422 54,641 . 48,952 39,405 - 29,221 25,471 23,643
Net;\ssets 1.453,8§$ 1163876 1,123,897 981,148 + 890,350 829,387 750,914 - 594,064 552,628 - 494,500
Diluted EPRA earnings .
per share 42.4p 42.1p 41.4p 38.5p - 345p 31.1p 27.1p 20.5p 18.3p. 18.2p
Declared total dividend . : . '
per share 34.0p . " 33.8p 33.2p - . 30.8p 276p 24.9p 21.7p 16.4p 11.0p ©10.0p .
Key statistics
Number of stores open 78 75 7 74 73 oA 69 66 88 65
Sq ft occupied {000). 4,201 3,781 3,810 3,730 3,551 3,363 3,178 2,832 2632 2,458
Occupancy increase/ - . . . .
[decre_ase_] inyear
(000 sq ft)* 420 (29) 80 179 188 185 346 200 174 328
Closing net rent . . S ] . .
pe_rs'q fr** £28.724 £28.15 £2728 £26.74 £26.03 £25,30 £25.23.7 £24.85 £24.65 £26.49

“ Number of customers 62,000 56,500 - 56,000 55,000 52,500 ' 50,000 47,250 41,800 38,500 36,300
Average number of ' ’ o
employees during . . ] . K

_ the year 370 361 347 - 338 329 318 300 289 - 279

* - the otcupancy growth in 2015 and 2017 includes the acquisition of existing stores

** 2 closing net rent per sq ft fell from 2012 to 2013 following the imposition of VAT on self storage on 1 October 2012,
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You can access
more information
about us on our website .

b‘igvel‘lo"w.co.ukﬁ"
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2 The Deans, Bridgé Road,
Bagshot, Surrey GU19 S5AT

" Tel: 01276 470190
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